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November 10, 1999

Mr. Richard Tudor

C/o Ms. Blanca Bayo

Division of Records and Reporting
Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.
Tallahassee, FL. 32399-0850

Dear Mr. Tudor:

AT&T is pleased to respond to the Florida Public Service Commission’s Request For Proposal (RFP)
Docket No. 991222-TP, to provide Telecommunications Relay Service (TRS) for the State of Florida.
AT&T stands by its offer. As such, we intend to offer service in compliance with your RFP as stated in
our responses. I certify that | am AT&T’s representative authorized to make this proposal. AT&T does
not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, national origin, colot, sex, sexual orientation, age,
disabilities, or veteran status.

As requested, we have provided 20 two-sided copies of our technical proposal with one binder marked as
“original.” The price proposals are submitted in separately sealed envelopes. Should you have any
questions relative to our bid response or contractual issues, please contact me at 908-221-8144. For
further convenience, my mailing address is noted below.

As you begin your review, please be aware that AT&T was the first telecommunications company
committed to provided services to the Deaf, Speech Disabled, and Hard of Hearing communities. With
the debut of TTY Operator Services in 1980 and Relay in 1986, the millennium marks our 20®
anniversary of commitment to this field. And our customers applaud our efforts — placing us at the top
among national Relay providers in a recent survey conducted by an independent research firm. Anchored
by our continual system upgrades, quality of services, and a strong concem for customer satisfaction, our
leadership position is one we iniend to maintain.

We would like to bring this resolve to Relay users in the state of Florida. And, therefore, find ourselves
hopeful that the Florida Public Service Commission selects the finest TRS available for a// Floridians.
AT&T!

Sincerely,

L e Lo B

D. Sue Decker

General Manager, Accessible Communications Services
295 North Maple Avenue, Rm 7123M1

Basking Ridge, NJ 079920

Phone: 908-221-8144
TTY: 908-221-2689
FAX: 908-221-4016
E-mail: sdecker@att.com
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

“Go confidently in the direction of your dreams...”

A famous writer once invited us to put our feet on a very promising path The one closest
to our hearts. Part of my dream is to organize and implement the nation’s best support/
self-help network for the relay users. In other words, folks like me. My name is Sue
Decker. I'm the General Manager of AT&T's Accessible Communications Services
Division. Passion for the deaf community is what drives my commitment for establishing
the Florida Relay Center, and AT&T is driven in their commitment to seeing me succeed.
Otherwise, they wouldn’t have authorized me to offerfree long distance and intrastate
toll calls to every Relay user in the state of Florida for three months, (subject to rtariff
effectiveness) the day the new AT&T Florida Relay Center opens its doors.

And with that, let me say that by submitting this proposal to the Florida Public Service
Commission, it is my fervent hope that — through all of our combined efforts — every
Floridian with an idea in mind or a thought to convey will have the opportunity to
strongly voice the courage of their convictions without reservation or fear of ridicule. It
can happen — when you believe, as I do, that truly overcoming a disability means never
having to say, “I can’t.”

A calling that goes the distance.

AT&T’s corporate commitment to this project echoes my firm belief that once you’ve
found a calling, you give it nothing less than your best. After all, it was AT&T that
pioneered Operator Services for the Deaf (OSD) and introduced Relay Services to the
market. And today, AT&T stands confident in the singular notion that we are One
Company. One Vision. One Voice — one we’ll use to provide the state of Florida with a
distinct technological advantage. An advantage that will take the form of the Relay
2000"™ Platform. It’s a multi-tiecred series of sophisticated network components that
include up-front antomation, call control, dynamic call routing, 711 Dialing Readiness,
and planned annual upgrades. Advantage, Florida.

Florida
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Why such a fourth-dimensional, computer age approach? Because time is measured
differently now. The once commonly held belief of ‘several days hence’ has falling out
of favor - replaced, instead, by the more streamlined notion of secondsas the model
standard-bearer for efficient time management. The century is moving rapidly toward
completion with reconfigurations, reverence for that which has brought this far, and
yes... a few reactionaries touting fear. But you and I know there is no going back. What
awaits is the future. A future where nearly every situation has a cyber solution, formal
boundaries are eclipsed, and the popularity of the World Wide Web levels the playing
field for more and more of us every day.

There can be little doubt, then, that electronic-based communications have become the
preferred media for all of us. The next “big thing,” if you will. Inmediate access to our
resources is not only what we expect, it's what we demand. And, for that very reason,
AT&T 1s also pleased to present our Relay Services Account Manager: a
“millennimania” inspired Web site, set to launch in January 2000, with a full-time on-site
operations manager, real-time access to fast, reliable service and, while we’re at it,
completely Y2k compliant!

... caught up in the Webbing

At www.att.com/relay, Florida will find a feature-rich environment for
consumers and state administrators that includes:

Monthly traffic reports and billing information
Monthly customer contact summaries

Customer e-Care and Feedback forms

Interactive product and service demonstrations
Interactive educational workshops

End-user Online Communities and newsgroups
Online brochures and step-by-step user guides
Links to equipment vendors and software suppliers

... both sides

So, what does all of this tell you? Look closer: Two thousand. Take a new approach to
something and it may appear a little differently. 2000. See it? Samething, just put
forward in dissimilar fashion. That’s really what the following proposal is all about -
we'te providing insight as to where things are going as the countdown to the next century
continues. AT&T has a newer, better, more efficient approach to Relay Services. And,
together, we now have the ideal opportunity to put it to good use. Because, ready or not,
the calendar is about to change, and we need to change with it.

Florida
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At home with holistic thinking.

AT&T Relay Services begins at “home.” After all, it is the acronym for American
Telephone & Telegraph. We were founded on the very principles that make this country
great. And, best of all, we own our own product. We don’t rely on contractors to carry
our signal. Not one of our minutes is outsourced. Not even for a mile.

If I were to tell you that the strength of AT&T s network is at the heart of our resolve, [
would be saying that, by virtue of being the primary facilitator of the lines, we are better
equipped to handle changes, emergencies, and/or system-wide improvements. And if [
were 1o just ‘lay it on the line,” so-to-speak, I would be telling you that there is no better
networking infrastructure in the business. It carries clear across the country and will keep
Floridians accessible to not only each other, but virtually anyone on the planet. Now
how’s that for virtual reality?

Imagine that same spirit of resolution in the state-of-the-art Operations Center, staffed
with dedicated and continually trained employees. The Florida Center, patterned after our
other already successful Relay Service structures, will house technical experts, create
new jobs, and change the lives of countless others.

Time-Tested and True ...

It was looking at the whole picture that gave AT&T a leadership position in the area of
Relay Services as well as the broad field of Telecommunications. And, we have the
patents and premiere industry-wide awards to prove it. So be amused, rather than
confused, when you hear our competitors saying that t4ey have the up-to-the-second
specs to make Relay a more steadfast operation. Anything they put in front of you
automatically has our starap on it. Because even to compete in this arena, they have to
study AT&T’s ‘blueprint.” We own the patent. We developed the technology.

In other words, we were first. AT&T has seen every fad come and go. Our
telecommunications experience predates each of our closest competitors. Maybe that’s

why we can continue to offer the kind of quality products and services that foster
complete customer satisfaction. Just consider Relay Services alone — we currently hold
the TRS contracts for 13 states, the District of Columbia, US Virgin Islands, and Puerto
Rico. And of those 13 states, two share your border and a third is just up theGulf Coast.

Georgia, Alabama, and Mississippi all call on AT&T. Our success is in such close
proximity that it’s on display right in your neighborhood. We know the kind of marketing
effort it takes to reach you consumer base. Come be a part of it, Florida! Be a part of our
world.

Florida
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The mountain will come to you!

I've heard it said that AT&T is not accessible. They’re “too big,” too “far away,” too
“involved with too many other interests to care about us.”

Guess what? You don’t have to contend with AT&T’s corporate identity, yvon get to
interact directly with me, Sue Decker. And when you need me, I'll be there. Phone me.
FAX me. Write me. E-mail is fine. Smoke signals... Carrier pigeon. When it comes to
improving the quality of life for even one individual, whatever works for you works for
me. Just bear in mind, however, that my favorite color is blue, compliments make my
day, and surprises around the Holidays are always nice. Go ahead and smile now. That
last thought was just to show you I have a good sense of humor!

All kidding aside, I don’t need gifts or glorified recognition for the job I’'m doing. And
I’'m not even sure if that’s the right word, because I don’t really think of it as a2 “job.” I'm
devoted to my principles and my passion. This is my life’s work. This is what I believe
in, And it just so happens that, fortunately enough, my company believes in me. They
want us both to be happy. And nothing would make me happier than to come to Florida
and build a new Relay Center that will serve as an earmark for millions.

Our time is now —

I opened with a famous quote and I'd like to close with another. “It’s never too late to be
what you might have been.” What is it you want to be, Florida? I'm ready, if you are.

T

D. Sue Decker
General Manager, Accessible Communications Services

AT&T

Room 7123M1

295 N. Maple Avenue
Basking Ridge, NJ 07920

Phone: 908-221-8144
TTY: 908-221-2689
FAX: 908-221-4016
e-mail: sdecker@att.com

Florida
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. Initials of Page No. Of Pass/Fail
Check List Bidder's Contact Brief Title Bidder's OR
Item No. Person Proposal Maximum Points
1. SO Format (RFP ref. Section C-1 and D) N/A N/A
2. Sy Transmittal Letter, Address, Contact Person, Tel. and Fax No., S P/F
Legal Name of Bidder, and Statement of Compliance with or lack of Compliance with RFP
requirements(RFP ref. C-2)
3. $D Check List (RFP ref, C-8 and E) 6 P/F
4, R0 Certification by FPSC and FCC (RFP ref. A-5) 12 P/F
5. 5D Conflict of Interest (RFP ref. A-28) 23 P/F
6. 3 2 Can provide by June 1, 2000 (RFP ref. B-3) - S P/F
7. S '2 Term of Contract (RFP ref. B-4) - P/F
8. SD Access Numbers (RFP ref. B-5) 26 PIF
9. J /2 Location of Relay Center (RFP ref. B-6) 2 P/F
i0. 7 Availability of System to Users (RFF ref. B-7) .30 P/F
1. Y] Minimum CA Qualifications and Testing (RFP ref. B-8) 3 100
12. Y, CA Training (RFP ref. B-9) 33 100
13. J /) Staff Training (RFP ref. B-10) _ 38 160
14, S0 Counseling (RFP ref. B-11) 39 25
15. S / 2 Procedures for Relaying Communications (RFP ref. B-12) 4 160
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Initials of Page No. Of . Pass/Fail
Check List Bidder's Contact Brief Title Bidder's OR
Item No. Person Proposal Maximum Points
16. AY /2 Interaction with Answering Machines and Voice Response Units (RFP ref. B-13) Y 25
17. S0 Languages Served (RFP ref. B-14) I P/F
18, D Additional Languages Served (RFP ref. B-15) . so 25
19. BY)) Shift Advisor/Consultant (RFP ref. B-16) | P/F
20. §n Confidentiality (RFP ref. B-17) 52 P/F
21 S ! 2 Voice and Hearing Carryover (RFP ref. B-18) 59 50
2. Ry, Obscenity (RFP ref. B-19) 61 P/F
23 J7 Emergency Calls (RFP ref. B-20) 61 50
24, RY)) Blockage (RFP ref, B-21) - & 200
25. $7) Answer Time (RFP ref, B-22) Y < 200
26. S Q Equipment Compatibility (RFP ref. B-23) 67 P/F
27. S Q Transmission Levels (RFP ref. B-24) 6T P/F
28. JQ Measuring Equipment Accuracy (RFP ref. B-25) _ 69 P/
29. ; ! f) Emergency Operations (RFP ref. B-26) 69 50
30. 57 2 Intercept Messages (RFP ref. B-27) 16 P/

K18 .S / 2 Service Expansion (RFP ref. B-28) 77 50
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Initials of Page No, Of Pass/Fail
Check List Bidder's Contact Brief Title Bidder's OR
Item No. Person Proposal Maximum Points
32 SD New Technology (RFP ref. B-29) _ 18 50
33 SH Consumer Input (RFP ref. B-30) R 100
34 $) Complaint Resolution (RFP ref, B-31) 86 200
35 e S Q Charges for Incoming Calls {RFF ref. B-32) B8 P/F
36 £ Billing Arrangements (RFP ref. B-33) 8 50
37 ¥ End User Bilting (RFP ref. B-34) _ 9 50
38 < /2 Relaying Interstate or International (RFP ref. B-35) 9% 50
39 é '2 End user Selection of Carrier (RFP ref. B-36) % 50
40 S f} Recipient of Toll Revenues (RFP ref. B-37) R P/F
41 YD) Long Distance Cali Billing (RFP ref. B-38) - 50
42 . S /7 2 Special Needs (RFP ref. B-39) I . 25
43 Si 2 Custom Calling Type Features (Speed Dialing & Last Number Redialed) N 25
(RFP ref. B-40)
44 J'D All Unsolicited Features in Basic Relay Service Price Proposal . 200
' (RFP ref. B-41)
Florida November 10, 1999 Page 8
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Initials of Page No. Of Pass/Fail
Check List Bidder's Contact Brief Title Bidder's OR
Item No. Person Proposal Maximum Points
45. S) a. Other Custom Cailing Type Services (RFP ref. B-42 a) 113 Optional/0 Points
46. ,S /2 b. 900/976 Services (RFP ref. B-42 b) 114 Optional/Q Points
47, S 32 ¢. Enhanced Transmission Speed and Interrupt Capability 115 Optional/() Peints
(RFP ref. B42 ¢}
48. Y d. Video Relay (RFP ref. B-42d) 116 Opticnal/0 Points
49, ,S Q e. Speech to Speech Service (RFP ref. B-42¢c) 118 Optional/) Points
30. 5 ,f2 f. Other Optional Features Not Included in Basic Relay 119 Optional/0 Points
(RFP Ref. B-42f)
51. S f2 Submission of Menthly Invoice (RFP ref. B-44) 120 PF
52. o 5:2 Travel (RFP ref. B-45) 121 P{F
53. WA Reporting Requirements (RFP ref. B-46) 121 PF
54, S {2 Liquidated Damages (RFP ref, B-47) 124 P/F-
55. S "2 Transfer to New Provider (RFP ref. B-48) 125 P/F
56. ShH Insurance (RFP ref. B-49) 126 P/F
57, \Y)) Public Entity Crimes (RFP ref, C-3) 127 PF
Florida November 10, 1999 Page 9
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Tnitials of ' : Page No, Of Pass/Fail
Check List Bidder's Contact Brief Title Bidder's OR
item No. Person Proposal Maximum Points

58. Y, Financial Information (RFP ref. C4) 127 PIF

39. S Q Experience and customer references (RFP ref. C-5) 128 200

60. YY), Bid Security Deposit (RFP ref. C-6) 131 PIF

6l. D] Subcontractors (REP ref. C-7) 132 PIF

62. S /2 PRICE PROPOSAL (RFP ref. Section D) Must be filed in a separate sealed envelope marked:
*Sealed - To Be Opened Only By the FPSC Proposal Opening Officer”

133 See RFPSec. D& E

MAXIMUM TOTAL POINTS 2125
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SECTION A - ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURES

RESPONSE

RESPONSE

A L

A 2.

Issuing Entity and Point of Contact

This Request For Proposals (RFP) is issued by the Florida Public
Service Commission (FPSC). The Commission's Proposals Review
Committee (PRC) Chairman is the sole point of contact concerning this
RFP and all communication must be made through the Proposals
Review Committee Chairman, Mr. Richard Tudor. Muailed
correspondence must be addressed to Mr. Richard Tudor, c/o Ms.
Blanca Bayo, Division of Records and Reporting, The Florida Public
Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399-
0850 and should reference Docket No.  991222-TP. Facsimile
correspondence can be directed to the PRC Chairman at (830) 413-
6517. E-mail can be directed to the PRC Chairman at:
riudor@psc.state.fl.us

AT&T understands and accepts.

Purpose

This RFP is for the purpose of contracting for a Florida Relay Service
(FRS) System that meets the needs of the people of the state of Florida
pursuant to the Telecommunications Access System Act of 1991 and
which satisfies or exceeds the relay system certification requirements of
the Federal Communications Commission under the Americans with
Disabilities Act. Bidders must comply with the requirements of both
laws.

Section F is a copy of the annual report provided by the current relay
provider concerning the Florida relay traffic for the months of June
1998 through May 1999. It appears that there is an error in the report
regarding total call minutes. Accordingly, for informational purposes,
the billable minutes for Florida Relay Service for the months of June
1998 through August 1999 are provided in Section G of this RFP. The
Bidder assumes all responsibility for the accuracy of data from these
reports and billable minute information in using them for bidding
purposes.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Florida
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RESPONSE

RESPONSE

RESPONSE

A‘ 5‘

Other Applicable Laws/Legal Considerations

This RFP and any resulting contract shall be governed by the laws of
the State of Florida. The bidders and Provider shall comply with
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

The contract shall be construed according to the laws of the State of
Florida. Any legal proceedings against any party relating to or arising
out of this RFP or any resultant contract or contractual relation shall
be brought in State of Florida administrative or judicial forums. Venue
will be in Leon County, Florida.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Scope

This RFP contains the instructions governing the proposal to be
submitted and the material to be included therein, mandatory
administrative and operational requirements which a bidder shall meet
to be eligible for consideration, specific instructions for proposal
submission and evaluation criteria.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity

The provider shall have a Florida certificate of public convenience and
necessity or only use for relay service, telecommunications providers
that have a Florida certificate of public convenience and necessity to
provide local and intrastate interexchange service. The provider shall
also have necessary FCC authority or only use for relay service,
telecommunications providers that have necessary FCC authority to
provide interstate and international service. The FPSC reserves the

- right to require certification of any entity pursuant to this contract.

AT&T understands and will comply.

By order of the Florida Public Service Commission dated December 16,
1983, AT&T is certified and authorized to provide interexchange
telecommunications services throughout the State of Florida. Also,
AT&T is certified and authorized to provide alternative access vendor
services in Florida. AT&T is also certified and authorized by the FCC
to provide interstate and international relay services.

Upon successful award of this contract to AT&T, AT&T will gladly
provide copies of these certificates if requested.

Florida
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A. 6. Definitions/Acronyms
The following terms, when used in this RFP, have the meaning shown
below:

a. Abandoned calls - Calls reaching the relay switch and
terminated by the caller before a communications assistant
answers regardless of the amount of time that has elapsed since
the cail reached the relay switch.

b. Administrator - A corporation not for profit incorporated
pursuant to the provisions of chapter 617, F.S., and designated
by the Florida Public Service Commission to administer the
telecommunications relay service system and the distribution of
specialized telecommunications devices. [5. 427.703(1), F.S.]

c. Advisory Committee - A group created by 427.706, F.8., and
consisting of up to ten individuals named by the FPSC for the
purposes described in Chapter 427, F.S.

d. Answer time - The point in the progression of inbound calls at
the relay center when the communications assistant is ready to
serve.

e. Billable Minutes - For the purpose of calculating and
rendering bills to the Administrator [S.427.704(2), F.S8],
billable minutes is the elapsed time between the time the
incoming call enters the FRS provider's relay center switch and
the completion of relay service. Total session time shall be
rounded to the nearest one-tenth of a minute or less per session
and the time for all call sessions shall be added together for all
incoming calls during the month to produce the total billable
minutes per month. The total of billable minutes for the month
shall be rounded to the nearest one-tenth of a minute. In a
session which includes a mix of intrastate toll or local calls and
interstate or international calls, the time associated with the
interstate or international calls shall not be included in the
billable time for that call session.

S Blocked calls - Calls reaching the relay switch which do not
terminate by ringing a communications assistant position.

g Communications Assistant (CA) - A person who relays
conversation to and from users of a relay system, normally
converting the conversation between text and voice, The CA
may also be a mechanized device that meets the reguirements
described for the Florida Relay Service.

Florida November 10, 1999 Page 13
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Deaf - Having a permanent hearing impairment and being
unable to discriminate speech sounds in verbal communication,
with or withowt the assistance of amplification devices.
[5.427.703(3), F.S.]

Dual Sensory Impaired - Having both a permanent hearing
impairment and a permanent visual impairment and includes
deaf/blindness. [5.427.703(4),F.S.]

FPBSC - Florida Public Service Commission
FRS — Florida Relay Service

General Assistance Calls — Incoming calls to the CA that are
not associated with an outgoing relay call. Such calls may
sometimes be to provide information about using relay or other
types of calls that would normally be handled by cusiomer
service.

Hard of Hearing - Having a permanent hearing impairment
which is severe enough to necessitate the use of amplification

devices to discriminate speech sounds in verbal communication
[5.427.703(5),F.S.]

Hearing Impaired or Hearing Disabled — Being deaf or hard
of hearing and Includes being dual sensory impaired
[5.427.703(6), F.S.}

Hearing Carryover — A feature that enables a user with a
speech disability to utilize his useable hearing for direct
reception of voice communications and to use the FRS CA for
conversion of the user's communications from TDD to voice.

Incoming Call — An incoming call refers to the portion of the
communications connection from the calling party to the relay
service center. An incoming TDD call is a call originated by a
TDD user. An incoming telephone call is a call originated by a
telephone user. An incoming call includes calls to the relay
service telephone number for completing a relay call as well as
general assisiance calls.

Minor Irregularity — A variation from the request for proposal
terms and conditions which does not affect the price of the
proposal, does not give the bidder a significant advantage of
benefit not enjoyved by other bidders, or does not adversely
impact the interests of the agency.

Florida
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RESPONSE

Outgoing Call — An outgoing call refers to the portion of the
communications connection from the relay service center to the
called party. An outgoing TDD call is a call to a TDD user. An
outgoing telephone call is a call to a telephone user.

Provider — The entity with whom the FPSC contracts to provide
Florida Relay Service pursuant to this contract.

PRC - Proposals Review Committee

Speech Impaired or Speech Disabled — Having a permanent loss of
verbal communication ability which prohibits normal usage of a
standard telephone set. [5.427.704(10). F.S.]

STS or Speech to Speech — A service that enables a person with
speech disabilities to use relay service with his own voice or voice
synthesizer, rather than using a TDD. A specially trained CA
Sunctions as a human translator for people with speech disabilities
who have trouble being understood on the telephone. The STS CA
repeats the words of the speech disabled user to the other party on
the call.

Telecommunications Device for the Deaf (TDD or TTY) ~ A
mechanism which is connected to a standard telephone line,
operated by means of a keyboard, and used 1o transmit or receive
signals through telephone lines. The term includes mechanisms
equipped with sight assisting devices such as large print screen or
braille printer and also includes computers. [5.427.703(14). F.5.]

User — Includes either the calling or called party in a relay call.

Video Relay — Video relay interpreting allows the caller, utilizing
video conferencing facilities, to use sign language to communicate
with the CA who voices the call to the hearing person at the
receiving end.

Voice Carryover — A feature that enables a user with a hearing
disability to utilize his useable speech for direct expression of voice
communications and to use the FRS operator for conversion of the
other user’s communications from voice to TDD.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Florida
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A. 7. Key Dates
(The following dates are targets, the FPSC reserves the right to
change the dates.)
Release RFP ......coovevieeceeeee ettt v sts ot et o Qclober 7. 1999
Bidders Conference.............cvvvierieineienis s s sor eesne senens October 14, 1999
Deliver Final Questions
About RFP to PRC Chairman... ... ... 3.00 pm Eagstern Time, Qctober 25, 1999
TECHNICAL AND PRICE PROPOSAL
DUEDATE& TIME.................. 3:00pm Eastern Time, November 10, 1999
Recommendation Presemanon 1o the FPSC .o, January 11, 2000
Letter of IBMent .............c.oovvviieiei e e e s s et ae e o January 14,2000
Performance Bond Due... ... ..cccooonveeeeeeerevesrerensnnn LUpon execution of contract
Begin Service..............coeervvvinionns e o e e e et et e eeeeeeaer e June | 2000
RESPONSE AT&T understands and accepts.
A8 Questions Concerning RFP
Prior to or after the bidders’ conference, potential bidders may submit,
in writing, questions regarding the RFP. To the extent practical, such
questions concerning the RFP will be responded io at the bidders
conference. Questions filed after the bidders' conference will be
responded to in writing to kmown potential bidders, if time permits. All
questions should be received by the PRC Chairman by 3:00 p.m.
Eastern Time, October 25, 1999,
RESPONSE AT&T understands and accepts.
A9 Amendments or Supplements to RFP
In the event that it becomes necessary to revise or clarify any part of
this RFP, an amendment or supplement will be provided to each bidder
of record receiving the original RFP.
RESPONSE AT&T understands and accepts.
Florida November 10, 1999 Page 16



Restrictions on Communications

From the issue date of this RFP until a provider is selected, bidders are
not to communicate with any FPSC Commissioner or staff member or
Advisory Committee member regarding this RFP except for: a) written
correspondence to or from the PRC Chairman or b) oral discussions at
the bidders conference or at an oral interview or site visit. For
violation of this provision, the FPSC reserves the right to reject the
proposal.

AT&T understands and will comply.

Bidders’ Conference

A public bidders' conference in connection with this RFP will be held
on October 14, [999. The conference will be at 9:30 AM in Room 152
of the Easley Building, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL. The
FPSC will transcribe the proceedings of the bidders' conference. An
overview of the RFP will be presented. Written questions submitted in
compliance with Paragraph A.8. above will be addressed. In addition,
the PRC will make every attempt 1o respond to questions from the floor;
however, depending on the question asked, a complete response may
have to be deferred until after the conference

AT&T understands and accepts.

Modifications, Withdrawals, and Late Proposals

Proposals may only be modified or withdrawn by the bidder up to the
established filing date and time. It is the responsibility of the bidder to
ensure that the proposal is received by the Division of Records and
Reporting on or before the proposal due date and time. Both technical
and price proposals must be filed by November [0, [999 at 3:00 pm
eastern time. Late proposals will not be accepted,

AT&T understands and accepts.

Bidding Costs.
Neither the FPSC nor the FRS system is liable for any costs incurred by
a bidder in conjunction with development of its bid.

ATE&T understands and accepts.

— ATel
i

A- 10.
RESPONSE

A 1L
RESPONSE

A. 12,
RESPONSE

B. 13
RESPONSE
Florida
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RESPONSKE

RESPONSE

RESPONSE

A 14,

A. 15,

A. 6.

A 17

Rejection of Proposals, Correction of Errors

The PRC Chairman and FPSC reserve the right to reject any or all
proposals. The PRC Chairman and the FPSC also reserve the right to
accept proposals despite minor irregularities and to allow a bidder to
correct such minor irregularities.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Technical and Price proposals will each be made available to the
general public within ten (10) days after each is opened. The price
proposals will not be opened until afier the technical proposals are
evaluated. The FPSC may issue press releases or public
announcements concerning filed proposals or the bid process.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Protesis

Failure to file a protest of either the RFP or the letter of intent within
the time prescribed in subsection 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, shall
constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Leiter of Intent/Notification to Bidders

Upon selection of a potential provider by the Commission, the
Commission will issue a letter of intent to the potential provider. The
letter of intent is the point of entry to protest the award pursuant (o
Section 120.57(3), F.S. A contract shall be completed and signed by all
parties concerned within thirty (30) days of mailing the letter of intent.
If this date is not met, through no fauit of the FPSC, the FPSC may
elect 1o cancel the letter of intent and make the award to another
bidder. All bidders will receive a copy of the letter of intent by certified
mail, return receipt requested.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Florida
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A. 18. Award of Contract
The FPSC shall award the contract to the bidder whose proposal is the

most advantageous to the state, taking into account the following
considerations in Section 427.704(3)(a), Florida Statutes:

a. The appropriateness and accessibility of the proposed
telecommunications relay service for the citizens of the state,
including persons who are hearing impaired or speech

impaired,
b. The overall quality of the proposed telecommunications relay
system,
¢. The charges for the proposed telecommunications relay service
system;

d. The ability and qudlifications of the bidder to provide the
proposed telecommunications relay service system as outlined

in the RFP;

e. Any proposed service enhancements and technological
enhancements which improve service without significantly

increasing cost;

S Any proposed inclusion of provision of assistance to deaf
persons  with special needs to access the basic

telecommunications system;
g The ability 1o meet the proposed commencement date for the
FRS;

h. All other factors listed in the RFP,

AT&T understands and accepts.

RESPONSE
A 19, Award Without Discussion
The FPSC reserves the right to make an award without discussion of
proposals with the bidder. Therefore, it is important that each
technical and price proposal be submitted in the most complete,
understandable and accurate manner possible. '
RESPONSE AT&T understands and accepts.
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A. 20.
RESPONSE

A 21
RESPONSE

A 22

Oral Interviews/Site Visits/Written Data Request

Bidders may be asked to participate in oral interviews, respond to a
written data request, make their facilities available for a site inspection
by the PRC or make their financial records available for FPSC audit.
Such interviews, site visits and/or audits will be at the bidder's expense
except that the PRC will pay for its own expenses (transportation,
meals, housing, etc.) Bidders should come to oral interviews prepared
to answer the PRC's questions and the bidder's primary contact person
{person signing the letter of transmittal accompanying the RFP or his
designee) shall be present at all meetings with the PRC or FPSC.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Contract Document
The successful bidder will be required to sign a contract which will
include the following elements:

a. The RFP,
b. The bidder's Proposal in response to the RFP,

c. A document identifying any modifications or clarifications
to the proposal and identifying optional items contained in
the proposal and desired by the FPSC to be included in the
FRS.

All of the above items together will constitute a complete initial
contract that will be approved by the FPSC's Executive Director on
behalf of the FPSC.

AT&T understands and will comply, provided that any subsection (c)
document be approved and executed by the bidder before constituting
part of the contract.

Limited Liability

To the extent provided for in Florida Statute 427.707, the FPSC, its
Advisory Committee and PRC assume no liability with respect to the
RFP, proposals or any matters related thereto unless there is malicious
purpose or wanton and willful disregard of human rights, safety or
property in the establishment, participation in or operation of the
telecommunications relay service.
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RESPONSE

RESPONSE

A. 23

A. 24,

To the fullest extent permitted by law, all prospective service providers
and their assigns or successors by their participation in the RFP
process, shall indemnify, save and hold the FPSC and its employees
and agents, including the Advisory Committee and PRC, free and
harmless from all suits, causes of action, debts, rights, judgements,
claims, demands, accounts, damages, costs, losses and expenses of
whatsoever kind in law or equity, known and unknown, foreseen and
unforeseen, arising from or out of the RFP and/or any subsequent acts
related thereto, including but not limited to the recommendation of a
bidder to the FPSC and any action brought by an unsuccessful bidder.

AT&T takes exception to the requirement that it indemnify FPSC and
its employees and agents from all claims arising out of the RFP. AT&T
will agree to indemnify FPSC for any third party claims related to any
breach of AT&T’s contractual commitments pursuant to an award of
the RFP. AT&T’s liability for any failure or breach of this contract shall
be limited to direct, proven damages. AT&T disclaims liability for any
indirect, consequential, loss of profit, punitive or special damages. With
respect to contractual events for which liquidated damages are set forth
in RFP section B.47, the FPSC’s sole remedy shall be the liquidated
damages provided for and agreed to by AT&T.

Disclaimer

All information contained in the RFP, including any amendments and
supplements thereto, reflects the best and most accurate information
available to the FPSC at the time of the RFP preparation. No
inaccuracies in such information shall constitute a basis for change of
the payments to the provider nor a basis for legal recovery of damages,
either actual, consequential, or punitive.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Cancellation/Availability of Funds

The FPSC shall have the right to unilaterally cancel, terminate, or
suspend any ensuing contract, in whole or in part, by giving the
Provider sixty (60) days written notice by certified mail. If a breach of
the contract by the Provider occurs, the FPSC may, by written notice to
the Provider, terminate the contract upon 24 hours notice. Said notice
shall be delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested, or in
person with proof of delivery. The provisions herein do not limit the
FPSC's right to remedies at law or to damages.
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RESPONSE

RESPONSE

RESPONSE

B. 25,

A. 26,

During the life of the contract, should funds become unavailable to
support the telecommunications relay service system, the FPSC
reserves the right to discontinue the service for a period of time, to
adjust service specifications, or to discontinue the provision of certain
services in order to reduce costs.

AT&T understands and will comply subject to an entitlement to recover
from FPSC any costs incurred by AT&T which are non-recoverable in
the event of FPSC’s termination without cause.

Public Bidder Meetings and Proprietary/Confidential Information
Written requests for confidentiality shall be considered by the FPSC as
described in Chapter 364.183, F.S8. Rule 25-22.006, F.A.C., should be
Jollowed in making a request.

Meetings held between the FPSC or PRC and bidder shall be open to
the general public. Should the need arise to discuss any confidential
materials, the FPSC or PRC will attempt to hold such a discussion by
referring to the confidential material in a general way without closing
the meeting. All meetings with bidders will be transcribed,

All material submitted regarding this RFP becomes the property of the
FPSC and subject to Chapter 119, F.§. (Public Records Law). The
PRC reserves the right to use any or all information/material presented
in reply to the RFP, subject to any confidentiality granted via Chapter
364, F.S. Disqualification of a bidder does not eliminate this right.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Non-Collusion

By submitting a proposai, the bidder affirms that the proposed bid price
has been arrived at independently withowt collusion, consultation or
communication with any other bidder or competitor, that the said bid
price was not disclosed by the bidder prior to filing with the FPSC, and
that no attempt was made by the bidder to induce any other person,
partnership or corporation to submit or not submit a proposal.

ATE&T understands and accepts.
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RESPONSE

RESPONSE

RESPONSE

A 27

A 28

A 29

Changes in Contract

Any change in the contract shall be accomplished by a formal written
contract amendment signed by authorized representatives of both the
FPSC and the provider. No other document or oral communication
shall be construed as an amendment to the contract.

AT&T understands and accepts.

Conflict of Interest

The award hereunder is subject to the provisions of Chapter 112,
Florida Statutes (Public Officers and Employees). All bidders shall
disclose with their bid the name of any officer, director, or agent who is
also an employee of the state of Florida, or any of its agencies. Further,
all bidders shall disclose the name of any state employee who owns,
directly or indirectly, an interest of five percent or more in the bidder's
Jirm or any of its branches.

AT&T does not have any conflict of interest. There are no officers,
directors, agents or other AT&T employees who are also employees of
the state of Florida. There are no Florida state employees who own
directly or indirectly an interest of five (5) percent or more in AT&T or
any of is branches.

Minority Business

It is the policy of the Commission to encourage participation by
minority business companies (as defined in s. 287.012, F. S} in
Commission confracts. If two identical bids/proposals to an invitation
Sor bids or request for proposals are received and one response is from
a minority owned company, the Commission shall enter into a contract
with the minority owned company. If applicable, the bidder should
include in its proposal evidence that it qualifies for the definition of a
minority business

ATE&T understands and accepts.

Appendix A contains the booklet, AT&T [998 Supplier Diversity
Annual Report, which outlines and describes AT&T’s commitment to
Supplier Diversity ~ including Minority-owned Business Enterprises

(MBE).
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SECTION B - THE SERVICE TO BE PROVIDED

RESPONSE

With taolent,
teamwork, and
tireless optimism
serving as our
constants -
completion of the
new AT&T
Florida Relay
Center will remain
on schedule.

B.3

Commencement Date

The commencement date for the service is June 1, 2000. Bidders shall
provide a work schedule showing how they can meet that deadline and
shall provide a statement that they can provide the complete service by
that date.

AT&T has read and will comply.

AT&T will commence service on June 1, 2000. Once awarded the TRS
contract, AT&T will engage in a detail transition plan with the
incumbent Florida provider (MCI). A “Transition /Implementation
Kick-off” meeting will be held with all stakeholders. Topics will
include, but will not be limited to, specifics such as cutover dates and
special facilities access. It will also cover the variation between
incumbent’s TRS and AT&T’s TRS. This would allow the FPSC a
“change-awareness” (¢.g. new features, services, phrases available from
AT&T) and would allow AT&T and the FPSC to proactively notify
end-users through web sites, mailers, or other means.

AT&T has participated in numerous State TRS transitions, as both the
incumbent provider and new contractor. We recognize the nuances of
each. As the contract is awarded, a dedicated project manager will be
assigned the responsibility of building the proper implementation
teams, which ultimately guarantees that no Florida TRS users will be
impacted during the transition.

The proposed work schedule for implementing service on June 1, 2000
follows, AT&T may modify this schedule to accomplish the
implementation of service.

Florida

November 10, 1999 Page 24




(i
E

Timeline

Award of Service January 11, 2000

Identify real estate for Florida center. Publicly January 15, 2000

advertise CA positions and initiate recruitment
process using deaf organizations and other relay

advocates.

Begin writing training addendums for training and  February 1, 2000

Methods & Procedures

Initiate call to incumbent provider. Begin March 15, 2000

establishing communications with key advocates
and state customers. Begin construction of Florida

Relay Center.

Initiate network orders for access. April 10, 2000

Initiate orders for Carrier of Choice access. Initiate ~ April 17, 2000

marketing plans for Florida TRS: press releases
and Media resources to community organizations

Distribute all training documents to Trainers and May 1, 2000

FL Center Management Team

Training of CA’s begins. (2 classes a day for four ~ May 8, 2000
weeks)

Complete instailation of network access May 15, 2000

Complete installation of Carrier of Choice access.  May 17, 2000

Continue training CA’s in Florida Center. Send
letters, articles, and press releases to Relay users

- and organizations educating relay users and
introducing AT&T Relay Service and notices of
any service changes

Complete checklist and walk-through with the May 25, 2000
FPSC officials. Pre-opening celebration.

Begin handling Florida TRS traffic from June 1, 2000
incumbent provider into AT&T Florida call center

Florida November 10, 1999 Page 25



Term of Contract

Service shall begin on June 1, 2000. The term of the contract will be an
initial three year period. Upon mutual agreement between the FPSC
and the provider, the contract may allow for the term to be extended for
up to two additional one year periods. By June I, 2002, and June 1,
2003, the provider should notify the Florida Public Service Commission
of its desire to extend for an additional year.

AT&T has read and understands.

Access Numbers

There shall be a single access number for TDD users, a single access
number for voice users, a single access number for ASCII users, and a
single access number for Spanish users. TDD access shall be by using
the number 800-955-8771, voice access shall be by using the number
800-955-8770, and ASCH access shall be by using the number 800-955-
1339. The provider shall secure a toll free telephone number for
Spanish access. The provider must request FPSC authority fo use
additional numbers for relay access (e.g., STS, other foreign languages,
etc). If a caller calls the wrong access number, the system shall
process the call without requiring the caller to redial.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T concurs with the FPSC’s suggestion to provide a separate
number for TDD, Voice, ASCII and Spanish users. This access method
is the best alternative for quick and accurate TRS connectivity. The toll
free number currently in use for the Florida Relay Service will be
transitioned to AT&T seamlessly, as toll free numbers are fully portable
between Inter-Exchange Carriers (IXCs). Florida Relay users may also
use (with the FPSC’s authority) AT&T’s nationwide numbers for
Telebraille, Speech-to-Speech, and Spanish-to-Spanish relay as follows:

Telebraille: 1-300-855-2883
TTY Spanish: 1-800-855-2884
Voice Spanish: 1-800-855-2885
ASCII Spanish: 1-800-855-2886

Speech-to-Speech: 1-800-229-5746

Specialized toll-free numbers for Spanish language customers allow
AT&T to promptly provide specially-trained CAs for call processing.
Similarly, a direct toll-free line for Telebraille users decreases the call
set-up time. Also, when necessary, emergency calls can be responded
to more efficiently.

~—
B. 4
RESPONSE
B3
RESPONSE
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RESPONSE

With AT&T’s Relay Choice™ Profile, customers will be able to request
that their choice of connect mode be automatically selected whenever
they call the Florida Relay Service.

This will provide customers with an even more efficient and speedy
connection for their call. Thus, Baudot users will be promptly
connected using the Baudot protocol without the brief delay required to
check for ASCII protocol. Users requiring VCO, HCO, and similar
services will be able to include this in their Relay Choice™ Profile and
will thereby be connected and provided the service without having to
ask with each call. Relay Choice®™ Profile is keyed to the user’s ANI.

In the event that a Florida Relay Service user calls the wrong access
number, CAs using AT&T’s technology will be able to complete the
call without requiring the caller to redial.

Location of Relay Center

The provider shall be required to locate a relay center in the State of
Florida. A4 minimum of 80 percent of Florida relay traffic shall be
handled by the Florida located center except when emergency
conditions exist at the Florida center. Emergency conditions that would
Justify handling what is normally Florida traffic outside the state would
include situations such as natural disasters, bomb threat, etc. and
would not include traffic spikes.

Notwithstanding the above requirement, during the months of June,
July and August, 2000, the provider may handle all Filorida relay traffic
using out-of-state relay centers. The 80% minimum Florida traffic
handled out of a Florida center must be met beginning with the month
of September, 2000.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T will handle at least 80% of Florida traffic in a relay center
located within the state of Florida.

AT&T has utilized Florida Department of Labot’s employment
statistics, as well as its own employment professionals, to determine a
number of areas that provide a sizeable pool of potential employees. A
professional real estate search firm has been engaged to locate suitable
space in several markets including Lakeland, in Polk County and Fort
Pierce in St. Lucie County, Additional searches have been conducted in
the Orlando and Jacksonville areas. The initial search has turned up
several excellent facilities of 20,000 square feet or more located within
these prime employment markets.
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AT&T will provide a new relay center environment that is customized
to the needs of the residents of the state and tailored to the human needs
of the relay center employees. At least 80% of Florida traffic will be
handled in this new center except in the event of emergency conditions.
See Section B.26 for details on Emergency Operations and
Uninterruptible Power.

As AT&T narrows its choice of locations within Florida, the state can
be assured of realizing the benefits of AT&T’s long history of success
in building, staffing, and operating world-class call centers.

A mockup organizational chart for the Florida Relay Center follows.
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............................................................................................................................

FLORIDA RELAY CENTER
. District Manager [ On-Site
' | Technical
| Center Manager 1 .................................. Systems
Administrator
Clerical }

- Resource Manager}

: :I ' AT&T

— 40+ CAs TRS

{ Resource Managar| Technical
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(See org. chart for
section B.29

.
X

-| Resource Manager ‘

40+ CAs

| Resource ManagerJ

L 40+ CAs
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B. 8

Availability of System to Users

The service shall be designed to relay local, intrastate toll and
interstate and international calls that eriginate or terminate in Florida.
Relay service shall be available 24 hours per day every day of the year.
No restrictions shall be placed on the length or number of calls placed
by customers through the relay center.

AT&T understands and will comply.

The Florida Relay Service will be availabie at all times (24 hours a day,
seven days a week, 52 weeks a year.) Callers will be able to request a
local, intrastate toll, interstate, or international relay call. The Florida
Relay Service will process calls that originate or terminate in Florida.

Minimum CA Qualifications/Testing

The provider shall adequately supervise and train its employees to
always be courteous, considerate and efficient in their contact and
dealings with its customers and the public in generdl, and shall make
checks from time to time to ensure that courteous service actually is
being rendered,

Bidders shall specify how they plan to demonstrate that CAs meet all
necessary proficiency requirements. CAs shall be able to quickly and
accurately type TDD relay messages. The provider shall use valid,
unbiased tests for CAs on subjects including, but not limited to:

a. Basic skills in English grammar.

b. A minimum typing speed of 535 words per minute.

c. Minimum spelling skills sufficient to quickly and easily
spell words comparable to a beginning college level
conversation,

d An understanding of characteristics of limited written

English and American Sign Language (ASL) as it may be

reflected in the written language of TDD users.

Deaf culture.

Ethics, e.g. how a CA deals with situations he may

encounter

Confidentiality.

Clarity of speech.

N ®

Bk

Any person who has not passed this examination shall not be utilized as
a CA. CAs shall be retested at least annually,
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Everyone who is
employed by
AT&T Relay
Services arrives
with a degree or
Jormal training —
most from
prestigious
learning
institutions. We
provide them with
continual
training, but their
most valuable
assets forever
remain the
lessons life has
taught them.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T understands that relay customers want competent, courteous,
considerate and efficient CAs relaying their calls. AT&T's management
design provides for effective supervision and training of employees,
incorporating a system of service checks to ensure professional and
quality service is always received.

AT&T has in place a rigorous, unbiased testing process that will assess
a CA’s skills in meeting the necessary proficiency requirements.

To qualify for employment, a prospective CA is required to pass a
battery of tests. These tests cover numerous topics such as basic skills
in English grammar, vocabulary, spelling, reading comprehension,
mathematics, the ability to follow directions, customer service and
typing. These tests are designed for college level conversation. They
ensure that prospective CAs will be capable of handling a variety of call
types ranging from conversations between small children to those
which include professionals, such as doctors, lawyers and engineers,

Before becoming a Florida Relay Service Communications Assistant,
applicants are required to meet our qualifications on the following tests
(AT&T strictly adheres to test standards);

a) English grammar - General Comprehension and Ability Screen -
Tests English grammar, reading accuracy, following directions,
drawing relationships and number grouping.

b) Typing a minimum of 53 correct words per minute - AT&T’s
typing test for employment as a CA in our relay centers requires
applicants to successfully type at a minimum of 55 words per
minute using an audio-typing test. Only those applicants that can
demonstrate 55 accurate words per minute typed will be
considered for employment by the Florida Relay Service. Average
typing speed in AT&T Relay Centers is 85 words per minute.

¢} Spelling skills - Spelling Test - Screens the applicant's spelling
skills including knowledge of spelling rules and principles. The
applicants must demonstrate the ability to quickly, easily and
accurately spell words comparable to a beginning college level
conversation.

d) Customer Service — Screens the applicant’s ability to respond to a
variety of customer contact situations including diffusing an irate
customer, providing assistance, and trouble-shooting. The applicant
is assessed on ability to problem-solve, to display a courteous and
professional manner and ability to escalate issues.
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Any person who does not meet and pass these entrance examinations
will not be invited to a job/site visit,

The prospective CA is then required to have a job/site visit and meet
with center management. The job/site visit serves as an interview to
determine if the individual possesses additional attributes that would
serve well as a Communication Assistant. Once the prospective CA has
passed all employment tests, completed the job visit and has been
deemed a “good match” for the position of Communication Assistant,
s’/he must undergo AT&T's extensive and comprehensive initial
training for new hires.

During Initial Training, CAs will be required to successfully pass
written and hands on diagnostic assessments on the following before
relaying customer cails:

¢) ASL and Limited English - AT&T CAs are carefully trained to be
able to understand deaf people who may be using limited English.
The CAs are also instructed and trained on how to translate
typewritten ASL into English and how to translate limited written
English into correct English.

f) Deaf Culture — The CA will be administered an assessment on
their knowledge of deaf culture and would be observed and rated on
sensitivity and ability to serve and interface with deaf and hard of
hearing customers

g) Ethics — CAs are administered an assessment on knowledge of
rules and policies around our Code of Ethics. CAs must pass this
assessment before relaying customer calls. CAs are assessed both in
initial training and subsequent training, via role plays and exercises
on how they would handle a variety of situations concerning ethics.

h) Confidentiality — CAs are required to sign a personal pledge of
both Confidentiality and Code of Ethics before relaying their first
call. CAs are also tested on their knowledge of Confidentiality
Standards. CAs must demonstrate the knowledge and ability to
deliver confidentiality of service.

i) Clarity of Speech — CAs are assessed on Clarity of Speech during
initial and subsequent training. A successful score is required before
becoming a CA. '

New CAs must demonstrate their ability to perform the requirements
above by successfully passing all written diagnostic and hands-on
diagnostics. All CAs are retested at least annually to ensure skills are
maintained at a level that meets AT&T high standards as well as the
requirements for the Florida Relay Service.
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B9 CA Training

Each bidder shall demonsirate in its proposal how ongoing CA training
will be provided by including with its proposal an outline of a proposed
CA training plan. The provisions for CA training shall include, but not
be limited to, an understanding of limited written English and ASL, deaf
culture, needs of hearing and speech disabled and dual sensory
impaired users, ability to speak in a tone of voice consistent with the
intent and mood of the conversation, operation of relay
telecommunications equipment, how to handle hearing and voice
carryover, ethics, confidentiality and other requirements of the
Provider's operating policies and procedures. Training shall include
both simulated and live on-line call handling.

RESPONSE AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T recognizes the importance of providing training to ensure that
the CA can effectively meet the specialized communications needs of
users who are deaf, hard-of-hearing, late deafened and speech disabled.
Our training program is grounded in lessons that teach and raise the
CA’s awareness of the needs of people with speech and hearing
disabilities. AT&T’s Core TRS Training Curriculum enhances the
skills, training and development of all CAs.

AT&T TRS training programs are developed and delivered in
partnership with deaf members of AT&T’s staff, many of who are
graduates from Gallaudet University and National Technical Institue for
the Deaf (NTID). AT&T also partners with members of the deaf, hard-
of-hearing and speech disabled communities to deliver cross-cultural
training for our Communication Assistants. AT&T has partnered with
several Deaf Cultured professionals (e.g. TDI} to ensure that our
training is effective in providing well-trained CAs who can meet the
needs of our relay customers. When CAs are hired, they first complete
the curriculum for Initial Training Program. The first three weeks of
training will focus on the following subjects:

Orientation to Florida Relay Service

Cross Cultural Training on the Needs of People with
Disabilities including the Deaf, deaf, hard-of-hearing,
deaf/blind, and speech-disabled

Technical Training - Operating Relay Equipment
Attributes of a Quality Call

Customer Service - Language and Etiquette
Ergonomics

Basic Relay Methods and Procedures

American Sign Language ASL/Syntax
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Cross Cultural Training provides education and awareness of the needs
of people who are deaf, deaf/blind, hard of hearing or speech disabled.
It also provides education on limited written English and ASL Syntax
for interpretation per customer’s request. Additional ASL classes are
providled on the job by trained ASL professionals. Ethics and
Confidentiality training are also taught and reinforced at several points
in initial and Continuation training,.

All Florida Relay Service CAs will undergo a set of diagnostic tests
upon completion of any training. The tests are administered at both the
final phase of the initial training and upon completing all the modules
of Continuation Training. Diagnostics evaluate knowledge of methods
and procedures, customer service and typing skill level. The test is a
series of controlled call simulations and written tests. The diagnostic
system evaluates the CA’s progress and frames a development plan to
improve and strengthen performance. If opportunities for improvement
are identified additional training time is made available. Examples of
tools that would be used for a development plan include typing
tutorials, classroom retraining, workshops, individual or peer coaching.

Upon completion of the Initial and Continuation Training modules,
AT&T CAs receive a considerable amount of on-going training. and
development AT&T has a commitment of ensuring that each CA is
given a minimum of forty (40) hours of formal training and
development each year. This further exemplifies AT&T’s commitment
to ensuring that our CAs are the most competent and well-trained in the
industry.,

AT&T’s On-going Training and Development provides ample
opportunities for training on new procedures or new equipment, Every
training session is closed with simulated call exercises and written
diagnostics. The training and development sessions are conducted in
the classroom and at a CA workstation. Additionally, every CA along
with his’her respective manager designs and develops a personal
Performance Management portfolio that is used throughout the year as a
reference for meeting individual performance metrics and for outlining
performance improvement activities. One of the required elements of
the individual Performance Management portfolio calls for regular side-
by-side monitoring followed by immediate feedback and development.

An outline of the CA training plan follows.
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Overview of the CA Training Curriculum
INITIAL TRAINING FOR NEW CAs:

Day 1: Orientation - Introduction to AT&T and Florida Relay
Service. Includes intensive in the areas of Code of Conduct, Code of
Ethics, and Confidentiality

Day 2: Cross Cultural Training — Introduction of our relay users,
ASL training and needs of individvals who are speech/ hearing
impaired.

Day 3: Technical Training — Introduction to the operation of relay
telecommunications equipment.

Days 4 — 10: Basic Methods & Procedures — Training on the AT&T
Core Methods which include but is not limited to: basic relay, carry
over, billing records, emergency calls, alternate billed calls (i.e. collect,
calling card, 3" number, etc.), voice and hearing carryover, answering
machines, etc

Day 11: Ergonomics - Introduction to how Communications
Assistants can prevent injuries and physical stress on the job.

Day 12: Customer Service Training - Focus on customer service,
skills, language and etiquette, understanding the mandates of the ADA,
the delivery of the attributes of a high quality call.

Day 13: ASL Syntax Style and Grammar — Introduction to ASL
Syntax and how to translate ASL Syntax into standard spoken English,

Day 14: CA Assessment Skills - Once the CA has completed the
Initial Training, he/she will take written and hands-on diagnostic tests
to assess areas of development, his/her skill and knowledge of relay.
The CA will have an opportunity to handie simulated and live calls with
the trainers sitting next to him/her for coaching purposes. After
completing the diagnostics, it will be decided whether the CA would be
qualified to handle live calls without the trainers’ presence.
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CONTINUATION TRAINING FOR NEW CAs:

-AT&T’s Initial Training for new CAs is complimented by our
structured continuation training modules which introduces a new relay
call type or feature while reinforcing learnings addressed during the
Initial Training period. The Continuation Training modules, which are
scheduled weekly following successful completion of Initial Training,

can be rearranged according to the individual needs of the CA.

CT Module 1: Operator Service for the Deaf

CT Module 2: Coin Originated & PrePaid Cards
CT Module 3: 2 Line VCO

CT Module 4: OSD to Relay Switching

CT Module 5: More on Card Billing

CT Module 6: Single Line Answering Machines
CT Module 7: More on Customer Service

CT Module 8: Back End Automation

CT Module %: Eniergency Calls

CT Module 10: Hands On and Written Diagnostics
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On-going Training - Upon completion of diagnostics a development
plan is created with the input of the trainer, CA coach and manager. The
plan identifies individual training needs and the tools that are available
to the CA. Examples of on-going training and performance
development tools are:
s Methods and Procedures Job Aids
*= Training Tips on Attributes of a Quality Call including
coaching on processing calls quickly and efficiently
» Monthly method and training coverages which
highlight a specific call type or call attribute
» Typing Tutorials
= Ergonomics
= Diversity Training
»  Alliance Classes
= Regular Customer Service Tr&ining package that
highlights voice, tone, professionalism, and attitude and
manner. Examples include but are not limited to:
- Sound of Your Voice
- Put Yourseif in the Customer’s Shoes
- Listening Skills
* ASL and Deaf Culture Subsequent Training
e Upgrades in Technology
* Continual emphasis on confidentiality
AT&T CAs are also encouraged and eligible to participate in additional
training off the job. AT&T’s excellent Tuition Reimbursement Plan
makes it very attractive for employees to continue with their formal
education.
AT&T meets the challenge for preparing its CAs to succeed and
become successful.
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Staff Training

All relay center staff, including management, shall receive training in
ASL, deaf culture, needs of hearing, speech and dual sensory impaired
users, and ethics and confidentiality. Each proposal should include an
outline of a staff training plan indicating training topics and time
frames as well as explaining how individuals or organizations (such as
deaf service centers, state agencies, universities, etc.) representing the
hearing and speech impaired community would be used to assist with
the training.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T strongly believes that every manager and supervisor should be
thoroughly familiar with the needs of the relay users as well as with
general relay call processing. For this reason, we require every manager
and supervisor to successfully complete the initial training curriculum.
This includes both the technical modules as well as the Cross-Cultural
modules that focus on ASL, Deaf Culture, Needs of the TDD user,
Ethic and Confidentiality. The Cross Cultural Modules are delivered by
AT&T Deaf managers most of whom are graduates of Gallaudet
University or NTID.

All TRS managers are also required to complete the Core Curriculum
for Management Training. [tems included in the Core Curriculum for
Management Training include the following:

*  Personal Development
- Organizational Skills
- Time Management
- Financial Planning
- Retirement Planning
* Employee Relations
=  Methods and Procedures Refreshers
- One on One
- Hands On
- Lecture
= Forcing and Scheduling
*  Attendance Administration
* Training Delivery

s Advance ASL Seminars and Certification
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The core of AT&T's TRS staff training curriculum is provided on the
job. The management training outlined, plus courses in employee
relations, customer service and additional ASL training are planned for
the next four to nine months on the relay assignment. Subsequent
training is planned based on the developmental needs of the staff
member.

Counseling of CAs and Staff

Bidders are required to outline a counseling and support program that
will help CAs and staff deal with the emotional aspects of relaying
calls. Those providing this staff support shall have training in dealing
with the emotional aspects of handling relay calls. However, in
counseling sessions, the CA shall not give fo the support person the
names of callers involved. The counseling support system shall follow
the confidentiality provisions of this RFP.

AT&T understands and will comply.

In each TRS center, there is a support system in place for
Communications Assistants to deal with the emotional aspects of
relaying calls. Communications Assistants have access to both
professional internal and external counseling and support services.

'CAs do not give any support person or counselor the names of callers or

any other confidential information. They adhere to AT&T’s Pledge of
Confidentiality.

Internal Support

* Management trained in counseling, support and referral skills.

* Resource managers and supervisors are accessible 7 days a
week, 24 hours a day.

*  Accessibility to private huddle rooms designed specifically for
private counseling sessions.

* External referrals to professional support services.
= Extensive training of managers on people with disabilities.
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External Counseling and Support Services

Support from internal Employee Assistance Program, (EAP) or
external counseling program.

Additional counseling is also available to employees from
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) for substance abuse,
domestic situations, and any potential distressing situation that
may have an impact on the performance of the Communications
Assistant,

Relay Service Counseling Process

All Communications Assistants are informed by Resource Managers in
training of the importance of abiding by the Codes of Confidentiality
and Ethics.

If a situation of relaying an emotional call should interfere
with the CA’s ability to effectively deliver a quality relay call,
the CA should request support from the on-call supervisor.

Another CA or a second supervisor who may be better able to
handle the stress will take over the call.

The CA is then referred to the Resource Manager.
The Resource Manager will analyze the situation to determine

if he/she can provide the support or refer the CA or employee
to professional counseling.

The following are specific actions taken to aid the employee:

1. Resource Manager will talk through the situation, listen and provide
the private place and time for the CA to work through the situation.

2. The Resource Manager will then determine if a referral to a
medical program is required.

3. If the services of a professional counselor are deemed necessary, a
trained professional will meet with the CA immediately and tafk
through the issue privately.
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4, All sessions and subsequent counseling activities are determined
based on the specific case.

5. All counseling activities and discussions are confidential, neither
the center nor the staff is informed.

6. Employee Assistance Program counselors will then assess the
ability of the CA to provide service. A recommendation is made
to either return the CA to work, to provide the employee an
additional leave of absence or recommend another solution.

7. The employee will return to the center with or without counseling
when he/she is assessed to be able to perform the work.

Procedures for Relaying Communications

The system shall be designed to convey the full content of the
communication. Unless requested otherwise by a user, the CA shall
relay all calls according to the following procedures.

a. The method 1o be used in the system is for the CA to be identified by
a number (not name) followed by "M" if male and "F" if female.
The provider shall establish a method which will allow
identification of the CA in the event a complaint is filed or a user
wants to praise the work of the CA.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T CAs are identified by four numerics, followed by an “M”(maie)
or “F” (female), for example, CA #1234F (for TTY calls). AT&T’s
Relay 2000™ platform automatically transmits the CA’s number and
gender to TDD call originators. When the TDD user is the cal! receiver,
the CA number and gender is transmitted via a preprogrammed key that
is activated by one key action. The CAs are trained to verbally provide
their CA number to all Voice users whether they are the originators or
receivers of the relay call.

Internally, AT&T utilizes an easily accessed database to facilitate

identification of a CA in the event that a complaint or commendation is
filed.
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b. The system shall keep the user informed on the status of the call,
such as dialing, ringing, busy. disconnected or on hold throughout
the call session. The system shall provide feedback to callers on
call status within 10 seconds after a caller has provided the number
to call and continue to provide feedback until the call is answered.

AT&T understands and will comply.

Special keys on the CA workstation are programmed with various status
messages (i.e. dialing, ringing, busy, no answer, recorded message, etc.)
enabling the CA to keep the customer informed on the status of their
call. The status messages are sent by the CA through a simple one-
touch activation of the appropriate key. The use of the specially
programmed keys is covered during initial training and reinforced in
Continuation and on-going training sessions.

c. Al users shall have the option of telling the CA what aspects of the
call that he/she will handle. For example, the TDD user may voice
the call (voice carryover), rather than have the CA do it or the
caller may ask that relay be explained as soon as someone answers
the call.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T believes that control of the relay call shall always remain with
the users. Relay callers will have the option of telling the CA what
aspects of the call s/he would like to handle, and AT&T will gladly
comply.

d. When the call is first answered and at all times during the
conversation, the system shall type to the TDD user or verbalize to
the non-TDD user verbatim what is said or typed unless the relay
user specifically requests summarization. If the CA summarizes the
conversation, the CA shall inform both parties that the call is being
summarized

AT&T understands and will comply.

ATE&T CAs are trained to relay all calls verbatim unless the customer
specifically requests summarization. When summarization has been
requested, the CA will inform both the TTY user and the Voice
customer.
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e. When the CA is asked to explain relay to a user, the CA shall
express the term "explaining relay” to the other user on the call to
let them know what is happening rather than transmitting all of the
explanation. The CA shall not inform the telephone user that the
TDD user is hearing or speech disabled unless the TDD user asks
the CA to do so

AT&T understands and will comply.

Whenever it is necessary for the CA to provide an explanation of the
relay service to the telephone user, the CA will utilize a programmed
function key that transmits the message “(explaining relay)” to the TDD
user. The CA will never inform the telephone user that the TDD user is
hearing or speech disabled unless directed to do so by the TDD user.

f When speaking for the TDD wuser, the CA shall adopt a
conversational tone of voice appropriate to the type of call being
made and conveying the intent and mood of the message. The CA
shall also indicate identifiable emotions by typing those in
parentheses, (e.g., he's laughing, he's crying). Any identifiable
background noises shall be relayed to the TDD user in
parentheses. The CA shall identify to the TDD user, if identifiable,
the gender of voice users when they first come on the line. All of
the above should be done automatically unless the user asks that it
not be done.

ATE&T understands and will comply.

CAs have been trained and prepared to appropriately convey the tone
and emotion of the TDD user’s message to the phone user.
Additionally, Communications Assistants shall, to the best of their
abilities, convey to the TDD user the telephone user’s tone. Descriptive
words shall be used to convey the tone (e.g., yelling, crying, loud, quiet,
foreign accent, banging, slamming, or choking).Judgmental descriptions
shall be avoided (e.g., angry, rude, disgusted, mad, or impatient).

All pertinent background noises shall be relayed in parentheses unless
indicated otherwise by the TDD user. Customers who never want to
have background noises relayed can choose this option as part of the
Relay Choice®™ Profile. The gender of the voice user will be identified
to the TDD user. To facilitate the relaying of background noise to the
TDD user, AT&T Relay 2000°™ platform has programmed the most
commonly heard noises which include but are not limited to: music,
coughing, traffic noise, voices in background, doorbell, baby crying,
etc.
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g CAs shall indicate to the user, if known, if another person comes
on the line

AT&T understands and will corply.

To the extent possible, the CA will identify to the TDD user if another
person comes on the line and will provide the gender of that person.

h. All comments directed to either party by the CA or to the CA by
either party shall be relayed. These comments shall be typed in
parentheses. However, comments between the CA and a relay user
at the beginning of a call which deal with billing information need
not be relayed to the other user.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T CAs will relay anything that is said, heard or typed. This
includes any comments directed to either party by the CA or to the CA
by either party. The CA will type these comments in parentheses. For
example, if the CA asks the telephone user, “will you pay for a collect
call from John,” the CA will type to the TDD user, for example: (ca
here asking voice caller... will you pay for collect call from john g).

i The CA will stay on the line until both parties have terminated the
call.

AT&T understands and will comply.

The CA will remain on the line until both parties have exchanged
closing comments and good-byes. Even after the parties have
terminated the call and the CA has left the line, call originator will still
be able to access and reach a CA without having to hang up and redial
the relay service.

With the FPSC’s authorization, AT&T recommends extending its
advanced Relay 2000°™ feature called “Back End Automation® to
Florida Relay users. This feature will detect if the caller has remained
on the line or has hesitated to hang up. After 10 seconds, Back End
Automation®™ will automatically connect the TDD user to the next
available CA who will query the caller for further assistance.
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A few of the benefits of this feature include, for example:

(1) Call originator can request additional information about the relay
service, request additional assistance or place another call without
having to redial

(2) Faster call set up since caller’s original billing information and call
preferences are immediately available

This feature benefits the TDD caller who may decide at the last minute
that another call is desired or additional information from the CA is
needed and may not feel like dialing the relay service number again. By
remaining on the line, the AT&T Relay 2000°™ and the TDD caller will
be retumed to the next available CA without having to hang up, and
redial the relay service. AT&T is the only relay provider who has this
feature, '

k. CAs shall not counsel, advise, or interject personal opinions or
additional information into any relay call. This also means the CAs
shall not make any value judgement on the profanity or obscenity or
legality of any messages. Furthermore, the CAs shall not hold personal
conversations with anyone calling the system.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T CAs have been trained not to counsel, advise or interject
personal opinions or any additional information into any relay call as
indicated in the FCC Guidelines, as well as, in AT&T's Code of Ethics.
Advice will not be offered after either of the relay parties disconnects
or hangs up. Furthermore, CAs shall not hold any personal
conversations with anyone calling Florida Relay Service even when
prompted by customers except to extend a polite and concise response
of "Thank You" if a relay user comments on a job well done.

L. Users shall not be required to give their names or the name of the
party they are calling, unless needed for billing.
AT&T understands and will comply.

m. For each incoming call, the CA shall without delay make as many
owrgoing calls as requested by the caller,
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AT&T understands and will comply.

Customers of the Florida Relay Service will be able to make unlimited
calls and unlimited attempts to numbers that terminate to a busy signal
or a “no answer” condition. There shall be no limit to the number or
length of any call.

n. [f a user requests that a CA of a specific gender be used, the system
shall comply whenever possible.

AT&T understands and will comply.

The Florida Relay Service shall have good representation of the male
and female gender and will, upon request and whenever possible,
comply with caller’s request for a specific gender CA.

0. If a user requests that the same CA be used during the entire
conversation, the system shall comply whenever possible.

AT&T understands and will comply.

ATE&T will make every effort to comply with users’ request to have the
same CA used during the entire conversation. There are, however, rare
instances when this request may not be possible, for example, CAs that
have compieted their scheduled work tour.

When a change in CAs is necessary, both callers will be notified and the
number of the relief CA wili be provide to both. With AT&T’s Relay
2000°M, the change is conducted in a seamless manner without any
disruption or delay in the flow of the conversation. With the push of a
single key, the AT&T Relay 2000°™ will transfer the relay conversation
to another CA intact with all billing information.
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Interaction with Answering Machines and Voice Response Units

The bidder shall explain if and how messages will be left on or
retrieved from answering machines and if and how interaction with
voice response units will be accomplished.

a. The bidder should explain how any access code used to retrieve
messages will be confidentially handled.

b. The bidder should explain if and how messages will be retrieved
from an answering machine if the originating party calling the
relay center is at the same location as the answering machine. For
example, if a person is at home and cannot retrieve his messages
Srom his own answering machine, how will the relay center
accomplish retrieving the message and relaying the information to
the hearing impaired person when only one telephone line exists to
the residence?

¢. The bidder should explain how charges for long distance relay calls
will apply when multiple calls are necessary to complete leaving or
retrieving a message on an answering machine or retrieving a
message from a voice response unit.

d. The bidder should explain if and how calls will be handled in order
Jor the caller to interact with voice response units. (e.g., “Press [
to..")

AT&T understands and will comply.

More and more often, relay calls will terminate to a recorded message,
an answering machine or a voice processing systemn. AT&T CAs have
been thoroughly trained to process these calls competently and
professionally.
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Following are the procedures for a CA to leave a message on an
answering machine or other voice processing systems;

The CA informs the caller that an answering machine has been
reached and transmits to the caller the full content of the
outgoing message. If the CA is not successful in retrieving and
conveying the message, the CA will ask the caller if the caller
wants the CA to try the call again.

If the caller wants to leave a message, he/she must volunteer
that information to the CA. The CA will not ask the user if
he/she wants to leave a message since this would violate the CA
Code of Ethics.

The CA leaves the caller’s message either by voice or TTY.
The CA confirms to the caller that the message has been left.
The caller is only charged for one call regardless of the number

of redials required to capture the full outgoing message and/or
to leave a message.

AT&T CAs have been trained in procedures for retrieving messages
from voice processing systems and then relaying the text message to
the non-TTY user or voice message to the TTY user where the caller
remains on the line. CA procedures include:

Notifying the caller that a voice processing system has been
reached and relaying the complete outgoing message or
information

Securing the system access codes from the caller to complete
call processing. The access code will only be available during
the actual call processing and will not be retained or saved by
the CA or the relay equipment.
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» Transmitting any additional prompts, messages, or information
= Completing the call as requested by the caller

s The caller will be charged for only one call (last call)
regardless of the number of attempts in retrieving the
messages in their entirety

In addition, AT&T will provide a special service called Single Line
Answering Machine (SLAM) which allows customers who have only
one telephone line to call the Relay Center and request to have their
messages retrieved and delivered from their answering machines
without the need to remain on the line. The caller will only be billed
one call regardless of the number of attempts needed ensure complete
message retrieval. Key procedures for the SLAM service are outlined
below:

1. Customer at home calls Florida Relay Service and requests
messages to be retrieved from home answering machine

2. CA gets call details and asks caller to hang up and allow
answering machine to pick up on call back.

3. CA calls and retrieves messages and calls customer back and
delivers a summary of messages.

Regardless of the number of callbacks necessary to retrieve the
complete outgoing message or to leave a message, customers will only
be billed for one call anytime a relay call terminates to an answering
machine or voice response system.

AT&T is currently trialing a new proprietary product in the Rela
2000"" platform called PlayBack Device®™ or PBD™. The PBDS
enables CAs to more efficiently process and relay calls that terminate to
answering machines, recorded messages or interactive voice processing
systems by capturing the outgoing message and allowing the CA to pla
it back at a more comfortable pace for relaying. The PBD®
significantly reduces the number of calls needed to retrieve messages on
answering machines or to relay the prompts of voice processin
systems. No record is kept of the messages captured on the PBD®
because each message is automatically obliterated.

This feature will be fully deployed in each of AT&T Relay centers by
I Quarter 2000 ensuring the feature will be available by the time
Florida awards its bid.
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Languages Served

At all times, the provider shall make available CAs with the capability
to provide relay service to users who use either English, Spanish or
ASL (American Sign Language) on their relay call. Translation from
one language to another is not required.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T CAs are carefully trained to be able to understand deaf people
who may be use limited English during relay. The CAs are also
instructed and trained on how to translate ASL syntax into English and
how to translate limited written English into correct English,

The needs of Spanish-speaking relay users are met with AT&T’s
specially trained team of bilingual CAs. The bilingual CAs must
successfully pass all entrance tests in English as are required non-
bilingual CAs. The bilingual applicants are then given the Spanish
proficiency assessment before they are hired and trained to relay calls in
Spanish. While AT&T’s team of bilingual CAs are specially trained to
process and relay calls in Spanish, they are qualified and competent to
also relay calls in English and ASL.

Additional Languages Served

The provider will not be required to serve languages other than
English, Spanish, or ASL. However, additional evaluation points may
be given for proposals that include how the provider would handle
relay calls using one or more additional languages (e.g. French, or
Creole etc.).

AT&T understands and will comply.

When AT&T is awarded the contract to be the relay provider in Florida,
relay users who speak or use languages other than English, Spanish or
ASL may request Language Line to assist them in any foreign language
needs they have.

Recently, AT&T sold AT&T Language Line, but we have contracted
with the company to continue serving our customers. Language Line
provides foreign language translation and assistance for over 260
languages and dialects including Spanish, French, German, Polish,
Japanese, as well as Thai, Korean, Swedish, and Chinese.
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Relay callers may use Language Line to assist them in any foreign
language needs they have. Language Line Service has a separate
charge which is billed directly to the caller. The caller is notified
upfront of the cost to use Language Line.

Following are the procedures that would be used to complete a relay
call with the assistance of Language Line:

1. Caller reaches the Florida Relay Service via established toll free
number

2. Caller informs CA of need for language assistance and provides
the number s/he wishes to call

3. CA reaches Language Line and provides call details and
language request

4, Language Line establishes connection to the desired number
and conveys message of distant party to CA

5. CA will relay back and forth between the relay user and the
Language Line attendant,

On each shift the provider shall employ in the relay center at least one
person who is highly kmowledgeable of ASL in order to serve as an
advisor/consultant to assist CAs in understanding the intent of
messages and properly communicating the full contemt of

. communication.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T will provide to the Florida Relay Center persons who are highly
knowledgeable of ASL. These employees will serve to advise, coach,
and consult CAs on the intent of the relay customer’s message and how
to effectively communicate the full content of ASL communications,

Many of AT&T CAs and Managers have completed advanced classes in
ASL and have received ASL certification in other centers; and it
reasonable to expect the same passion for quality in Florida’s relay
center.
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Confidentiality of Calls

As required by s5.427.704¢1)(c), F.S., all cails shall be totally
confidential; no written or electronic script shall be kept beyond the
duration of the call. CAs and supervisory personnel shall not reveal
information about the content of any call and, except for the minimum
necessary for billing, complaint processing, statistical reporting or
training purposes as further described in this RFP, shall not reveal any
information abowt a call. CAs and supervisory personnel shall be
required to sign a pledge of confidentiality promising not to disclose the
identity of any callers (except for the reasons discussed in this section)
or any information learned during the course of relaying calls, either
during the period of employment as a CA or after termination of
employment.

a. When training new CAs by the method of sharing past experience,
trainers shall not reveal any of the following information:

i names of the parties to the call
if. originating or terminating points of specific calls
iii.  specifics of the information conveyed

b. CAs shall not discuss, even among themselves or their supervisors,
any names or specifics of any relay call, except as necessary in
instances of resolving complaints, bill processing, emergencies or
Jor training purposes. CAs may discuss a general situation with
which they need assistance in order to clarify how to process a
particular type of relay call. CAs should be trained to ask
questions about procedures without revealing names or specific
information that will identify the caller.

c. Watching or listening to actual calls by anyone other than the CA is
prohibited except for training or monitoring purposes or other
purposes specifically authorized by the Commission. FPSC staff
shall be permitted to observe live calls for monitoring purposes but
shall also comply with the confidentiality provisions above,

d A copy of the Confidentiality Policy shall be provided to a user
upon request and at no cost.
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AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T understands that Florida Relay users expect the same level of
confidentiality and convenience that is consistent with the obligations
of common carrier operators. Confidentiality is crucial to the success of
relay service and requires strict adherence. Florida Relay users must
have confidence in their service and know their privacy is protected.
The AT&T Relay 2000 Platform provides an extra level of
confidentiality. Relayed conversations are scrolled off the
Communications Assistants’ screen and cannot be retrieved.

The following policies and procedures are designed to ensure customer
privacy:

® AT&T does not maintain written or electronic scripts of any
conversation. CA and TTY typing appears on the screen only
during the conversation and is automatically cleared when the
conversation is terminated. The TRS system records the
minimum information necessary for billing purposes only.
Once the call is completed the billing information is sent to an
off-site billing data repository and is no longer accessible to the
CA.

=  CA and supervisory personnel do not reveal any information
about any call, including the fact that the call occurred. Only in
the instances of resolving complaints or when a CA is having
difficulty with a call, can the call be discussed. However it must
be done without revealing the names, gender, ages or numbers
of either party.

» CAs are required to adhere to the rules of confidentiality during
all training sessions. Trainers are trained to present scenarios
and procedures without revealing names or specifics about the
callers. All CAs are then required to sign a Pledge of
Confidentiality promising not to disclose the identity of any
caller, fellow CA, or any information learned during the course
of relay cails. This applies to all CAs during the period of
employment and after termination of employment. A copy of
the Confidentiality Policy is available to any user upon request
and at no cost. (A copy of the Pledge of Confidentiality
follows)

Florida

November 10, 1999 Page 53



4
B

AT&T cooperates with legitimate governmental investigations
through AT&T Corporate Security which understands and
applies the policies and procedures used to ensure customer
privacy.

A CA or supervisor who, after a thorough investigation, is
found to have violated the confidentiality rules and regulations
will either be terminated immediately or given a warning
depending on the severity of the violation. In the event of a
second occurrence the employee will be terminated
immediately.

All CAs and supervisory personnel must adhere to the AT&T
Code of Ethics and will keep all communicated information
strictly confidential. (A copy of the Code of Ethics follows.)

All employees must adhere to additional company policies,
practices, and instructions, as well as, legal and common sense
standards that govern workplace conduct. (A copy of
AT&T's Privacy of Communications and AT&T’s
Common Bond follows.)
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I, the wundersigned Communications Assistant for the AT&T
Telecommunications Relay Service, do hereby recognize the serious and
confidential nature of this position and therefore promise in all good faith
and conscience to abide by the following guidelines:

Name (sign)

Under no circumstances will I disclose to any individual the
identity of any caller or information I may learn about the caller
while relaying his/her messages.

Under no circumstances will I act upon any information I may
learn while relaying.

Under no circumstances will I disclose to anyone the names,
schedules, or personal information of any fellow
Communications Assistant or supervisor working here at the
AT&T Telecommunications Relay Service.

[ will share upon request any information about the caller with
persons who have a supervisory function over my work.

In the event of my resignation or termination of my employment,
I will continue to hold in strictest of confidence all information
related to the work I have performed as a Communications
Assistant.

Name (print) Date
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Communications Assistants will keep all call information strictly
confidential. The exception to this if a call has to be transferred to
another CA or the Support Desk/Supervisor.

Communications Assistants must never give out customers’
telephone numbers.

Communications Assistants must never give out information
about themselves except their gender and CA number.

Communications Assistants will convey the content and spirit of
the speaker.

Communications Assistants will not counsel, advise, or express

personal opinions. The CA may be asked to describe the tone of
voice of the Voice Party.

Communications Assistants, as employees of AT&T, will strive to

maintain high professional standards in compliance with the Code
of Ethics.
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Over the years, privacy of communications has been basic to AT&T's business, not only
because it is required by law, but because the public has placed its trust in the integrity of
AT&T's people and service. All AT&T customers have the right to expect and demand
that their conversations are kept private.

With the ever-increasing volume of data transmission over the network, this trust has
taken on a special significance at AT&T. Today it is the responsibility of every AT&T
employee to protect not only the privacy of conversations on the network, but also the
flow of information in data form, that in the wrong hands could have serious economic or
legal consequences for the parties involved.

Our basic rules for privacy have not changed. Violating any one of them could tarnish a
reputation AT&T has worked hard to maintain over many years. The basic rules are:

* Don't tamper with or intrude upon any transmission, whether by voice, non-voice,
or data.

e Don't listen to or repeat anyone else's conversation or communication, or permit

them to be monitored or recorded except as required in the proper management of
the business.

e Don't allow an unauthorized person to have access to any communication
transmitted over AT&T facilities. This includes divulging information about who
was speaking or what was spoken about, except as authorized by the customer or
required in the proper management of the business.

e Don't install or permit installation of any device that will enable someone to listen
to, observe, or realize that a communication has occurred, except as authorized by
an official service or installation order in accordance with Company practices.

e Don't use information from any communication, or even the fact that a
communication has occurred, for your personal benefit or for the benefit of others.

e Don't disclose information about customer billing arrangements, or the location of
equipment, circuits, trunks, and cables to any unauthorized person.

Contact the AT&T Corporate Security Organization if you believe that the privacy of any
communication has been compromised, or if you receive a subpoena, court order, or any
other type of request for information from anyone (including law enforcement and other
government agencies) concerning any AT&T service.
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We commit to these values to guide our decisions and behavior

Respect For Individuals — We will treat each other with respect and dignity, valuing
individual and cultural differences. We will communicate frequently and with candor,
listening to each other regardless of level or position. Recognizing that exceptional quality
begins with people, we will give individuals the authority to use their capabilities to the fullest
to satisfy their customers. Our environment will support personal growth and continuous
learning of all AT&T people.

Dedication to Helping Customers — We will truly care for each customer. We will
build enduring relationships by understanding and anticipating our customers’ needs and by
serving them better each time than the time before. AT&T customers can count on us to

consistently deliver superior products an services that help them achieve their personal and
business goals.

Highest Standards of Integrity — We will be honest and ethical in all our business
dealings, starting with how we treat each other. We will keep our promises and admit our
mistakes. Our personal conduct will ensure that AT&T’s name is always worthy of trust.

Innovation — We will believe innovation is the engine that will keep us vital and growing.
Our culture will embrace creativity, seek different perspectives and risk pursuing new
opportunities. We will create and rapidly convert technology into products and services,
constantly searching for new ways to make technology more useful to customers.

Team work — We will encourage and reward both individual and team achievements. We
will freely join with colleagues across organizational boundaries to advance the interest of
customers and shareowners. Our team spirit will extend to being responsible and caring
partners in the communities where we live and work.

By living these values, AT&T will achieve a standard of excellence worldwide that will
reward our shareowners, our customers, and all AT&T people.

Signed

Name Date Manager
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B. 18

Voice and Hearing Carryover

Provider shall provide both voice and hearing carryover upon request
of the user. A TDD user may request voice carryover (VCQO) which will
allow him/her to speak directly to the telephone user and receive the
message typed back on the TDD. Also, a TDD user may request
hearing carryover (HCO) which will enable the TDD user to directly
hear what the telephone user is saying and type back his/her message
which will be spoken by the operator.

As part of its proposal the bidder should describe in detail how
incoming 2-line VCO calls will be handled. As part of its proposal the
bidder should also describe in detail how outgoing 2-line VCO calls
will be handled.

The provider shall make provision for two persons who are hearing
disabled to speak for themselves by means of voice carryover to voice

“carryover (VCO to VCO} and for two persons who are speech disabled

to hear for themselves by means of hearing carryover to hearing
carryover (HCO to HCO).

AT&T understands and will comply.

Florida relay users will have access to multiple Voice Carryover (VCO)
and Hearing Carryover (HCO) features with AT&T as the TRS
provider. Both Carryover features and their enhancements are
considered part of AT&T’s Basic Telecommunications Relay Services.

TDD users can request to use Voice Carryover or Hearing Carryover in
several ways:
For example:

(1) Typing “vco pls ga” during call setup

(2) Choosing VCO as a preference feature for the caller’s
Relay Choice®™ Profile

(3) Waiting until the CA is on line to request VCO

Callers who request VCO can elect to voice call details directly to the
CA rather than typing them via the TDD.

2 Line VCO Procedures:

2 line VCO is a very popular call type which AT&T executes thousands
of times every day. CAs are very experienced in handling this type of
request. The procedures for handling this type of call follow:
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2 Line VCO Request (TDD to Voice)

—_—

The TDD user calls the Florida TDD relay number.

The TDD user requests a 2 Line VCO call and provides the number
to call which is an extension at the caller’s location.

The CA dials the extension number. This number is called the
“forward” number for billing purposes.

TDD user answers extension number in voice mode. This is same
customer on both Line 1 and Line 2.

The called forward number will use three-way calling or the
phone’s conference feature to dial another number. The CA relays
information to the TDD user (Line 1) such as line ringing, line
answered, in the usual way.

No relay announcement, CA ID number or CA interaction takes
place on the call.

The CA will use MUTE button and will relay to the TDD user
(Line 1) everything heard.

The CA will advise the customer when the conferenced person has
hung up and will be guided by the caller’s instructions.

2 Line VCO Request (Voice to TDD)

—_—

Call comes in to the TDD uset’s voice line.

TDD user answers line in Voice mode and asks the caller to hold
for a moment.

TDD will place the voice caller on HOLD, then using conference
feature or three-way calling, dials the Florida Relay Service Voice
number,

The TDD user will voice instructions to the CA to call back on the
user’s TDD line.

TDD user answers line with TDD (typing) then conferences in the
voice caller on the voice line.

AT&T was the first relay provider to introduce Voice-to-Voice™
(VTV) as a feature of relay service. VTV This feature expands the
VCO capability by allowing two hearing disabled individuals to voice
their parts of a call while the CA types for both parties. VTV is ideal for
two TDD users who can speak but who may not know how to type or
may be physically unable to type.

AT&T was the first relay provider to introduce HCO-to-HCOQO (HTH)}) as
a feature of relay service. HTH expands the HCQO capability by
allowing two speech-disabled individuals to listen to the CA voice the
other person’s conversation.
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B. 20

For additional enhancements to the “carryover” features, please refer to
section 41, “Unsolicited Features in Basic Relay Service.”

Obscenity Directed at the Operator
CAs do not have to tolerate obscenity directed at them. A proposal
should specify how the provider will handle these situations.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T CAs are not required to tolerate obscenity directed at them prior
to, during, or after a relay call. CAs have been trained to attempt to
direct the caller back to the processing of the relay call. If the
obscenities continue in a manner that obstructs the CA from relaying
the call in a quality manner, the CA will excuse the other party and will
refer the customer causing the obscenities to the supervisor. The
supervisor will take over the call and handle the situation appropriately.
The situation will be documented and kept on file for future reference.
In some cases, if we have a repeat offender, it will be reported to AT&T
Corporate Security and the Florida Public Service Commission will also
be notified of the situation.

Emergency Calls

Although most of Florida is covered by 911 communication centers
prepared to handle TDD calils directly, the bidder shall develop and
Jollow a policy for handling and referring emergency calls. The policy
may include procedures for referring callers to emergency services and
numbers other than 911.

AT&T provides CAs with immediate and direct access to a database
that contains emergency agency listings based on their Automatic
Number Identification (ANI). If this number does not appear in the
database it be necessary to contact Directory Assistance. Using the
caller’s ANI, the CA can quickly secure the appropriate emergency
agency listing and complete the relay call which allows for immediate
emergency attention. Upon identification or receipt of the emergency
number, the CA performs only two key strokes to initiate the call to the
emergency agency. Each emergency call is given the CA’s undivided
attention, Typically, a supervisor will be immediately assigned to work
with the CA in any emergency call situation. CAs will do whatever is
necessary — including passing the caller’s telephone number, address
and other details about the emergency to the agency — to ensure the
rendering of immediate emergency service.
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B. 21

CAs remain on the line until released by the emergency agency. Calls to
authorized emergency agencies (police, fire, ambulance, etc.) are
completed free of charge to the caller.

We include information on emergency calls in our state brochures. We
state that “Relay Service is not a substitute for 911 emergency services.
However, if we receive an emergency call, we will do whatever we can
to connect the caller to the emergency service needed. To make sure
your emergency call is handled as quickly as possible, please call your
local emergency service number directly.”

Blockage

Provider is responsible for ensuring that 99% of calls reaching the
relay center per day are either answered or continue to receive a
ringing signal.

Calls that are blocked must receive a network blockage signal of 120
impulses per minute.

Our historical data, which is available to the FPSC upon request,
demonstrates that AT&T has not incurred a network blockage and has
successfully ensured that 100% of calls reaching the relay center are
answered. This is accomplished primarily through the fully-redundant,
fault tolerant Relay 2000™ Platform.

It is highly unlikely calls would be blocked into the automatic call
distributer thanks in part to the fact that AT&T has excess trunking
capacity into each center. The Florida Relay Center would also have
excess trunking to ensure that well over 99% of calls reaching the
center will complete to a CA. AT&T Telecommunications Relay
Services’ Grade-of-Service is the same as that required for Toll and
Assistance Operator or other critical attendant services. The service
access is enginecred with an additional twenty percent of trunking to
provide service at a level above the contracted grade-of-service. This
accommodates facility ordering intervals and facilitates growth and/or
unexpected service demands. Also, a review of utilization data
(available upon request) indicates that TRS centers may run between 60
to 75 percent of capacity to expedite any service recovery situation.
This, in fact, is how AT&T was able to provide additional relay
assistance during Hurricane Floyd.

If trouble does occur in the AT&T network, a signal set to 120
cycles/impulses per minute will be provided to all callers.
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Answer Time

Provider is responsible for answering 90% of all calls per month within
10 seconds of reaching the relay switch. Elapsed time is calculated
from the time inbound calls reach the relay switch. In calculating the
percentage of calls meeting the answer time standard, the numerator
shall be the total number of calls per month that are answered (with a
CA ready to serve) in 10 seconds or less. The denominator shall be the
total number of calls per month reaching the relay switch except that
the total shall not include calls abandoned within 10 seconds after
reaching the relay switch. However, calls abandoned after 10 seconds
shall be included in the denominator. (Exception: If the Provider is
unable to differentiate between calls abandoned within 10 seconds and
those abandoned after 10 seconds of reaching the relay switch, then all
abandoned calls shall be included in the denominator.)

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T ensures the FPSC that it will meet the performance requirements
for answering 90% of all calls within 10 seconds (90/10) on a monthly
basis. Moreover, AT&T will calculate the percentage of calls meeting
the answer time standard by using the total number of calls per day that
are answered in ten seconds or less as the numerator divided by the total
number of calls per day reaching the relay switch including those calls
abandoned after 10 seconds.

Overall, AT&T maintains more than ample staffing, CA positions and
network facilities at each call center to achieve 90% in 10 seconds,
which statistically provides a four (4) to six (6) second Average Daily
Answer Time with the exception of emergency situations. This
resource allocation allows AT&T to provide a monthly cumulative
average speed of answer between 3.1 and 5.0 seconds. Emergency
situations include civil disturbances, severe weather conditions or
natural disasters and technical service recoveries.

For customers who use our automated features such as Up-front
Automation™ (UFA) or Voice Up-front Automation™ (VUFA) the
average time that elapses between the receipt of dialing information and
the dialing of the requested number is almost twice as fast than if the
caller waited for the CA to come on line to provide the call details
verbally.

AT&T's Operations Management Center (OMC) is rich with
experience in matching call demand with human resources. We monitor
and record call volume trends that vary by time of day, day of week,
holiday, time-change, season, school year and other calendar events,
We build models, using this historic data, which enable us to predict
future calling trends with great accuracy.
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By successfully modeling calling trends, the OMC is able to match
resources to meet calling demand and consistently deliver superior
answer time resuits,

During the last twelve months, the OMC has allowed AT&T to deliver
answer time resuits for its customers consistently ahove contracted
levels.

Following are tables that illustrate AT&T’s success at meeting answer
requirements for each of our states. The tables are for 1999 year-to-date.
AT&T would be pleased to provide additional data upon request.
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1999 TRS/OSD/ATTLDRC ANSWER PERFORMANCE

¥TD OBJ.
ACTUALS Ctr. 0Ob) | Obj
STATES Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May [ Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Obj. | Opp | Met
Alabama 92 91 92 91 92 91 91 o1 91 90710 9 ]
40 | 44 | 40 | 45 3.9 41 | 45 | 41 | 44
Dist of 92 92 92 92 92 21 91 91 92 90/10 9 9
Delaware R 92 92 91 92 92 91 91 91 90/10 9 9
4.2 4.2 3.6 4.3 3.6 19 4.4 37 | 43
Georgia 92 92 92 N 92 a1 91 o1 91 90/10 9 9
40 | 41 | 40 | 42 3.9 41 | 45 | 40 | 43
Hlinois 92 92 92 91 92 91 91 91 91 50/10 9 9
39 [ 40 | 3.7 | 42 36 39 1 43 ] 38 | 41
Maine 92 92 92 92 92 91 91 91 91 90/10 9 9
4.3 3.8 41 3.6 3.8 39 4.4 40 | 47
Mississippi 93 92 92 o1 92 92 91 91 91 90/10 9 9
37 | 38 | 36 | 42 3.5 371 40 | 38 | 40
New Jersey | 92 92 92 92 92 91 91 91 91 90/10 9 9
431 421 40 [ 39 3.6 39 | 44 | 39 | 43
Pennsyl. 92 92 92 92 92 91 51 91 91 50/10 9 9
42 4.0 3.9 3.9 3.7 4.0 4.4 3.8 43
Rhode Is. 92 53 53 93 93 93 92 92 92 90/10 9 9
3.7 3.7 3.3 3.3 34 3.4 3.8 3.5 3.7
Tennessee 92 91 Ell 91 92 9l 91 91 91 90/10 9 5
4.2 4.4 4.1 4.4 3.9 42 4.5 40 | 44
Vermont 92 03 92 [935) 928 | 92 | 922 922 | 920 90/10 9 9
41 {37135] 30 32 34 | 38 | 34 | 34
West 92 91 91 92 91 92 | 90.6 | 90.6 | 91.0 90/10 9 9
ergjnja 4.3 4.5 4.3 4.0 38 4.0 4.8 4.1 4.5
Virgin 92 95 93 93 916 | 92 92 02 92 90/10 9 9
Islands 36 | 31 [ 38 ] 40 49 34 | 3.7 ] 29 | 44
Us 92 92 92 21 91.7 91 91 91 9l 90/10 9 9
(ATTLD) [39 | &Y | 3.7 | 44 | 38 | 43 | 41 | 3.8 | 41
Virginia 89 89 &7 87 88 87 88 88 87 8510 9 9
66 [ 73 | 9.1 | 88 8.0 85 | 78 | 79 | 9.1
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1999 TRS/OSD/ATTLDRC ANSWER PERFORMANCE

ACTUALS YD O8J.
Ctr. Obj | Obj
STATES Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr [ May | Jun | Jul [ Aug [ Sep [ Oct | Nov | Dec | Ob;. Opp | Met
PC 93 95 94 95 95 9% | 95 95 96 25/10 9 9
SB | 501 | 88 | 48 | 42 40 | 6.7 | 81 | 6.0
PL 93 91 89 | 93 93 93 94 | 94 92 §5/10 9 9
59 {156 174 50 | 116 | 62 | 85 | 10.0] 96
Puerto Rico | 92 92 92 93 93 94 | 92 92 | 94 85/10 9 9
126 | 1071109 [ 108 | 6.8 88 [122] 98 | 89
PT 50 89 89 91 94 91 87 87 91 85/10 9 9
1.5 [ 171 [ 134 | 62 8.5 62 [ 147|104 ] 82
Spanish 91 92 91 92 92 93 92 | 92 91 85/10 9 9
National 132 [ 114103123 119 [ 109107 [ 103 [ 1L.7
8D 1og | 97 a7 | 93 100 [ 100 | 100 | 100 | 100 85/10 9 9
00 ] 38| 73 [ 23 0.2 00 | 00 | 49 | 10
EZ Reach 100 | 100 | 100 [ 90 a5 94 82 | 82 95 NA
0.0 [ 00 | 0.0 | 1.1 3.3 1.1 1 45 [ 153 1.3
Hotline 78 NA | 100 0 100 67 100 | 100 | 100 NA
89 | NA | 0.0 | 0.0 0.0 [143 ] 00 | 58 { 0.0
oS a1 89 29 87 &9 a8 89 89 89 85/10 9 9
48 | 61 | 54 [ 70D 5.4 56 | 57| 53 (57
Totat OPP | 15 L5 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 90/1¢ | 135 [ 135
Total Met 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15
% 90/10 160 [ 100 [ 100 | 100 | 100 | 100 | 100 | (0D { 100 100
Area Ans | 45 | 46 | 46 | 49 | 44 46 | 49 | 45 | 4.9
Total OPP | 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 85/10 1 184 | (84
Total Met | 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23
% 85/10 100 } 100 | 100 | 100 | 100 | 100 | 100 { 100 | 100 100

EZ, HL & OS ARE NOT INCLUDED IN TOTAL OPPORTUNITIES AND TOTAL MET
ILLINOIS INCLUDES SPANISH
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B. 23

B. 24

Equipment Compatibility

It is necessary for the system to be capable of receiving and
transmitting in both Baudot and ASCII codes as well as voice. 1t is also
required that relay systems be capable of automatically identifying
incoming TDD signals as either Baudot or ASCII. All equipment shall
be compatible with the basic protocol of TDDs distributed in Florida
through the Administrator (Ultratec Model Nos. 100, 200, 400, 425,
1140 and 4425 and Ameriphone Dialogue VCO).

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T’s Relay 2000°™ Platform will connect with all TDDs/TTYs in
use today.

AT&T’s relay facilities use only Ultratec modems, the premier
commercial and residential relay modem supplier in the country. In
establishing our platform, AT&T reviewed and tested the main modem
providers in the marketplace. In all our test protocols, Ultratec
continued to be the best source of quality modems. AT&T’s Relay
Platform uses Ultratec modems exclusively loaded with customer
software written specifically for AT&T.

They will connect to Ultratec models, 100, 200, 400, 425, 1140 and
4425 and the Ameriphone Dialogue VCO and all other TTY’s available
today. .

AT&T’s Relay platform will support the continued connectivity of
Baudot and ASCII protocols of the TDD's distributed within the State
of Florida,

Transmission Levels _ .

Transmission levels must be maintained within industry standards as
outlined in the American National Standards Institute — Network
Performance - Switched Exchange Access Network Transmission
Specifications (ANSI T1.506-1997). Provider must provide updates 1o
those standards as amended by ANSI during the term of the contract
and must meet the amended standards.
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AT&T understands and will comply.

The AT&T network and facility will meet or exceed all of the following
measures and standards for transmission characteristics:

"  American National Standards Institute/Electronic Industries
Association (ANSI/EIA) PBX standard TIA/EIA — 464B.

* American National Standards Institute- Network Performance-
Switched Exchange Access Network Transmission Specifications
{ANSI T1.50b- 1997)

» ANSI T1.508-1998 Revision, redesignation and consolidation of
ANSI T1.508- 1992 and ANSI T1.508a- 1993 << American
National Standards for Telecommunications Loss Plan for Evolving
Digital Networks Secretariat Alliance for Telecommunications
Industry

The circuits that AT&T will provision for the Florida Relay Service
will be ISDN MegaCom 800 which will transverse on the Software
Defined Network (SDN) within the AT&T telecommunications
universe. These circuits comply with a grade-of-service of P.01 which
provide a functionally equivalent probability of a fast busy as one might
encounter on the overall voice network.

AT&T’s universe includes matching 4ESS and 5ESS switches and in
¢ach case, a fully performing redundant switch is available to handle
redirected calls in case of a network trouble or outage.

AT&T will install sufficient trunking to support all forecasted Florida
Voice, Baudot, and ASCII calls plus twenty percent for increases in
volumes not currently anticipated. This will insulate AT&T’s Florida
Relay center from impact factors that can not be planned and insures a
Communications Assistant will be available for each and every call.

AT&T’s Network Management Control Center (NMCC) will provide
seven day, twenty-four hour coverage to guide and circumvent troubles
on any/all circuits provisioned for Florida Relay use.
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Measuring Equipment Accuracy

Every meter, recording and ticketing device used to capture call details
Jor billing subscribers or the FPSC/Administrator as well as for
providing traffic information shall be tested prior to its installation and
shall be accurate 97 percent of the time to within a 1 second grace
period. Al equipment shall be maintained in a good state of repair
consistent with safety and adequate service performance.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T has a dedicated technical team of four individuals whose
primary responsibility is to ensure that every meter, recording and
ticketing device on AT&T’s Relay 2000°™ Platform are accurate. The
AT&T Relay 2000°™ Platform and other facilities that support it, are
programmed to automatically dial out to the National Bureau of
Standards for time synchronization on a daily basis. This daily
maintenance ensures a higher accuracy level than the 97% standard
required and the technical staff mentioned ensures that the equipment
and platform remain in a good state of repair.

AT&T’s Relay also has a fully redundant online tracking system that is
available should an event occur that will incapacitate the primary
tracking device. As each AT&T Relay site is part of a self-healing Wide
Area Network, the transition from the primary machine to the redundant
system will occur with no impact to the integrity of data.

Emergency Operations

In addition to a minimum of thirty (30) minutes battery capacity
sufficient to operate each relay center processing Florida relay traffic
at busy season busy hour load, each relay center shall have installed
emergency power generating equipment capable of maintaining the
relay center's operations for extended periods of time. The
uninterruptible power system shall support the switch system and its
peripherals, switch room environmental (air conditioning, fire
suppression system, emergency lights and system alarms), operator
consoles/terminals, operator work site emergency lights, and Call
Detail Record recording.  Provisions shall be made to meet
emergencies resulting from failure of power service, sudden and
prolonged increases in traffic, storms, lightning, etc. Employees shail
be instructed as to the procedures to be followed in the event of
emergency in order to prevent or mitigate interruption or impairment of
relay service. '

jremti——.
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The bidder shall describe its plan for dealing with all types of natural
and man-made problems (e.g., hurricanes, lightning strikes, fires, etc.)
which either isolate the relay center and prevent calls from reaching
the center or cause the center to be unable to operate. In addition, the
plan should detail the steps which will be taken to deal with the
problem and restore relay service

The provider shail inform the contract manager of any major
interruptions to the operation of the relay center extending beyond five
minutes duration. The contract manager shall also be informed when it
becomes known to the relay center that any portion of the state is
isolated for more than five minutes from the relay center. The provider
shall also provide a report after restoration of service,

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T has the best plan in the business for responding to service and
disaster recovery situations. Qur “best-in-class” system for Emergency
Operations and Uninterruptible Power has attracted other relay
providers to contract with AT&T to become their “service and disaster
recovery” backup system.

The “best in the business” plan is due to several important factors such
as our in-house technical support team which is available 24 hours a
day, 7 days a week, and to the fact that AT&T created, owns and
supports the relay technical platform. Unlike other relay providers,
AT&T does not subcontract technical platforms and services.
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AT&T’s disaster plans and preparations not only keep essential
operations running while protecting our employees and facilities, but it
also maintains vital communications links. We do such an outstanding
job in this area, that AT&T Relay Services enacted internal emergency
procedures to allow areas affected by Hurricane Floyd (Florida, South
Carolina, and North Carolina) to us¢ AT&T Relay Services in order to
complete their essential and emergency relay calls when their current
provider was not available.

AT&T's centers have sustained snow blizzards, flooding, hurricanes,
and other acts of nature. Regardless of what Mother Nature may throw
our way, AT&T is prepared and our people will respond quickly and
courageously.

Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS)

All AT&T Relay Centers have battery back up and generator capability
sufficient to allow the relay service to operate after a commercial power
failure. This system ensures that each battery backup is sufficient for
one hour and the generator is capable of providing uninterrupted power
indefinitely until power is restored.

In the event of a power failure in a center, there is sufficient battery
backup-power to support the switch, its peripherals, and adjuncts until
the generator reaches full power in approximately 30 seconds. The
generator supports the switch room environmentals (e.g., air
conditioning, fire suppression systems, emergency lights, and alarm
systems) and the CA work site emergency lights, consoles/terminals
and call detail recording. Our system will generate sufficient power to
operate until power is restored.

AT&T’s relay system architecture incorporates multiple levels of
automated power backup. The first tier in the architecture, including
our PBXSs, is engineered with individual internal power battery packs
that provide automatic and instantaneous power backup in the event of
any normal public power failure. This design prevents even momentary
loss of power that might otherwise interrupt customer service.
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A second tier of automated power is an uninterruptible power supply
system supporting each component including our billing recorder, in
every relay centers. Each Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) is
capable of providing power for an extended period of time, until the
third tier of automated power backup takes over. This power backup
unit ensures that even in the rare ocourrence of a possible failure in any
component’s internal UPS, the system wide power is automatically and
continuously maintained.

The third tier of automated power backup enabling fail-safe operation in
the event of a breakdown in normal public power is an automated
power-genetating unit, This unit automatically starts when more than a
momentary power interruption occurs and will continue for as long as
necessary to maintain service, Complete system coverage is maintained
by this third tier of backup power and includes alarms, lights, air
conditioning, fire suppression systems, heating, electronic equipment
and CA work stations. This system allows any battery power that may
have been expended to quickly recharge and ensure continued multiple
levels of power-loss protection.

Disaster Recovery Plan

The Account Manager assigned to the State of Florida will be
responsible for ensuring the disaster recovery notification requirements
of the Contract Manager are met. The Contract Manager will be notified
when any portion of the state is isolated for more than five minutes
from the relay services. Following any service or disaster recovery, the
Contract Manager will receive a report after the service has been
restored.

AT&T in conjunction with Geotel™ have implemented the Intelligent
Call Routing System throughout the AT&T Relay complex. Although
Florida will have a dedicated state center it is important to understand
how traffic will be handled in the event of any emergency. Geotel™
provides a software-based processing application offering call-by-call
routing to geographically distributed call centers. This system utilizes
real-time call handling and CA status data in routing every call. AT&T
will, at no additional cost to Florida, implement this leading edge call
routing technology to the Florida Relay Center.
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The fault tolerant nature of Geotel™ a self-diagnosing and self-
maintaining system that requires limited administration. The fault
tolerant architecture of the system ensures continuous operation without
interruption, in the event of hardware, software, or network failures.
The main goals of the Geotel™ Intelligent Call Routing System’s fault
tolerant architecture are to:

« Eliminate all single points of failure that would cause other call
routing systems to stop.

*» Provide disaster protection by allowing the major system
components to be geographically separated.

To ensure the Geotel™ Intelligent Call Routing System continues to

operate in the case of hardware failure, all critical parts of the system
have been duplicated.

» The Geotel™ Intelligent Call Routing System has a seven day,
twenty-four hour support center that automatically detects
failure and takes the necessary steps to rectify the situation.

* Each center is equipped with redundant hardware of the
Geotel™ Intelligent Call Routing System for fault tolerance

The following is an illustration of the Geotel™ Intelligent Call Routing
System that would be implemented should the Florida Relay Center
eVer experience a service recovery or service disaster situation.
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Disaster Recovery Plan for Florida Relay Service

All of our relay centers are equipped with backup power and services to
ensure unminterrupted relay service. The ultimate goal of the
Disaster/Service Recovery Plan is 100% up time and no service level
degradation,

The cause for service interruptions are natural or man-made. The
affected element could be the center itself, cabie between the center and
the local telephone company, or cabling between AT&T offices. In all
instances, AT&T strives to ensure high-quality relay service.

AT&T has several plans for ensuring uninterrupted relay service
including:

=  dynamic call routing automatically detecting failure and
rerouting calls

® service monitoring via OMC staff

=  power backup via generators

* duplicate common control for all equipment

* an inventory of on-site spare parts

* automatic emergency transfer

= relay center backup via AT&T’s service recovery plan

= intercept messages.

Whether a service interruption is a natural or man-made, the dynamic
call routing procedure will be initiated to guarantee proper service
levels. '

AT&T’s switching system has a duplicate common control to ensure
uninterruptible service. It also has a fault detection system that
monitors errors and prevents system crashes. The central processing
unit, central call processing and maintenance functions, system
memory and common control pewer supplies are duplicated. This
allows AT&T to conduct preventative maintenance while the system
is “live.” Should problems arise with the main control, this duplicate
control is ready to take over. Additionally, the system initiates a
trouble call to an AT&T traffic and maintenance center equipped to
resolve problems remotely, If the problem cannot be resolved
remotely, a technician is immediately dispatched to the center.
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Additionally, the relay software within the AT&T Relay 2000
Platform has an Automatic Emergency Transfer feature that can
forward call information from one workstation fail to another to
continue relaying a call. This ensures that service is not interrupted by
technical glitches.

AT&T also carries an inventory of critical parts in each of our centers.
These parts include, but are not limited to, additional CA positions,
PBX line cards, AT&T Relay 2000°™ tape drives and memory port
cards.

It is important to note that unlike other relay providers, AT&T designs,
owns, and supports its relay platform. A dedicated team of technical
system administrators and technicians provide three distinct tiers of
support 24 hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year. AT&T can
assure the FPSC that the Florida Relay Center will have the highest
level of support and responsiveness.

Intercept Messages
Intercept messages as appropriate shall be provided if a system failure
occurs.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T has provisioned numerous network messages in the event that
any of our relay centers develop difficulties in completing calls. These
messages are in Baudot, Voice, ASCII, and Spanish covering acts of
nature, work stoppage, weather delays, or technical difficulties. These
messages are initiated to inform customers of potential delays in call

completion.

Following are sample intercept messages:

1. “Thank you for calling. We are currently experiencing technical
difficulties. Please try your call later.”

ta

Thank you for calling. Due to emergency conditions, we are unable
to answer your call at this time. Please try you call again later.

3. Thank you for calling. Due to extreme weather conditions we are
unable to answer your call at this time. Please try your call again
later,

As expected, few Florida customers will ever hear or see these
messages. AT&T will gladly consult with the FPSC if there is a need to
modify any of these messages.
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B. 28 Service Expansion

Bidder shall show the capability of expanding services in response to
increasing demand. Bidder shall develop and illustrate in its proposal
a detailed plan of how this expansion will be accomplished. The plan
shall include, but not be limited to, trunking capacity, CA work stations,
personnel staffing and equipment capacity. The plan shall also indicate
how any time lag shall be avoided to meet any increased call volume.
The above plans shall allow the provider to be able to maintain all
standards listed in the RFP.

RESPONSE AT&T understands and will comply.

Our Service Management team is responsible for maintaining sufficient
space, furniture, equipment, network, hardware, software and qualified
personnel to provide the required levels of service. The Service
Managers review center traffic information on a daily basis and utilize
the data to update the current trend and growth projections. AT&T is
not only concerned with maintaining a high level of service, but is
firmly committed to expanding and improving upon our service.

When AT&T designs and builds a relay center, certain parameters are
part of the basic design. To illustrate this point, each relay center has
20 percent of center capacity above the highest forecasted call volumes
for the next year. If call volumes warrants expanding the Florida Relay
Service, AT&T will be the first to recognize the need.

AT&T will continue to review traffic volumes on a daily basis, as well
as forecast potential volumes month by month. This daily review will
include, but will not be limited to, the amount of available CA
positions, the current workforce headcount, network capacity, modem
availability and PBX utility. If any of these items become 90% utilized
AT&T will take immediate steps to increase capacity limits into the 15
to 20 percent range. This plan may include:

Testing and hiring additional staff

Placing orders for additional network capacity
Installation of additional positions for call handling
Placing more modems in the platform

Building more capacity in the PBX carriers
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The growth projections will be based on historical traffic information
and recent traffic trends.

This on-going process allows the relay center management to anticipate
growth and prepare for that growth. As expansion becomes necessary

for Florida Relay Service, a time table will be established and

procedures will be initiated to procure the necessary equipment,
network capacity and personnel. Regular updates will be given to the
state as the implementation process begins. The ultimate goal of this
process is to ensure that the required levels of service are always
maintained.

New Technology

The users should be allowed to benefit from advancing technology.
Bidder should describe the methodology and process it will use to keep
abreast of technological changes in the provision of relay service, to
inform the FPSC and Administrator that new enhancements are
available and at what price, and to provide the FPSC the opportunity to
purchase such enhancements or upgrades to the service. .

AT&T understands and will comply.

The heart of AT&T’s relay technology knowledge is a staff of Bell
Labs (now AT&T Labs) engineers with over 50 collective years of relay
experience. With innovations spanning network architecture, service
quality and network surveillance and management, the AT&T TRS
Technical Development and Service Management teams have improved
and enhanced the customer’s relay call experience each year since
AT&T began providing relay.

AT&T has always been at the forefront of TRS technology, proposing
and implementing technology that enhances the customer’s calling
experience, such as offering TurboCode, up-front automation of text
and voice calls, and calling profiles. AT&T will continue trialing
advanced features such as Web TTY as the technologies embrace relay
users’ needs.

On-Going TRS Product Development

AT&T generally works on an annual development cycle with a
minimum of one major software release per year. We refer to this
process as the “Product and Feature Realization Process,” which begins
with the conception of a new idea cluster ends when it is integrated into
the relay complex.
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Throughout this process, AT&T would work closely with the Contract
Manager, the FPSC, and Florida relay users to ensure their needs are
balanced with the fiscal needs of the FPSC.

While AT&T can design custom applications for our states, we
typically design our features in a universal manner so that all of our
state customers can benefit from them. When states agree to
“universally” designed applications that become a part of AT&T's
Basic Service Offering there is no additional cost passed to the state. In
fact, many of our features have resulted in more efficient calls, therefore
bringing significant cost savings to our states.

AT&T completed a major software upgrade in November 1998. One of
the new features available to our customers is Voice Up-Front
Automation®™ (VUFA). With VUFA®, AT&T is giving the voice relay
caller the option to immediately enter the number s/he wishes to call
before reaching the Communications Assistant. This provides another
level of control for the caller and provides for a more efficient and
accurate call set up, Another innovative feature of VUFA™ is that it
allows first time relay callers the option of listening to a thorough
explanation of relay without tying up the CA time. However, the most
remarkable thing about VUFAS™, is that it speeds up the call set-up
portion for customers who elect to use it without adding any additional
wait time for those customers who simply want to speak directly to the
CA. Customer response to VUFA®™ has been phenomenal. This feature
will be provided at no additional cost for the Florida Relay Service.

AT&T is currently testing and trialing a new feature of the AT&T
Relay 2000%" platform that will enable 711 access. Dubbed “Pre-711
Development Readiness Testing.” This feature will facilitate access for
both Voice and TDD user to access and reach the relay service via a
three digit universal access number, 711. Relay users only need to dial
711 to make a relay call. AT&T has been diligently working towards a
quality 711 solution for our relay platform and based on consumer
feedback and acceptance, we expect to upgrade our system for 711
interface in the near future. This feature will also be provided to
Florida at no additional cost.

Features looming on the horizon, such as voice recognition (speech-to-
text), advanced call routing by call type and IP (Internet) connectivity,
are under investigation to assess their potential for improving the
quality of the relay experience. AT&T has been actively involved in
researching these key technologies at our TRS Development
Laboratories in Indianapolis.

Florida

November 10, 1999 Page 79



)

— e ——

G

ATeT

The AT&T Labs is at the heart of innovative technical development for
AT&T Relay. The Development Team and Technical Team consisting
of 21 members are solely focused and dedicated in developing advance
Voice and TTY communications. AT&T’s next generation of Relay
2000™ offers the promise of exciting, new and enhanced features for
the customers of the Florida Relay Service.

Our technical developers have provided leadership in the design and
delivery of high performance, cost effective, relay architecture which is
second to none and can now become available to the State of Florida.

Our development team loves visitors, and would be pleased to host a
visit of the FPSC. AT&T cordially extends an invitation to the FPSC to
visit the AT&T Relay Labs in Indianapolis or any of AT&T TRS
Centers.

The next page provides the organizational chart of AT&T’s Relay
technical development and technical support teams.
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Knowledgeable
answers. Quick
response times,
And an
experienced voice
on the other end of
the line.

That’s what you
get with a full-time,
dedicated Account
Manager. We'll be
there when you
need us.

B. 30

Consumer Input and Participation in Advisory Committee and FPSC
Proceedings

The telephone users shall have input on the quality of the delivery of
service. Bidders shall develop a plan to include the Commission and its
Advisory Committee in any evaluation of the system. A bidder shall not
include travel or per diem costs of the FPSC or its Advisory Commitiee
in its bid price since those costs will be funded by the State. An outline
of this plan shall be included with the bidder's proposal. The plan
should explain methods for consumer input and how the
recommendations from these evaluations will be incorporated into the
policies of the relay center. This does not preclude the provider from
conducting additional internal evaluations which use relay staff The
results of any service quality evaluation shall be reported to the FPSC
office within 15 calendar days after the last month in each quarter.

Bidders are encouraged to include in the consumer input plan methods
for working with organizations serving hearing and speech impaired
individuals statewide to conduct periodic community forums. The
community forums shall be for the purpose of gaining user input on the
quality of relay service and for responding to user questions and
problems on use of the relay service. The community forums shall be
planned and conducted in confunction with organizations serving
people with hearing and speech impairments.

The provider shall participate in all meetings of the Advisory
Committee and all FPSC workshops and hearings relating to relay
service unless excused by the contract manager.

AT&T understands and will comply.

Management that is Dedicated to Your Success

Batricia A Brennan, your new Florida Account Mangger....

AT&T can say dedicated account management in two words: Patty
Brennan. She’s about to celebrate 10 years as an integral member of
AT&T’s Relay Service Team, with expertise in marketing, commuaity
outreach, and account management. She’s also a distinguished graduate
of Gallaudet University and, more importantly, your new Account
Manager. It’s a role that will see her participate in all Advisory Board
meetings, FPSC hearings, and workshops related to Relay.

While we believe that Patty could single-handedly supply you with all
the solutions you would ever need, we are providing her with a
supporting cast that is both high-tech and very much involved with
human interest. AT&T plans to optimize Patty’s potential for success
with a balance of Traditional and Web-based methods.
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Web Based Marketing for the Florida Millennium

The internet is at the heart of our new Year 2000 plus plan. Not only
will users be able to read and/or downioad brochures and articles from

our web site, hitp://www/att.com/relay and/or the Commission’s site,

www.psc.state.fl.us, or Florida Telecommunications Relay, Inc. site at

www ftri.org , but they will also be able to participate in interactive

et 10 LIk ¥ | | Lt 3 1

IAt the AT&T Relay Web site, Florida will find a feature rich

environment for consumers and state administrators that includes:

State Admini | authorized members:

= Secured on-line access for monthly traffic reports

» Secured on-line access for client billing
information

s View Monthly Customer Contact Summaries

All Florida Relay Users:

=  Access to interactive, feature rich information ,

® Access to Florida Relay Articles and Florida Relay
Brochures - easily printed for use in state/local
organization/agency newsletter

= Customer E-Care and Feedback forms

= Interactive product and service demos

* This will allow persons of all age to learn how to use relay
viewing animated “how to make a relay call” right at their
PCs
Interactive educational workshops
Relay Users Online Communities
Online Florida Brochure to download and other step-by-
step guides for all types of calls

» Links to TTY equipment vendors and software suppliers so
users can easily download software or learn about TTY
equipment to make relay calls

*  Community newsgroups and chat groups with the Account
Manager, or the General Manager

AT&T will work with the FPSC and Advisory Board to ensure
that our electronic-based outreach and marketing programs are
consistent with program goals. We will share electronic-based
advertising material with FPSC that is intended to promote
usage of Florida Relay Service.
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Traditionally Speaking ...

AT&T’s performance metrics are designed to measure service quality at
a national and state level. These metrics align with individual
performance objectives as well. AT&T models of customer service are
continually monitored in a variety of ways:

* Annual Customer Satisfaction Survey

*  Annual Measures of a Quality Call (MOQC) Testing
*  Continuous Process Quality Metrics

*  Individual CA Performance Assessment

AT&T commits to providing the FPSC with results of the Annual
Customer Satisfaction Survey, Annual Measures of a Quality Call
testing, and the Continuous Process Quality Metrics within 15 calendar
days after the last month in each quarter.

Consumer Input.

AT&T firmly believes that Consumer Input is vital to the success of
relay service. For this reason, AT&T actively solicits and encourages
relay users to provide comments, feedback, and complaints about the
relay service. As the provider for the Florida Relay Service, AT&T is
prepared to provide Floridians with the most comprehensive modes for
providing input into the relay service. All input and feedback, whether
positive or negative is analyzed routinely for process improvements and
planning processes. Suggestions and recommendations for changes in
methods and procedures go through a formal process which involves a
number of steps.

AT&T has, in the past, made several changes to methods and
procedures based directly from Consumer Input. The state of Florida
has AT&T’s commitment that this process will continue. Of course,
AT&T will first consult with the FPSC before implementing or
changing any contractual agreed upon requirements.

We believe it is critical to emphasize the value of Florida Relay Service
to all people, including individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing,
speech disabled, and deaf-blind as well as hearing people. Everyone
needs to be aware of the availability of Florida Relay Service and
feature enhancements to this service.

Florida

November 10, 1999 Page 84




AT&T will employ a variety of high-tech vehicles to:

» communicate and promote the usage of relay service

» provide the Florida Relay Service users with as many
options as possible for providing direct input into the
service.

Best of Both Waorlds...

Patty Brennan, your dedicated Account Manager, will stand in the eye
of the center, strongly supported by all of the above and the following:

Developing an annual outreach activity plan to meet the needs of its
key stakeholders. This includes: deaf, deaf-blind, late deafened
adults and hard-of-hearing individuals; speech disabled individuals
and business and hearing individuals who are potential relay users.

Managing and coordinating the implementation of electronic-based
outreach activities, such as: acting as an electronic clearinghouse
for outreach referrals and requests; supplying content to the TRS
Administrator and/or the Florida agencies for exhibits at local, state,
regional and national events; obtaining consumer input by hosting
community E-forums via the Internet with support from key deaf
advocates or; showcasing our technology by participating in
advisory board meetings via teleconferencing.

Coordinating and managing public communications, media and
advertising for outreach activities such as: producing and
electronically distributing brochures; providing articles and/or
advertisements for publications and web sites; and working with the
FPSC and consumers to include Florida Relay Service information
in telephone directories. The Account Manager will also review

material with the FPSC that it has downloaded to ensure its
accuracy.

Continually keeping up-to-date on politics and trends in the relay

industry and modifying and improving outreach activities based on

Developing relationships with key advocates and working to
deepen these relationships.
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And, for those who don’t have access to Personal Computers, they can
go to libraries or call up one of Florida’s AT&T Cares Volunteers! The
Account Manager will work with 8,000 AT&T employees and retirees
based in the Florida community to deliver face-to-face presentations on
Florida Relay Service. To exercise our corporate responsibility in the
communities where our employees and customers live and work, AT&T
has introduced the AT&T Cares Community Service Program,

Advisory Committee and FPSC Participation

AT&T welcomes and values comments and feedback that can be
provided by the Florida Public Service Commission and its Advisory
Committee. Patty Brennan, the Account Manager assigned to Florida
will attend and participate in all meetings and workshops.

Complaint Resolution

The provider shall establish procedures regarding complaints, inquiries
and comments regarding system services and personnel. The provider
shall ensure that any caller to the relay center having a complaint will
be able to reach a supervisor or administrator while still on line during
a relay call. All complaints received by supervisors or in writing shall
be documented, including their resolution, and kept on file and
available to the Commission upon request. In addition, the relay center
shall have a toll-free Customer Services telephone number available
and accessible to the public statewide for the purpose of reporting
service or other deficiencies. Records of such reports and copies of
written reports regarding service or other deficiencies shall be
maintained for the life of the contract and for twelve (12} months after
conclusion of the contract period. This record shall include the name
and/or address of the complainant, the date and time received, the CA
identification number, the nature of the complaint, the result of any
investigation, the disposition of the complaint and the date of such
disposition. Each signed letter of complaint shall be acknowledged in
writing or by contact by a representative of the provider. The
necessary replies to inguiries propounded by the Commission's staff
concerning service or other complaints received by the Commission
shall be furnished in writing within fifteen (13) days from the date of the
Commission inquiry.
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AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T recognizes customer feedback as vital to the success of our
service. Therefore, AT&T has established procedures that will allow
users of the Florida Relay Service to express their comments, inquiries,
complaints and commendations about the relay service and personnel.
All complaint information will be kept confidential. These procedures
will be explained in appropriate Florida Relay Service Consumer
Education and information materials. All complaints received at the
Center(s) or by the Account Manager, will be documented, including
their resolution, kept on file and forwarded monthly to the Contract
Administrator.

If a user comments unfavorably about the service and the CA believes
that customer satisfaction can be achieved immediately, the CA will
attempt to do so. Additionally, if the CA has difficulty handling the cal!
and believes that an extended discussion is needed or that the matter
requires management involvement, the CA will offer to immediately
connect the call to a supervisor or manager who will stay on-line with
the Florida relay user.

Briefly described below are the procedures for complaint resolution:

®  On-line Transfer - The procedure includes immediate, on-line
transfer to a supervisor or administrator trained in complaint,
comment and inquiry handling. Administrative and supervisory
personnel abide by the same Code of Confidentiality as
Communications Assistants.

When the supervisor or administrator receives the on-line transfer
or critical comment from the customer, the manager proceeds a
follows: :

1. Prepares a customer contact memorandum
2. Considers the complaint from the customer’s point of view

3. Resolves the criticism as quickly and satisfactorily as
possible

4. Does not hesitate to escalate the complaint to the next
management level, if needed

5. Documents the investigation and resolution

6. Follows up with the customer to ensure satisfaction with
the resolution.
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* Nation-wide 800 Customer Number - AT&T operates a separate,
nation-wide, toll-free numbers accessible to both TTY and voice
users:

TTY : 1-800-682-8786
Voice: 1.800-682-8706
Fax: 1-888-288-2184

This service is accessible 24 hours-a-day and allows
users to call with questions, comments, commendations
and complaints regarding the relay service. If a live
attendant is not immediately available, the caller is
asked to leave his’her name and number and an
attendant will return the call promptly, often within two
to four hours.

* Acknowledgment - Complaints received by both mail and
telephone will be acknowledged in writing or by contact from a
representative of AT&T within 24 to 36 hours.

Records of customer contacts and copies of written letters regarding
service or other concerns will be maintained for the life of the contract
and for twelve months following the expiration date of the contract.
This record will include the name and/or address of the complainant,
the date and time received, the CA tdentification number, the nature of
the complaint, the result of any investigation, the disposition of the
complaint and the date of such disposition.

Charges for Incoming Calls
The Provider shall make no charge to the users for making calls
(incoming) to the relay service.

AT&T understands and will comply.

Calls to the Florida Relay Service (FRS) will be handled at no cost to
the person making the call. Customers will access the Florida Relay
Service via a toll free 800 number. No portion of the expense of calls to
the Florida Relay Service will be charged to the caller.
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Billing Arrangements

Provider shall bill for charges for collect calls, person-to-person calls,
calls to or from hotel rooms and pay telephones, and calls charged to a
third party. Provider shall also arrange for billing to any industry
standard local exchange company or alternative local exchange
company calling card. For calis billed by or on behalf of the provider,
the bidder shall include a complete description of how users will be
billed for all calls. This description shall include the bidder's
procedures for obtaining billing information from the local exchange
and alternative local exchange companies, whether the billing will be
performed directly by the provider itself or contracted, specific credit
cards or telephone calling cards to which calls can be billed, and a
sample bill format. The bidder shall also explain how it will respond to
customer inquiries about erroneous bills and how credits will be issued
or refunds made.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T is committed to accuracy in call recording and billing as is
evidenced by infrastructure investments and process improvements
made over the last year.

* Customer Billing Issues Resolution Process. Through the
customer contact staff of the National Customer Care Center {(a
national 800 number which is available 24 hours a day/ 7 days a
week to AT&T TRS Voice or TDD customers) each customer has
access to the engineers responsible for the software architecture,
development, and system maintenance of the AT&T TRS billing
and reporting systems, This provides response accuracy for
customer complaints as well as a “customer-to-engineer” path for
problem resolution and system modification. Implementation of this
process in June 1999, has led to system modification for user billing
problems to drive system performance toward the goal of 100%
billing accuracy for AT&T TRS end users.

e User Billing System. In December 1998, AT&T TRS released a
state of the art, end-user billing system. It leverages database
technology and architecture flexibility to produce a complex back-
end system providing AT&T TRS the power to drive toward the
goal of 100% billing accuracy for relay users. With this system,
AT&T Relay can track end-user call detail to the accuracy of each
individual call which provides the architecture to meet and exceed
end user billing needs for today and tomorrow.
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* AT&T Billing Stream. AT&T Relay call details are rated and/or
rendered by the power of the AT&T billing stream. AT&T Relay
DOES NOT have an adjunct billing system which provides billing
for users of relay only. With billing record software input
modifications, AT&T Relay has access to all the power and
flexibility of mainline AT&T billing systems.

The billing processes and systems that support relay calls are so “state-
of-the art” there is no known call type that AT&T relay cannot bill and
bill accurately.

AT&T has the capability and technology to provide billing for direct
distance dialed and alternate billed calls to include the handling of
AT&T calling cards, collect calls, person-to-person, calls to or from
hotel/motel rooms, pay telephones, major credit cards and calls charged
to a third party.

Also, AT&T currently processes calls to proprietary calling cards which
are validated via a toll free number platform and/or the Carrier of
Choice platform. To our knowledge, all proprietary calling cards meet
the criteria for one of these two scenarios. However, if a LEC
provisions a calling card with non-standard access or validation
methodology, a unique solution must be established. AT&T is
committed to working with any LEC to establish a method of billing to
its proprietary calling cards.

Call Processing

Florida Relay Service calls will be labeled "via relay" on the user’s bill
and will be billed in the following manner:

1. The customer will access Florida Relay Service toll free via the
published numbers. (see Call Processing Illustration)
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* Carrier of Choice call processing omitted

2. AT&T's patented Relay 2000°™ Platform automatically captures all
call information pertaining to the billing of relay calls and creates a
Virtual Call billing record as illustrated in the following figure.
AT&T will create for each relay assisted call an Exchange Message
Interface (EMI) record as described in Bellcore Publication SRISD
000320. The record contains, at a minimum, the following
information:

a)
b)
c)
d)
€)
f)

g)
h)

Telephone number or calling card to be billed (NPA-NXX-
LINE)

Originating Telephone Number (NPA-NXX-LINE)
Terminating Telephone Number (NPA-NXX-LINE)

Date

Start Time (the time when the call is answered by the called
party)

End Time (the time when either the called party or the
calling party hangs up)

Length of call to the nearest full second (the amount of time
in between start time and end time)

The phrase "VIA Relay" will be populated in the "TO"
place on the billing record
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3. The AT&T rated Message Telecommunications Services "Virtual”
TRS record and the Local Exchange Carrer's local recorded
Message Telecommunications Services "Virtual” TRS record will
be transmitted to the appropriate billing contractors via existing
electronic transmission procedures. The illustration that follows
provide the format of a sample bill.

Note: The key rate applied would reflect the 50% discounted rate
that the Florida Relay uses are entitled to receive,
Sampts Blll Format =
=L
XYZ TELEPHONE COMPANY
oOT-555-1212-123 Mey 1, 1539 Page X
AT&T DETAH. OF ITEMIZED CALLS
NO. DATR OME PLACE ARZA-NUMBHR * MN  AMT
1 APRI 1045AM  TOVIARBLAY NI S00-¥XX3ODO B 15 X
2  APRI 223PM TO ATLANTA NI 4043000000 B 3 XXX
3 APRS S47PM TQ VIARELAY MT 406-XXX-XXXX N 5 e
4. APRY 1034PM TOORLANDD  FL 305-300K-00IX E 5 XXX
G CARD
1. APR1 1015AM  TO VIARELAY NI 20130030000
FRWASHINGTON DC 202200030001 EC 8 XXX
2. APR1Z  4a4AaM TOBROCELYN NY 7I8-XDD{-200OK
FRANYTOWN DC 2022030000 DO 18 XXX
KEY “-HATE AFPLIED:
D DAY B -EVENING
N -NIGHT/WEEND DC -DAY CALL CARD
EC -EVENING CALL CARD
ATAT TOTAL ITEMIZED CALL CHARGES oL

Florida Relay Service users who have inquiries about their relay bill or

erroneous charges will be able to contact the AT&T Long Distance

Service Center (LDSC) via a toll free number for assistance. The AT&T

LDSC is authorized to issue credits or refunds.
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B. 34

End User Billing for Intrastate Calls

The bidder shall explain how its discount toll plan subscribers would be
billed for relayed calls billed by or on behalf of the provider. For
example, if a bidder offers a discount for over 5 hours of usage per
month, the bidder should explain how a subscriber to that service would
be billed for any relay calls made during the month.

The provider shall not charge the end user more for non-message toll
relay calling than would be charged for the same call if billed by the
end user's local exchange or alternative local exchange company. The
provider can accomplish this by obtaining necessary billing information
about the end user's local company in order to ensure that it does not
bill in excess of those rates (e.g., extended area service calls, extended
calling service calls, etc.)

In the alternative, the provider can collect necessary billing information
and turn that billing information over to the end user's local company
§0 that the end user's local company can bill for relay calls under the
local company's rates. If this alternative approach is taken, the
provider shall submit the billing information to the local company in an
industry standard format and the provider shall incur whatever costs
are required to correctly format the billing information so that the local
company can bill the calls.

Of the two approaches described above, the bidder should indicate how
it will initially bill calls and the provider shall advise the contract
manager whenever it changes billing methodologies.
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Free long distance
and intrastate toll
calls for every
Relay user in the
state of Florida for
three months from
the day the

AT&T Florida
Relay Center
opens its doors. *
Choosing
AT&T...it's your
call.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T's Relay 2000°™ platform automatically captures all call
information pertaining to the billing of relay calls and creates a Virtual
Call billing record. AT&T creates for each intrastate relay call an
Exchange Message Interface (EMI) record as described in Bellcore
Publication SRISD 000320. The record contains, at a minimum, the
following information:

1. Telephone number or calling card to be billed (NPA-NXX-
LINE).

2. Originating Telephone Number (NPA-NXX-LINE).

3. Terminating Telephone Number (NPA-NXX-LINE).

4. Date

5. Start Time (the time when the cail is answered by the called
party).

6. End Time (the time when either the called party or the
calling party hangs up).

7. Length of call to the nearest full second (the amount of time
in between start time and end time).

8. The phrase "VIA Relay" will be populated in the "TO"
place on the billing record by AT&T as the bill renderer.

The AT&T rated virtual record the Local Exchange Carrier's local
recorded virtual TRS record will be transmitted to the appropriate
billing contractors via existing electronic transmission procedures.
Please refer to B.33 for an illustration of a sample bill.

All AT&T billed intrastate toll calls whether originated by the TDD
user or the telephone voice customer could be billed at 50% of the rate
for non-relay call. An additional 10% discount could apply to calls that
either originate or terminate to a relay user who is dual-sensory
impaired. The discounted rate could automatically be provided through
AT&T’s billing stream whenever the relay user elects to have their toll
intrastate calls billed by AT&T.

AT&T will notify and advise the contract manager whenever billing
methodologies are changed
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B. 35

You Make the Call!

We want you to choose AT&T's proposal to provide Relay Service to
the state of Florida. How do we get you to make that choice? You've
already ready about the technically superior advances we’re going to
implement. Now AT&T would like to show the level of commitment
we're willing to demonstrate to the users of Florida Relay Service by
extending the very special offer of three months of free long distance
and intrastate toll calling service* from the day the AT&T Florida
Relay Center officially opens its doors. Complimentary service for
extraordinary consumers. It’s your call.

* subject to tariff effectiveness and available to all subscribers, except those
who select a different Carrier of Choice for long distance or local toll calls.

Relaying Interstate and International Calls

The provider shall be required to relay interstate and international
calls that originate or terminate in Florida. The provider shall not
include in its bill for Florida relay service any charges or time
associated with interstate or international calls.

If relayed interstate or international calls are to be billed by the
provider to the end user at a rate higher than the rate for a non-relay
call, the provider shall quote the rate to the party to be billed before
beginning the call. The bidder should indicate how its rate for
interstate and international calls will compare to the rate for non-relay
calls and whether any discounts or additional charges will apply to
interstate and international relay calls.

AT&T understands and will comply.

Customers dialing Florida Relay Service numbers may also request
interstate/international calls. CAs complete such calls following the
same general procedures which apply for intrastate calls. AT&T's
technology automatically identifies interstate calls, and the FPSC will
not be charged for these calls since they are the responsibility of the
interexchange carrier. AT&T will be the interexchange carrier for such
calls, unless the customer requests an alternate carrier that is a
participant in the industry standard plan for handling Carrier of Choice
calls.

AT&T Interstate and international calls processed through the relay
service are billed at the same rate as non-relay calls. There is no
additional charge to the caller to request and complete either an
interstate or international relay call.
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B. 36

You Make the Call!

We want you to choose AT&T’s proposal to provide Relay Service to
the state of Florida. How do we get you to make that choice? You’ve
already read about the technically superior advances we’re going fo
implement. Now AT&T would like to show the level of commitment
we’re willing to demonstrate to the users of Florida Relay Service by
extending the very special offer of three months of free long distance
and intrastate toll calling service® from the day the AT&T Florida
Relay Center officially opens its doors. Complimentary service for
extraordinary consumers. [t’s your call.

* subject to tariff effectiveness and available to all subscriber, except those
who select a different Carrier of Choice for long distance or local toll calls.

End User Selection of Carrier

The provider shall allow a caller to select an available inter-exchange
company other than the provider for billing purposes. The provider
must meet current and subsequent requirements of the Network
Interconnection Interoperability Forum for handling end user requests
for a carrier other than the provider. The bidder should include a copy
of the current standard along with its proposal and the provider shall
provide to the FPSC any subsequent updates in the standard as soon as
they are adopted.

AT&T understands and will comply.

Customers who call Florida Relay Service may request another
interexchange carrier other than AT&T for network completion of
intraLATA toll, inter-Regional calls, or interLATA calls as long as the
carrier is a participant in the industry's standard solution for carrier of
choice calls. Upon request, the CA enters the customer's choice and
then hits the call completion keys enabling the call to be carried and
billed by the requested carrier's network. Relay customers may request
another carrier for completion of standard relay calls as well as with any
operator-assisted type of relay call.
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The AT&T Relay 2000°™ Platform automatically routes the call to a
LEC access tandem, which forwards the call directly to the chosen
carrier's network along with billing information over a special Feature
Group D type circuit. The chosen carrier's network completes the call
and creates a billing record. When the call is connected to the called
party, the end user billing timer starts and the CA begins to relay the
conversation. Currently, the carriers that participate in the industry
solution for Carrier of Choice include: SPRINT, MCI WorldCom,
Frontier, Wiltel, LDDS, Metromedia and AT&T.

FRS

AT&T Telecommunications Relay Service

Carrier of Choice Processing

AT , » [LEC Access Tandem |
Originating ANI, Chosen carrier and TR S
Indicator passed via Feature Group D signaling +

IIXC Network |
IXC completes, records and ¢

bills the End User for the call

Customers of Florida Relay Service will have the added advantage of
choosing their preferred carrier for completion of all their toll,
interLATA and interstate calls with their AT&T's Relay Choice®™
Profile. This will allow for automatic call completion through their
preferred carrier without the need to inform the CA each time.
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B. 37

RESPONSE

Recipient of Toll Revenues
The relay provider or its underlying telecommunications provider shall
be allowed to retain the toll revenues for all long distance calls billed

by or on behalf of the relay provider or
telecommunications provider.
AT&T understands and wilf comply.
All long distance calls will default through AT&T’s national network
unless the user requests that their call be handled differently through the

Carrier-of-Choice platform. AT&T handles both call types accurately
with the most sophisticated TRS billing system in the industry. The

billing database technology is capable of rendering an accurate end-user
bill regardless of their carrier preference and call type, whether it be

intraLATA, intrastate or interstate. Not only can the relay users choose
to be billed by their carrier of choice, they will be billed based upon

their pre-subscribed calling plans with their long distance providers.

Some of AT&T’s relay competitors do not have the technology

necessary to bill certain call types. Some have chosen simply to not bill
the call and identify this access relief. If the FPSC finds this option

attractive, AT&T’s billing system could easily accommodate such a

change.

You Make the Call!

We want you to choose AT&T’s proposal to provide Relay Services to
the state of Florida, How do we get you to make that choice? You’ve
already read about the technically superior advances we're going to

implement. Now AT&T would like to show the level of commitment
we’re willing to demonstrate to the users of Florida Relay Service by

extending the very special offer of three months of free long distance
and intrastate toll calling service* from the day the AT&T Florida

Relay Center officially opens its doors. Complimentary service for

extraordinary consumers. It’s your call.

* subject to tariff effectiveness and available to all subscribers, except those
who select a different Carrier of Choice for long distance or iocal toll calls.

Page 98

November 10, 1999

Florida




RESPONSE

B. 38

Long Distance Billing

Operator-handled calls shall be carefully supervised and disconnects
made promptly. A check of the timing clock shall be made at least once
each twenty-four (24) hours fo ensure that the clocks are synchronized
and that the time is correct. Clock deviations shall not be in excess of
12 seconds. Bidders shall specify the record system for identifying and
documenting long distance and toll calls for billing purpases. The
record shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:

a. telephone number or credit card number to be billed
(NPA-prefix-line number)

b. originating and terminating  telephone  number
(NPA-prefix-line number}

¢. originating and terminating exchange name
d date
e. start time

[ call duration to the full second (the time in between start
time and end time)

Long distance calls billed to subscribers shall be listed chronologically
and reflect the connect time of such calls based on the appropriate time
zone. Bidders shall also fully describe the billing system and billing
process that will be used including identification of any
subcontractors, specific duties of the subcontractors, and how the
billing record detail will be transmitted to the billing agent (if any).

" AT&T understands and will comply.

Details regarding the billing system used for handling long distance cali
billing and the bill record is detailed in Section 33, Call Processing and
Bill Record. These sections identify the billing process that will be
used, the information included in the bill record and how the billing
record detail will be transmitted to the billing agent (LEC or alternate
IXC).

® billing system automatically calls the National Bureau of Standards
for time synchronization at least once every 24 hours
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¢ all AT&T billing is performed by AT&T in rating of each call detail
so third party contracted interface problems do not exist

" over 135 statistics are captured on every call with over 30 statistics
monitoring the CA performance on each call

e CA performance is electronically monitoring with regular reporting
and follow up

B. 39 Special Needs
The provider will not be required to provide Special Need services.
However, consideration will be given for additional evaluation points
for proposals that include Special Need services (beyond any other
services for basic relay described elsewhere in this RFP) as a part of
the basic relay service.

Special Needs is defined as limiting factors of a physical or literacy
nature that preclude a person who is hearing, speech or dual-sensory
(both hearing and visually impaired) disabled from using basic relay
service. Special Needs includes: (I) physical limitations, either
temporary or permanent, which preclude use of a TDD with or without
adaptations for persons with manual dexterity limitations (e.g.,
paralysis, severe arthritis, broken fingers) and (2} markedly limited
ability either to read or write English or Spanish which precludes user
from being able to use the relay service. (It should be understood that
relay service does not include translation from one language to another
for the Special Needs population or for any other consumers.) Special
Needs does not include (1} unavailability of telephone service at the
caller's home or business, (2) inability to communicate in either English
or Spanish (i.e., where caller can only communicate in a language
other than English or Spanish), or (3) handling complex calls fe.g.,
intervening in a call with a doctor to explain a medical procedure.)

The bidder shall describe what steps will be taken to provide
telecommunications assistance to persons with hearing, speech and
dual-sensory impairments who have special needs. This description
shall include the types of services that would be provided, the prices to
end users (if any) for those services, how those services would
operationally be provided, how parties other than the provider would
be involved in providing Special Needs services and how the provider
would assure that those parties would fulfill their portion of the service
obligation.
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AT&T understands and will comply.

In 1987, before the Americans With Disabilities Act was introduced,
AT&T was first company to offer a nationwide Special Needs service
called Operator Services for the Deaf (OSD). Today, this service
continues to support operator services and directory assistance calls for
TTY user, and is offered as part of AT&T TRS with no contracted cost
to our states. This service was integrated with AT&T TRS, and now
provides seamless service to millions of callers annually,

The AT&T TRS development staff takes great pride in working issues
that support the Special Needs community. In 1992, the same
development lab that supports TRS introduced the Public Phone 2000,
the most advanced public telephone of its kind. it featured a data port
for connection of laptop computers or fax machines, a color screen, and
a buiit-in keyboard for use as a computer terminal or a TTY device.

In 1993, Bell Labs offered TRS assistance in developing an innovative
“sightless” CA station so that blind CAs could provide relay for the
hearing disabled. Blind CA workstations continue to be used in the
AT&T relay complex. The blind CA’s disability remains transparent to
the end-user, as they continuously get high CA ratings.

As part of the Basic AT&T Relay Service, AT&T is always on the
look-out for innovative software and hardware solutions that will bridge
the special needs of users with disabilities beyond hearing and
speaking. For limited mobility customers, we are evaluating software
that converts Morse Code into text. This software would allow users to
“type” via Morse Code and have the text transmiited to a CA who in
turn would speak the words to the far party. AT&T would make
available to the outreach organizations, any software that is identified
that would be of assistance to users with special needs.

Technology supporting physical limitations continues to grow in the
Customer Premises Equipment (CPE) industry. AT&T evaluates
devices, to ensure they work adequately with TRS. Examples include
text-paging and special VCO/HCO phone sets.

The Special Needs services mentioned above, and most others
mentioned in various areas of this RFP response, come at no direct cost
to our contract states. AT&T has developed a highly integrated bundle
of Special Needs services within TRS that do not include third party
provisioning or support. AT&T takes great pride in providing a buffet
of services to our states, offering the best feature mix for their needs.
Should a new state-specific need arise, or a new piece of CPE surfaces
in the marketplace, the TRS Development Staff will be eager to
integrate the device with TRS, usually at no cost to the state.
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B. 41

Custom Calling Type Features

The bidder should explain separately how the following features would
be provided. An explanation should be provided of what actions a
caller would have to take to use the services.

a) Speed Dialing

This feature allows a caller to prearrange to identify
certain numbers by name. The system would know the
number to call if the caller asked the CA to call a
particular name.

&) Last Number Redial

This would allow the caller to have the system dial the
last number called via relay without the caller having
to give the number to the CA

AT&T understands and offers the following explanation:

a, Speed Dialing

Speed Dialing is a sub-feature of AT&T’s Relay Choice™. Every
relay user can subscribe to a personal profile to make their relay call
experience better. Within this profile, users area allowed to store
up to 20 different high-usage numbers with a special “tag,” such as
Mom, Work, or Home, to expedite call progress. Once these high
usage numbers are in a profile, users can simply ask the CA to dial
“Mom.”

b. Last Number Dialed
This feature has not yet gained interest from other states, and
therefore, has not become a part of AT&T’s basic relay offer.
However, if this is an important feature for the Florida Relay
Service customers, AT&T would be delighted to add a last number
dialed project into the next major software release.

Unsolicited Features in Basic Relay Service

The provider will not be required to provide unsolicited features in its
basic relay service.  However, consideration will be given for
additional evaluation points for proposals that include wumsolicited
Jeatures. The cost to the state for these unsolicited features must be
included within the basic relay service price proposal.
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Any additional features not described elsewhere in the RFP, and which
the bidder is including in its basic relay service and price proposal,
which a bidder would like to propose should be fully described
indicating how the feature would work, how it would improve the
system, which users would benefit from the feature and any other
information which would allow the FPSC and PRC to evaluate the
feature. Examples might include features such as: (ajproviding a caller
profile identifying to the CA the caller's preference regarding use of
calling card, carrier of choice, use of HCO/VCO, descriptions of
background noise; video interpreting; use of speech synthesis
equipment instead of a CA to convert text lo speech; use of voice
recognition equipment instead of a CA to convert speech to fext; (b)
enhanced transmission speed and interrupt capability, etc.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T is pleased to include all the TRS features found on the following
pages within the Basic Relay price. No other relay provider can offer
the array of features and services that AT&T is willing to provide to
Florida Relay Service users at no additional cost to the FPSC.

AT&T is confident that the FPSC will find and agree that AT&T’s

basic relay service is the most comprehensive in the relay industry and
competitively priced.

The following pages contain an alphabetized list of each feature, how it

works, how it improves the relay system, and which users benefit from
each feature.
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Unsolicited F in Basic Relay Service (alphabetized

711-Readiness

900/976

Automatic Error Correction

AT&T is extremely proud to announce that the Relay 2000%" Platform

is 711-Ready. 711 access is a national strategy sponsored by the FCC
that will allow all TRS users to access relay services in their State with
a single, 3-digit access number (711).

TRS providers are not solely responsible for 711 implementation. The
predominant LEC in Florida, Bell South, would be “champion” of the
711 effort — and AT&T would provide consulting services with Bell
South in making 711 a reality in Florida. AT&T has taken its 711
implementation to trial and has received strong accolades. Spokespeople
from non-AT&T contracted states such as Maryland and Texas have
given our implementation strategy a “thumbs-up.” 711 access is
expected to grow relay traffic, especially from voice originated callers.
Working with Bell South, AT&T can implement 711 in Flortda with no
service delay or disruption.

If the FPSC or the FCC mandates 900/976 service, AT&T can provide
access through the facilities provisioned on our Carrier of Choice
platform. This platform has the capability of passing a customer’s
number (ANI) to the network for direct billing to the customer. In
addition, customers can block and refuse unauthorized calls. AT&T
TRS recently developed a proprietary device for CAs that will help in
expediting these calls (see Play Back Device™).

Note: AT&T has studied this service offering and has concluded that a
state’s best option would be to not promote this service. In most cases,
relay calls have difficulty interacting with the prompts and time-outs
built into these enhanced service applications, resulting in the need for
frequent callbacks and customer dissatisfaction. When these calls are
attempted, the speed and quantity of information is usually too fast to
permit a quality relay experience.

As part of the Relay Choice®™ Platform, AT&T TRS automaticaily
corrects common CA typographical errors and wiil spell out non-TTY
abbreviations that may be used by the CA in voice to text translation.
TDD customers may elect to turn this feature on or off in their Relay
Choice™ Profile.
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AT&T was the first to provide a nationwide TRS identification to TRS
users of 800-255-0000. This identification is delivered from all AT&T
call centers, regardless of their geography. This number is synonymous

Automatic Number [dentification (ANI)
with “AT&T Relay” for any user who owns a caller-ID device,
subscribes to caller-ID through their LEC, and receiving a call through

AT&T Relay.
Some States are now requesting that the originating caller’s number be
transported so that the called party would see the originator’s number
instead of AT&T’s number, AT&T has this feature under evaluation for
our next software release, scheduled for the fall of 2000.

Background Noise [dentification
CAs communicate to the TTY users not just spoken words from the
voice user, but wili also describe any appropriate sounds that they hear
from the voice party, providing additional information to the TTY users.
When this feature is selected as part of the Relay Choice®™ Profile, the
TTY user can elect to turn this feature on or off.

Back-end Automation™ allows the TDD user to take call control back
from the CA after completing a call. The Relay 2000°™ Platform will
allow the user to terminate the call in standard fashion, or establish a

Back End Automation®™ (BEA) (Discassed in B..12.1)
sequence call with a new called party number. If the user chooses a

sequence call, a CA will once again join the bridge.

AT&T is proud to have the most complete billing system in the TRS

industry. With our vast knowledge of billing systems, AT&T provides

the most accurate user billing available. Some providers do not, and

must apply for waivers, with certain billing requirements. If a relay
customer has chosen a different carrier for interLATA toll than their

Billing Equivalency
traditional provider, AT&T can support this billing diversity.

AT&T provides the most flexible billing options through a customer’s
local exchange company and long distance company so that they have

the same billing options as non-relay users.

Billing equivalency includes:
Calling Cards
Commercial Credit Cards
Pre-Paid Cards

[ ]
e (Collect Calls
= Bill to Third Number

Person-to-Person

Station-to-Station
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Carrier-Of-Choice (COC)

Coin Sent-Paid Calls

Dynamic Call Routing

Emergency Call Handling

{(Discussed in section B.36}

AT&T has provided the Carrier-Of-Choice TRS option since 1993,
COC enables users to choose their favorite long-distance carriers in any
jurisdiction provided that carrier meet the minimum industry standard
for TRS Carrier of Choice. Relay users may identify their chosen long-
distance and regional-toll carrier in their AT&T Relay Choice™ Profile.
Our Relay 2000°™ Platform will automatically populate the billing
record with the proper carrier, and dial the forward number through the
special Carrier of Choice (COC) network.

AT&T worked alongside the FCC in determining the best alternatives
with regard to coin sent-paid calls. AT&T TRS is capable of handling
these call types in accordance with the most recent FCC Order.

The FCC has granted a temporary suspension that exempts relay coin
sent-paid calls from the existing order mandated by the ADA in 1990.
The current alternate plan is for free local calls when relay users make
calls from a pay phone. AT&T supports this, and provides the service
accordingly.

Although Florida requires an instate center to handle at least 80% of
their traffic, having a provider that offers dynamic call routing is
imperative for smooth operations in situations where Florida calls must
be handled in a different call center. Situations that may mandate calls
to be sent to other call centers include extreme heavy traffic periods,
technical problems (e.g. power outage), or natural emergencies (e.g.
hurricane). Qur dynamic call routing will get Florida customers to the
next available CA as quickly as possible, regardless of the CA’s
geographic location.

(Discussed in section B.20)

AT&T provides CAs with immediate and direct access to a database
that contains thousands of emergency agency listings. Using the caller's
ANI, the CA can quickly secure the emergency agency listing and
complete the relay call, providing fast emergency attention. These calls
are completed at no charge to the cailer.
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Enhanced Voice Up Front Automation (EVUFA My

HCO (Hearing Carry Over)

HCO-to-TTY (HTT)

Enhanced Voice Upfront Automation is of strategic importance in
preparing the Relay 2000°™ Platform for national 711 implementation.
This feature is the outgrowth of the voice upfront automation (VUFA)
feature. EVUFA™ provides an automated process for identifying the
voice, ASCII, and Baudot users. This is necessary for 71! readiness, as
all users will be entering the relay system through same access number.

It also offers additional freedom for TRS users, by providing other call
processing options and allowing them to take some call control back
from the CA.

NI1/EVUFA Call Flow

Timeout Baudot | Timeout
Modem 7| Position

! i

GSH Ry
Yes

(Discussed in section B.18)

HCO enables hearing-capable TDD users to directly hear the voice
person's message. The CA then voices the TDD user's typed response
back to the voice caller. When this feature is selected as part of the
Relay Choice®™ Profile, the caller will be automatically connected in
HCO mode for both outbound and inbound calls.

HTT ailows a relay call between a hearing carry-over user and
traditional TDD user. The HCO user can listen to the CA voice the
other TDD user’s message. The CA will then transmit the HCO user’s
message to the TDD user.

HCO w/privacy
This feature allows for additional call privacy for the relay users. The
voiced conversation is sent directly to the far party without the CA
listening,
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Hearing-To-Hearing (HTH)

Internet Reports Access

Mobile Radio/Wireless

Paging/Pagers

Protocol Plus™

QO-Info*™ Directory

Operator Release of Calls

HTH expands the HCO capability by allowing two speech-disabled
TDD users to listen to the supporting CA read the typed conversations.

AT&T can provide secured access to state relay usage information over
the Internet in addition to the traditional reporting formats. This
information is vpdated daily, and allows trends to be more closely
monitored

AT&T makes no distinction for mobile radio and wireless calls through
relay. Calis are processed equally and in the same amount of time as
other relay calls.

Many TRS users enjoy the freedom offered by alphanumeric pagers.
AT&T supports relay calls placed to customers that subscribe to
operator-assisted paging services.

AT&T is the only current relay provider to be able to automatically
change a TDD user’s communications mode from ASCII or Turbo Code
to Baudot upon request. This feature is extremely beneficial to TDD
users who may not understand the manufacturer’s instructions for setting
or changing communications modes for purposes of placing or receiving
carryover calls when the equipment is defaulted to answer or connect in
ASCIIL Also, AT&T modems can synchronize with virtually all ASCII
PC modems currently in the marketplace.

AT&T's OO-Info is quickly becoming a popular enhanced service for
AT&T voice customers. AT&T TRS has methods to provide the same
00-Info service to all TRS users. The cost of this call is currently $.99
which is the same whether the call is processed through relay or without
relay.

This feature allows the CA to release a TDD originated relay call that
terminates to another TDD user instead of a telephone voice user. The
feature allows the CA to release the connection allowing the two TDD
users to continue with their call without having to hang up or without any
further assistance from the CA.

Florida

November 10, 1999 Page 108




OSD Integration

Play Back Device®™

Relay Choice®™ Platform (RCP)

Restricted Toll-Free

AT&T understands Bell South provides traditional directory assistance
and operator services in the Bell South territories, which includes
Florida. AT&T provides national and International Directory Assistance
(CIDA) as well as Operator Services for the Deaf (OSD). These service
offerings are fully integrated into AT&T’s basic service. Also, users
have the flexibility to use all of these services without having to transfer
between various CAs. This integration also allows for TTY-to-TTY
billing options, and is another service differentiator for AT&T.

The Play Back Device™ (PBD) tool for CAs to support call management
in situations where the TRS call terminates at a pre-recorded message or
a multiple-choice Voice Response Unite (VRU) menu. It allows the CA
to more accurately manage these call types while allowing them to
review the call accuracy in real-time. The PBD directly supports
9006/976.

The Relay Choice®™ Platform is designed to speed up relay call
handling. With this software enhancement, completed in 1997, users
can select options such as interstate Carrier-Of-Choice, intrastate toll
Carrier-Of-Choice, connection mode, carryover preference (HCO,
VCO, other), spelling correction (on/off), background noise {on/off),
and 20 memory dialing entries (Speed Dial List). To keep this
information protected, all profiles are secured with a password. AT&T
handles the information collected in the profile as confidential.

Sometimes, businesses set up toll-free numbers with geographic
restrictions, and will not accept calls from areas outside a predetermined
"boundary. For example, a Miami business may have a toll-free number
that accepts calls from Florida, but deny call attempts from any other
State.

With this feature, if a relay call happens to be handled in an out-of-state
center due to a weather emergency, a Florida resident would still be
allowed access even though the supporting TRS center is not in Florida.
AT&T uses a sophisticated network application to handle these cail
types - transparent to the user.
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“Roving” is an outgrowth feature from AT&T’s database mining. After
an extensive trending study of our call traffic from non-AT&T states, a
major growth in intrastate calls was noticed. They appear as “roving"
calls; i.e., AT&T intrastate calls being placed by non-AT&T state callers.
This is a typical occurrence for a traveling business person who often
find themselves out of their home State, but prefer to use AT&T TRS
from their home state. Most AT&T states allowed us to offer this feature.

This feature provides the CA with specific information about billing or
calling restrictions pertinent to the originating line and terminating line.
Such information may include line blocking, call blocking, or expanded
area calling plan, and identification of coin, hotel, prison, and hospital
calls. This database allows AT&T to enforce proper handling and
billing for particular back numbers.

Single Line Answering Machine (Discassed in section B.13)

Spanish Relay

Speech To Speech

Telebraille

Single Line Answering Machine (SLAM) is a feature that involves
retrieving messages, usually from home answering machines, when the
relay caller is at the same residence, but only has one access phone line.
After giving the CA instructions, the caller disconnects from relay, the
CA retrieves the voice messages from the answering machine, and then
returns a call to the user with their messages.

{Discussed in section B, 14)

AT&T TRS provides a special group of bilingual CAs to perform all
relay functions for Spanish users. Bilingual CAs are explicitly trained
on processing and relaying calls in Spanish.

(Discussed in section B.42.¢)
Speech to Speech enables a speech-disabled person to use the reIay
service with his/her own voice or voice synthesizer, rather than using a
TTY. With STS, specially trained AT&T CAs function as human
translators for speech-disabled persons who have trouble being
understood on the telephone. If needed, the CA repeats the words of the
speech disabled caller. AT&T will have a dedicated toll-free number for
the Speech To Speech feature.

Vision impaired relay users often employ telebraille devices. Telebraille
machines demand additional attention from the TRS provider to support
them adequately. AT&T has a unique toll-free number and specific and
unique methods in place to handle these calls as effectively as possible.
Distinctive technology has also been developed and is used to service
these customers (see Text Pacing).
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Touch Tone Carryover (TTC)

Up Front Automation (UFA™)

VCO (Voice Carry Over)

VCO 2-line

VCO w/privacy

VCO-to-HCO (VTH)

TTC enables TDD users with touch tone capability to enter account
numbers and other personal identification numbers (PINs) directly into
the Relay 2000 interactive system without divuiging this proprietary
information to the CA.

Up-front Automation allows a TDD customer to self-initiate a call to the
far party. TDD users are empowered, giving them more control and
greater call handling efficiency. The Relay 2000°" Platform interacts
directly with the caller by preparing the dialing sequence and the billing
information from what the caller types to the system. The CA joins the
call with one simple keystroke.

{Discussed in section B.18)
VCO enables TDD users who can speak to voice their message directly
to the non-TDD user. The CA then types the non-TDD user’s response
back to the TDD user. The AT&T Relay 2000 Platform allows TDD
call originators who choose VCO to verbally pass call details to the CA
without typing.

(Discussed in section B.18)

A customer with conference calling capability on his or her phone line
can utilize the 2-line VCO feature by using one line for voicing and the
other for receiving Baudot or ASCI! transmission. Since the Two-line
VCO user is directly connected to the hearing party, the 2-line VCO
user can talk directly to the hearing party without waiting for "GAs."
This feature allows for a more natural, interactive relay call.

This feature adds privacy to a traditional VCO call. The modems are
engaged in manner where the CA can not hear the voiced conversation
of the TDD user.

Voice Carryover to Hearing Carryover allows the originating TDD user
(speech capable) to talk directly to the terminating TDD user (hearing
capable). Relay is still necessary to relay the text messaging from the
HCO user to the VCO user.
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VCO-to-TTY (VTT)

Voice-to-Voice (VIV™M)

VTT allows a relay call between a voice carry-over user and traditional
TDD user. The VCO user voices to the CA who proceeds to type the
message to the TDD user. The CA then types the TDD user's response
to the VCO user.

{Discussed in section B. 18}

This feature (also known as VCO to VCQ) expands the VCO capability
by allowing two hearing disabled TDD users to voice their paris of a
call while the CA types for both parties. VTV is ideal for two TTY
users who can speak but who may not know how to type or may be
physically unable to type.

Voice Up Front Automation (VUFASM)

WebTTY™

Like UFA for text users, VUFA gives the voice caller the option to self-
initiate a call to the far party. This gives the voice caller more call
control and a quicker and more accurate call set up. Also, VUFA
allows first time relay callers an option to listen to a complete and
thorough explanation of TRS without tying up precious CA time.
VUFA decreases call set up time for customers, without adding walt
time for customers who want to speak directly to a relay operator.

WebTTY is an AT&T exclusive development. It is a web-based protocol
converter that accepts internet text packets (TCP/IP) as input, and
provides Baudot output, or vise-versa. Although still being trialed, it is a
full-duplex service that allows users with Internet access to communicate
with someone who has a generic TTY/TTY, or vise-versa. WebTTY is
expected to augment the TRS customer base, attracting and linking new
users with a different communication medium.
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B, 42. a.

FPSC Optional Services Nof included in Basic Relay Service But
Available to Provide at Additional Cost,

The following services will not receive evaluation points for the purpose
of determining which bidder will be selected to provide relay service.
However, once a provider is selected, the FPSC will determine which of
the following services it may wish to add to the basic relay service and
negotiate the conditions under which these optional services may be
offered. If a bidder offers a service in this section and the FPSC
chooses to purchase the service, the provider must provide the service.

For each item, the bidder should include the price per billable minute
{or other basis) which it would charge for the purchase of the optional
service over and above the price for basic relay service. That price per
billable minute (or other basis) should be listed separately in the price
proposal.  The proposal should also indicate how each feature would
work, how it would improve the system, which users would benefit from
the feature, any direct charges that would be billed to the user, and any
other information that would allow the FPSC to evaluate the feature.

AT&T has read and will comply.

Optional services not included in basic relay services available at
additional cost is limited to Video Relay Services, Please refer to
section B.42. d for details regarding this feature.

Other Custom Calling Type Services

The provider will not be required to provide custom calling type
services unless required for certification by the FCC. No additional
evaluation points will be awarded to a bidder based on a proposal to
provide services which offer functiondlities similar to those of one or
more of the following custom calling services. The proposed charge to
the Administrator for custom calling service should be separately stated
in the price proposal.

The bidder shall explain how a user could receive functionalities
similar to those of the following services in conjunction with a relayed
call. The bidder shall also indicate what additional cost would apply to
the relay user, if any. If no separate charge to the relay user is stated,
it will be assumed there is no separate charge.

a. Three-way calling which would allow a user with only one
telephone line to conduct a conversation with two other
parties at the same time.,
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b. Call trace which would allow the caller to dial the relay
center and have the CA provide the number of the last call
made to the caller via relay.

AT&T has read and will comply.

Since there is no current demand for these two services, they are not
currently a part of AT&T’s basic relay offer. However, if the FPSC
would like these features to be provided, then AT&T would be pleased
to work with the LEC to develop methods and procedures for
accommodating these features into the relay service.

Access to 900/976 Services

The provider will not be required to provide access to 900/976 service
unless required for certification by the FCC. No additional evaluation
points will be awarded to a bidder based on a proposal 10 provide
900/976 service. The proposed charge for 900/976 service should be
separately stated in the price proposal.

The bidder should explain how it could provide relay service users with
access to 976 and 900 number services. Bidders are to describe how
such access can be provided, how callers can disconnect without being
charged and a methodology for billing the user directly for any charges
incurred from the 900/976 service. The bidder should describe how it
would deal with denied 900/976 calls and high bill complaints for
900/976 calls. If this service is provided, before placing the call, the
CA shall advise the caller that there will be a charge for the call

The bidder shall explain in the proposal how interstate and intrastate
900/976 calls shall be separated for payment purposes.

AT&T has read and will comply.

If 900/976 service is required for FCC certification, or the FPSC
specifically requests this feature, AT&T would provide service access
through our Carrier of Choice (COC) platform. The COC platform
passes a customer’s ANI into the general telecom network with other
critical data elements so that direct and accurate network billing to the
customer is achieved. For customers who disable or “block™ 900/976
numbers from their residence, AT&T TRS accesses LEC generated
screen-code databases that provides the necessary information to our
call centers to determine if a customer should be denied this call type.
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AT&T proposes methods and procedures where the CA terminates a
900/976 call as soon as the minimum billing information timer is
announced. This would allow the CA to transfer the complete service
introduction to the customer, but allows the customer an opportunity to
terminate the call without incurring a charge. If the charge were agreed
upon, the CA would redial the service.

With this non-traditional call type, AT&T suggests splitting these calls
statistically between intrastate and interstate in a manner consistent with
the network 900 termination points, i.e. for Florida, 5% of 900/976 call
minutes would be billed intrastate (FPSC), 95% would be billed
interstate (NECA).

Note: AT&T does not currently promote the use of 900/976 services in
conjunction with relay because TRS systems do not effectively interact
with the intense speed, numerous prompts, and time-outs built into this
call-type application. Attempting to handle this call type through TRS
traditionally results in frequent callbacks, higher-than-expected
customers bills, customer dissatisfaction, and numerous complaints.

If the FPSC would like AT&T to provide this service, these complaints
would be handled appropriately at the AT&T Long Distance Service
Center (LDSC).

Enhanced Transmission Speed and Interrupt Capability

The provider will not be required to provide the enhancements
described below unless required for certification by the FCC. No
additional evaluation points will be awarded to a bidder based on a
proposal to provide these enhancements. The proposed charge fo the
Administrator for the enhancements below should be separately stated
in the price proposal.

Enhancements may include the ability both to send and receive typed
communications at the same speed as typed or transmitted. Enhanced
protocols may also include the ability to send and receive interrupt
signals while another party is typing. The bidder should state what
requirements would exist in order for the relay user to be able to utilize
the above enhancements. :
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AT&T has read and will comply.

The most popular enhanced protocol is called TurboCode™ a
proprietary protocol offered by Ulratec Incorporated. TurboCode™

an enhanced communication protocol that lets the TDD user send and
receive information as fast as it is typed. TurboCode™ also allows users
to interrupt one another during conversation. The protocol is fully
automatic, and is backward compatible with all TDD devices.
TurboCode™ requires that both originating and receiving TDD devices
be TurboCode™ enabled. This protocol is a wonderful intermediate
step between traditional Baudot and ASCIIL.

AT&T uses Ultratec modems exclusively (i.e. no other modem vendor
is used), which provided us with the distinct advantage of being 100%
TurboCode™ ready before any other TRS provider. Ultratec is the
market teader in TDD production and development. AT&T’s exclusive
use of Ultratec modems affords us the luxury of being able to
automaticall rﬁ change a user’s communication mode from ASCII or
TurboCode™ to Baudot upon request. Also, AT&T’s business
relationship with Ultratec keeps us up to date with the latest modem
technology advancements.

Video Relay

The provider will not be required to provide video relay interpreting
unless required for certification by the FCC. No additional evaluation
points will be awarded to a bidder based on a proposal to provide video
relay interpreting. The proposed charge for this service should be
separately stated in the price proposal.

The bidder should explain how it will provide and bill relay service
users for video relay interpreting. If this service is provided, before
completing the call, the CA shall advise the caller of any user charge
Jor the call.

AT&T has read and will comply.

OCn October 18, 1999, regarding access for people with disabilities, FCC
Chairman William Kennard stated, “Internet telephony is minuscule,
but will be a much bigger deal, and we want to be ahead of the curve.”
Also mentioned in the article was that “Typical [relay service]
strategies may be ineffective, or superseded by cheaper alternatives
when text and voice travel over the Internet.”
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AT&T has been studying video technology for use with relay for
several years. In the past, AT&T viewed VRS as an expensive
enhancement to basic relay with benefits limited to a2 small user base.
Reasons for not developing a kiosk-based video system (similar to
Sprint’s) have been large cost, small user group, limited billing
capability, and changing video conferencing standards. In 1997, AT&T
began experimenting with multimedia telephony (voice/data/video) via
the Internet with TRS. Since then, AT&T’s relay development team has
been awarded four patents related to work in this area.

AT&T recognizes that video is in the near future for TRS, and the use
of the Internet is essential in developing a solution which will meet user
expectations for years to come. Currently, multimedia connectivity via
Internet Protocol (IP) is not cost effective, but due to the rapidly
changing Internet landscape, the implementation of VRS using existing
IP video-conferenced products is becoming more feasible and cost-
justified. Although IP-based video is less mature, AT&T believes that it
will provide the best solution for the long-term, and we continue to
focus on this technology to provide the most viable video relay options.

Already today, the World-Wide-Web offers something which dedicated
ISDN video can not provide, ubiquitous access, This means that anyone
with Internet access could conceivably take part in video relay activity —
instead of finding a video kiosk in a mall.

With the proper equipment and network facilities, IP-based video can
offer video service comparable to the incumbent video relay platforms.
With ubiquitous Internet-based VRS solution, AT&T can easily move
toward a fixed-rate billing solution model, and any TRS customer with
Internet access could gain VRS access. Then, there is no need to discuss
specific hardware, sofiware, protocols, or installation plans.

AT&T suggests that the FPSC support AT&T’s longer-term IP based
relay development, and share in the excitement of technical trials, beta
tests, and ultimately a focused service roll-out in the next 18 months. If
Florida would like to take a shorter-term view of a VRS
implementation, AT&T would gladly create specifications and manage
the implementation of a multi-point kiosk-based video relay service.

Once integrated into the robust Relay 2000°™ Platform, video relay
billing can be based on a subscription basis only, or AT&T could
unleash the service to the broader market, and use Internic queries to get
a city/state user information. (Mnfernic is the national organization
responsible for handling internet IP addresses.)
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Video relay would be billed similarly to standard relay. Non-toll calls
will be free to the customer, and the FPSC would get minute/month
usage repotts. (See video relay Pricing Section, D & E, Checklist ltem
62.)

All video relay CAs would be ASL certified, and would meet the
minimum CA standards as explained in Section B.9 through the
comprehensive CA training program.

Speech-to-Speech

The provider will not be required to provide speech to speech service
unless required for certification by the FCC. No additional evaluation
points will be awarded to a bidder based on a proposal to provide
speech to speech service. The proposed charge for this service should
be separately stated in the price proposal.

The bidder should explain how it will provide and bill relay service
users with speech to speech service. If this service is provided, before
completing the call, the CA shall advise the caller of any user charge
amount for the call,

AT&T has read and will comply.

Speech-to-speech (STS) has been integrated within AT&T’s relay
platform for two years. It is offered in select states. Access to STS
would be provided to Florida customers, with the FPSC’s authority,
through a dedicated toll-free number. The STS service is available to all
users that have speech disabilities or use speech synthesizers such as
artificial larynx. Because the STS service is tightly integrated with
AT&T’s TRS platform, all relay enhancements, such as Relay Choice®™
Profiles or Operator Services are available to STS users,

All STS CAs meet the minimum CA standards as explained in Section
B.9 through the comprehensive CA training program. This program is
further enhanced to meet the special needs of a speech-to-speech call,
50 that calls are handled accurately and with confidence. If a situation
occurs where the CA cannot complete his/her duties due to extenuating
circumstances, they are replaced with another skilled STS CA.

STS is an integrated feature of the Basic AT&T TRS offering and is
billed accordingly. There are no additional charges to the FPSC or the
end user, Specialized STS reporting is available at no charge.
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Other Optional Features Not Included in Basic Relay
Any additional features not described elsewhere in the RFP which a
bidder would like to propose should be fully described.

B.42. 1
No additional evaluation points will be awarded to a bidder based on a
proposal to provide these unsolicited features. The proposed charge for

any unsolicited features offered under this section should be separately
After a bidder is selected to be the

stated in the price proposal.
provider, the FPSC may contract for not only basic relay service but

also for other optional features.
AT&T has read and will comply.
All AT&T features have been documented in this RFP response. The
only features missing are those that the Florida customers would like to
see added to AT&T’s next software release.

AT&T takes great pride in providing feature enhancements that are
generally beneficial to all customers, and the relay Development Team

works hard at tightly integrating these features, making them available
—

through our basic relay offer. Currently, AT&T’s basic relay service is
made up of over 2,000,000 lines of Y2K-compatible software.

Performance Bond
estimated total first year price of the contract. The bond shall be in

The Provider will be required to furnish an acceptable performance
effect for the entire duration of the contract and provided to the FPSC

bond, certified or cashiers check or bank money order equal to the

B. 43
upon execution af the contract.
To be acceptable to the FPSC as surety for performance bonds, a

Surety Company shall comply with the following provisions:
The Surety Company shall be admitted to do business in the

a.

State of Florida

The Surety Company shall have been in business and have
a record of successful continuous operations for at least

Jive (5) years
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c. The Surety Company shall have minimum Best’s Policy
Holder Rating of A and Required Financial Rating of VIII
Jrom Best's Key Rating Guide

d. All bonds shall be signed by a Florida Licensed Resident
Agent who holds a current Power of Attorney from the
Surety Company issuing the bond.

AT&T understands and will comply with the requirements in Section
43 — A through D upon execution of the contract.

Submission af Monthly Invoice

By the I4th calendar day of the month (or the subsequent business day
if the 14th falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday), the provider shall
submit a detailed invoice (showing billable minutes and rates) to the
Administrator [defined in s.427.703(1)] at the contracted price for the
previous month’s activity. The accounting period used to prepare
monthly invoices shall be the calendar month. Payment shall not
exceed the prices contained in the contract. The invoice and supporting
documentation shall be prepared in such a way as to allow the
Administrator or the FPSC to audit the invoice. A copy of the monthly
invoice shall be submitted to the contract manager at the same time it is
submitted to the Administrator.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T will submit and provide to the Administrator by the 14™ calendar
of each month (or the subsequent business day if the 14™ falls on a

- Saturday, Sunday or holiday) a detailed invoice showing billable

minutes and rates at the contracted price for the previous month’s
activity.

All invoice and supporting documentation will be prepared in such a
way that it will allow the Administrator or the FPSC to conduct an audit
of the invoice. AT&T will also submit a copy of the invoice to the
coniract manager at the same time as it is submitted to the
Administrator.
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The Provider will not be entitled to a separate payment from the FPSC
or the Administrator for any travel expense which occurs as a result of
this contract.

AT&T understands and will comply.

Reporting Requirements

The provider shall provide 1o the Commission's Division aof
Communications and the Administrator the following written reports by
the 25th calendar day of each month reporting data for the previous
month. (More frequent or more detailed reports shall also be provided
upon request.)

a. Total daily and monthly

i. number of incoming calls (separately stating whether incoming
calls originate as Baudot, ASCII or voice calls and also separately
stating whether each type of call is English, Spanish or other
Joreign language calls ) The number of incoming calls which are
general assistance calls shall be footnoted on the report

ii. number of incoming call minutes associated with each of the
categories of incoming calls in a.i. above

ii. number of outgoing calls (provide two breakdowns of this total:
one separately stating completed and incomplete calls, and one
separately stating whether calls terminate as Baudot, ASCII or
voice calls)

iv. number and percentage of incoming Florida calls received at
each relay center handling Florida calls (Total should equal the
number of incoming calls in item a.i. above.)

b.  Average daily and monthly blockage rate.

¢. Range of answer times for the month and daily and monthly number
and percent of incoming calls answered within 10 seconds

———
—
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Total daily and monthly number of outgoing calls (including both
completed and incomplete) of the following lengths:

o (- 10 minutes

« > [0 - 20 minutes
o >20 - 30 minutes
¢ >30 - 40 minutes
o >4 - 50 minutes
¢ >50 - 60 minutes
* >80+ minutes

Total of d. should equal total of a iii
On a daily basis for the month, number of outgoing calls and

average length of calls by hour of day. (Total should equal total of
a.iii.

Ff Number of outgoing local, intralLATA 1o0ll, intrastate interLATA

interstate and international calls for the month. (Total should equal
total of a.iii.) '

g Number of outgoing calls and average length of completed

outgoing calls originated by TDD users and voice uses (identified
separately). (Total number of calls should equal total in aiii.)

h. The provider shall provide monthly summary reports to the FPSC

i

J

and the Administrator regarding number of complaints received
categorized by topic areas.

The provider shall report monthly to the FPSC and the
Administrator the results of any user evaluations conducted.

The provider shall report monthly on new subcontractors being
used to assist in providing relay service and shall identify the scope
of their role in the process and the relationship of the subcontractor
{0 the provider.

k. By March 1, the provider shall provide ta the Administrator and the

contract manager forecasted relay usage figures and costs to the
Commission for the upcoming fiscal year (July 1 — June 30).

The provider shall include information on its capability and willingness
to provide ad hoc reports including new information in the bidder’s
database or new formats for existing information.
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AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T will provide to the Commission’s Division of Communications
and the Administrator with the requested reports of the previous
month’s data by the 25™ calendar day of each month.

AT&T can easily provide the requested reports as described in items
B.46.a. through B.46,k thanks in part to the sophisticated reporting
facilities of the AT&T Relay 2000 platform and the dedicated team of
“TRS Reports Specialists” also known as Database Central. Database
Central’s primary responsibility is the creation of TRS reports with call
volumes and statistics.

AT&T is committed to ensuring accuracy and timeliness in the data we
collect and report for the relay services we provide. We exemplify this
through our on-going commitment to enhance the technology that
supports our data collection and reporting systems as TRS continues to
evolve. Our most recent enhancement, AT&T ‘s Service Automated
Reports Generator (SARG), was specifically designed to upgrade,
support, and better automate AT&T’s data collection, validation,
reporting and retention capabilities. Our AT&T Relay 2000%™ system is
redundant, centralized data repository that contains 140 information
fields for each call that is processed by our relay system and holds over
20 million call records.

AT&T will utilize SARG to supply the data necessary to generate
Florida Relay Service Monthly Traffic reports.

The combined experience of the SARG team is unsurpassed by none as
is their ability and flexibility to provide ad hoc reports to the FPSC
upon request. If such reports are not available, AT&T will consult with
the Commission and the FPSC to discuss the feasibility of developing a
report or identify a solution that satisfies the need and is acceptable to
both parties.

Over time, report formats may change due to AT&T’s TRS report
systems enhancements. If such changes occur, AT&T will notify the
Commission to ensure their understanding of new reporting formats to
ensure their reporting needs are satisfied.
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The Reporting Team manages, supports and maintains the SARG
facilities that provide the call statistics and reporis to our state
customers.

Sample reports can be found in Appendix B. Please note that the sample
reports are for illustrative purposes only and may not contain each of
the specific reporting requirements outlined in section 46. If AT&T is
selected as the relay provider for the state of Florida, we ensure that all
reports will be in compliance with the requirements set forth in this
section.

Ligquidated Damages for failure to Initiate Services on time or to
Provide contracted services for the Life of the Contract.
Implementation of the Florida Relay Service in a timely matter is
essential, Failure by the Provider to implement the service by June 1,
2000 shall be considered a significant and material breach of the
Provider's commitment. For every day the service is delayed the
Provider shall pay to the Administrator, for deposit in its operating
Jund, the sum of 825,000 per day.

Ligquidated damages shall accrue in amounts up to the following
amounts per day of violation:

a. For failure to meet blockage rate or transmission level
-requirement -- 35,000

b. For failure to meet complaint resolution requirement --
81,000

c. For failure to provider reports -- $500

d. For failure to provide contracted services for the life of the
contract, the FPSC reserves the right to require the
payment by the Provider of liquidated damages in an
amount commensurate with the duration and extent of the
system deficiencies.

Liquidated damages shall accrue in amounts up to 325,000 per month
Jor failure to meet answer time requirements.

Any liguidated damages may be paid by means of the Administrator
deducting the amount of the liguidated damage from a monthly payment
fo the provider, Such action shall only occur upon order of the FPSC.

If awarded this contract, AT&T will agree to a liquidated damage
provision for a material breach of its commitment to implement service
by June 1, 2000, or an appropriate later date if award of the bid is
delayed.
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Additionally, AT&T has opened many new instate centers and has
never failed to meet the start date for commencing service. In fact, there
have been instances where the incumbent relay provider has terminated
its support of the state before the agreed upon date only to have AT&T
ready and willing to begin taking calls and traffic sooner than
anticipated.

If awarded this contract, AT&T will agree to a liquidated damage
provision for a material breach of its commitment to implement service
by June 1, 2000, or an appropriate later date if award of the bid is
delayed. AT&T will also agree to the liquidated damage provisions set
forth in sub-sections (a), (b), and (c) above. AT&T's agreement is
reliant on the explanation of liquidated damages and assessment process
explained at the October 14, 1999 bidder’s conference. AT&T's
agreement is also subject to negotiation of mutually agreeable basic
terms and conditions including, where appropriate, notice of deficiency,
right to cure, and exception for force majeure acts.

AT&T cannot agree to the broad, undefined and unlimited possibility of
liquidated damages contemplated in sub-section (d) above. However,
AT&T is willing to negotiate further mutually agreeable liquidated
damage provisions based on specifically identified material system
deficiencies.

AT&T’s agreement to any and all liquidated damages provisions is
subject to a total limit of liability in the amount of $1,000,000.

Transfer to New Provider

When relay service is transferred to a new provider, the provider shall
make every effort to ensure that service is transferred to the new
provider so that relay users do not experience an interruption in
service. The relay service and consumer service 800 or other telephone
numbers shall be made available to the new provider with the new
provider paying any costs associated with transferring the numbers to
the new provider's use.

AT&T understands and will comply.

Florida

November 10, 1999 Page 125



== ATeT

RESPONSE

B. 49

Insurance Coverage

The provider shall provide insurance coverage for itself and all of its
employees used in connection with performance of services under this
Agreement and ensure that all subcontractors shall be similarly
covered, Such policies shall be issued by a financially sound carrier
and/or carriers. Such insurance coverage shall hold the FPSC harmless
Jfrom all claims of bodily injury, including death, and property damage,
including loss of use by provider, its employees, agents or
subcontractors and their employees. This insurance will include
worker's Compensation as required by law and comprehensive general
liability and bodily injury insurance in amounts that are commercially
reasonable under the give circumstances.

AT&T agrees to provide and require ail subcontractors to provide
insurance for its respective liabilities in connection with performance of
services. The FPSC shall state what minimum limits of insurance will
be required under its commercial general liability and employers
liability requirements. Workers Compensation as required by law will
be provided.
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Public Entity Crimes Provision

Pursuant to Section 287.133. Florida Statutes, a person or affiliate who
has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for
a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any
goods or services to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform
work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a
contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any
public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided for in Florida
Statute 287.017 for Category two (§11,000) for a period of 36 months
from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

AT&T understands and will comply.

Financial Information

To allow the FPSC to evaluate the financial responsibility of the
bidding company, the following items shall be submitted with the
proposal for the bidding company (and its parent company, if
applicable).

1. Audited Financial Statements (or a SEC 10K Report) for
the most recent two (2) years, including at a minimum:

Statement of income and related earnings.

cash flow statement

balance sheet, and,

opinion concerning financial statements from an
outside CPA

SRS g N

2. Primary Banking Source letter of reference.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T's 1998 Annual Report contains at least two years worth of the
requested financial data. Please refer to the following pages for: (1)
statements of income and related earnings — page 52; (2) cash flow
statements — page 55; (3) balance sheets — page 53; and (4) opinions
concerning financial statements from an outside CPA — page 51.

The AT&T 1998 Annual Report can be found in Appendix C.
A letter of reference from AT&T’s Primary Banking Source can be

found in Appendix D. The original document can be found in the
binder labeled Original.
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Experience and Customer References

For each state in which the bidder has or is providing relay service, the
bidder shall indicate: (1) when the bidder began aperating the system,
(2) the number of outgoing calls for the most recent month, and (3) the
total duration of the contract. If the bidder’s relay service is available
for testing by means of a number that can be dialed from within
Florida, bidder should provide the telephone numbers that can be used
to dial the bidder's relay service.

The bidder shall provide the names of three customer references,
including specific contact name and phone number to whom the bidder
has provided the bid service or a similar service. If no customer
references are available of applicable, explain and provider three
alternative references explaining the relationship of the reference to the
bidder.

AT&T understands and will comply.

AT&T is the most experienced provider and a pioneer of
Telecommunications Relay Service (TRS) in the industry. Qur
experience with TRS begin on January 1, 1987, when we opened the
first 24 hour/7 day a week/365 days a year relay service in the State of
California. And our experience with the deaf and hard of hearing
communities started much earlier. In 1980, AT&T began offering
Operator Services for the Deaf (OSD), and in 1981, we began giving
discounts on long distance calling to certified TTY users.

The following table displays our contracted states, along with the states
to whom we have previously provided TRS service. If a relay center is
located in the state, the location is provided.
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AT&T Telecommunications Relay Contracts

Alabama 08/11/88 51,082 u  Total of 12 years

w  Center in Birmingham, AL

w  Current Contract: 3/1/97 — 2/28/2000
»  Awaiting Rebid decision

California 01/01/87 NA n  Total of 4 years

»  Had center in California

= |/87-11/91

Delaware 01/10/91 14, 628 n  Total of 11 years

®  Current Contract: 1/1/98 — 12/31/02
District of 05/06/92 43,408 u  Total of 9 years
Columbia v Center in Washington, DC

»  Current Contract: 5/5/99 — 5/5/01
Georgia 04/01/91 88,671 »  Total of 10 years

®  (Center in Norcross, GA
Current Contract: 4/1/98 - 3/31/01

[linois 06/10/90 154, 394 »  Total of 10 years

¢  Current Contract: 2/1/95 — 1/31/00
Kentucky 10/01/91 NA m  Total of 7 years

= 10/91-9/98
Maine 01/01/91 16, 835 *  Total of 9 years

s Tariff
Mississippi 11/01/96 27,901 m Total of 6 years

e  Current Contract: 11/1/99 — 10/31/02
Montana 04/01/91 NA »  Total of 5 years

= 4/1/91 -2/96

New Jersey 12/15/91 96, 343 *  Total of 8 years
¢ Center in Hamilton Square, NJ
*  Current Contract: 8/1/97 — 7/31/99

New York 01/01/89 NA * Total of 8 years
*  Had center in Albany, NY
*  1/89-6/97
Pennsylvania 09/24/90 148, 185 = Total of 9 years
*  Two Centers: Wayne & New Castle,
PA
s Tariff
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AT&T Telecommunications Relay Contracts

Puerto Rico 07/15/93 8,018 Total of 6 years
= Current Contract: 7/15/97 — 7/14/00
Rhode Island 01/01/96 17, 107 * Total of 5 years

»  Center in Providence, RI

= Current Contract; 1/1/96 — 12/31/00
Tennessee 09/25/90 68, 698 * Total of 11 years

= Center in Brentwood, TN

*  Current Contract: 9/25/98 — 9/24/01

Vermont 07/01/91 29,481 * Total of 9 years

=  Current Contract: 7/1/98 — 6/30/00
Virgin Islands 07/26/93 601 = Total of 7 years

= Current Contract: 7/1/96 — 7/1/00
Virginia 02/01/91 118, 730 = Total of 9 years

= Center in Norton, VA
= Current Contract: 6/01/98 — 5/31/00

Washington 6/26/93 NA = Total of 5 years
= Center in Seattle, WA
= 6/93-6/98

West Virginia 08/07/92 15,238 = Total of 10 years

= Current Contract: 11/1/98 —3/31/01

- Test Calls

AT&T Relay Service can be tested from within Florida by placing long
distance or international calls through the AT&T National Relay
Service. If the state chooses to make calls from one Florida location to
another, please contact Sue Decker (908-221-8144) for special
arrangements. Below are the 800 numbers that the Florida customers
can use to place test calls:

1-800-855-2880 TTY
1-800-855-2881 Voice
1-800-855-2882 ASCII
1-800-855-2883 Telebraille
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Customer References
The following contacts have agreed to act as references for AT&T’s
Relay Service. They represent three of our sixteen contracted states and

jurisdictions.

AT&T would gladly furnish additional references upon request.

Georgia Relay

Mr, Ketron Ellison

Tel: (404)656-4536 Georgia Public Service

Service Assistant Director Fax: (404) 656-0980 | Commission
47 Trinity Street, S.W.
Rm. 621H6
Atlanta, GA 30334
New Jersey Mr. Bruce Gallagher Tel: (973)648-7994 New Jersey Board of

Relay Service

Administrative Analyst

Fax: (973)624-9453

Public Utilities
Two Gateway Center
Newark, NJ 07102

Delaware Relay

Ms. Carole D. Bickerdyke
Assistant Manager —
Regulatory

Tel: (302)576-5362
Fax: (302)576-1135

Bell Atlantic — Delaware
901 Tatnall Street, 2" Flr.
Wilmington, DE 19801

C6

Bid Security Deposit

A bid security deposit in the amount of $500,000 shall be furnished to
the FPSC with the original of the proposal. The bid security deposit
shall be in the form of a bond, a certified or cashier’s check, or bank
money order that is valid through at least February 28, 2000 and is
payable to the Florida Telecommunications Relay, Inc. The bid security
deposit will be held without cashing.

If a bond is used, the bond shall be issued from a reliable surety
company acceptable to the FPSC, licensed to do business in the State of
Florida and shall be signed by a Florida Licensed Resident Agent. Such
a bond shall be accompanied by a duly authenticated power of attorney
evidencing that the person executing the bond on behalf of the Surety
had the authority to do so on the date of the bond.
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The unsuccessful bidders’ bid security deposit shall be returned without
interest, within thirty (30) days after disqualification, withdrawal or
signing of the contract. The unsuccessful bidder’s bid security shall be
returned, without interest, upon signing of the contract and furnishing
the Performance Bond as specified herein. If the successful bidder fails
to sign a contract within thirty (30) days after the Letter of Intent or
fails to deliver the Performance Bond as specified herein, the bid
security shall be forfeited to the Florida Telecommunications Access
System Fund.

AT&T understands and will comply all the requirements from this
section.

A Bid Security Bond can be found in Appendix E. The original
document can be found in the binder labeled Original.

Subcontractors

If the bidder proposes to use subcontractors, the bidder shall identify
those subcontractors and indicate the scope of their role in the
provision of relay service. The bidder should also indicate what
experience the subcontractor has in providing the service for which it
would contract with the Provider.

AT&T does not currently use out-tasking vendors (subcontractors) to
provide any portion of TRS. AT&T provides its own facilities,
equipment, and employees for every single aspect of the relay service.
AT&T reserves the right to use a subcontractor on a need determined
basis.
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AT&T BUSINESS OVERVIEW

At AT&T we are transforming ourselves from a long distance company to an “any distance” company. From a company that handles

mostly voice calls to a company that connects callers to information in any form useful—voice, data
and video. From a primarily domestic company to a truly global company.

That is why there has been so much change at AT&T—strategic acquisitions, joint ventures and
the accelerated introduction of new technology and services. All this action supports a series of
strategic shifts within the company:

From “resale” to “facilities-based”— To deliver the services of the 21st century, AT&T will own or control
the facilities we use to reach our customers.

From “narrowband” to “broadband” — The future is a digital, broadband world. Broadband systems
transmit data at high speeds that make advanced communications services work. The AT&T long
distance network has been broadband for years, but the final connections to most customers are still
pairs of copper wires that carry a narrow stream of information — fine for voice calls but too slow
for the services in our future.

From ‘tircuits” to ‘packets” — In the old world of voice telephony, every call ties up a circuit or pathway
through the network from one phone to the other. In the new world of the Internet, information
— whether sound or data — is broken into separate units called “packets” that are reassembled at the
receiving end. With packets, many users can share the same pathway at the same time.

From “local cellular” to “digital wireless leader”— The growth of wireless calling is second only to the
growth of the Internet as a driving force in communications. Thus, AT&T continues to expand its
nationwide digital wireless network.

From a ‘domestic company” to a "global communications power” — Our customers, especially multina-
tional companies, need end-to-end global services with consistent quality, price and customer sup-
port. That is why we announced our plans for a global joint venture with British Telecom in July
and acquired the IBM global network this year.

In 1998, AT&T" acquisition of Teleport Communications Group strengthened our company’s local
business offerings. And our company’s future services offerings will be strengthened by our investment
this year in Tele-Communications Inc, (T'CI). Presently, the TCI deal enables our local phone service
delivery by providing us with broadband connections to consumers. TCI and the joint ventures we
announced with Time Warner and TCI affiliates gives us the potential to reach 40% of American homes.

AT&T is also strengthened by diversity. It is the reason why the Supplier Diversity Initiatives are a
part of our company’s transformation. As AT&T’s customer base grows ever diverse with consumers
in the United States and expanding markets abroad, supplier diversity just makes good business sense.



CE0O MESSAGE

For more than 30 years, the diversity of our sup-

plier base has been an appreciating asset for

AT&T. And as we go into the home stretch of

the 20th Century, it’s encouraging to look back
on the growth of our partnership with women-

and minority-owned firms.

AT&T"s diversity program began in 1968 with
$175,000 in payments to nine minority- and
women-owned businesses. In 1994, purchases
through the Minority and Women Business
Enterprises (MWBE) Program broke the §1
billion mark. Hundreds of MWBE companies
were supplying AT&T with products and services.

Over the life of the MWBE Program, we've
done more than $10 billion in business with
minority- and women-owned enterprises, most

of it in the past five years.

Today we're transforming AT&T into the kind
of company that will deliver the next generation
of communications, information, and entertain-
ment services. Qur suppliers are vital partners as
we execute that strategy. And the diversity of our

suppliers is more important than ever.

Experience has taught us that a diverse base of

competitive suppliers gives AT&T strength and
flexibility in our markets, enhances our brand,
and deepens our relationship with customers

and communities.

In return, the MWBE Program provides an
opportunity for suppliers to achieve their potential
as businesses. This pays dividends in the form
of job creation and economic growth in their

communities.

Our suppliers practice continuous improvement in
their support for AT&T. We do the same thing in

our support for diversity, and so last year we:
Y ¥

Appointed one of our key executives — Frank lanna

— as executive champion of supplier diversity.

Pushed ahead with an aggressive program to
28 prog
grow MWBE purchases, with regular reviews by

senior managcmcnt.

Created a diversity advisory council to increase
opportunities for current suppliers and develop

new ones,

Made a $1 million contribution to help minority

suppliers stay competitive in today’s market.

And we continue building on our commitment
as we move toward the 21st Century. When
ATE&T went to the financial markets with a his-
toric $8 billion bond offering earlier this year, we
were delighted to select the minority-owned
investment banking firm of Blaylock & Partners

to co-manage that very successful transaction.

Clearly there is no shortage of talented minority-
and women-owned businesses in America. We've
had a long and productive relationship with
them. Through the MWBE Program, we look
forward to expanding that relationship in the

years ahead.

C. Michael Armstrong
Chairman and CEO
AT&T



AT&T SUPPLIER DIVERSITY POLICY

AT AT&T, wi

BELIEVE THAT SUPPLIER DIVERSITY PROVIDES US WITH A SIGNIFICANT POSITION OF STRENGTH IN WHICH TO

PERFORM IN THE MARKETPLACE. WE ARE PROUD OF OUR STRATEGIC ALLIANCES WITH MINORITY- AND WOMEN-OWNED

BUSINESSES AND ENTHUSIASTICALLY EMBRACE THE CLEAR VISION AND MISSION WHICH GUIDES OUR DIVERSITY INITIATIVE.

OUR MISSION

Minority- and Women-owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) are viewed as a natural part of
AT&T"s business environment. By creating a differential advantage, MWBE businesses contribute

significantly to our business success.

OUR VISION

To grow and expand AT&T’s global business by focusing on Minority- and Women-owned

Business Enterprises as a value-added strategy that creates a competitive advantage.

CORPORATE POLICY

AT&T’s corporate policy underscores the company’s commitment to the MWBE Program by
stating that maximum opportunity will continually be afforded to minority- and women-owned
businesses to participate with us as suppliers, contractors and subcontractors of goods and services.
In addition, the policy ensures strict compliance with all regulatory agency requirements as well as

with federal, state and local procurement regulations and programs.

DEFINITION OF

AT&T’s Supplier Diversity Program includes Minority-owned Business Enterprises {(MBE),
Women-owned Business Enterprises (WBE), and Service Disabled Veteran (SDV) businesses.

Businesses eligible for MWBE status must be at least 51% owned, controlled and operated by men
g F 5

and/or women who are:

African American

Asian American

Hasidic Jew (New York only)
Hispanic American

Native American

Non-minority women



SALUTING THE

ATET's first minority
Lusiness trade fair,

PAST—A 30

YEAR

TIMELINE OF

SUPPLLEER DIVERSITY

a minarity business.

| Annual Report

AT&T holds its first minority business trade
fair. Held at the company’s Hawthorne Works
facility outside of Chicago, 1L. AT&T reports
$175,000 spent with nine minority suppliers
for 1968.

Formative years for the Minority Business
Enterprises (MBE) Program. Spending was

tracked and program was internally focused.

AT&T acknowledges the contributions of

women business owners by expanding the
MBE Program. Name is changed to Minority

Women Business Enterprises (MWBE).

The first annual report for the AT&T MWBE
Program is created. Expanded focus on exter-
nal activities and organizations to support the

MWBE Program.

AT&T awards a $12 million contract to Network
Solutions, Inc. in support of the Federal
Telecommunications Services 2000 (F'T'S2000)
Program. It is the largest AT&T contract ever

awarded to a minority business.

MWSBE Program is expanded to include Service

Disabled Veterans.

A toll free number for the MWBE Program is

introduced.

Within one year AT&T spends a record high
of $1 billion with minority- and women-owned
business enterprises. AT&T also establishes the
MWBE Global Operations (GO) Team to shift
the program’s focus from procurement to busi-

ness unit driven.



AT&T receives the
Distinguished Corporale
Award from the U5, Dept.
of Commerce. Chairman's Initiative
for Supplier Diversity.

AT&T broke its record of purchasing from AT&T participates in NMSDC’s Corporate
IMWBE GO Team. MWBE suppliers. With a high of $1.5 billion  Plus Program.

ATAT establishes the

spent on goods and services from minority- and
women-owned businesses, AT&T’s program
goals set for five years were achieved in less than  AT&T Chairman and CEO, C. Michael
two years. ;'erstr(')ng, announces the Chairman’s Initiatives

for Supplier Diversity.

An announcement is made that AT&T will Supplier Diversity Web site is launched.
divide into three new companies. ;"\lrhnugh hrtp://www.ﬂ[t.Cum/r;uppHcr_d'l\.rcmit}.-
Signiﬁmm]y smaller, AT&T again spends $1

billion with MWBE businesses within a single

year—despite the restructuring.

For its commitment to supplier diversity,
AT&T receives the prestigious 1996 Distinguished
Corporate Award from the U.S. Department of
Commerce Minority Business Development

A gency.

AT&T’s MWBE Program director is named
National Minority Supplier Development
Council’s (NMSDC) MBE Coordinator of

the Year.




1998 YEAR

As executive champion of Supplier Diversity, 1
understand the value of diversity and its critical
role in AT&Ts success. It allows us to add new
perspectives and ideas to our business solutions.
To grow our global business and shareholder
value, we must understand and meet the needs
of our diverse customer base and develop a

diverse employee base.

The Supplier Diversity Program is a shining
example of how AT&T incorporates diversity
into our culture and our business. MWBE busi-
nesses support AT&T Network Services by
providing infrastructure, products, and services
for our central offices. And in the Information
Technology arena, they develop and support
network operations systems to monitor the net-
work and issue alarms on network conditions.
By working with top-notch suppliers—such as
the ones in the Supplier Diversity Program—
we continue to delight our customers and share-

holders each and every day.

As a member of the AT&T MWBE Leadership
Team, I pledge my continued commitment to
keeping AT&T “best in class” in supplier diver-
sity. We want to and can achieve best-in-class
cost and quality status by utilizing the Supplier
Diversity Program. To achieve this status, we

will remain focused on our team’s mission:

* 'To cascade our MWBE goals throughout
AT&T.

IN REVIEW—AT&T SUPPLIER DIVERSITY CHAMPION MESSAGE

* To implement MWBE business development

strategies in each of our business units.

*  And to be the change agents that make the

process work.

I approach my role of executive champion for
Supplier Diversity with the same discipline and
tenacity I apply to running the AT&T network.
Along the way, I have the honor of working
side-by-side with many of the people who spent
three decades making AT&s Supplier Diversity
Program the outstanding success it is today.
Based on the teamwork and dedication 1 see
among these people, we'll remain in the fore-

front of Supplier Diversity.

Frank lanna
Executive Champion
Supplier Diversity



CHAIRMAN'S

“This is an extraordinary day for the NMSDC network and for

minority-owned businesses as a whole, It 5 as though we've been re-ener-

INITIATIVE gized. ATETs commitment to infuse the BCF with new capital and

to expand training opportunities for minority entreprencurs seeking
greater access to high-tech industries is an important wake-up call to
other corporations to recognize the significance of these businesses to our
nations economic well being. For there is no doubt, when all segments

of our society are empowered economically, then we all win.”

Harriet Miche!, Presidant, National Minority Suppiier Development Council
July 10, 1998

NATIONAL MINORITY SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
BUSINESS CONSORTIUM FUND

AT&T recognizes that lack of capital has thwarted the success of many minority-owned businesses.
Qur company took a proactive stance in 1998 when we announced that AT&T would contribute
$1.2 million to the National Minority Supplier Development Council (NMSDC), and the
NMSDC’s Business Consortium Fund (BCF). AT&T contributed $1 million to the BCF for
working capital loans and $200,000 for the minority business executive program development at
the J.L. Kellogg Graduate School of Management at Northwestern University.

The NMSDC provides a direct link between corporate America and minority businesses. The
organization was chartered in 1972 to increase procurement and business opportunities for minor-

ity businesses of all sizes.

The BCF provides contract financing to NMSDC certified minority businesses across America
through a network of local participating banks and NMSDC affiliates.

AT&T'S SUPPLIER DIVERSITY ADVISORY COUNCIL

Reaffirming AT&T"s commitment to provide leadership, access and opportunity for the develop-
ment and growth of minority- and women-owned businesses, our company established the AT&T
Supplier Diversity Advisory Council (SDAC). Comprised of an expert council of suppliers and
officials from government and advisory organizations, the AT&T SDAC assists our company in
expanding our supplier diversity reach and increasing business opportunities for minority- and

women-owned business enterprises.

The areas of focus for the Supplier Diversity Advisory Council are:

Procurement Impact
Business Development

Outreach and Communication



CELEBRATING 30 YEARS OF

ATAT Executive VP
Frank lanna (center)
prasents a $1 million
check to NMSDC
President Harriet Michel
(2nd from L). Looking
on are (L to R) Kanita
Sandidge, former
Director, AT&T Supplier
Diversity; Marcial
Robiou, President,
Business Consortium
Fund and AT&T
Foundation President

| Esther Silver-Parker.

ACHIEVEMENT

or the past 30 years, AT&T has recognized diversity for
what it is—a competitive advantage. To applaud our
company’s diversity gains, more than 150 businesses

gathered this June in Basking Ridge, NJ for a his-

toric event to commemorate the 30th Anniversary of

AT&T"s Supplier Diversity Program. The celebration
honored MWBE suppliers, advocacy group lead-
ers and AT&T associates who have upheld AT&Ts

commitment to excellence in Supplier Diversity.

Supplier Diversity has become even more important
to AT&I since the days when we held our first
minority trade fair back in 1968. AT&T expanded
its program to include non-minority women-owned
businesses in 1984 and businesses owned by service
disabled veterans in 1992. Over the life of the pro-
gram, AT&T has purchased nearly $10 billion in

goods and services from diverse suppliers.

AT&T’s successful relationships with MWBE

businesses resulted in our announcement this year
of a $1.2 million contribution to the National
Minority Supplier Development Council (N MSDC)
and the NMSDC's Business Consortium Fund

(BCF). The funds are specifically earmarked to

Gelly Barromeo, Presi-
dent, Asian Business
Ventures, (left) and
Darlens Mar, Executive
Director, Greanlining
Institute, talk with
AT&T's Frank lanna,

assist minority-owned companies with needed capi-

tal and training to expand their high-tech operations.

AT&T also announced plans to establish the AT&T
Supplier Diversity Advisory Council, (SDAC), a
council of external suppliers and representatives
of business organizations who will provide advice
to our corporation on ways to c.\'pand .fsupplier
diversity, increase opportunities for current suppli-

ers, and develop new suppliers.
I

The AT&T 30th Anniversary celebration included
a panel discussion on “Partnering for Success” and
a luncheon which paired AT&T Supplier Manage-
ment Division and business unit representatives with
MWBE suppliers. Awards and recognition of achieve-
ments for significant accomplishments throughout
the year were also presented. Special citations were
given to four internal business units for their tireless
commitment to Supplier Diversity:

CFO MWBE Team

Global Real Estate Team

California Supplier Diversity Council

The Business Customer Care Voice Mainfenance and

Provisigning Team



1998 AT&T SUPPLIER DIVERSITY SPECTRUM AWARDS

DURING THIS YEAR'S 30TH ANNIVERSARY CFEILEBRATION, AT& T ACKNOWLEDGED THE CONTRIBUTIONS OF MWBE SUPPLIERS WHO HAVE PROVIDED AND
CONTINUE TO PROVIDE A BROAD SPECTRUM OF SERVICES TO OUR CUSTOMIERS. To DISTINGUISH THE SUPPLIFRS WHO SHARE IN OUR COMPANY S COMMITMENT TO
EXCELLENCE, WE CREATED THE AT&T SUPPLIER DIVERSITY SPECTRUM AWARD IN 1998, AWARD CATEGORIES INCLUDE LONGEVITY, INNOVATION AND ADVOCACY.

Donna Chancellor, ATAT
Constituency Relations

Director, (right) with (L to R)
Phillis Hill-Slater, and Julie

| Harriet Michel, Presi-
dent, NMSDC, delivers
keynote address,

MWBE suppliers network
with AT&T associates dur-
ing the 30th Anniversary
Celebration luncheon.

John Lopez, Chairman,
Association for Service
Disabled Veterans, talks
with Frank lanna, AT&T

Maurice Tosé, President,
Telecommunications
Systems, Inc. participates
in panel discussion.

Executive VP and Fred
Lona, AT&T Supplier
Diversity Manager.

he first award, the AT&T Supplier Diversity
Spectrum Award for Longevity, was bestowed
upon one of the nations largest African American-
owned advertising agencies, UniWorld Group
Ine. Founded by Byron Lewis, UniWorld has
provided AT&T with a full range of advertis-
ing, marketing, public relations, broadcast
and communications services for more than

two decades.

AT&T’s second award for Longevity was
presented to Concepts Office Furnishings.
Started in New York City 25 years ago by
Aida DeSoto, Concepts Office Furnishings
has consistently presented a quality product
line and on-time delivery for AT&T over a
20-year period. During this time, DeSoto’s
original staff of three has grown to more than
40 employees with revenues exceeding $10

million annually.

The AT&T Supplier Diversity Spectrum
Award for Innovation went to Software House
International. Since 1994, Gunawan Suliawan

has provided software for AT&T. A true inno-

Weeks, Research Director,
National Foundation
Women Business Owners.

vator, Suliawan added an array of services to his
company such as help desk support, product
training, applications development and consult-
ing services. These innovations have allowed
Software House International to carry one of
the broadest product lines in the industry with
more than 20,000 products available for next

day delivery.

Dallas-based Minority Business News was the
recipient of the AT&T Supplier Diversity
Spectrum Award for Advocacy. Founded by Don
McKneely, president of Texcorp Communications,
Inc., Minority Business News has been a com-
manding and convincing voice while serving to
inform and influence entrepreneurs and suppliers.
Recognizing and highlighting corporate diver-
sity outreach imitiatives, Minority Business News

recently celebrated its 10th anniversary.

AT&T commends all of the outstanding MWBE
suppliers who have supported us in providing
quality products and services to our customers
and who have demonstrated excellence at its

best during 1998.



SUCCESSFUL

As OUR GLOBALLY

COMPETITIVE

PARTNERING

COMPANY INCREASES ITS TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, OUR MARKETPLACE RECOGNITION

WILL BE BY COMPANIES WHO BRING A UNIQUE PERSPECTIVE. WHAT IS5 NOTEWORTHY ABOUT THE FOLLOWING SIX
COMPANIES 1§ THAT THEY HAVE BEEN ON AN UNCEASING QUEST FOR CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT. AND IT 15 THIS DEDICATION...THIS
RECYCLING OF COMMITMENT—THE SUPPLIER'S COMMITMENT TO PROVIDING INNOVATIVE AND QUALITY SERVICES—THAT AT&T vALUES.

| Scoft B. Porter

FIRST CLASS SERVICE

Corpora Travel Consultants, a franchisee of
Carlson Wagonlit Travel, has worked with
AT&T since 1990. During that time, Corpora
Travel provided AT&T with ticket delivery
services. Proving itself efficient, the company
soon became a full service AT&T travel
provider for the state of California. This
increase in responsibilities allowed Yolanda
Cheung, Corpora Travel’s president, to gain
corporate travel account experience for her

company and expand its staffing.

In 1998 AT&T consolidated its corporate trav-
el program into one designated travel agency
which impacted travel services in California.
Rising to the challenge of this reorganization,
Corpora Travel met the requirements to
become an American Express affiliate office
while providing AT&T with uninterrupted
“first class” service.

RELIABILITY AND RESPONSIVENESS
Owned and operated by Sherry McCulloh,
Transportation Management Associates (TMA)
is a full service logistics company based in
Mocksville, NC. TMA was first contracted to
facilitate AT&T’s cargo damage claims and to
provide pre-audit review of freight bills on behalf
of the AT&T Transportation organization in
1994, Today, because of its demonstrated reliabil-
ity and responsiveness, TMA’s logistic expertise
is called upon when an undertaking demands
coordinated movement of truck traffic and for

large and time sensitive projects.

TMA was recently called upon to deploy pre-
paid cards for the AT&T Pre-Paid Card organ-
ization. Coordinating tasks with AT&T’s busi-
ness unit personnel, TMA compiled delivery
points and timetables, and procured and sched-
uled over 50 trucks for the pick-up and delivery
of AT&T prepaid cards to hundreds of Wal-Mart
and Sam’s Club locations. TMA’s coordination
of logistics proved to be a major success for
ATET in the retail market.

HIGH STANDARDS

In the commercial printing industry 1SO9002
certification is a commendation that implies
that the commercial printer conforms to inter-
national standards that measure quality as a
process. Not many commercial printers receive
this certification, but Howard Press is among
this distinct group. Founded in 1970 by Scott
Porter, New Jersey-based Howard Press has
grown from a three person operation to a com-
pany with more than 350 employees in eight
plants serving the metropolitan New York,

New Jersey, Philadelphia and Atlanta areas.

Late this year, Howard Press partnered with
AT&T’s Supplier Management Division to
develop an extranet site that provides AT&T
employees with the ability to order personal-
ized business cards, letterhead and other sta-
tionery via a secured Web site. Instrumental
in planning the system architecture and
programming, Howard Press will have an
ongoing role in hosting and maintaining the

server and site.
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INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS

In June 1998, AT&T’ Supplier Management
Division began working with Victoria Lowe,
owner of Alert Staffing. Through a company
acquisition, Alert Staffing had become AT&T’s
new supplier for the procurement of various man-
agement and occupational temporary services.
Lowe’s vision for innovative staffing solutions
became quickly apparent during the transitional
period as Alert Staffing sought to help minimize

the impact on AT& T end users.

In business for less than five years, Alert Staffing,
which began in Lowe’s living room with one
unpaid employee, is now a multi-million dollar
company with offices around the country. Lowe’s
commitment to customer satisfaction and her
emphasis on utilizing highly trained professionals
to build a diverse, contingent workforce has result-

ed in increased business from AT&T.

I

A ABOVE
AT&T recognized Beverly and William Parkers’
willingness to take an extra step in 1994 when
they were asked to bid on a sizable AT&T contract
to procure and cut cable reels. The Parkers, own-
ers of Washington Cable Supply Incorporated
(WCSI), not only met their three day deadline,
but the business couple boarded a plane for
Dallas to make a personal presentation. The result

of that meeting—they got the job.

The Parkers have since taken numerous steps in
their efforts to provide value-added service. Twelve
years ago, WCSI was a distributor of custom-cut

cable. Today the Lanham, MD operation distrib-

utes, warchouses and supplies custom-cut and
fiber optic cable. WCSI has locations in Bessemer,

AL and soon in Haverhill, MA.

Boasting state-of-the-art facilities with equip-
ment possessing the capacity to cut a million feet
of cable per day, WCSI’s efficiency is helping
AT&T build a highly developed, cost-effective

telecommunications network.

LNCH C Ll | B

Started by Chris and Harry Gonzilez, the Zgroup
Design Inc.’s impressive, award winning graphics
can be seen in many of AT&T’s communications
materials—from magazines and journals to annu-
al reports and newsletters. Offering individualized
graphic design and communications services,
Zgroup has been developing creative concepts for

AT8T since 1993.

A boutique agency with six employees, Zgroup
has consistently demonstrated flexibility and a
hands-on approach to doing business. AT&T
supports Zgroup not only because of its cost con-
scious, high-quality design services, but due to
the company’s commitment to developing and

delivering an engaging product.

Zgroup’s conceptual abilities in conveying
images of the diverse communities AT&T serves
has resulted in targeted and stylistic publica-
tions, such as VISIONS (The AT&T Journal
of Business Strategy), Making Connections
(The 1994-1995 Annual Report on AT&T
Community Involvement), and the AT&T

Foundation’s 10th Anniversary Annual Report.



1998 AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

We

ARE PROUD TO SAY THAT IN 1998 AT&T’s SUPPLIER DIVERSITY PROGRAM HAS BEEN RECOGNIZED BY SEVERAL MINORITY

BUSINESS ADVOCACY ORGANIZATIONS. THIS RECOGNITION FURTHER ILLUSTRATES THE COMMITMENT OF AT&T AND ITS

ASSOCIATES TO DEVELOPING ALLIANCES WITH MINORITY BUSINESS ORGANIZATIONS AND PROMOTING SUPPLIER DIVERSITY.

o R S LT £ g SR S A AR S, (N
PRESIDENT'S STAR-~AWARD

The President’s Star Award recognizes corporations, certified bank lenders and regional councils
that have promoted, utilized and furthered the NMSDC’s Business Consortium Fund’s mission
to increase access to capital to certified minority businesses. The Award was presented to AT&T

during the NMSDC’s Conference in Miami, FL.

Since its inception in 1987, the BCF has loaned $134.5 million to 583 certified MBE suppliers.
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AT&T was the recipient of the Dialogue on Diversity, Corporate Excellence Award.

Dialogue on Diversity is a non-profit educational organization concerned with promoting construc-
tive dialogue among business and professional women from America’s many ethnic and cultural
communities. Dialogue on Diversity especially emphasizes economic viability as a key means for
women's assertion of their worth and influence in their communities. The United States Capitol was
the site of the awards presentation, which was attended by business owners and members of Congress.

1999 CORPORATION OF THE YEAR"” CITATION

The Maryland/District of Columbia Minority Supplier Development Council (MD/DC MSDC)
named AT&T its “1998 Corporation of the Year.” The award recognizes a member corporation
that has distinguished itself by dollars spent with Council MBE suppliers, corporate involvement

with the Council, innovative approaches to utilizing minority businesses, and mentoring and team-
ing efforts. The MD/DC MSDC is a regional affiliate of the NMSDC.
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ATE&T Supplier Diversity Manager, Stephanie McNeil-Bates, was recognized by the MD/DC
MSDC for her contributions to and support of the activities of the Council for 1998.



NATIONAL

OUTREACGH

INITIATIVES

ATE&T'S NATIONAL OUTREACH INITIATIVES AND SUPPORT OF THE FOLLOWING MWBE EVENTS HAVE HELPED US ACHIEVE OUR

GOAL OF

EXPANDING OPPORTUNITIES FOR MWBE suppPLIERS. WE ACKNOWLEDGE ALL OF THE COMPANY'S NATIONAL OUTREACH

EFFORTS AND THE NUMEROUS MINORITY, WOMEN AND SERVICE DISABLED VETERANS CONFERENCES, TRADE FAIRS, EXPOS AND SEMINARS

THAT HAVE SERVED AS NETWORKING VENUES FOR AT&T SUPPLIER DIVERSITY.

AT&T recognizes the local input of the
regional supplier councils and the
commitment each council has put forth
to furthering the advancement of
Minority Businesses. AT&T is an active
and proud corporate supporter of the

following councils:

Hispanic CEO Roundtable

Women Inc. Annual Conference

National Minority Enterprise Development (MED)
Week Conference

National Federation of Black Women Business Owners
Annual Awards

31st Annual Chicago Business Opportunity Fair

Southern California Regional Purchasing Council
29th Minority Business Trade Fair

MD/DC Minority Supplier Development Council
Business Opportunity Fair

Service Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE)
Opportunity Fairs

National Association of Women Business Owners

Annual Conference

Grand Canyon Minority Supplier Development Council
Carolinas Minority Supplier Development Council
Chicago Minority Business Development Council
Cincinnati Minority Supplier Development Council
Michigan Minority Business Development Council
Wisconsin Supplier Dmiopmmt Council, Inc.

Northern California Supplier Development Council, Inc.
Southern California Minority Purchasing Council
Delaware Valley Minority Business Resource Council
Rocky Mountain (CO) Minority Supplier Development Council
Columbus Regional Minority Purchasing Council
Dallas/Fr. Worth Minority Business Development Council
Georgia Minority Supplier Development Council

The National Center for American Indian Enterprise
Asian Business Association

National Association of Women Business Owners
Latin American Business Association

California Black Chamber of Commerce

National Association of Service Disabled Veterans
Minority Business Development Agency

Greenlining Institute

National Minority Supolier Devel t Council Affiliates

1998 Outreach Activities Supporied hy AT&T Supplier Diversity

Reservations Economic Summit (F Trade Fair

Black Enterprise Entrepreneurs Conference

National Minority Supplier Development Council
Leadership Awards Dinner

Neaw York/New Jersey Minority Purchasing Council
Expo 98

U.S. Hispanic Chamber of Commerce Annual Conference

National Minority Supplier Development Council
Annual Conference

California Black Chamber of Commerce Statewide
Entreprencur Seminars

National Minority Business Council’s 18th Annual
Business Awards Luncheon

NAACP Convention

National Urban League Annual Convention

Maryland/District of Columbia Minority Supplier
Development Council

Florida Regional Minority Purchasing Council (Miami)

New England Minority Purchasing Council

New York/New Jersey Minority Purchasing Council

Northwest Minority Supplier Development Council

Tennessee Minority Supplier Development Council

Virginia Regional Minority Supplier Development Council

Connecticut Minority Supplier Development Council

Pittsburgh Regional Minority Purchasing Council

Houston Minority Business Council

National Minority Supplier Development Counsil of
Florida, Inc. (Oriando)

AT&T Support also Extends to the Following Organizations

National Association of Purchasing Managers Minority
Business Development Group

TRY US

U.S. Hispanic Chamber of Commerce

New Jersey Board of Public Utilities Supplier Diversity
Development Council

Latin American Business Association
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AL 1984 — Added non-minority women-vwned businesses 1o program.

B. 1995 — ,4?‘{:-.‘:'7'.\;11’!'.-’ it three .'.om‘."‘:.f.u.rs‘g.'a.

C. 1998 - ATET 50ld ATET Universal Card, ATET Solutions Customer Care, and ATET Submaring Systens,

1998 CALIFORNIA SUPPLIER DIVERSITY RESULTS

$98.7 | $15.5 | $0.4 $114.6

1998 SUPPLIER DIVERSITY RESULTS BY SUPPLY TEAM
Total $891,238,740

AT&T SUPPLIER DIVERSITY RESULTS BY ETHNIC GROUPS
In millions

African American $ 94.0
Hispanic 92.4
Asian Pacific 144.8
Asian Indian 97.2
Native American 5.2
Non-minority Women 457.6

Administrative Supplies

Other

Marketing

Transportation and Travel

Building Infrastructure

Business & Professional Services

Information Technology

Network Equipment Services

n
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SUPPLIER DIVERSITY LEADERSHIP TEAM AND MANAGEMENT

OUR coMPANY'S MWBE LEADERSHIP TEAM IS AN EXECUTIVE TEAM THAT REPRESENTS BUSINESS UNITS AND DIVISIONS OF
AT&T. THE ROLE OF THE TEAM MEMBERS INCLUDES IDENTIFYING AND RECOMMENDING STRATEGIES FOR INCREASING THE USE
orF MWBE SUPPLIERS WITHIN THEIR SPECIFIC BUSINESS UNITS. THIS ENCOMPASSES THE ESTABLISHMENT OF GOALS AND DRIVING

RESULTS, PROVIDING SUPPORT SYSTEMS, HUMAN AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES, AND EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS AND RECOGNITION,

1398
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ITEAM

Frank lanna
Leadeﬂ/;ax;b Team Champion
President, ATET Network Services

Mark Stabler
Business Markets

Ginger Stillman
Corporate Strategy

Stephanie Hauge

Finance

Lee Pettit and Jane Biba
Public Relations

Mike Dacey
Legal Counsel

Yvonne Shepard

Consumer Markets

Dan Chappelle
ATET Wireless Services

Alan Abrahamson
Global Real Fstate

Joe Lakatos and Carol Thompson
Law & Government Affatrs

Diana Leonard
Network Computing Services

Siiri Sloat
ATET Solutions

Linda Charles and Linda Merritt

Human Resources

Gary Doran
ATET Foundation

Roger Green and Tim Omaggio
Brand Strategy

Debbie Bell, Kanita Sandidge and Winston Smith

Supplier Management Division

AT R T HeEl 1ET
ATRT SUPPILIER

DIVERSITY

STAFE (1998)

Kanita D. Sandidge Jan - Oct. 1998
Director

Ruthann Berry
National Outreach Manager

Fred Lona

Supplier Diversity Manager
Calijornia Initiatives
Sharon T. Garrett

MWBE Administration

Primo Ramos

California Initiatives

G. Winston Smith Oci. 7998 -
Director

Jackie LaJoie
Results Manager

Stephanie McNeil-Baies
Supplier Diversity Manager

Government Markets

Marilyn Drake

Secretary



AT&T'S DIRECT LINK—THE WORLD WIDE WEB

AT AT&T WE ARE DEDICATED TO PROVIDING INFORMATION AND ADVICE THAT WILL AsSIST MWBE BUSINESSES DEVELOP SUPPLIER RELATIONSHIPS
WITHIN OUR COMPANY, THE LAUNCH OF OUR “SUPPLIER DIVERSITY PROGRAM” AND “WOMEN 1IN BusiNEss” (WIB) WEB SITES 1S ANOTHER EXTENSION
OF OUR OUTREACH EFFORTS. WITH CURRENT TRENDS STATING THAT MINORITY- AND WOMEN-OWNED COMPANIES WILL COMPRISE 500 OF ALL BUSINESSES
BY THE YEAR 2000, AT&T 18 POSITIONING TTSELF VIA THE WORLD WIDE WEB AS A DESTINATION WHERE MWBE COMPANIES CAN OBTAIN FREE BUSINESS

ADVICE FROM EXPERTS, REVIEW CURRENT INDUSTRY STUDIES AND MARKET RESEARCH, AND LEARN OF SUPPLIER OPPORTUNITIES.

“Promoting Strategic Supplier Relationships™
%3”“’ |avar SRILLIES DINERITY PROGEAS is our motto at the “AT&T Supplier Diversity
LI Program” Web site. A simplified but comprehen-
1 ? & T ) sive approach is used for getting information at
ame iﬂ ‘!‘W F ' 2 = 5 5 .
W RIS TO At ‘Xﬂf,fwm g Y this address. Categories include Registration, Who
i FeeaLL Minority To Call and Resources.
c L] Disabisd \leterans 5 i i i
i :":: :m‘:i Rman . (http://www.att.com/supplier_diversity/).
IND TIER]
FEEDBATR Whst's New! 3 ;
] : AT&T"s business sites are updated and enhanced
Pramoting
_““EE&ESupphermmmshm on an ongoing basis. Information on our com-
| os Tiar | Fendbast pany can also be obtained on our home page
(http://www.att.com).
ATET ronuusiness - FoR HOME « ATAT PERSONALING
hewrie ABOUY ATAT » WRITE TO US » HELP/REARCH
| Search ATET +
) W OMEN IN BUSINESS A click to AT&T's “Women In Business”
=5 ATeT I i b y J i i
' |t att witiin your comch (http://www.att.com/wib/) Web site reveals cate-

gories such as Solutions for Success, Business
Women's Exchange and Community Calendar. An
offering for a free WIB membership yields rebates
and gifts. From the latest communications technolo-

gy to tips on ways women can take their businesses

global, the WIB site serves as a global venue to help
women expand their reach, share experiences and

network with women from diverse fields.

‘Weloama to ATAT's Weman in Businezs (D) web whe. A WIB membamtlp gives yeu 2 seurce of
nformatean, Mtﬂmnnmimmhnmh Business Woman's Exchange nd
e this chanity 1 p. share yeu and

diveme Belds.
Women o Busiers Hooe | Business Wonvn Exlane: | b Ve Cong
Sabaimms B Swcess | Fradhack | Lonmemity. Calinder




295 North Maple Avenue, Basking Ridge, NJ 07920

1-800-322-MWBE
wynw.att.com/supplier_diversity/
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FLORIDA RELAY SERVICE
1999 Year-to-Date Traffic Report

[ PERFORMANCE DATA JAN FEB | MARCH [ APRIL | MAY | JUNE [ JULY
. _
VOICE
Sequence
Abandons (not incl. in fotal)
TOTAL CALLS

.. ..... mge of m -

Intrastate 800 Calls

Totat Intrastate Calls

Interstate-Out

Interstate-In

Interstate 800 Calls

State to State

Intemnational Inbound

Intemational Qutbound

Calls to Canada

TOTAL COMPLETED CALLS

s Lompleted: Ming
Intrastate-Billable
Interstate
International Inbound
International Qutbound
Canada

TOTAL COMPLETED MIN.

8AM fo 5PM

5PM to 11PM

11PM to 8AM




PERFORMANCE DATA

)

FLORIDA RELAY SERVICE
1998 Year-to-Date Traffic Report

MAY JUNE JULY

Galls

' (Length by Minutes}
0-2 Minutes '
2-4 Minutes

4-6 Minutes

6-8 Minutes
810 Minutes
10-20 Minutes
20-30 Minutes
30-40 Minutes
40-50 Minutes
50+ Minutes

5PM to 11PM
11PM fo 8AM

AISWer Pesforman
| (Total Calls)
Avg. Spd. Ans. (Sec)
% Calls Ans. In 10 Sec.
% Calls Ans. In 30 Sec.
% Calls Ans. In 45 Sec.
% Calls Ans. In 60 Sec.

Avg. Work Time (AWT in Min)

Ih'qui'ﬁéé SIOMEr--ontac
Complaints
Commendations

* Number
Calls Camied/Other Cntrs.
Number of Calls Blocked




FLORIDA RELAY SERVICE
NEXT AVAILABLE ASSISTANT TRAFFIC REPORT

OCTOBER 1999

PERFORMANCE DATA

AL

DC

NJ

PA1

PA2

TN

TOTALS

[Calls
TTY
Voice

Total Calls

Call Distribution Percent

Performance Data Reflects: Relay Total Calls/Minutes carried via the noted AT&T TRS Center,
Rl = Tota! Calls/Minutes carried via the AT&T National Relay Center, Providence, Rhode Istand

AL = Total Calls/Minutes carried via the Alabama Relay Center
DC = Total Calls/Minutes carried via the DC Relay Center

GA

Total Calls/Minutes carried via the Georgia Relay Center

NJ = Total Calls/Minutes carried via the New Jersey Relay Center

PA1
PA2

Total Calis/Minutes carried via the Pennsylvania Relay Center
Total Calls/Minutes carried via the AT&T National Relay Center, New Castle, Pennsylvania

TN = Total Calls/Minutes carried via the Tennessee Relay Center

CALL DISTRIBUTION = % of Florida Relay Service calls
carried via the noted State Relay Center (NAA and S/R).



FLORIDA RELAY SERVICE
Customer Contact Report
JUNE 2000

. COM
CA/OPR RELATED
RELAY/OSD RELATED
OTHER

TOTAL COMMENDATIONS

Il. COMPLAINTS VOICE TTY TOTAL
CA/OPR RELATED
ATTITUDE AND MANNER
TYPING SKILL/SPEED
ENGLISH/GRAMMAR
CA HUNG UP ON ME
OTHER
EQUIPMENT
DISCONNECT
ANSWER/WAIT TIME
GARBLED WORDS
OTHER
METHODS RELATED
MISCELLANEQUS
BILLING/RATE
SCOPE OF SERVICE
OTHER
TOTAL COMPLAINTS

lll. INQUIRIES/COMMENTS
GENERAL INFORMATION
OUTREACH/MARKETING
EXPLAIN RELAY
TTY DISTRIBUTION/PURCHASE
LEC SERVICE

BILLING/RATE

COMPUTER SETTINGS
TECHNICAL RELATED

OTHER
TOTAL INQUIRIES/COMMENTS

GRAND TOTAL

AT&T PROPRIETARY
Use Pursuant to Company Instructions



FLORIDA RELAY SERVICE
Customer Contact Report
JUNE 2000

COMMENDATIONS
Descriptions of Commendations

COMPLAINTS
Descriptions of Complaints

INQUIRIES/COMMENTS
Description of Inquiries/Comments

AT&T PROPRIETARY
Use Pursuant to Company Instructions




Straight talk

AT&T Annual Report 1998




We've
accomplished
a lot...

In 1998 we resolved to:

= \ldl\f‘ our compamny more (_10111[)E'§1"i[i'\/’f.';‘-

. | nvest f()l' gTO“’th

Skeptics scoffed, saying it couldn’t be done.
But as the year unfolded, we cleared one hurdle
after another; redesigning our strategy, taking
$1.6 billion out of our costs, laying the plans to
invest over $70 billion in the company’s future
and redefining our services and products. In the
process, our alliances, offers and technology

t_T'E.lT'lS'fﬂ[‘ﬂ'l@d. fl’](‘. communications ind IJHH\

Our style was to move forward, keep promises,
hit our targets. But it was straight talk and swift

action with our customers that got results. The

numbers tell our story.




In one year

JAT&Tand BT join /| |
forces to create a
global venture that
will support the com-
munications needs of
people and business-
es around the world.
An $11.3 billion Revenues for the
merger agreement
with Teieport Com-
munications Group
speeds AT&T’s entry

first full year are
expected to exceed
$10 billion.

into the local busi- d: A ~ [ B

ness market. ) | 8 AS "L e!g@ m
%‘“ﬂ” agreement with
Tele-Communications

Inc. promises even-

tual broadband-cable
access to one third

of U.S. homes.

Invest to Grow

Cut Costs

The sale of Universal
Card Services, LIN TV,
SmarTone Telecommu-
nications and AT&T
Solutions Customer
Care yields $10.8 bil-
lion and refocuses the About 20,000 fewer
eémployees ate on t_!i‘e’
strategy. 7 rolls at year's end,

company on its core

includifrg more than
15,000 managers
who accepted a vol-
untary-retirement
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AS1.5 billibn merégr

w| agreemeént with)
Vanguard Cellylar

Systems extends
AT&T's wireless foot-
print in the Eastern
United States to
serve 625,000 new

customers. ;
lion in capital expen-

f- - . ditures, including
a i Q I I improvements in the
network, local and
tion of IBM’s global

data network hoosts
our ability to serve

wireless.

global customers and
creates a record-
setting outsourcing
contract for AT&T Solu-
tions to manage IBM’s
global networking.

Invest to Grow

Cut Costs

across the company
slash $1.6 billion

from the year’s sell- Keeping promises to

cut costs and invest
for growth, AT&T
increases operational

ing, general and
administrative
expenses, which drop
from 28.4 percent of eamir_lg_s per share
revenues in 1997 to . : by46 percentover
22.5 percent by the : / 4 1997. ‘
end of 1998. ;




And

there’s more

to come.

Dear Shareowners:

As this annual report goes to press,
the definition of a new AT&T is well
under way.

We're transforming AT&T from a
long distance company to an “any-
distance” company. From a company
that handles mostly voice calls to a
company that connects you to infor-
mation in any form that is useful to
you — voice, data and video. From a
primarily domestic company to a truly
global company.

We have an unprecedented oppor-
tunity to expand what we can do for
customers and grow the value of your
investment in AT&T. But it won't be
business as usual.

That's why you've seen so much
change in AT&T — strategic acquisi-
tions, joint ventures and the acceler-
ated introduction of new technology
and services.

All this action supports a series of
strategic shifts within the company:

From “resale” to “facilities-

based” — To deliver the services of the

21% century, we will own or control
the facilities we use to reach our cus-
tomers. We can't depend on just
reselling the connections of other

companies, especially when those
companies are often our competitors.
We need to use our own facilities
(what the engineers call “controlling
the architecture”) to ensure our quali-
ty of service and control of costs,
From “narrowband” to “broad-
band” — The future is a digital, broad-
band world. Broadband systems
transmit data at high speeds that
make advanced communications ser-
vices work. The AT&T long distance
network has been broadband for
years, but the final connections to
most customers are still pairs of cop-

per wires that carry a narrow stream of
information, fine for voice calls but too

slow for the services in our future.
From “circuits” to “packets” —In

the old world of voice telephony, every

call ties up a circuit or pathway

C. Michael Armstrong
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

through the network from one phone
to the other. In the new world of the
Internet, information — whether sound
or data — is broken into separate units
called “packets” that are reassembled
at the receiving end. With packets,
many users can share the same path-
way at the same time. It's more effi-
cient. More important, advanced
packet systems run on the new tech-
nology standard known as Internet
protocol, or IP. The IP standard links
all forms of digital communications
through the Internet. It's erasing the




AT&T Financial Highlights

Dollars in millions, except per share amounts 1998 1987 % Change
Revenues $ 53,223 $ 51,577 3.2%
SG&A 13,015 14,670 (11.3Y%
SG&A/Revenues 24.5% 28.4%
Operating income 7.487 6,836 9.5%
income from continuing operations 5,235 4,249 23.2%
Net income 6,398 4415 44.9%
Per Common Share - Dlluted
Income from continuing operations:
As reported 2.91 2.38 22.3%
Operational* 3.45 237 45.6%
Net income 3.55 2.47 43.7%
Cash flow from operations 10,217 8,501 20.2%
Gross capital expenditures 7,981 7,714 3.5%
EBIT ' 8,734 7,279 20.0%
EBITDA 13,415 11,327 18.4%
Debt to total capital, net of cash 12.3% 32.9%
Stock price $ 7578 $ 6131 23.6%

*Excludes certain nonoperational net charges and gains.

boundaries between TVs, computers
and telephones. And it's opening the
door o new applications such as
Internet services delivered over pock-
el-size wireless phones.

From local cellular fo digital wire-
fess leader — The growth of wireless
calling is second only to the growth of
the Internet as a driving force in com-
munications. AT&T continues to

that, AT&T has a facilities-based glob-
al strategy that gives customers the
same technology and suppart every-
where in the world. That’s why we
announced our plans for a global joint
venture with BT and acquired the IBM
global network. Together, they will
expand our reach as we develop a
200-gigabit, IP-based network linking
100 of the worid's leading economic

expand its nationwide digital wireless centers.
network. With our groundbreaking We're investing in our growth
AT&T Digital One Rate™ service, we strategy.

offer people a single rate for wireless
calls throughout the United States. No
long distance charges and no “roam-
ing” charges for using your phone out-
side your home area.

From a domestic company to a
global communications power — Qur
customers, especially multinational
companies, need end-to-end global
services with consistent quality, price
and customer support. To provide

In 1998, the acquisition of Teleport
Communications Group, America's
leading, independent, iocal-service
provider for business, strengthened
our local business offer. In addition,
our $48 billion investment in Tele-
Communications Inc. (TCI) gives us a
broadband connection to consumers
that enables local phone service and
other services we'll combine with it.
TCland the joint ventures we an-
nounced with Time Warner and TCI
affiliates give us the potential to reach
40 percent of American homes.

Meanwhile, the $9 billion we've
invested in our network over the last

two years is expanding what we can
do for businesses and consumers.

We've broadened our wireless foot-
print, now the most extensive of any
U.S. provider, with investments in digi-
tal technology. Our acquisition of Van-
guard Cellular Systemns will expand
our coverage in 26 markets in the
Eastern United States.

Financially, our core long distance
business gives us the cash flow to
invest in faster-growing businesses,
although they won't be hitting their
financial stride for another few years.
We're investing in the high-growth
areas of local service, wireless, the
Internet, global services and network
outsourcing.

As we make these changes for the
future, we've also accomplished some
ambitious short-term goals. in 1998,
we took $1.6 billion in costs out of the
business and surpassed our two-year
goal of an 18,000-person reduction in
the workforce in just one year.



We hit our major financial targets
‘with operating earnings per share of
$3.45, the high end of our $3.35t0
$3.45 goal. Revenues grew by 3.2
percent, against our growth target
range of 2 to 4 percent. While 1998
met or exceeded our objectives, it's
just the beginning of building our
company for growth.
Our financial targets for 1999 are:
B 1o 7 percent revenue growth and

earnings per share from eperations of

$4.2010 $4.30 (exciudmg the impact
of the TCI merger). Ambmous‘? Yes,
-but not unreasonab!e based on the

:nvestments we' re makmg and the R

- commitment of AT&T people.

its encauraging thatthe mvest~
ment commum{y shares my confi-
dence in AT&T and its p&opie Our
stock price began the year at $61.31
and finished at $75. 75, an increase of
23.6 percent.

Now that we've completed the
merger with TCi, we intend to do a
three-for-two stock split, which means
you'll have three shares of AT&T stock
for every two shares you have now.

For AT&T in 1999, the big chal-
lenge is to execute the strategy we've
put in place. We have the strategy, We
have the assets. And we have the peo-
ple. How well we put all this together

for our customers will be what sets us

apart,
In 1999, we'll be making our first

" “any-distance” offers over cable as we

implement pilots in several cities. We'll
exb_a,nd to. many more cities in the year
2000. We'll continue the acceleration
of data and IP services and buitd on
the leadership offers we latinched in
the wireless market. We'll finalize our
joint venture with BT and launch
global offers as we integrate the IBM
network.

Of course, public-policy issues will
still be with us. We'll do everything
possible to see that the Telecom-
munications Act of 1996 is imple-

- mented as Congress intended. AT&T
* and other companies afe making the

" kind of investments in local service

{hat the Act was supposed to encour-

- age. Wew&%wark with the Bell phcme

compames to open their local net-
warks to riew competitors, as the Act
requires;. '

I'm enthused about AT&T’s future.
And I'm not alone in that. AT&T peo-
ple know we now have the tools, and
the timeis right. The restis upto us,

- and we vmn’t let you down.

%VE«CLI-D

€. Michael Armstrong
Chafrman and Chief Executive Officer

March 9, 1999
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Eight-year-old Alexsa Marino in
Connecticut gets to giggle with her
grandparents in Florida thanks to

AT&T's long distance service.



Whether it's your stockbro-
ker calling across the globe
to monitor international mar-
kets or your granddaughter
calling across the miles to
share her new knock-knock
joke, every one of the 260
million calls we carry each
day is important to AT&T. Our
reliable long distance net-
work connects calls quickly,
easily, consistently 365 days
a year.

We care about that flaw-
less service because we're
not just connecting circuits,
we're conr@gﬁt}qg people -
people whd need to keep in

touch at home, on the road,
on line. So we offer choices
that take the hassle out of
communicating. Whether you
make calls on a wired phone,
a wireless phone, a calling
card or the Internet, AT&T
puts a full spectrum of ser-
vices within your reach.

And we're creating new
offers to meet your changing
needs. With AT&T Personal
Network, for example,
we’'re the first in the industry
to blur the boundaries
between different types of
calling. For just $29.99 a
month, you'll pay only 10
cents a minute on nearly all
wireless, long distance, call-
ing card and personal toll-

260 million times a day

free calls—all on one bill with
one number for customer
care. That low 10-cent rate
even applies on calls from
the United States to Britain,
Canada and northern Mexi-
co. All the ways you want to
communicate, on one net-
work, for one low monthly fee
- it's an offer so simple it
could be written in crayon.

To add the color of com-
munication to your life, call
1-800-4ATT NOW and learn
more about our rainbow of
services that connect people
to people.




20 billion tol
calls a year

Ask a math whiz to calculate
how many combinations of
seven digits form a valid
phone number, and you'll
find there are more than 7.9
million. With so many possi-

.third toll-free code — 877 —
last year.

Why all this toll-free
dialing?

Ever since AT&T invented

the service more than 30
years ago, businesses have

used toll-free numbers to put

a world of goods and ser-
vices at consumers' finger-
tips. Today more than half a
million companies and
government agencies accept
toll-free calls. And on an
average business day about
40 percent of the calls on

's network are toll-free,

 Thatts roughly 20 billion toll-

free calls a year!

For as little as $10 a
month, AT&T Toll Free
Solutions®" offers these
entrepreneurs everything
from basic toll-free service to
advanced features for man-
aging and routing toll-free
calls.

But toll-free’s not just for
business anymore. Personal
toll-free numbers help fami-
lies and friends stay in
touch. AT&T Easy Reach®
800 service allows con-
sumers in the United States

and Hawaii to receive and

pay for calls from anyplace in
the United States, Puerto
Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands
and Canada. For just $2.50
a month, plus 25 cents a
minute (50 cents for calls
from Canada), you've got a
personal toll-free number the
whole family can use to call
home without cash or credit
cards. And of course, it's
only 10 cents a minute

if you're an AT&T Personal
Network customer.

Do the math, and you’ll
find the benefits of toll-free
calling really add up. To learn
more about toll-free solu-
tions for business (1-800-
222-0400) or home (1-800-
850-8437), giveus acall ...
toll free, of course,



AT&T customer Ellie Jannetti

is among the 33 percent of
people who say they call toll-free
numbers at least 60 times

a year. For the companies Ellie

dials, it's opportunity calling.




With 100,000 custom
Keith Jacks signing up.
month, AT&T’s Digital

service fs-ths_c.'ear 5
the wireless crowd.




crowd? The answer is, quite
iterally, simple.
T Digital One
service, the simple,
nderstand offer we
in 1998, stood
8 industry on its
it the world talking.
Wireless Week

:-_.roamlng or long diste
charges a‘@oas
| States - an industry
ery call is like a local call,
rates so iowyou could
e your wireless phone

have signed on.

They get more than a
great calling plan; we offer
great coverage, too. We have
the largest digital wireless
network in North America.
Our customers can use their
wireless service in 96 per-
cent of the United States. To
make wireless connections
around the world, we use the
North American Cellular Net-

: jﬁbrk, which links more than

7,500 cities in the United

~ States, Canada, Mexico and

Puerto Rico, and more than
80 countries worldwide.
stprint is grow-

ent with Van-
istems to

expand our coverage
markets in the East
ed States. And on tf
Coast, we're managi
to-day operations of’
lular, now named AT
less, which enables}
offer advanced dig
vices in the competil
Angeles market. _
Our wireless cu
will benefit from t
lion we'll invest in
less infrastructure
With AT&T's col
erage, easy offers
standing service
service provider
simpler than evet.
For more info
about AT&T Wi
vices, simply ¢
IMAGINE.




It seems handshakes built
the financial-services indus-
try. Approve a loan, close a
mortgage, open an account,
and the partners clasp
hands to seal the deal.

But after a merger or
acquisition, it's not just the
dealmakers who get a grip.
Once-separate computer net-
works must pass information
back and forth without a
hitch for business to operate
smoothly.

Planning aggressive world-

wide growth, financial-ser-
vices giant Citibank needed
all its systems to fit like a
glove. So AT&T Solutions
lent a hand.

Our professional-services
unit designed and manages
a global data network that

$7.5 billion in new
outsourcing contracts

consolidates Citibank's 11
different networks into one.
Now everyone involved in
Citibank's business —
employees, suppliers, cus-
tomers — will communicate
on a common, user-friendly,
Internet-based platform.

“We need the latest tech-
nology to provide sophisticat-
ed services around the globe
and stay ahead of our com=
petitors,” says Stan Welland,
senior vice president at
Citibank and head of Global
Technology Infrastructure.
“So we chose AT&T Solu-
tions for its technical capa-
bilities, proven track record
and geographic reach.”

The five-year agreement
should improve Citibank's
overall network-service quali-
ty and reliability while lower-
ing its operating costs by
about $250 million. Best

all, without its hands tied in
networking knots, Citibank's
free to focus on its core busi-
ness and on satisfying
customers.

And that's only one AT&T
Solutions success story.
Since its launch in 1995,
more than 1,000 companies
have given AT&T Solutions
the thumbs-up. its outsourc-
ing, consuiting, network inte-

_ gration and call center

vices are applied in
ranging from publishing to air-
lines to health care.

In 1998 alone, AT&T Solu-
tions signed $7.5 billion in
new outsourcing contracts.

If your business could use
a helping hand from AT&T
Solutions, learn more at
www.att.com/solutions.




“This standardized platform
allows us to communicate uni-
formly across the enterprise,”
says Stan Welland, Citibank
senior vice president, at the
company'’s foreign-exchange
trading floor in New York Cilty.
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With Internet services from
AT&T, sales are sizzling at
Salsa Express, where Linda

Garza ships fiery foods around

the world.




With our global technology, pro-
fessionals like AT&T's London-
based Mark Newman can work

with clients around the world any-

time, anywhere.




100 economic centers

at the speed of

a f“‘

e\‘
i

Going global today takes global sefvices far greater
more than a passport and a ' than.either of us could offer
plane ticket. For multi- aloné. Revenues for the first
national companies, running'_ full Yea_r_ are expected to

Fa,

a worldwide operation exceed $10 billion.

requires people, data and Together, we'll design a
systems to work together as ' new, common-network archi-__
if they're next door instead of teciure to link the-world’s
continents apart, ‘t-:_y_;,nsswlbﬁdfﬁ"‘g’ 100 economic cen-...

To connectthose conti- lersiat 200 gigabits per sec-
nents, we’re creating.a glob- ond. That's like a single fiber,

e al venture with BT, a world- carrying 2:6'milli
. wide mmmunicationsJamfmﬁfm
M and the premier carrier in based on Internet protocol —
Europe. Combining AT&T's or IP — the transmission
and BL i

W oy T : tica

_tions, network assets and telecommunication

_customer relationships, the same way the World Wide
“venture will span the world Web unlocked access to

«a range of advanced information. The advanced
voice, data, video and Inter-
net services created for this

vt
¥+

gldbal customers.

X .-.a" 'l O L' i L = .
ever to go global, but you can
do it in first-class style.

ght

IP-based network will define
the future of the Information
Age.

To complement the global
venture, we agreed to ac-

__..Quire, for $5 billion, IBM's

global network that serves
thousands of businesses.
and miore thari 1 million indi-
vidual Internet users in 59
countri€s. It handles a \{;eyr_j-__.

Mw'é‘tyOf speed S. a.hd protocols,

and accelerates our ability to
deliver IP-based services to .




TCl technician Aaron Walker
}cls customers to a new

generation of voice, data

and entertafnment' s :
our Frefpont, Calif, trial of broad"
band ce‘bfe communications.




43 million

Someday soon, a truck may
rumble down your street,
) in front of your house

‘ver won't be:
office, but fr

link to 40 percent of house-
holds in the country, 'r'creating
the nation's most extensive,
broadband local network
platform.

The current copper tele-
phone wire to most homes

homes passed

carries phone conversations

at thousands of bits per sec-

ond. But broadband cable
zips information, voice and
) at millions of bits per

cities. And that's just

beginning,
Over the next few years,

millions of families will be

able to connect phones,
computers and televisions to
that cable. In addition to
high-speed Internet access,
digital-quality video and CD-

quality audio, they'll have
multiple lines of any-distance
telephone service - including
local — with conference call-
ing, call waiting, call forward-
ing and individual message

e set to deliver.
let them order
movies, it will
virtual communi-
nter where they'll
all kinds of mes-
ages — e-mail, voice or fax.
And they’ll use it to activate
extra phone lines as they
nled them.

Il these choices that

ake life simpler, communi-
on easier and informa-
tion richer will come over a::
céaxial cable just a half-ingh
thick. Proof, indeed, t
good things still come ir
small packages.



Were investing

to grow

AT&T's senior leaders use one word to
describe the company’s top priority for
1999: Execution. They all agree we've
made critical investments, and now it's
time to pull out the stops and see how
high we can fly. Here's some straight talk
from the team that can make it happen.

“We'll be the best
because we're the cus-
formers’ champion; we
know their needs bet-
ter,” says AT&T
President John Zeglis
(right), talking strategy
with AT& T Wireless
Services President Dan
Hesse at AT&T's New
York City store,

20

The consumers’ champion

John D. Zeglis, AT&T President

With a beat as steady as a bass drum,
the phrase “any, any, any" pops up in
John Zeglis’ conversation again and
again. The AT&T Consumer Services
leader repeats that refrain to sing the

praises of the new AT&T and what the
future can hold. Qur mission: Enable
people to communicate anywhere over
any distance in any form. Any, any, any.

“We're a ‘connections’ company,”
Zeglis explains. “And we want to make
connections possible over any distance
— local, long distance, global. In any
form — video, voice, data, online, in real
time, out of real time. And because
we're connecting people, not places,
that connection can be anywhere: in
your pocket, home or computer. You're
never without a connection.”

One of the connections that excites
Zeglis most these days is broadband
cable. The TCI merger and joint ven-
tures with Time Warner and five TCI
affiliates should offer broadband cover-
age to about 40 percent of the United
States. “That cable into the home or
business will give us a physical connec-
tion to our customers — directly, locally,
over the first mile, and through a broad-
band pipe that can create the informa-
tion-rich environment our customers
crave,” he says.

After a successful market trial in Fre-
mont, Calif., we expect to introduce
telephone service over broadband cable
in ten large market clusters by the end
of the year. “We won't get all the way
home in 1999, Zeglis cautions. “But
those ten markets will get the pilot light
burning so we have customers enjoying
the benefits of advanced broadband
services, and we're ready to sign on
serious numbers of customers in the
year 2000.”

Those customers will have more
than broadband cable connecting them
to the people and places they want to
reach. Long distance, wireless and
Internet services complete the suite of
consumer products that make the “any,
any, any” dream possible. And Zeglis
has orchestrated a plan for those play-
ers to harmonize perfectly.

“We're going to market as a fran-
chise, with all products tailored and
bundled to the needs of the particular
customer we're reaching,” he says.

Bundles are a big deal, but one
Zeglis admits we haven’t mastered in



“We're putting alf the
pieces together for a
facilities-based busi-
ness, " says AT&T
Business Services
President Michae!
Keith, reviewing
online sales tools
with Kathleen Earley,
vice president of
Internet Services.

the past. “It's more than just ‘stapling’
services together,” he says. “We can
provide our best value to customers
who buy multiple products together in
an integrated package. The pricing is
seamless and so, often, is the service.”

We've already started rolling out
such unified bundles, with the January
1999 introduction of AT&T Personal
Network, the offer that combines low
rates on wireless and wired long dis-
tance calls —all on a single bill with one
number for customer care.

There's no mystery why wireless is
part of the AT&T Personal Network bun-
dle: “It's a growth industry,” Zeglis says.
“We made that happen through the
simplicity of AT&T Digital One Rate ser-
vice introduced in 1998, and by taking
advantage of AT&T's large, national,
digital wireless footprint. And we're
going to do more of it. We'll build more
markets in 1999 and add more than a
million subscribers through wireless
connections.”

Also growing is AT&T's share of Inter-
net users. “After spending the first half
of 1998 getting control of our costs, we
spent the last half improving our mar-
keting of AT&T WorldNet,” Zeglis says.

So whether they're on a computer, a
cellular phone or a wired line, Zeglis can
connect customers. “If you're at home,
we'll connect you through our broad-
band network. If you're away from
home, we'll connect you through the air.
And if you can get to a phone - any

phone —our calling cards and prepaid
cards will connect you anywhere,
anytime.”

Any, any, any. He just can’t get that
tune out of his head.

Working together in a whole new way
Michael G. Keith, President

AT&T Business Services

Change is a given. A cliché, perhaps,
but frue nonetheless. And no one
knows that better than Michael Keith.
With 21 years at AT&T, he's seen the
company face challenges at every
turn. By now he takes any change in
stride.

Good thing, because as this report
went to press, Keith was named presi-
dent of AT&T Business Services. He
succeeded Bob Annunziata, who left
the company to pursue an entrepre-
neurial venture.

Keith can hit the ground running.
He actually led Business Services on
an interim basis for much of last year,
significantly reducing its costs and lay-
ing the foundation for its improving
revenue growth and strong financial
results.

With extensive sales and marketing
experience, he brings a unique per-
spective to his new role, viewing the
company the way a customer would,
“AT&T is one company, not a set of
separate ‘silo’ businesses,” Keith says.
“By exploiting the strengths of each
sector, working together we can win
mare revenues, win more customers
and be even more successful.”

While maintaining its hold on the
business-voice market, Business
Services intends to fuel growth in 1999
through data, local and Internet
protocol —or IP, the form of switching
used by the Internet to move packets
of digital information across all kinds
of networks.

True to Keith's one-company philos-
ophy, we're already introducing ser-
vices such as AT&T Integrated
Network Connection (INC), which
speeds the integration and interoper-
ability of voice, data and IP networking
for businesses. With a “plug and play”
connection to the AT&T network, the
service automatically adjusts band-
width to customers' changing
demands for different types of traffic.

“We're truly committed to IP as the
unifying protocol transforming the
communications and computing
industries worldwide,” Keith says.
“Offers like INC prove we're walking
that talk.”

And our IP network is growing
rapidly to support a full range of offers.
In fact, we're doubling the capacity of
our IP network every manth and host-
ing more than 8,000 Web sites for
business customers.

To help achieve the 7 to 9 percent
revenue growth targeted for 1999,
Business Services is increasing its
sales force by about 1,000 people.

B



Their marching orders: Protect the
current customer base and aggres-
sively target new businesses.

“You cannat grow revenues without
having feet on the street,” Keith says.
“Fewer feet means fewer accounts we
can call on. So if we want to grow
more, we've got to have multiple chan-
nels such as agents, wholesale ven-
dors and retail outlets.”

Their efforts will be supported by
“net.working,” our first major advertis-
ing campaign for business customers
in two years. “There's no stone
unturned,” Keith says.

One pair of the feet on the street
belong to Keith himself. He's meeting
with customers, salespeople and tech-
nicians to learn what's working and
what's not. As a result of those discus-
sions, in 1999, Business Services will
introduce the “5 and 15" program to
turn up services more quickly. “If
you're already on the network, we'll
turn up your service in five days. If
you're not yet on the network, we’ll do
itin 15," Keith explains.

Those intervals are better than
industry benchmarks, but that, too, is
part of Keith's strategy. “We're AT&T,”
he says. “Our intent is to lead and set
higher standards going into the next
millennium.”

On top of the worid

John D. Zeglis, AT&T President
Daniel E. Somers, Senior Executive
Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

The tire-size globe to the left of Dan
Somers' desk is more than just a geog-
raphy tool. It's the canvas on which
AT&T's international strategy is drawn.
But while the company’s past global
attempts were sketchy, this one’s
painted in bold brush strokes and vivid
colors.

“Two years ago, we were nowhere in
terms of being a global business,” ad-
mits Somers, who has held international
responsibilities at AT&T since he and
John Zeglis refocused international pri-
orities in mid-1997. “We had small,
unlinked ventures. And we lacked a
vision of what it meant to be glabal.”

Stepping back to the drawing board
to reconsider its international strategy
led AT&T to two defining moments in
1998: a joint venture with BT and the
purchase of IBM's global data network.

“Both of these moves broaden our
position to serve multinational cus-
tormers by increasing the range of facili-
ties we control, turning our focus ta an
IP-based platform, expanding our cov-
erage of the world, and adding the
resources we need to be a truly global
enterprise,” Somers says.

Having guided the company's inter-
national interests through those mile-
stones, Somers is now focusing full time
on AT&T's financial strategy in his role as
chief financial officer. He's passed the

Chief Financial Officer
Dan Somers (left) and
AT&T President John
Zeglis discuss a world
of opportunities with
Cathy Martine, vice
president of Interna
tional Operations.

international torch — and that tire-size
globe — to Zeglis.

In 1999, Zeglis will position AT&T to
fill in the outlines marked by the BT and
IBM deals, making investments to
bridge gaps rather than create posi-
tions. “We're looking at areas of growth,
particularly in the Asia Pacific and Latin
American regions, whether through
joint ventures or direct investment in
facilities,” Zeglis says.

With only a handful of "super carri-
ers” positioned to serve the needs of
multinational customers, Zeglis believes
AT&T will come out on top. “Customers
are looking for one source to provide
seamless voice and data service,” he
says. “We should have a competitive
advantage across the board — on scope,
product depth, quality, cost structure
and service capabilities — if we execute
properly.”

Execution in 1999 means fulfilling
the promise of 1998's strategic moves.
“We're making sure the architecture,
design and plans for our 100-city, 200-
gigabit IP platform are up and running.
That will enable us to properly launch
the global joint venture as soon as we
achieve regulatory approval — probably
by the fall," Zeglis says. “We're working
to complete the purchase of the IBM
global network by midyear and effec-
tively integrate it within AT&T. And we're
analyzing, evaluating and likely execut-
ing at least one or two ‘in-country’
investments in 1999.”



Looking at the big picture, the men
who collaborated on AT&T's internation-
al strategy say it could be a masterpiece
in the making. “In two years, we've
gone from nowhere to being every-
where,” Somers says. “And 1999 is the
year we'll integrate to launch significant
growth around the globe,” adds Zeglis
with a flourish.

The network never sleeps

Frank lanna, President

AT&T Network Services

In a year when doomsayers predicting
year 2000 (Y2K) computer chaos are
burying canned goods and cash in
backwoods bunkers, Frank lanna's not
flinching. He's OK with Y2K. In fact, he
says it's old news.

“A significant amount of AT&T's Y2K
work was complete at the end of 1998,
and now we're finalizing our contin-
gency plans. I'm sure the AT&T network
and its services will work just fine,” says

AT&T Nebtwork

Services President

Frank lanna (cernter),
discusses V2K efforts

with John Fasgua,

Year 2000 vice president
(left), and Rudy Alexander,
vice president of Continuity
Services.

lanna, head of AT&T Network Services.
“When the book is written, Y2K will
most likely be a ‘'yawner for AT&T.”

With Y2K under control, lanna’s dig-
ging into a full plate of network mainte-
nance and integration activities. In
1998, AT&T Network Services focused
on growing the existing network, en-
hancing its reliability and improving
unit-cost effectiveness. “We're continu-
ing those efforts in 1999,” lanna says,
“while at the same time realizing mean-
ingful synergies from the TCG, TCl and
IBM assets.”

To achieve those goals, lanna’s
investing in the latest technology, espe-
cially in the growth areas of IP, local and
wireless. “We'll deploy newer tech-
nolgy nearer the customer —what | call
the ‘edge’ of the network,” lanna says.
“We'll ook for local, data and IP switch-
ing and service vehicles that are flexible
and have the upgrade capability to lead

us to future innovations.”

As for the two-way broadband cable
made possible by the TCl deal, lanna
dismisses questions of the technology's
viability. “It works,” he states confident-
ly. “I just want to get it into enough
homes fast enough with the quality that
people expect so it begins to snowball
quickly.”

Furnishing such services with the
speed that satisfies customers requires
efficient internal systems. lanna's send-
ing AT&T's for a tune-up. “We really
need to overhaul our systems with the
latest technology,” he says. “Look for
more Web-based systems that give cus
tomers greater access and control.”

As he ticks off 1999's to-do list —
complete Y2K preparations, integrate
networks, beef up systems — lanna
brims with excitement. “This year's
going to be almost a blur of activity,” he
says. “We'll increase our pace and effi-
ciency while decreasing our costs.”




But none of that can come at the
expense of network reliability. “We have
five objectives on the network: reliability,
reliability, reliability, low unit cost, and
innovate products through new technol-
ogy,” lanna says. “And if we can't do all
five, | say do any two of the top three,
Because our customers count on
reliability.”

The innovation engine
David C. Nagel,
Chief Technology Officer
President - AT&T Labs
With a résumeé that includes a stint at
NASA, Dave Nagel knows how to apply
technology to explore the vastness of
the universe. But with a tour of duty
at Apple Computer, he also knows how
to harness technology to expand the
power of a space no larger than your
desktop.

As president of AT&T Labs, he does
both — developing technology that not
only opens new communications fron-

“Despite a culture that
stretches back 100
Vears, we can move
technology info the
marketplace as quickly
as any start-up,” says
Chief Technology
Officer Dave Nagel
(right), with Albert
Chu, a director at
AT&T Labs.

tiers but that also changes the way we
connect person to person. It's proven to
be a winning combination.

Formed in 1996 when Bell Labs split
in two to ensure research leadership for
both AT&T and Lucent Technologies,
AT&T Labs continues the company's
long heritage of applying innovation to
communications services, “There's no
more exciting place to be if you want to
change the way people communicate
with one another, change how we con-
duct commerce, and change people's
lives for the better,” Nagel says.

He expects AT&T to drive those
changes, and the numbers suggest the
Labs has the roadmap. The unit he
describes as AT&T's “innovation
engine” filed roughly 600 patents in
1998. “That incredible number, more
than two per working day, proves the
Labs' belief in AT&T's culture of com-
mitment,” Nagel says. “We promised
600 patents for the year, and we did it.”

Approximately 2,000 issued and
pending patents in the company's port-
folio generated millions in royalties in
1998.

Whereas in the past Labs research-
ers were guided purely by inspiration,
now they also rely on AT&T's strategic
direction as a creative framework. “For
the first time, we had a very clear strate-
gic context within which to do our
research,” Nagel says. “Soin 1998 we
refocused on the key challenge facing
the company: becoming the industry
leader in IP-based networking and
services.”

Our global joint venture with BT will
showcase the Labs' IP prowess and
help us move toward the coveted top
spot among the IP elite. AT&T, BT and
the global venture have all agreed to
adopt the same broadly usable, com-
mon, open network architecture to
ensure compatibility worldwide. Labs
researchers developed that IP platform
last year; now they're helping build it.




“The rapid movement
of technology, its
increasing complexity
and the Jack of skilled
workers forces clients
ta turn outward for
help, " says AT&T
Solutions President
Rick Roscitt (right),
with Jim Pagos, AT&T
Solutions chief operat-
ing officer.

While erecting the global IP platform,
AT&T Labs is also developing the tech-
nology to reap the benefits of the TCI
merger. Pioneers in cable technology
since the 1980s, AT&T Labs research-
ers have developed a suite of broad-
band services.

“With our research and advanced
development over the last five years, we
have a solid technology base to bring to
bear on the TCl investment,” Nagel
says. “We have working demonstrations
of all the technology, and we're in the
process of fine-tuning it to get costs
down and performance up.”

To move more technology quickly to
market, Nagel's top priority in 1999 is
implementing a new “service realiza-
tion” process. “Research and develop-
ment managers in each business unit
are working closely with the Labs not
only in commercializing what we've
already invented, but on the invention
planning itself,” Nagel says. “So over
the next few years we'll develop a
pipeline of new services, concepts and
technologies.”

Technical innovation coupled with
creative marketing and sales ... sounds
like anather of Nagel's winning combi-
nations.

Reaching for revenues

Richard R. Roscitt, President

AT& T Solutions

Rick Roscitt racked up thousands of
frequent-flyer miles in 1998. And his

battered, black briefcase — its seams
scuffed and frayed — bears the bruises
of being stuffed into overhead com-
partments.

But somehow Roscitt arrives at each
destination with not a hair out of place.
His white shirt cuffs are pressed sharp
enough to slice onions, and he's itching
to get to work.

Riding hard, staying fresh and tena-
ciously attacking a job are tools of the
trade for Roscitt and his fellow travelers
at AT&T Solutions, the unit that plans,
installs and manages innovative net-
works for the world’s leading compa-
nies. In 1998, this “networking-centric
professional-services firm” inked deals
and headlines, signing one record-set-
ting contract after another — Citibank,
Bank One, IBM.

In the process, AT&T Solutions sur-
passed $1 billion in revenues and met
its goal of producing positive earnings
before interest and taxes in the fourth
quarter.

Building on that momentum, Roscitt
expects to close many more contracts
for new long-term business in 1999 —
each deal a step on the path to “five in
five,” the goal AT&T Solutions set in
1998 to become a $5 billion business
within five years. “This is no longer just
an interesting start-up operation,”
Roscitt says. “We are now depending
on AT&T Solutions to reach revenues of
$5 or $6 billion a year by around 2003.”

That's not just wishful thinking. With
a projected annual growth rate of 25
percent, the networking market is sky-

rocketing. “Businesses are accelerating
their networking investments because
the network is directly connected to
their marketing, selling and delivery
strategies,” Roscitt says. “Networking is
now mission critical for a business to go
to market.”

To beat competitors to the bargain-
ing table, AT&T Solutions relies on its
rock-solid reputation for unmatched
expertise. In 1998, The Yankee Group,
Dataguest and G2 Research named
AT&T Solutions a market leader in net-
working outsourcing.

“Of course, what really matters is
who clients decide is the market
leader,” Roscitt says. “Ours is a busi-
ness where track record, trust and relia-
bility are the top selection criteria.”

Time and again in 1998, current
clients helped AT&T Solutions win new
contracts by meeting with prospective
clients to vouch for the firm’s service
and skill. “In some cases, we've bid
higher than other competitors and won,
because the client had more trust in our
capability to execute,” Roscitt says.

As for Roscitt’s trust, that's been
placed in his fellow AT&T leaders. “In
the last couple years,” he observes,
“we've changed into a team of people
who see themselves not only as strong
individuals, but as much stronger when
we work together and support each
other to execute AT&T's strategy.”

With that team on board, you'd bet-
ter fasten your seat belt. AT&T's ready
for takeoff.



Glossary

Here's a “straight talk” translation
of some of the technical terms
that describe our strategy and
achievements.

Bandwidth: A measure of the informa-
tion-carrying capacity of a communica-
tions channel. A narrowband channel,
such as a voice channel, cannot carry
as much information as a broadband
channel, usually required for video or
high-speed data transmission.

Broadband: A communications chan-
nel with wide bandwidth that enables it
to carry more information at higher
speeds than a narrowband channel. A
broadband system can transmit many
different signals at the same time. Each
set of signals is translated into frequen-
cies that do not interfere with one
another.

Byte: A series of 8 bits (e.g.,
01010101) that represent a single
character.

BT: A worldwide communications
leader and the premier telecommuni-
cations carrier in Europe. In 1998,
AT&T and BT agreed to create a global
venture to serve the communications
needs of people and businesses
around the world.

Electronic commerce: The integration
of electronic mail, electronic funds
transfer, electronic data interchange
and similar techniques into an auto-
mated, electronic-based system that
encompasses such business functions
as procurement, payment, supply
management, transportation and facil-
ity operations.
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Gigabit: A unit of storage equal o 1
billion bits.

IP: Internet protocol, the form of packet
switching used by the Internet to move
all forms of digital information - voice,
video, data and images —across all
kinds of networks. IP is the standard
AT&T has chosen for our 215-century
global network.

Network: A system of computers,
hardware and software that are con-
nected and over which voice, data, files
and messages can be transmitted.

Network architecture: The manner in
which a network is structured.

Outsourcing: Procuring services or
products from an outside supplier or
manufacturer with expertise in the field
in order to cut costs.

Packet: A unit of digital data with a set
number of bits, including some bits
that serve as destination or “address”
code. The unit, or packet, can be sepa-
rated from the rest of its message com-
ponents and sent through a specially
switched communications network to
its destination, where it can be reunited
with the other message components,
regardless of which paths they took

en route.

Packet switching: An economical,
high-speed method of sending data in
bursts by dividing it into small blocks —
or packets —and then sending them
along various routes to a destination,
where they are reassembled.

Platform: The collection of technology
components used to create a network.

Protocol: A standardized set of rules
that allow computers to connect with
one another by specifying the format,
timing, sequencing and error checking
for data transmission.

Roaming: Using your cellular phone
outside your usual service area, often at
premium rates.

TCG: Teleport Communications Group,
the competitive local communications
company with which AT&T merged in
1998 to accelerate our entry into busi-
ness-local service.

TCI: Tele-Communications Inc., one of
the world’s largest cable and telecom-
munications companies. In 1999,
AT&T and TCl merged to deliver com-
munications, information and enter-
tainment services to consumers over
broadband cable.

Terabyte: A unit of storage equal to 1
trillion bytes.

Web hosting: Storing a customer’s
Web site on a server — a powerful com-
puter with a fast, permanent connec-
tion to the Internet.

Y2K: Year 2000, Y2K often refers to the
problems that could occur when a
computer's internal clock reaches Jan.
1, 2000. Most computer programs writ-
ten over the last 20 years use only two
digits for the year. Unless this is cor-
rected before that date, some comput-
er systems will not work properly, inter-
preting “00" as the year 1900,



We're financially
focused

[n 1998, we repositioned AT&T, never
taking our eyes off our financial goals. We
hit critical targets — earnings per share,
revenue growth, cost reduction. The num-

yers practically speak for themselves.
bers practically speak for tl |

But that’s just the l)(‘oummﬂ‘ We'll 2o fur-
ther in 1999 by continuing to reduce costs,
bunlfluw‘ top line revenues and investing to

grow. It’s bom_el._hmg to talk about.

Dan Somers, chief
financial officer (cen-
ter), with Nick Cyprus,
controller (left) and Ed
Dwyer, treasurer.




Financial Review

In reviewing our operating performance, we discuss our results
on an as-reported basis, as well as on an operational basis which
is adjusted for certain nonoperational items. We believe this will
assist readers in understanding AT&T in terms of trends from
period to period. The nonoperational iterns adjusted for in 1998
include restructuring and other charges, primarily due to net
charges associated with a voluntary retirement incentive pro-
gram for certain employees and asset impairment charges asso-
ciated with a local-service initiative, gains on sales of nonstrate-
gic businesses and the benefit associated with the adoption of a
new accounting standard for internal-use software. The nonop-
erational items adjusted for in 1997 include a charge to exit the
two-way messaging business in wireless services, the reversal of
certain business restructuring reserves and a gain on the sale of
a nonstrategic business. These items are discussed more fully

under “Results of Operations” on page 32.
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Also, in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples, our financial statements reflect the results of “continuing
operations” separate from cerfain businesses we have divested.
These divested businesses are represented as “Income from
discontinued operations (net of applicable taxes),” “Net assets
of discontinued operations,” and “Net cash used in discontin-
ued operations.” Gains associated with these sales are recorded
as “Gains on sales of discontinued operations.” In 1998, discon-
tinued operations included the results of AT&T Universal Card
Services. The results of AT&T's former submarine systems busi-
ness is also included in 1997 and 1996 discontinued opera-
tions. In addition, 1996 discontinued operations included
Lucent Technologies Inc., AT&T Capital Corp., NCR Corp. and

other businesses.
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Management’s Discussion
and Analysis

AT&T Corp. and Subsidiaries (AT&T)

AT&T entered 1998 in what looked to observers like a cloud of
uncertainty around its future. Indeed, the change heralded by the
Telecommunications Act of 1996 had failed to materialize in the
nearly two years since the law was passed. Our efforts to enter the
local-exchange market had proven unsuccessful and costly due
largely to the incumbent carriers’ choice to exercise their monop-
oly power.

At the same time our core product — long distance service — was
becoming increasingly commoditized. With literally hundreds of
competitors in the marketplace, price was quickly becoming the
only consideration in customers’ buying decisions. That fact high-
lighted yet another cause for concern: AT&T's cost structure,
though improving, was simply not competitive, with selling, gen-
eral and administrative (SG&A) expenses approaching 30% of
revenues.

Investors were looking for solutions to these problems in 1998,
and for answers to important questions about our global, wireless
and Internet strategies. Above all, investors were looking for
growth. AT&T's revenues grew only 1.8% in 1997, although earn-
ings trended upward in the second half of 1997 but declined for
the full year compared with 1996.

The response that investors, customers and competitors received
was both swift and decisive. The “sleeping giant,” as some liked to
think of AT&T, roared to life in 1998 and undertook a strategic
transformation that has fundamentally redefined our company and
changed the future of our industry.

AT&T and Dow Jones Industrial Average Two-Year Return
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Investing to Grow...

Our strategy is to grow by investing in facilities to provide
advanced, end-to-end communications services directly to our
customers, without relying on the networks of other companies.
We are moving from the long distance business to the any-dis-
tance business, from a domestic carrier to a global power, and

from a local cellular provider to a national digital-wireless leader.
We are investing in Internet protocol, or IP, networks that will carry
voice and data traffic together at a lower cost than circuit-switched
netwarks. And we are investing in broadband connections — high-
capacity, high-speed links to homes and businesses — in order to
deliver integrated voice, video and data services to our customers.

This is the strategy we communicated fo our shareowners in 1998,
and we committed to the investments we'll need to execute it. We
completed our $11 billion merger with Teleport Communications
Group Inc. (TCG), giving us local network facilities to reach busi-
ness customers in more than 80 U.S. markets. We gained broad-
band connections to one third of U.S. households through our
merger with Tele-Communications Inc. (TCI), which closed in
March 1999. We conceived a joint venture with British Telecom-
munications plc (BT) designed to build a 100-city, global, IP net-
work and become a leading carrier of global communications
traffic. We agreed to acquire the global network business of IBM
for $5 billion. We continued the expansion of our national
digital-wireless footprint, investing more than $1 billion in capital,
assuming management control of our joint venture in Los Angeles,
and agreeing to acquire Vanguard Cellular Systems. And shortly
into 1999, we announced a joint venture with Time Warner Inc., as
well as joint ventures with five TCI affiliates that will extend our
cable telephony footprint to more than 40 million homes.

These investments represent AT&T's future growth, yet we are
already beginning to see the benefits of our growth strategy. Our
1998 revenues grew 3.2%, and we closed the year with 4.8%
growth in the fourth quarter. Our wireless business was a strong
contributor with more than 17% growth for the year and more than
30% in the fourth quarter (adjusted for the sale of our messaging
business), driven by the success of our revolutionary AT&T Digital
One Rate™ service. AT&T Solutions, our network outsourcing busi-
ness, achieved more than $1 billion in revenues in 1998, growth of
34.2% over 1997. Data services grew at a rate in the mid-teens,
led by packet services such as frame relay. And our investment in
TCG began to pay off, as total local service revenues grew 73% for
the year. As we continue our momentum in these areas and begin
to build our capabilities in broadband and global services, AT&T is
well positioned to diversify its revenue streams and accelerate its
growth,

... and Delivering Outstanding Financial Performance

While our growth investments grabbed the headlines in 1998, we
also made tremendous progress on our other important commit-
ments to our shareowners: improving our financial position, reduc-
ing costs and growing our earnings and cash flow.

The investments we're making require a tremendous amount of
financial flexibility. To achieve that, we have aggressively pursued
the sales of assets not critical to our core business. Over the past
two years, we have sold our Universal Card operation, the AT&T
Solutions Customer Care business, LIN Television Corp., Smar-
Tone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, our submarine sys-
tems business and our AT&T Skynet Satellite Services business,
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

ATA&T Corp. and Subsidiaries

These sales have enhanced our ability to focus on our core mis-
sion, but more importantly brought in more than $12 billion in
cash. We used these cash inflows and the cash generated by our
operations to fund our $8 billion capital expenditures, reduce our
debt by $5.2 billion, and return value to our shareowners through
$2.2 billion in dividends and a $3 billion share repurchase pro-
gram. After all this, we exited the year with debt-net-of-cash of only
12% of total capital, down from 33% at the end of 1997. We have
ample financial flexibility to absorb the debt carried by TCI and

can borrow to meet future cash needs.

We made firm commitments in 1998 relative to our cost structure,
and we delivered on them. We told our shareowners that we would
reduce our SG&A expenses by $1.6 billion in 1998, and we
achieved that target. We did it by attacking costs across the entire
company, and by implementing an aggressive force-reduction
plan under which we committed to reduce our headcount by
15,000 to 18,000 over two years. Largely as a result of a highly
successful voluntary-retirement offer to management employees,
we exceeded our target, reducing our headcount by approximately
20,000 in just one year, not including headcount reductions due
to businesses sold.

We have far more work to do in order to become the low-cost
provider in the industry and achieve our target of a 23% SG&A to
revenues ratio for 1999. However, the progress we've made has
enabled us to be more competitive in the market with industry-
leading price plans such as AT&T One Rate™ Plus with 5-cent
weekend minutes. It has allowed us to invest in growth opportuni-
ties such as a dial-around service, our prepaid card business,
our AT&T Digital One Rate service and AT&T Personal Network
offer. And a competitive cost structure will be critical to our suc-
cess as we invest in our any-distance, broadband telephony and
data efforts and as we increase our sales capabilities in business
rarkets.

Declining costs have not only helped us in the market; they've
helped AT&T deliver very strong financial results for our shareown-
ers. We delivered earnings from continuing operations, excluding
certain nonoperational charges and gains (discussed more fully
under “Results of Operations”), of $3.45 per diluted share in
1998, an increase of 46% over 1997. We grew our earnings per
diluted share on the same basis in excess of 40% in each of the
last three quarters of the year. Our reported earnings from continu-
ing operations per diluted share were $2.91, a 22% increase over
1997

Our cash flow from operations also grew impressively to $10.2 bil-
lion in 1998, an increase of 20.2%. Excluding the nonoperational
charges and gains, we generated just under $15 billion in EBITDA,
growth of $3.7 billion, or 33%. We’'ll redeploy the cash our busi-
ness produces in order to fuel our growth engines — broadband
communications, local service for businesses, wireless, global and
Internet services.
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increased 46% over 1997

Income from Continuing Operations per Diluted Share
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There's a lot more to the AT&T story of 1998, as described in the
paragraphs below. But 1998 was only the beginning. We identified
the path we are taking into the future, and now we must execute
and continue to deliver on our commitments in order to stay on
course.

Overview

AT&T is among the world’s communications leaders, providing
voice, data and video telecommunications services to large and
small businesses, consumers and government agencies. We pro-
vide regional, domestic, international, local and Internet communi-
cation transmission services, including cellular telephone and
other wireless services. In support of these services, we segment
our results by primary lines of business: business services, con-
sumer services and wireless services. A fourth category, other and
corporate, includes the results of our other smaller units and cor-
porate cost centers. Results are discussed for these four cate-
gories as well as for consolidated AT&T. Additionally, we supple-
mentally discuss local services, new wireless services, AT&T
Solutions, AT&T WorldNet™ and other online services, and inter-
national operations and ventures.

Business Services

Our business services segment offers a variety of long distance
voice and data services to business customers, including domes-
tic and international, inbound and outbound, inter- and intra-LATA
toll services, calling card and operator-handled services, and other
network enabled services. In addition, this segment provides

local services, and Web hosting and other electronic-commerce
Services.

Consumer Services

Our consumer services segment provides long distance services to
residential customers, including domestic and international long
distance services, inter- and intra-LATA toll services, calling card
and operator-handled calling services, and prepaid calling cards.
In addition, local service is offered on a limited basis.



Wireless Services

Our wireless services segment offers wireless services and prod-
ucts to customers in 850 MHz markets and newer 1900 MHz mar-
kets as well as wireless data. This segment's results also include
costs associated with the development of fixed-wireless technolo-
gy, which, along with the results of the newer 1900 MHz markets
and wireless data, are discussed as “new wireless services” within
this document.

Other and Corporate

This group reflects the results of AT&T Solutions, our outsourcing,
network-management and professional-services business, TCG
(including their acquisition of ACC Corp. — “ACC" —in April 1998),
international operations and ventures, AT&T WorldNet Service, our
Internet access services business, and corporate overhead.

Revenues
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The discussion of results includes revenues; earnings, including
other income, before interest and taxes (EBIT); earnings, includ-
ing other income, before interest, taxes, depreciation and amorti-
zation (EBITDAY); capital additions and total assets.

AT&T calculates EBIT as operating income plus other income and
is a measure used by our chief operating decision-makers to mea-
sure AT&T's consolidated operating results and to measure seg-
ment profitability. Interest and taxes are not allocated to our seg-
ments because debt is managed and serviced and taxes are

managed and calculated on a centralized basis. Trends in interest
and taxes are discussed separately on a consolidated basis. Man-
agement believes EBIT is a meaningful measure to disciose to
investors because it provides investors with an analysis of operat-
ing results using the same measures used by the chief operating
decision-makers of AT&T, provides a return on total capitalization
measure, and allows investors a means to evaluate the financial
results of each segment in relation to consolidated AT&T. Our cal-
culation of EBIT may or may not be consistent with the calculation
of EBIT by other public companies, and EBIT should not be
viewed by investors as an alternative to generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) measures of income as a measure
of performance or to cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities as a measure of liquidity.

EBITDA is also used by management as a measure of segment
performance and is defined as EBIT plus depreciation and amorti-
zation. We believe it is meaningful to investors as a measure of
each segment's liquidity and allows investors to evaluate a seg-
ment's liquidity using the same measure that is used by the chief
operating decision-makers of AT&T. Consolidated EBITDA is also
provided for comparison purposes. Our calculation of EBITDA
may or may not be consistent with the calculation of EBITDA by
other public companies and should not be viewed by investors as
an alternative to GAAP measures of income as a measure of per-
formance or to cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities as a measure of liquidity. In addition, EBITDA does not
take into effect changes in certain assets and liahilities which can
affect cash flow.

The following discussion and analysis provides information man-
agement believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding
of AT&T's consolidated results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 and financial condition as of
December 31, 1998 and 1997.

We completed the merger with TCG on July 23, 1998. Each share
of TCG common stock was exchanged for 0.943 of AT&T common
stock, resulting in an issuance of 181.6 million shares in the trans-
action. The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests,
and accordingly, AT&T's historical financial statements were
restated to reflect the combined results of AT&T and TCG.

Forward-Looking Statements

Except for the historical statements and discussions contained
herein, statements contained herein constitute “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, including statements concerning future operating perfor-
mance, AT&T's share of new and existing markets, AT&T's short-
and long-term revenues and earnings growth rates, and general
industry growth rates and AT&T's performance relative thereto.
These forward-looking statements rely on a number of assump-
tions concerning future events, including, but not limited to,
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requirements imposed on AT&T or latitude allowed to competitors
by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) or state regu-
latory commissions under the Telecommunications Act and other
applicable laws and regulations; the successful technical, opera-
tional and marketing integration of cable and telephony services;
and the ability to establish significant market presence in new geo-
graphic and service markets. These forward-looking statements
are subject to a number of uncertainties and other factors, many
of which are outside AT&T's control, that could cause actual
results to differ materially from such statements. AT&T disclaims
any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise.

Results of Operations

Consolidated Results

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Callars in Millicns

Revenues

Business services $22,940 $22,030 $21,491
Consumer services 22,632 23,527 24,184
Wireless services 5,406 4,668 4,246
Other and corporate 3,549 2,704 1,892
Eliminations (1,304) (1,352) (1,125)
Total revenues $53,223 $51,577 $50,688

Revenues from continuing operations increased 3.2% to $53,223
million in 1998 compared with 1997, led by business services, pri-
marily data services, and wireless services, primarily due to the
success of our AT&T Digital One Rate service. Also contributing to
revenue growth was growth from TCG, including ACC, and AT&T
Solutions, which are included in the other and corporate group.
Improvements in these areas were partially offset by continued
declines in consumer long distance revenues and the reduced
revenues due to the sale of AT&T Solutions Customer Care
(ASCC). For 1998, total long distance services revenues (included
in business services and consumer services) were essentially flat
while calling volume increased 4.7% compared with 1997. Rev-
enues by segment are discussed in more detail in the segment
results section. We anticipate total revenues to grow in the range of
5%-7% in 1999, including the impact of our merger with TCl and
our planned acquisitions of Vanguard Cellular Systems (Vanguard)
and IBM's Global Network business all on a pro forma basis, that
is assuming these businesses were part of AT&T in 1998 and
1999.
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Total revenues in 1997 increased 1.8% compared with 1996 due
to growth in data services revenues in business services and wire-
less services. In addition, AT&T Solutions, TCG, AT&T WorldNet
Services and international operations and ventures, which are
included in the other and corporate group, contributed to revenue
growth. Declines in consumer long distance revenues partially off-
set this growth.

Eliminations reflect the elimination of revenues for services sold
between units (e.g., sales of business long distance services to
other AT&T units).

Operating Expenses

For the year, operating expenses totaled $45,736 million, an
increase of 2.2%, from $44,741 million in 1997. In 1997, operat-
ing expenses increased 6.6% from $41,979 million in 1996. Oper-
ating expenses in 1998 included $2,514 million of restructuring
and other charges as well as a benefit of $199 million from the
adoption of Statement of Position (SOP) 98-1 (collectively, the
1998 net charges). Operating expenses in 1997 included a $160
million charge to exit the two-way messaging business and a $100
million benefit from the reversal of pre-1995 restructuring reserves
(collectively, the 1997 net charges). Excluding the impact of the
1998 and 1997 net charges, operating expenses decreased 2.8%
in 1998 compared with 1997 and increased 6.4% in 1997 com-
pared with 1996,

Operating Expenses and Revenues
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For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Dollars in Millions

Access and other

interconnection $15,328 $16,350 $16,363

Access and other interconnection expenses are the charges we
pay to connect calls on the facilities of local exchange carriers and
other domestic service providers, and fees we pay foreign tele-
phone companies (international settlements) to connect calls
made to foreign countries on our behalf. These charges represent
payments to these carriers for the common and dedicated facili-
ties and switching equipment used to connect our network with
theirs. In 1998, these costs declined $1,022 million, or 6.3%,
reflecting FCC-mandated reductions in per-minute access rates
which went into effect in July 1997 and January and July 1998,
and lower international settlement rates resulting from increased
competition. Additionally, we continue to manage these costs
through more efficient network usage. These reductions were
largely offset by increased per-line charges (Primary Interex-
change Carrier Charges or PICC) and changes in the Universal
Service Fund contribution resulting from FCC access reform, as
well as volume increases. As many of these costs are a pass-
through to the customer, per-minute access-rate reductions and
increases in per-line charges and the Universal Service Fund will
generally result in an offsetting impact on revenues.

Access and other interconnection expenses remained essentially
flat in 1997 compared with 1996, due to lower per-minute access
costs, which are primarily the result of declines in international
settlement rates and access-charge reform mandated by the FCC
effective for the second half of 1997. Interstate and intrastate tariff
reductions, changes in traffic mix and network planning also con-
tributed to the lower per-minute access costs. These decreases
were partially offset by volume growth and a beneficial second
quarter 1996 accounting adjustment of previously estimated
accruals to reflect actual billing.

Access and other interconnection expenses were 33.8% of long

distance revenues in 1998, 35.9% in 1997 and 35.8% in 1996.

We expect this percentage to continue to decline over time as we
realize synergies from our merger with TCG.

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Dellars in Millions

MNetwork and other

communications services $10,250 $ 9739 $ 8,262

Network and other communications services expenses include the
costs of operating and maintaining our network, the provision for
uncollectible receivables, the costs of wireless handsets sold,
compensation to pay-phone operators, operator services and non-
income-related taxes. These costs increased $511 million, or
5.2%, in 1998, compared with 1997. This increase was largely
attributable to increases in wireless services due to intercarrier

 Capital expenditures of $8bilion
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roaming charges and cost of handsets sold as a result of the suc-
cess of AT&T Digital One Rate service. The increase in cost of
handsets reflects not only the higher number of handsets sold, but
the increased cost of the unit as customers migrate or sign up for
digital service. Growth in our AT&T Solutions and local businesses,
as well as increased data traffic on the AT&T network also con-
tributed to the increase. Partially offsetting these increases was a
lower provision for uncollectible receivables as a result of
improved collections in business services, lower network cost of
services as a result of the sale of ASCC in the first quarter of 1998,
and the impact of the 1997 two-way messaging charge, half of
which was recorded in network and other communications
services expense.

Number of Calls on the Network
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Network and other communications services expenses increased
$1,477 million, or 17.9%, in 1997, compared with 1996. In 1997,
we invested heavily in growth businesses such as AT&T Solutions,
AT&T WorldNet Services, local services and new wireless services.
Approximately half of the increase in 1997 was due to costs asso-
ciated with these growth businesses. The remaining increase was
primarily driven by FCC-mandated compensation to pay-phone
operators and the increased number and cost of wireless handsets
sold.

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Collars in Millions

Depreciation and

amortization $ 4,629 $ 3,982 $ 2,819

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $647 million,
or 16.2%, in 1998. This increase was driven by continued high
levels of capital expenditures in 1998 and 1997. Gross capital
expenditures for the year were $8.0 billion and $7.7 billion in 1998
and 1997, respectively. More than half of the capital expenditures
in 1998 were related to the long distance network, including the
completion of the initial SONET (Synchronous Optical Network)
build-out. These expenditures expanded network capacity,
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reliability and efficiency. In addition, we invested in our local net-
work to expand our switching and transport capacity and invested
to expand our wireless footprint. We expect depreciation and
amortization expenses to continue to increase in 1999 as we focus
our spending on growth areas such as data and |P networking,
wireless and business local.

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $1,163 million,
or41.3%, in 1997. The increase was driven by continued high lev-
els of capital expenditures, including the impact of purchasing
assets at retail from Lucent Technologies Inc. (Lucent), subse-
quent to its spin-off. The 1997 expenditures were primarily for our
long distance and wireless networks, including the deployment of
SONET. We also invested substantial capital in building our capa-
bility for local service and AT&T WorldNet Service.

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Dallars in Millicns

Selling, general and

administrative $13,015 $14.670 $14,535

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses decreased
$1,655 million, or 11.3%, in 1998 compared with 1997. The
decrease was due primarily to savings from cost-control initiatives
such as headcount reductions. In 1998, we adopted SOP 98-1
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use.” Among other provisions, the SOP
requires capitalization of certain internal-use software costs once
certain criteria are met. The impact of adopting this SOP was a
reduction of SG&A expenses of $221 million in 1998. Also con-
tributing to the decrease in SG&A expenses was a decline in mar-
keting and sales costs relating to lower customer-acquisition costs
in consumer services. These declines were partially offset by
increases in wireless customer acquisition and migration costs
and increased costs associated with the year 2000 initiative. SG&A
expenses as a percent of revenues were 24.5%, including the
benefit of adopting SOP 98-1, in 1998, 28.4% in 1997 and 28.7%
in 1996.

SG&A as a Percent of Revenues
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24.5% SG&A fo revenues for
1998, trom 28.4% in 1997, refiecting
cost-cantrof inttiatives. '

The reduced level of expenses reflects AT&T's efforts to achieve a
best-in-class cost structure. Excluding the impact of TCG and the
benefit associated with SOP 98-1, SG&A expenses declined
$1,602 million in 1998, reflecting AT&T's successful achievernent
of its target to remove $1.6 billion of SG&A expenses (excluding
TCG) from the business in 1998. Our efforts to achieve a best-in-
class cost structure will continue as we have {argeted a ratio of
SG&A expenses to revenues of 23% overall and 21% excluding
the local and wireless businesses for 1999,

SG&A expenses increased $135 million, or 0.9%, in 1997. We
increased spending on growth businesses such as local and new
wireless services as well as spending on transitory projects such as
preparation of our systems for year 2000. In addition, SG&A
expenses increased due to higher retention and acquisition costs
in core wireless markets. These increases were partially offset by
lower advertising expenses across AT&T, lower acquisition costs in
consumer markets — primarily a reduction in the use of checks to
acquire customers, and lower marketing and sales expenses in
business markets.

Also included in SG&A expenses were $662 million, $851 million
and $822 million of research and development expenses in 1998,
1997 and 1996, respectively. Research and development expen-
ditures are mainly for work on advanced communications services
and projects aimed at IP services. The decline in research and
development expenses in 1998 is mainly due to the redeployment
of resources in support of the year 2000 project. These expenses
are still a component of SG&A, but, are not classified as research
and development expenses.

Restructuring and other charges During 1998, we recorded
restructuring and other charges of $2,514 million, which had an
approximate $0.88 impact on earnings per diluted share. The bulk
of the charge was associated with a plan, announced on January
26, 1998, to reduce headcount by 15,000 to 18,000 over two
years as part of our overall cost-reduction program. In connection
with this plan, a voluntary retirement incentive program (VRIP)
was offered to eligible management employees. Approximately
15,300 management employees accepted the VRIP offer and as
of December 31, 1998, 14,700 have terminated employment. In
1999, the remaining 600 VRIP participants will terminate employ-
ment. A restructuring charge of $2,724 million recorded in the
second quarter of 1998 was composed of $2,254 million and
$169 million for pension and postretirement special-termination
benefits, respectively, $263 million of curtailment losses and $38
million of other administrative costs. We also recorded charges of
$125 million for related facility costs and $150 million for execu-
tive-separation costs. These charges were partially offset by $940
million of gains recorded in the second half of 1998 as we settled
pension benefit obligations of 13,700 of the total VRIP employees.
In addition, the VRIP charges were partially offset by the reversal
of $256 million of 1995 business restructuring reserves primarily
resulting from the overlap of VRIP on certain 1995 projects.



During 1998, AT&T recorded asset impairment charges totaling
$718 million, of which $633 million was associated with the local
initiative. Included in this $633 million were charges of $601 mil-
lion and $32 million recorded in the first and fourth quarters of
1998, respectively, related to our decision not to pursue Total Ser-
vice Resale (TSR) as a local-service strategy. The Regional Bell
Operating Companies have made it extremely difficult to enter the
local market under a TSR strategy. After spending several billions
of dollars in an attempt to enter this market, it became clear to
AT&T that the TSR solution is not economically viable. The $633
million charge includes a $543 million write-down of software, $74
million write-down of related assets associated with the ordering,
provisioning and billing for resold local services and $16 million for
certain contractual obligations and termination penalties under
several vendor contracts that were canceled during the first quar-
ter as a result of this decision. AT&T received no operational bene-
fit from these contracts once this decision was made. Also reflect-
ed in the $718 million charge was a fourth-quarter asset
impairment charge of $85 million related to the write-down of
unrecoverable assets in certain international operations in which
the carrying value is no longer supported by future cash flows.
This charge was made in connection with an ongoing review asso-
ciated with the upcoming formation of a global joint venture with
BT, which will require AT&T to exit certain operations that compete
directly with BT.

Additionally, an $85 million charge for merger-related expenses
was recorded in the third quarter of 1998 in connection with the
TCG pooling.

Partially offsetting these charges in the fourth quarter of 1998 was
a $92 million reversal of the 1995 restructuring reserve. This
reversal reflects reserves that were no longer deemed necessary.
The reversal primarily included separation costs attributed to pro-
jects completed at a cost lower than originally anticipated. Consis-
tent with the three-year plan, the 1995 restructuring initiatives are
substantially complete.

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Doliars in Millions

Other income - net $ 1247 $ 443 $ 405

Other income — net increased $804 million, or 180.9%, in 1998
due primarily to significantly higher gains on sales of nonstrategic
businesses as well as increased interest income on our higher
cash balance. In 1998, we recorded gains from the sales of ASCC
of $350 million, LIN Television Corp. (LIN-TV) of $317 million and
SmarTone Telecornmunications Holdings Limited (SmarTone) of
$103 million. The increase associated with these 1998 gains was
partially offset by lower earnings from equity investments and a
gain in 1997 on the sale of AT&T Skynet Satellite Services
(Skynet) of $37 million.

Other income - net increased $38 million, or 9.4%, in 1997. The
increase was primarily associated with the gain on the sale of
Skynet in 1997, partially offset by a decrease in gains on sales and
exchanges of cellular investments.

Far the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Deliars in Millions

EBIT $ 8,734 $ 7,279 $ 9114

EBIT increased $1,455 million, or 20.0%, in 1998. Excluding the
impact of the 1998 and 1997 net charges and gains, EBIT for
1998 was $10,279 million, an increase of $3,037 million, or
41.9%, compared with 1997. This increase in EBIT was driven by
higher revenues, the benefit of our SG&A cost-cutting initiatives
and lower international settlement rates.
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EBIT for 1997 decreased $1,835 million, or 20.1%, due to our
1997 investment in growth businesses and higher levels of depre-
ciation and amortization assaciated with an increased level of cap-
ital spending including the impact of purchasing assets at retalil
from Lucent, subsequent to its spin-off.

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1986
Dellars in Millions
Interest expense $ 427 $ 307 $ 417

After the sale of Universal Card Services (UCS) on April 2, 1998,
interest expense associated with debt previously attributed to UCS
was reclassified from discontinued operations to continuing opera-
tions since we did not retire all of this debt. This reclassification is
the primary reason for the $120 million, or 38.9%, increase in
interest expense in 1998. In August 1998, we retired $1,046 mil-
lion of TCG's debt early, which will produce significant savings in
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future interest expense. However, we anticipate interest expense
to increase in 1999 as we fund announced acquisitions and
ventures.

Interest expense decreased $110 million, or 26.4%, in 1997 due
to lower levels of average debt and a higher proportion of capital-
ized interest partially offset by higher average interest rates on
debt. Average debt was higher in 1996 due to the additional debt
associated with Lucent, prior to the assumption by Lucent of such
debt in April 1996. We capitalized a greater proportion of our inter-
est expense in 1997 primarily due to higher qualifying assets for
our local initiative.

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Dollars in Millians

Provision for income taxes $ 3,072 S@723 $ 3,239

The effective income tax rate is the provision for income taxes as a
percentage of income from continuing operations before income
taxes. The effective income tax rate was 37.0% in 1998, 39.0% in
1997 and 37.2% in 1996. The lower effective tax rate in 1998 is
due to the tax benefits of certain investment dispositions and for-
eign legal entity restructurings. The higher effective tax rate in
1997, compared with 1996, is due to 1996 tax benefits associated
with various legal entity restructurings.

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Dollars in Millions
Incorme from continuing

operations $ 5,235 $ 4,249 $ 5,458

Income from continuing operations increased $986 million, or
23.2%, in 1998 due primarily to the benefit of our SG&A cost-
cutting initiatives, higher revenues, lower international settlement
rates and gains on sales of nonstrategic businesses, partially offset
by the impact of restructuring and other charges. Income from
continuing operations on a diluted per share basis was $2.91,
$2.38 and $3.09 for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997
and 1996, respectively. Excluding the after-tax impacts of the
1998 and 1997 net charges and gains, 1998 income from contin-
uing operations increased $1,979 million, or 46.8%, compared
with 1997. This translates into an earnings per diluted share of
$3.45, an increase of $1.08, or 45.6%, over 1997. We expect
1999 earnings per diluted share to be in the range of $4.20 to
$4.30, excluding the impact of the merger with TCl and a planned
stock split and share repurchase.

Income from continuing operations decreased $1,209 million, or
22.2%, in 1997. Increased dilution from investment in growth
businesses, and lower earnings from our other, more mature busi-
nesses, due primarily to higher levels of depreciation and amorti-
zation, contributed almost equally to the decline.

36

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Dellars in Millions
Discontinued Operations:
Income from discentinued

operations £ 10 $ 100 $ 173
Gain on sale of
discontinued operations 1,290 66 162

Pursuant to Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30 “Report-
ing the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of
a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infre-
quently Occurring Events and Transactions” (APB 30) the consoli-
dated financial statements of AT&T reflect the dispositions of UCS
which was sold on April 2, 1998, the sale of AT&T's submarine
systems business (SS1) on July 1, 1997, and the sale of AT&T Cap-
ital Corp. on October 1, 1996, as discontinued operations. In addi-
tion, discontinued operations included the results of Lucent and
NCR Corp., spun-off on September 30, 1996 and December 31,
1996, respectively. Accordingly, the revenues, costs and expens-
es, assets and liabilities, and cash flows of these businesses have
been excluded from the respective captions in the Consolidated
Statements of Income, Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consoli-
dated Statements of Cash Flows, and have been reported through
their respective dates of disposition as “Income from discontinued
operations, net of applicable income taxes;" as “Net assets of dis-
continued operations;” and as “Net cash provided by (used in)
discontinued operations.” As of December 31, 1998, all business-
es previously reported as discontinued operations have been dis-
posed of. Gains associated with these sales are recorded as
“Gains on sale of discontinued operations.”

In August 1998, AT&T extinguished $1,046 million of TCG's debt.
The $217 million pretax loss on the early extinguishment of debt
was recorded as an extraordinary loss. The after-tax impact was
$137 million, or $0.08 per diluted share. This debt reduction will
produce significant savings in future interest expense.

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Dellars in Millicns

Net income $ 6,398 $ 4,415 $ 5,793

Net income increased $1,983 million, or 44.9%, in 1998 due pri-
marily to the gain on the sale of UCS and increased income from
continuing operations. Earnings per diluted share were $3.55,
$2.47 and $3.28 for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997
and 1996, respectively.



Net income decreased $1,378 million, or 23.8%, in 1997 due to
lower income from continuing operations as discussed above.

Segment Results

AT&T's results are segmented as follows: business services, con-
sumer services and wireless services. A fourth category, identified
as other and corporate, includes the results of AT&T Solutions,
TCG, international operations and ventures, AT&T WorldNet Ser-
vice, and corporate overhead. The results of these groups plus the
impact of the elimination of internal business sum to AT&T's con-
solidated results. The following is a discussion of revenues, EBIT,
EBITDA, capital additions and total assets for each of the seg-
ments, the other and corporate group, as well as supplemental
information on local services, new wireless services, AT&T Solu-
tions, AT&T WorldNet and other online services, and international
operations and ventures.

1998 EBITDA
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Reflecting the dynamics of our business, we are reviewing our
management model and structure which will result in adjustments
to our segment discussion during 1999. While this is an evolving
process, we anticipate changes as follows: The business services
segment will be expanded to include the results of TCG and the
business portion of AT&T WorldNet, and the consumer services
segment will be expanded to include the residential portion of
ATE&T WorldNet.

AT&T calculates EBIT as operating income plus other income and
is a measure used by our chief operating decision-makers to mea-
sure AT&T's consolidated operating results and to measure seg-
ment profitability. Interest and taxes are not allocated to our seg-
ments because debt is managed and serviced and taxes are
managed and calculated on a centralized basis. Trends in interest
and taxes are discussed separately on a consolidated basis. Man-
agement believes EBIT is a meaningful measure to disclose to
investors because it provides investors with an analysis of operat-
ing results using the same measures used by the chief operating
decision-makers of AT&T, provides a return on total capitalization
measure, and it allows investors a means to evaluate the financial
results of each segment in relation to consolidated AT&T. Our cal-
culation of EBIT may or may not be consistent with the calculation
of EBIT by other public companies and EBIT should not be viewed
by investors as an alternative to GAAP measures of income as a
measure of performance or to cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities as a measure of liguidity.

EBITDA is also used by management as a measure of segment
performance and is defined as EBIT plus depreciation and amorti-
zation. We believe it is meaningful to investors as a measure of
each segment'’s liquidity and allows investors to evaluate a seg-
ment's liquidity using the same measure that is used by the chief
operating decision-makers of AT&T. Consolidated EBITDA is also
provided for comparison purposes. Our calculation of EBITDA
may or may not be consistent with the calculation of EBITDA by
other public companies and should not be viewed by investors as
an alternative to GAAP measures of income as a measure of per-
formance or to cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities as a measure of liquidity. In addition, EBITDA does not
take into effect changes in certain assets and liabilities which can
affect cash flow.

Total assets for each segment include all assets, except interentity
receivables. Deferred taxes, prepaid pension assets, and corpo-
rate-owned or leased real estate are generally held at the corporate
level and therefore are included in the other and corporate group.
Shared network assets are allocated to the segments and realla-
cated each January, based on the prior three years' volumes of
minutes used.
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1998 Capital Spending by Category

Other

Core volce
network

Wireless

Local

Data/IP
Business Services
For the Years Ended Decemnber 31, 1998 1997 1996
Collars in Millions
Revenues $22,940 $22,030 $21,491
EBIT 025 4,592 Lottt s
EBITDA 7,720 6,349 6,313
Capital additions 4,978 4,085 2,538
Al December 31, 1998 1997
Total assets* $18,077 $15,030

“ Includes allocated shared network assets of $12 442 and $10,246 at December 31, 1998
and 1997, respectively.

Revenues Business services revenues rose $910 million, or
4.1%, in 1998, led by mid-teens growth in data services revenues.
Adjusting for the 1997 sales of Skynet and AT&T Tridom, revenues
grew 4.4%. Data services, which is the transport of data rather
than voice along our network, was led by strong growth in frame
relay and high-speed private line, both of which are high-speed-
data transmission services. Long distance voice-related revenues
were essentially flat for the year despite high single-digit growth in
volumes. This reflects a declining average price per minute which
was driven by competitive forces as well as changes in product
mix. Revenues also were impacted by reductions in access costs
which were passed to customers in the form of lower rates. We
anticipate total business services revenues to grow between 7%
and 9% in 1999 as a result of continued growth in data as well as
local and wholesale services.

Business services revenues grew $539 million, or 2.5%, in 1997.
Adjusting for the sales of Skynet and AT&T Tridom, revenues grew
3.3% in 1997. Strong growth in revenues from data services —
frame relay and other emerging services as well as private line -
drove the increase in business revenues. Long distance voice-
services revenues declined slightly, while volumes grew in the mid-
teens. Revenues from long distance voice were impacted by
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Business services reveniies of
$22.9 billion increased 4.1% aver 1_99?,
led by growth in data setvices.

pricing pressure brought on by a number of factors. Many voice-
service contracts were renegotiated during 1997 due to uncertain-
ty surrounding the possibility of detariffing and competitive pres-
sure. Also, reductions in access costs were passed to customers in
the form of lower rates, further impacting revenue growth.

EBIT/EBITDA EBIT increased $933 million, or 20.3%, and
EBITDA increased $1,371 million, or 21.6%, in 1998. Excluding
the 1998 benefit from the adoption of SOP 98-1 and the 1997
gain on the sale of Skynet, EBIT increased 20.1% to $5,397 mil-
lion and EBITDA increased 21.3% to $7,583 million. The increas-
es were driven by growth in revenues and the benefits reaped from
AT&T’s companywide cost-cutting initiatives. In particular, stream-
lining of customer-care and sales-support functions, including sig-
nificant headcount reductions, contributed to the increases. The
impact of these items on EBIT were partially offset by increased
depreciation and amortization expense correlated to the continued
high levels of capital additions.

EBIT decreased $623 million, or 12.0%, in 1997 reflecting
increased depreciation and amortization expense from capital
spending in the second half of 1996 and throughout 1997 and
FCC-mandated pay-phone compensation costs which began in
1997. These increases were partially offset by decreased SG&A
expenses and the gain on the sale of Skynet. Excluding the Skynet
gain, EBIT decreased 13.8%. EBITDA increased $36 million, or
0.6%, in 1997, reflecting decreases in SG&A and the gain on the
sale of Skynet, partially offset by FCC-mandated pay-phone com-
pensation costs. Excluding the impact of the Skynet gain, EBITDA
decreased 1.0%.

Other Items Capital additions increased $833 million, or 21.8%,
in 1998 and increased $1,547 million, or 61.0%, in 1997 due to
an increase in the allocation of shared network assets. Capital
spending reflects business services' portion of AT&T's investment
to enhance our network (including the data network), and spend-
ing on AT&T's Digital Link product for local service.

Total assets increased $3,047 million, or 20.3%, at December 31,
1998, compared with December 31, 1997. The increase was pri-
marily due to net increases in property, plant and equipment
(additions less depreciation), and an increase in the allocation of
shared network assets due to higher business volumes as a
percentage of total volumes.



Consumer Services

Farthe Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Doliars in Millions

Revenues $22,632 $23,527 $24,184
EBIT 6,662 5,004 5,345
EBITDA 7,379 5,883 5,982
Capital additions 457 921 1,867
At December 31, 1998 1997

Total assets* $ 6,252 $ 7,923

* Includes aliocated shared network assets of $2,921 and $4,168 at December 31, 1998 and
1997, respectively.

Revenues Revenues fell $895 million, or 3.8%, in 1998 on a low
single-digit decline in volume. The decline in revenues reflected
the impact of AT&T's strategy to focus on high-value customers
and actively migrate them to optional calling plans that provide
more favorable pricing for the customer. In addition to the impact
of this migration strategy, revenues continued to be pressured by
competition in domestic and international long distance markets,
including the impact of dial-around competitors, as well as the
flow-through of access-charge reductions to customers. We
expect revenues to continue to decline in 1999 in the range of
2%-4%.

Revenues in 1997 declined $657 million, or 2.7%, due to a num-
ber of strategic choices intended to improve profitability. For
instance, we accelerated the use of free minutes as a customer
incentive in 1997, increasingly using them in place of checks.
Since free minutes are classified as a deduction from revenues,
while checks are a component of SG&A expense, our move toward
free minutes served to reduce revenue growth. Also impacting rev-
enues were the effects of flowing savings from access reform
through to customers, resulting in lower prices and the migration
of customers to more-favorable calling plans. Partially offsetting
the declines was growth in intra-LATA, or local-toll services.

EBIT/EBITDA For the year ended December 31, 1998, EBIT
increased $1,568 million, or 30.8%, and EBITDA increased
$1,496 million, or 25.4%. These increases were driven primarily
by reduced SG&A expenses. SG&A expense declines are primarily
due to AT&T's continued focus on high-value customers which
has led to lower spending for customer acquisition and retention.
Simplification and consolidation of marketing messages has also
generated substantial efficiencies, and consumer services has
increased its use of alternate, more efficient distribution channels.
For example, One Rate Online offers activation, customer care and
billing over the Internet with payment via credit card. EBIT and
EBITDA were also positively impacted by lower international settle-
ment rates. Excluding the 1998 benefit from the adoption of SOP
98-1, EBIT increased 29.8% to $6,613 million and EBITDA
increased 24.4% to $7,318 million compared with 1997.

EBIT and EBITDA decreased $251 million, or 4.7%, and $99 mil-
lion, or 1.7%, respectively in 1997. These declines were due to
lower revenues primarily associated with the use of free minutes
as a retention tool and higher network and other communications
services expenses due primarily to a higher provision for uncol-
lectibles and FCC-mandated pay-phone compensation expense
which began in 1997. Partially offsetting the reductions to EBIT
and EBITDA were lower international settlement rates and reduc-
tions in SG&A expenses, due primarily to lower acquisition costs.

Other Items Capital additions declined $464 million, or 50.3%,
and total assets decreased $1,671 million, or 21.1%, at December
31, 1998, due primarily to a decrease in the allocation of shared
network assets due to lower consumer volumes to total volumes.
Capital additions in 1997 declined $946 million, or 50.7%, also
due to a decrease in the allocation of shared network assets.

Wireless Services

Total Wireless Services

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Dallars in Millions

Revenues $ 5406 % 4,668 3 4,246
EBIT 118 265 627
EBITDA 1,220 1,227 1,348
Capital additions 2,372 2,158 2,404
At Decernber 31, 1998 1997

Total assets $19,341 $18,850

Core Wireless Services

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Dallars in Milliens

Revenues $ 5,007 $ 4,642 $ 4,238
EBIT 653 824 797
EBITDA 1,663 1,653 1,496
Capital additions 1,850 820 1,316
Al December 31, 1998 1997

Total assets $14 843 $14,433

New Wireless Services

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Dollars in Millicns

Revenues $ 399 $ 26 $ 8
EBIT (535) (559) (170)
EBITDA (343) (426) (148)
Capital additions 522 1,338 1,088
At December 31, 1998 1997
Total assets $ 4,498 $ 4,417
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Wireless services is presented in total and as “core” and “new”
wireless services, New wireless services includes the impact of the
new 1900 MHz markets, wireless data, two-way messaging and
fixed wireless development. All other wireless results, primarily
services from the 850 MHz markets, are reflected as core
services.

Revenues Wireless services revenues grew $738 million, or
15.8%, in 1998. Adjusting for the October 1998 sale of our mes-
saging business, 1998 revenues increased 17.2% compared with
1997. The increase was driven by the overwhelming response to
AT&T’s Digital One Rate service and a full-year impact in 1998 of
the launch of eight new 1900 MHz markets in the second half of
1997. AT&T Digital One Rate service, which was rolled out in May
1998, was the first national, one-rate wireless-service plan that
eliminates separate roaming and long distance charges.

AT&T Digital One Rate service is one key element of our ongoing
efforts to acquire and retain high-value customers. Since the pro-
gram’s launch, more than 850,000 subscribers have signed on to
this service. AT&T has continued to add customers at a rate of
approximately 100,000 per month and about three quarters of
these customers are new to AT&T, In AT&T's 850 MHz markets,
average revenue per user (ARPU) was $56.60, a decline of 5.2%
compared with 1997. However, in the fourth quarter ARPU
increased 1.3% over the prior year's quarter compared with quar-
ter-over-quarter declines of 10.8%, 7.6% and 3.9% in the first,
second and third quarters of 1998, respectively. AT&T Digital One
Rate service was partially responsible for the slowdown in the
decline of ARPU. Minutes of use per average subscriber increased
within our 850 MHz markets to a 57.6% growth rate over the
fourth quarter of 1997, well above the 4.5%, 16.1% and 36.2%
growth rates achieved in the first, second and third quarters of
1998, respectively. For the full year, minutes of use per average
subscriber increased 29.5% compared with 1997.

AT&T Digital One Rate service is also a key element of our wireless
strategy to migrate customers to digital service, which generates
greater network efficiencies and improves customer retention. As
of December 31, 1998, we had 7.198 million consolidated sub-
scribers, an increase of 20.7% from December 31, 1997. Digital
subscribers represent 60.5% of the consolidated subscribers, up
from 52.7% one quarter ago and up from 29.3% at December 31,
1997. Including partnership markets (markets where AT&T has or
shares a controlling interest), 5.1 million of the total 9.7 million
customers were digital subscribers on December 31, 1998, We
expect the success of AT&T Digital One Rate service to contribute
to continued revenue growth and we estimate wireless services
revenues will grow in the high teens for 1999.
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Wireless services revenues increased $422 million, or 9.9%, in
1997. This includes revenues from AT&T's new 1900 MHz mar-
kets although the impact on the annual growth rate was minimal.
Adjusted for the impact of wireless properties disposed of in
December 1996, the 1997 revenue growth rate would have been
12.5%. The revenue growth was driven by consolidated sub-
scriber growth of 18.5% in 1997.

EBIT/EBITDA EBIT decreased $147 million, or 55.3%, and
EBITDA decreased $7 million, or 0.5%, in 1998. Excluding the
impacts of the 1998 gain on the sale of SmarTone, the adoption of
SOP 98-1 and the 1997 charge to exit the two-way messaging
business, EBIT decreased 99.2% to $3 million, and EBITDA
decreased 15.4% to $1,105 million, compared with 1997.

Core EBIT decreased $171 million, or 20.8%, and core EBITDA
decreased $90 million, or 5.4%, in 1998. Excluding the impact of
the 1998 gain on the sale of SmarTone and the adoption of SOP
98-1, core EBIT declined $286 million, or 34.7%, and core
EBITDA declined $205 million, or 12.4%. This decrease in core
EBIT and EBITDA for 1998, compared with 1997, reflects higher
intercarrier roaming charges due to increased volume, and lower
equity earnings. The decline in EBIT and EBITDA was also due to
higher subscriber-acquisition and digital-migration costs which is
linked to the growth in the subscriber base as the cost per gross
subscriber addition declined 2.8% in 1998. In addition, declines
in EBIT were due in part to increased depreciation and amortiza-
tion expense associated with capital additions. This was partially
offset by growth in revenues.

Core EBIT increased $27 million, or 3.5%, and core EBITDA
increased $157 million, or 10.5%, in 1997 compared with 1996.
These increases are due to the net impact of a growing subscriber
base — higher revenues partially offset by increased SG&A. In
addition, EBIT was impacted by increased depreciation and amor-
tization expenses associated with the higher asset base.

The EBIT deficit for new wireless services decreased $24 million,
an improvement of 4.3% over 1997 and the EBITDA deficit
declined $83 million, an improvement of 19.5%. Excluding the
impact of the 1997 charge to exit the two-way messaging busi-
ness, EBIT for new wireless services decreased 34.0% and
EBITDA increased 0.9% in 1998 compared with 1997, The
decline in new wireless services EBIT for 1998 was due to
increased acquisition costs relating to the roll out of nine new mar-
kets in 1997, higher intercarrier roaming charges due to increased
volume, and increased depreciation and amortization expense
due to the significant level of capital spending in 1997, These
increased costs were partially offset by the revenues generated in
the new markets and increased other income due to gains on
sales of 1900 MHz properties.



EBIT and EBITDA deficits for new wireless services increased
229.1% and 188.7%, respectively, in 1997 compared with 1996.
Excluding the impact of the 1997 two-way messaging charge, the
1997 EBIT deficit grew to $399 million, an increase of 135.0%,
and the 1997 EBITDA deficit increased to $346 million, an
increase of 134.5%, compared with 1996. The increase to these
losses was due to continued investment in the 1900 MHz markets
and reflects the cost to roll out nine new markets in 1997.

Other items Capital additions increased $214 million in 1998.
Capital additions in 1998 were directed primarily at expanding
coverage in the core, traditional markets since the build-out of the
1900 MHz markets was substantially completed in 1997.

Total assets increased $491 million from December 31, 1997.
This increase was due primarily to the impact of increased invest-
ments in nonconsolidated subsidiaries and increased accounts
receivables due to growth in revenues. These increases were par-
tially offset by declines in licenses as certain licenses were con-
tributed as part of our investment in nonconsolidated subsidiaries.

Other and Corporate

Fer the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Dollars in Millions

Revenues $ 3,549 $ 2,704 $ 1,892
EBIT (3,538) (2,665) (2,201)
EBITDA (2,871) (2,125) (1,776)
Capital additions 1,771 1,519 710
At December 31, 1998 1997

Total assets $15,880 $18,191

Revenues Revenues increased $845 million, or 31.2%, in 1998,
This revenue growth was primarily due to increases in TCG,
including the impacts of ACC (which was a 1998 acquisition by
TCG), AT&T Solutions, international operations and ventures and
AT&T WorldNet Service partially offset by a decrease in revenues
due to the sale of ASCC,

Revenues for other and corporate increased $812 million, or
43.0%, in 1997, primarily due to increases in AT&T Solutions out-
sourcing revenues, as well as revenues from TCG, AT&T WorldNet
Service and international operations and ventures.

EBIT/EBITDA The EBIT deficit increased $873 million, or 32.8%,
in 1998 and the EBITDA deficit increased $746 million, or 35.2%,
over 1997. Excluding the impact of the 1998 net charges on the
other and corporate units, the gains from the sales of LIN-TV and
ASCC and the 1997 restructuring reserve reversal, 1998 EBIT
improved $1,064 million, or 38.4%, to a loss of $1,701 million and
1998 EBITDA improved $1,190 million, or 53.4%, to a loss of
$1,035 million compared with 1997. These operational improve-
ments were due primarily to higher interest income associated
with a higher cash balance and lower corporate overhead due

to headcount reductions and lower employee benefit costs.

In addition, EBIT and EBITDA from international operations and
ventures, excluding a 1998 charge, and AT&T Solutions improved
as discussed below. The increased EBIT and EBITDA deficits in
1997 compared with 1996 were due primarily to increased dilu-
tion from our growth businesses.

Other Items Capital additions increased $252 million, or 16.8%,
in 1998 driven by TCG and AT&T Solutions. These increases were
partially offset by a decrease in international operations and ven-
tures due primarily to a decrease in investments in nonconsolidat-
ed subsidiaries. In 1997, capital additions increased $809 million,
or 113.5%, due primarily to increased spending in international
operations and ventures and TCG.

Total assets decreased $2,311 million at December 31, 1998, due
primarily to the use of proceeds from the settlement of the UCS
receivable to pay down debt, partially offset by the acquisition of
ACC.

Supplemental Revenue Disclosures

Dollars in Millions Doliars in Millions
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Supplemental Disclosures

Local Services

Local services for business and residential customers are included
as part of AT&T's business services, consumer services, and other
and corporate results. Local services includes TCG's local busi-
ness (but excludes its 1998 acquisition of ACC) and the costs
associated with the corporate staff dedicated to AT&T's local ser-
vices effort. TCG and ACC are both included in the other and
corporate group.

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Callars in Millions

Revenues $ 974 $ 562 $ 271
EBIT (1,428) (991) (466)
EBITDA (1,117) (764) (378)
Capital additions 1,362 1,314 892
At December 31, 1998 1997

Total assets $ 3,661 $ 4,068

Revenues Local services revenues increased $412 million, or
73.2%, compared with 1997, due primarily to TCG's growth in pri-
vate line, switch usage and facilities, interconnection, and
data/lnternet services. In 1997, local services revenues increased
$291 million, or 107.2%, also driven by growth in TCG.

AT&T's local services operation added more than 246,000 access
lines in 1998 for a total of 542,544 access lines in service as of
December 31, 1998. Voice-grade equivalents in service were 11.6
million, an increase of 4.3 million from year-end 1997. AT&T now
serves 19,246 buildings with 5,536 on net (buildings where we
own the switch), in 83 metropolitan statistical areas (MSAs). Since
year-end 1997, AT&T's local operations have added 28 digital
voice switches, 18 MSAs and service to 5,732 buildings, almost
900 of which are on net.

EBIT/EBITDA For 1998, EBIT and EBITDA deficits increased
$437 million and $353 million, respectively. The greater deficits
were due primarily to the $633 million asset impairment charge
and the $85 million TCG merger-related costs recorded in 1998.
Excluding these items, 1998 EBIT improved $281 million, or
28.3%, to a loss of $710 million and EBITDA improved $365 mil-
lion, or 47.7%, to a loss of $399 million. These EBIT and EBITDA
improvements were primarily due to an increase in revenues,
combined with an improved cost structure. For 1997, EBIT and
EBITDA declined $525 million and $386 million, respectively,
compared with 1996, due primarily to increased SG&A expenses.

Other Items During 1998, capital spending for local services was
primarily related to expansion, development and construction of
the business-local network. During 1997, spending was focused
on business-local and spending in consumer for the deployment
of TSR. However, we decided not to pursue TSR as a local service
strategy in early 1998.
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AT&T Solutions surpassed $1 billion
in revenues in 1998 due to new
contracts signed during the year.

Total assets decreased $407 million compared with December 31,
1997, due primarily to the 1998 write-off of consumer-local soft-
ware assets associated with TSR and a decrease in marketable
securities, partially offset by a net increase in property, plant and
equipment due to the expansion of the business-local network.

AT&T Solutions

AT&T Solutions is our outsourcing, network-management and pro-
fessional-services business. The results of AT&T Solutions are
included in the other and corporate group.

Far the Yesrs Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Collars in Millions

Revenues $ 1,054 $ 785 $ 473
EBIT 27 (154) (202)
EBITDA 173 (B) (63)
Capital additions 271 118 192
At Decermber 31, 1998 1997
Total assets $ 719 $ 6576

Revenues For 1998, AT&T Solutions' revenues grew by 34.2%, to
$1,054 million. The strong growth can be attributed to new con-
tracts signed during 1998 and the expansion of services provided
to our existing client base. During the year we announced the sign-
ing of a six-year contract with Bank One, valued at $1.4 billion
over the contract term. AT&T Solutions currently has the potential
for more than $9 billion in revenues under signed contracts. Rev-
enue growth for 1999, excluding the impact of the IBM outsourc-
ing agreement, is expected to be approximately 30%.

Also during 1998, AT&T and IBM announced a series of strategic
agreements. AT&T will acquire IBM's Global Network business for
$5 billion and 1BM will outsource a significant portion of its global
networking needs to AT&T. This five-year outsourcing contract has
a value of $5 billion. The netwark acquisition and outsourcing
agreement together have the potential to bring in an additional
$2.5 billion in revenues to AT&T Solutions in its first full year of
operation. Atthe same time, AT&T will outsource its internal data-
processing and applications-processing centers to IBM.

AT&T Solutions also manages AT&T's information-technology
infrastructure. These internal services are accounted foras a
reduction to AT&T Solutions’ expenses. Total internal services
billed were $1.6 billion in 1998 with an EBIT margin of about 4%.

AT&T Solutions purchases long distance and data services for its
business customers from business services, who partner closely
with AT&T Solutions to meet its customers’ needs.

EBIT/EBITDA EBIT for AT&T Solutions improved $181 million to
$27 million and EBITDA improved $179 million to $173 million in
1998. The commercial operations of AT&T Solutions recorded a
$40 million EBIT loss in 1998, an improvement of $124 million, or
75.4%, aver 1997. However, in the fourth quarter of 1998, AT&T
Solutions’ commercial operations met its target to turn EBIT posi-
tive. EBITDA for the commercial operation was a loss of $1 million



in 1998, an improvement of $135 million, or 98.6%, over 1997.
Revenue growth combined with significant progress toward a best-
in-class cost structure drove the EBIT and EBITDA improvements.

Other Items Capital additions for 1998 were $271 million, an
increase of $153 million over 1997. This spending was directed
primarily toward the AT&T information-technology infrastructure.
Capital additions for 1997 decreased 38.4% compared with 1996,
due to lower spending on the AT&T information-technology infra-
structure.

Total assets increased $143 million, or 24.9%, at December 31,
1998, due to increased capital spending. Approximately 50% of
total assets at December 31, 1998 and 1997, were related to ser-
vicing the internal-network infrastructure of AT&T.

AT&T WorldNet and Other Online Services

AT&T WorldNet and other online services includes AT&T WorldNet
Services, our Internet access provider for residential and business
consumers (included in other and corporate), as well as World-
wide Web site hosting and other electronic commerce services
(included in business services).

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Daotlars in Millions

Revenues $ 370 $ 219 $ 80
EBIT (431) (553) {520)
EBITDA (375) (523) (508)
Capital additions 69 118 18]
WorldNet subscribers (k) 1,294 1,020 568
Hosted Web sites (k) 8.1 6.2 2.0
At December 31, 1998 1997

Total assets $ 380 $ 334

Revenues Revenues increased $151 million, or 68.6%, in 1998
compared with 1997. The increase was primarily due to continued
growth in AT&T WorldNet's residential and business subscribers.
AT&T WorldNet had 1.294 million gross residential subscribers at
December 31, 1998, of which 1.250 million were paying sub-
scribers, up from 1.020 million at December 31, 1997, an
increase of 22.5%. Average revenue per customer increased due
to movement of customers to plans with higher monthly rates.
AT&T Web Site Services had more than 8,000 hosted sites at the
end of 1998, compared with approximately 6,000 at the end of
1997.

EBIT/EBITDA EBIT and EBITDA in 1998 improved 22.0% and
28.3% to deficits of $431 million and $375 million, respectively.
The improvements were driven primarily by AT&T WorldNet
revenue growth.

International Operations and Ventures

International operations and ventures includes AT&T's consoli-
dated foreign operations, our transit and reorigination businesses,
online services in the Asia/Pacific region, as well as the equity
earnings/losses of AT&T's nonconsolidated international joint ven-
tures. International operations and ventures does not include bilat-
eral international long distance traffic. The results of international
operations and ventures are included in other and corporate.

For tha Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Doliars in Millions

Revenues $ 876 $ 712 $ 585
EBIT (298) (399) (309)
EBITDA (244) (338) (242)
Capital additions 125 496 101
At December 31, 1998 1997
Total assets $ 1,409 $ 1,837

Revenues Revenues increased 23.0% to $876 million in 1998
compared with 1997. In 1998, we streamlined our international
operations by exiting certain nonstrategic and unprofitable busi-
nesses which negatively impacted revenues. Revenues from ongo-
ing operations increased approximately 54 % for the year, driven
by increased reorigination traffic and growth in AT&T Communica-
tions Services UK. In 1997, revenues grew 21.7% due primarily to
an increase in reorigination revenues.

EBIT/EBITDA EBIT improved $101 million, or 25.4%, and
EBITDA improved $94 million, or 27.8%, in 1998 compared with
1997. The EBIT and EBITDA improvements were primarily due to
revenue increases and AT&T's continued efforts to streamline its
international operations and exit nonstrategic and unprofitable
businesses. These improvements were partially offset by an $85
million asset impairment charge recorded in 1998 relating to the
write-down of unrecoverable assets in certain operations that com-
pete directly with BT. Excluding this charge, 1998 EBIT and
EBITDA were deficits of $213 million and $159 million, respective-
ly, showing year-over-year EBIT and EBITDA improvements of
$186 million and $179 million, respectively. In 1997, ERIT and
EBITDA grew 29.3% and 39.7%, respectively, due primarily to
increased losses in our international ventures.

Other Items Capital additions decreased $371 million for 1998
compared with 1997, The decrease was primarily due to the high
level of spending in 1997, which was directed toward the funding
of start-up ventures.

Total assets were $1,409 million at December 31, 1998, com-
pared with $1,837 million at December 31, 1997. The decrease is
due primarily to a decrease in cash resulting from a loan to an affil-
iated entity and due to a reduction in receivables due primarily to
the settlement of the receivable relating to the sale of SSI.

43



AT&T Corp. and Subsidiaries

Liguidity

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Dallars in Millions

Cash Flow of Continuing

Operations:
Provided by operating
activities $10217 $ 8501 $ 8087
Provided by (used in)
investing activities 3582 (6,755} (2,088}
Used in financing
activities (11,049) (1,540) (4,295)
EBITDA 13,415 11,327 11,965

AT&T's primary source of cash is derived from the continuing
operations of AT&T. The net cash provided by the operating activi-
ties of continuing operations was $10,217 million in 1998, $8,501
million in 1997 and $8,087 million in 1996. The increase in 1998
of $1,716 million was driven primarily by an increase in income
from continuing operations excluding the noncash impacts on
income of restructuring and other charges as well as the gains on
sales of nonstrategic businesses. The $414 million increase in
1997 was due to a number of factors including the collection of
employee-benefit related receivables from Lucent in 1997 and
improved customer cash collections.

Cash Flow from Operations*

Daollars in Millions

$12,000
10,217

59,000 — -

$6,000

53,000 1996 1998

*Reprasents the operating activities of AT&T's continuing operations.

AT&T's investing activities resulted in a net source of cash in 1998
of $3,582 million. In 1997 and 1996, our investing activities
resulted in a net use of cash of $6,755 million and $2,088 million,
respectively. In 1998, we received $5,722 million as settlement of
a receivable in conjunction with the sale of UCS, as well as $3,500
million in proceeds from the sale. We also received a total of
$1,550 million in proceeds from the sales of LIN-TY, ASCC and
SmarTone during 1998. AT&T's capital spending of $7,817 million
in 1998 was the primary use of cash in investing activities.

During 1997 and 1996, the net use of cash from investing activi-
ties was due to capital spending of $7,604 million and $6,828 mil-
lion, respectively. Partially offsetting the use of cash in 1996 were
UCS related securitizations.
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We expect our 1999 capital expenditures to be about $11 billion to
$12 billion, including the capital spending of TCI. A significant
portion of these expenditures will be in support of our growth
businesses,

The net cash used in financing activities of AT&T's continuing
operations was $11,049 million, $1,540 million and $4,295 mil-
lion in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively. AT&T used the cash
received during 1998 from the asset dispositions to pay down
commercial paper and repurchase approximately $3 billion of
AT&T common stock in anticipation of the TCl merger. We also
early retired $1,046 million of long-term debt obligations of TCG
and repaid approximately $1,100 million of scheduled debt
maturities.

The decrease in cash used in financing activities from 1996 to
1997 was primarily due to an increase in short-term borrowings
resulting from the increased UCS funding requirements as well as
the 1996 pay down of commercial paper with the proceeds from
the sale of AT&T Capital Corp.

On January 8, 1999, we announced that the Board of Directors
authorized the repurchase of up to $4 billion of AT&T common
stack. During February and March 1999, we completed this pro-
gram with the repurchase of 46.6 million shares. These shares
were reissued in connection with the TC| merger. We also
announced our intention, following completion of the TCI merger,
to declare a three-for-two stock split of AT&T’'s common stock.

In 1999, AT&T filed a registration statement with the Securities
and Exchange Commission for the offering and sale of up to $10
billion of notes and warrants to purchase notes. AT&T will have a
total of $13.1 billion of registered notes and warrants to purchase
notes available for public sale under this registration statement
and previously filed registration statements.

AT&T intends to use the proceeds from the sale of the notes and
warrants for funding investments in subsidiary companies, capital
expenditures, acquisitions of licenses, assets or businesses,
refunding of debt and general corporate purposes.

In February 1999, we entered into a $7 billion revolving-credit
facility with a consortium of 42 lenders. The 364-day facility is
intended for general corporate purposes and will support our com-
mercial paper issuances. In addition, we negotiated a $2 billion,
364-day, back-up facility with one institution. This facility will ter-
minate when AT&T issues debt under the registration statement
filed in 1999 and after any underlying commercial paper has been
repaid.

EBITDA is a measure of our ability to generate cash flow and
should be considered in addition to, but not as a substitute for,
other measures of financial performance reported in accordance
with GAAP. EBITDA increased $2,088 million, or 18.4%, for 1998
compared with 1997, EBITDA was also impacted by the 1998 and
1997 net charges and gains. However, the EBITDA impact of the
adoption of SOP 98-1 in 1998 was $221 million due to current-



© incomg from continuing opetations. -

year amortization of software capitalized, and the impact of the
two-way messaging charge in 1997 was $80 million. Excluding the
1998 and 1997 net charges and gains, EBITDA jumped to
$14,938 million in 1998 from $11,210 million in 1997, an
increase of 33.2%. The increase was due primarily to the impact
of our cost-reduction efforts coupled with higher revenues.
EBITDA declined 5.6%, or $668 million, in 1997. Excluding the
impact of the 1997 net charges, EBITDA decreased $785 million,
or 6.5%, compared with 1996.

Risk Management

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest and for-
eign exchange rates. On a limited basis we use certain derivative
financial instruments, including interest rate swaps, options, for-
wards and other derivative contracts to manage these risks. We do
not use financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
All financial instruments are used in accordance with board-
approved policies.

We use interest rate swaps to manage the impact of interest rate
changes on earnings and cash flows and also to lower our overall
borrowing costs. We monitor our interest rate risk on the basis of
changes in fair value. Assuming a 10% downward shift in interest
rates at December 31, 1998 and 1997, the potential loss for
changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps and the underlying
hedged debt would have been $3 million in both periods. Assum-
ing a 10% downward shift in interest rates at December 31, 1998
and 1997, the potential loss for changes in the fair value of
unhedged debt would have been $290 million and $346 million,
respectively.

We use forward and option contracts to reduce our exposure to the
risk of adverse changes in currency exchange rates. We are sub-
ject to foreign exchange risk related to reimbursements to foreign
telephone companies for their portion of the revenues billed by
AT&T for calls placed in the United States to a foreign country. In
addition, we are also subject to foreign exchange risk related to
other foreign-currency-denominated transactions. As of Decem-
ber 31, 1998, there was a net unrealized gain on forward contracts
of $9 million. As of December 31, 1997, there was a net unreal-
ized loss on forward contracts of $30 million. Unrealized gains and
losses are calculated based on the difference between the con-
tract rate and the rate available to terminate the contracts. We
monitor our foreign exchange rate risk on the basis of changes in
fair value. Assuming a 10% appreciation in the U.S. dollar at
December 31, 1998 and 1997, the potential loss for changes in
the fair value of these contracts would have been $20 million and
$6 million, respectively. Because these contracts are entered into
for hedging purposes, we believe that these losses would be large-
ly offset by gains on the underlying firmly committed or anticipated
transactions.

The estimated potential losses, as discussed above, assume the
occurrence of certain adverse market conditions. They do not con-
sider the potential effect of favorable changes in market factors
and do not represent projected losses in fair value that we expect
to incur. Future impacts would be based on actual developments
in global financial markets. Management does not foresee any sig-
nificant changes in the strategies used to manage interest rate risk
or foreign currency rate risk in the near future.

Euro Conversion

On January 1, 1999, certain members of the European Union
established fixed conversion rates between their existing curren-
cies and the European Union’s currency (Euro). The transition
period is anticipated to extend between January 1, 1999, and
July 1, 2002, We have assessed the impact of the conversion on
information-technology systems, currency exchange rate risk,
derivatives and other financial instruments, continuity of material
contracts as well as income tax and accounting issues. We do not
expect the conversion to date or the conversion during the transi-
tion period to have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.

Financial Condition

At Decemnber 31, 1998 1997
Dollars in Millions

Total assets $59,550 $61,095
Total liabilities 34,028 37,417
Total shareowners’ equity 25,522 23,678
Debt ratio 209% 33.5%

At December 31, 1998, total assets decreased $1,545 million, or
2.5%, to $59,550 million primarily due to our efforts to divest non-
strategic assets partially offset by our efforts to grow the business.
Declines in other and long-term receivables and net assets of dis-
continued operations, were partially offset by increases in cash
and property, plant and equipment. The decrease in other and
long-term receivables and net assets of discontinued operations is
due primarily to the sale of UCS in 1998. In connection with this
sale, the receivables outstanding were paid. This sale, along with
the sales of LIN-TV and ASCC, are the primary reasons for the
increase in cash. Proceeds from the sales were partially used to
repurchase common stock, pay down commercial paper and for
the early extinguishment of $1,046 million in debt in August 1998.
The increase in property, plant and equipment primarily reflects
the investment in the expansion of our long distance, local and
wireless networks partially offset by the current year's increase in
accumulated depreciation and the local asset impairment charge.
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Total liabilities decreased $3,389 million, or 9.1%, to $34,028 mil-
lion at December 31, 1998, primarily due to declines in debt par-
tially offset by increases in other current liabilities and increases in
total payroll and benefit-related liabilities. The decreases in both
short-term and long-term debt refiect the pay down of debt with
the current year's sales proceeds, as mentioned above. Other
current liabilities increased primarily as a result of the accrued
income taxes recorded associated with the sale of UCS. The
increase in total payroll and benefit-related liabilities (short-term
and long-term) is primarily due to the net charges associated with
the voluntary retirement incentive program for management
employees. The charge for pension special-termination benefits
and other costs resulted in the establishment of a liability for the
Management Pension Plan. This increase was partly offset by the
reversal of the remaining 1995 business restructuring charge.

Total shareowners’ equity increased $1,844 million, or 7.8%, in

1998, to $25,522 million primarily due to the current year's net

income partially offset by the shares repurchased and dividends
declared.

AT&T Capitalization

Dollars in Millions

$30.000 B0%

520,000 40%

$10,000 20%

0 19986 1897 is98 0

Debt Ratio
mmsms  Debt smmemn  Equity Debt Ratio ——  Net of Cash
1996 $11,351 $21,092 35.0% 34.6%
1997 $11,942 $23,678 33.5% 32.9%
1998 56,727 525,522 20.9% 12.3%

The ratio of total debt to total capital at December 31, 1998, was
20.9% compared with 33.5% at December 31, 1997. The
decrease was primarily due to lower debt. The debt ratio net of
cash as of December 31, 1998, was 12.3%. Management expects
the debt ratio to increase in 1999.

Recent Pronouncement

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No.
133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activi-
ties.” Among other provisions, it requires that entities recognize all
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derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of finan-
cial position and measure those instruments at fair value. Gains
and losses resulting from changes in the fair values of those deriv-
atives would be accounted for depending on the use of the deriva-
tive and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. This standard is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 1999, though
earlier adoption is encouraged and retroactive application is pro-
hibited. For AT&T this means that the standard must be adopted
no later than January 1, 2000. Management, based on its current
operations and hedging strategies, does not expect the adoption of
this standard to have a material impact on AT&T's results of opera-
tions, financial position or cash flows.

Year 2000

AT&T is preparing its systems and applications for the year 2000
(Y2K) through our Y2K program. The issue our Y2K program
addresses is the use of a two-digit year field instead of a four-digit
year field in computer systems. If computer systems cannot distin-
guish between the year 1900 and the year 2000, system failures
or other computer errors could result. The potential for failures
and errors spans all aspects of our business, including computer
systems, voice and data networks, and building infrastructures.
We are also faced with addressing our interdependencies with our
suppliers, connecting carriers and major customers, all of whom
face the same issue.

AT&T's Y2K program is companywide and is focused on four
interrelated categories which are critical to maintaining uninter-
rupted service to our customers: AT&T-developed applications and
their external interfaces, AT&T networks, information-technology
(IT) platforms that support the applications, and non-IT infrastruc-
fure.

AT&T’s progress in our Y2K program is measured by certain key
milestones or phases common to each category of systems. These
milestones are: assessment, repair/remediation, testing and certi-
fication. The end-state of the process is a declaration of Y2K com-
pliance, which means that neither performance nor functionality is
affected by dates prior to, during and after the year 2000. AT&T
monitors and tracks the progress of our Y2K program through a
series of scorecards that capture the activities related to the Y2K
process phases.

AT&T has completed 100% of the assessment and repair and
99% of the testing of customer-affecting systems that are a subset
of AT&T's inventory as of December 31, 1998, with the remaining
1% of the testing scheduled for completion in the first quarter of
1999. All systems encompassed in our Y2K program have various
projected dates for Y2K certification, which are outlined in further
detail below by major category.

The Y2K plans for AT&T local services (including TCG) have been
integrated into the overall AT&T plan, and the 1999 targets now
include all of AT&T local services. AT&T continues to evaluate
TCl's Y2K program, along with the programs of other pending



acquisitions, to understand the potential impact on the existing
AT&T program. All targets cited herein exclude information regard-
ing TCl and other pending acquisitions, whose programs are still
being evaluated and planned for integration into the overall AT&T
Y2K program.

Program Status AT&T has approximately 3,000 internally devel-
oped software applications that (1) directly support AT&T's voice
and data telecommunications services (including wired and wire-
less); (2) are critical to the provisioning, administration, mainte-
nance and customer service/support related to our telecommuni-
cations services; and (3) support our sales and marketing
organizations, other AT&T services and internal administrative
functions. These applications represent 360 million lines of code.
As of December 31, 1998, AT&T has completed 100% of the
assessment, approximately 98% of the repair, and about 95% of
the application testing. All phases leading to 100% system-
compliance are targeted to be complete in the second quarter of
1999,

With respect to external (third-party) interface assessment, formal
letters have been sent to about 2,000 domestic telecommunica-
tions companies and international telecommunications authorities
to request information on their Y2K plans and targets for compli-
ance. We have identified about 1,000 different types of third-party
interfaces and about 10,000 total instances of those types, and
are in the process of assessing the Y2K impacts. As of December
31, 1998, AT&T has assessed approximately 83% of third-party
interface types and approximately 82% are Y2K compliant. We
expect to complete 100% of the assessment phase in the first
quarter of 1999 and to be 100% complete with Y2K certification of
external interfaces in the second guarter of 1999,

The AT&T network is critical to providing top-quality, reliable ser-
vice to AT&T customers. At December 31, 1998, the assessment
and repair of the operation-support systems (0S) were 100%
complete, and the certification phase was 99% complete. These
syslems are targeted to be 100% compliant by the second quarter
of 1999. In addition to the AT&T-developed applications support-
ing the network, AT&T has inventoried more than 800 externally
purchased network elements (NE) including switches, routers,
network-control points and signal-transfer points. Additional Y2K
testing is conducted to independently verify supplier claims of
compliance. Approximately 99% of the NEs are certified and the
remaining certification is expected to be completed in the first
quarter of 1999. After OS/NE certification is complete, AT&T per-
forms integration testing to verify Y2K certification of NEs in con-
junction with the associated OS applications. Such integration
testing is approximately 76% completed as of December 31,
1998, with 100% deployment targeted for completion by the sec-
ond quarter of 1999.

The IT infrastructure category addresses not only the computing
platforms that are critical to the AT&T-developed applications, but
also the common modules, communications protocols, the inter-
nal AT&T wide-area and local-area networks, desktop hardware/
software and the internal voice network. The largest part of this

effort has been focused on the inventory and assessment of the
products and components. As of December 31, 1998, AT&T was
approximately 70% compliant in computing platforms, about 42%
compliant in desktops, approximately 80% compliant in voice sys-
tems and adjuncts, and about 84% compliant in data networks.
AT&T expects substantial completion of IT infrastructure certifica-
tion by the first guarter of 1999, with 100% certification comple-
tion during the second quarter of 1999.

The non-IT infrastructure focuses on the energy- and environment-
management systems that are critical to various computer sys-
tems, as well as safety, security and operations. This aspect of the
Y2K program encompasses more than 8,000 sites, as well as
about 6,500 wireless cell sites. As of December 31, 1998, approxi-
mately 90% of all sites completed inventory and about 60% are
assessed and compliant (or not impacted). AT&T expects to com-
plete 100% of the inventory and assessment phases in the first
quarter of 1999, and has targeted 100% site compliance by the
third quarter of 1999,

Costs We have expended approximately $450 million since
inception in 1997 on all phases of the Y2K project. Total costs for
1998 were approximately $320 million, which included approxi-
mately $65 million of capital spending for upgrading and replacing
noncompliant computer systems. More than half of these costs
represent internal IT resources that have been redeployed from
other projects and are expected to return to these projects upon
completion of the Y2K project. We anticipate Y2K costs to be
approximately $190 million for the full year 1999, which includes
approximately $12 million of capitalized fixed assets.

Risk Assessment We have assessed our business exposure that
would result from a failure of our Y2K program, as well as those of
our suppliers, connecting carriers and major customers. Such fail-
ures would result in business consequences that could include
failure to be able to serve customers, loss of network functionality,
inability to render accurate bills, lost revenues, harm to the AT&T
brand, legal and regulatory exposure, and failure of management
controls. Although we believe that internal Y2K compliance will be
achieved no later than December 31, 1999, there can be no
assurance that the Y2K problem will not have a material adverse
affect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Contingency Plans AT&T is in the process of establishing Y2K
contingency plans to further mitigate Y2K risks. Specific examples
of AT&T's contingency plan initiatives include the following;

Plans are under way to position AT&T personnel on site at critical
locations to monitor operations and manage increases in work and
call volumes.

Agreements are being negotiated with contractors and vendors to
ensure the availability of on-site technical support. This coverage
includes, but is not limited to, network centers and sites, customer-
care centers and data centers.
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We are planning to proactively stage power, fuel, water, heating,
air-conditioning and ventilation sources to support critical busi-
ness operations and personnel requirements.

Alternate procedures and processes are being developed to sup-
port critical customer functions, including alternative procedures
for rapid repair, recovery and restoration of critical technology
components by business resumption teams.

Procedures to perform database backups, hardcopy printouts,
data retention and recovery are being established for business
critical data.

Other Matters

AT&T and British Telecommunications plc (BT) announced on
July 26, 1998, that they will create a global venture to serve the
complete communications needs of multinational companies and
the international calling needs of businesses around the world.
The venture, which will be owned equally by AT&T and BT, will
combine transborder assets and operations of each company,
including their existing international networks, all of their interna-
tional traffic, all of their transborder products for business cus-
tomers — including an expanding set of Concert services
(enhanced international voice, data and IP services) —and AT&T's
and BT's multinational accounts in selected industry sectors. The
farmation of the venture is subject to certain conditions, including
receipt of regulatory approvals, but is expected to be completed by
mid-1999.

Subsequent Events

AT&T announced on January 8, 1999, that it had reached agree-
ments with five TCI affiliates to form separate joint ventures to offer
customers advanced communications services. AT&T, which
expects to own 51% to 65% of each of these joint ventures, will
have long-term exclusive rights to offer communications services
over the systems of each of the five operators in return for one-
time payments to be made when the systems meet certain perfor-
mance milestones. AT&T expects to finalize joint ventures with
Bresnan Communications, Falcon Cable TV, Insight Communica-
tions, InterMedia Partners and Peak Cablevision in early 1999,
begin piloting the new services later in the year and then begin
commercial operations in the year 2000.

On February 1, 1999, AT&T announced the formation of a joint
venture with Time Warner to offer AT&T-branded cable-telephony
service to residential and small business customers over Time
Warner’s existing cable-television systems in 33 states. The ser-
vice is expected to be piloted in one or two cities in 1999 and
begin broader commercial operations in 2000. In addition, the
companies agreed to develop other broadband communications
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services such as video telephony. Under the terms of the agree-
ment, AT&T will own 77.5% of the joint venture and will fund the
joint venture's negative cash flow; however, it is anticipated that
the joint venture will have positive cash flow and net earnings after
three full years of operation. In return for 20-year exclusive rights
to offer telephony over Time Warner's cable system, the joint ven-
ture will make payments to Time Warner which are estimated to be
$300 million. In addition, the joint venture will pay a monthly fee
per subscriber. Subject to certain conditions, including definitive
documentation and various approvals, the companies expect to
close the joint venture in the second half of 1999,

On March 9, 1999, the merger with TCl announced on June 24,
1998, closed with each share of TCI Group Series A common
stock converted into 0.7757 of AT&T common stock and each
share of TCI Group Series B stock converted into 0.8533 of AT&T
common stock. AT&T issued approximately 439 million shares for
TCl shares, of which 339 million were newly issued shares and
100 million were treasury shares including the shares repur-
chased in February and March 1999. In addition, TCl combined
Liberty Media Group, its programming arm, and TCI Ventures
Group, its technology-investments unit, to form the new Liberty
Media Group (Liberty Media). In connection with the closing, the
shareowners of the new Liberty Media Group were issued separate
tracking stock by AT&T in exchange for the shares held. Although
Liberty Media is a 100%-owned subsidiary of AT&T, it will be
accounted for as an equity investment since AT&T does not have a
controlling financial interest in Liberty Media. In addition, as a
tracking stock, all of its earnings or losses are excluded from the
earnings available to the AT&T common shareowner.

The closing of the TCI merger is the start of the transformation of
AT&T to an "any-distance” company. We believe this acquisition,
along with the joint ventures reached with five TCI affiliates and
Time Warner, will make us a leader of a new generation of
advanced communications, information and video services. These
moves will enable us to reach more than 40% of U.S. households
over the next four to five years.

Legislative and Regulatory Developments

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 was designed to foster local-
exchange competition by establishing a regulatory framework to
govern new competitive entry in local and long distance telecom-
munications services. The Telecommunications Act also permits
Regional Bell Operating Companies (RBOCs) to provide interex-
change services originating in any state in their regions after
demonstrating to the FCC that such provision is in the public inter-
est and satisfying the conditions for developing local competition
established by the Telecommunications Act.



A number of court decisions in 1997 severely restricted imple-
mentation of the Telecommunications Act and delayed local-
service competition. Recent rulings, however, have upheld the
provisions of the Telecommunications Act. Despite these favorable
rulings, there can be no assurance that the prices and other con-
ditions established in each state will provide for effective local-
service entry and competition or provide AT&T with new market
opportunities.

In July 1997, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit
vacated the pricing rules that the FCC had adopted to implement
the sections of the local-competition provisions of the Telecommu-
nications Act applicable to interconnection with local-exchange
carrier (LEC) networks and the purchase of unbundled network
elements and wholesale services from LECs. In October 1997, the
Eighth Circuit vacated an FCC Rule that had prohibited incumbent
LECs from separating network elements that are combined in the
LECs' networks, except at the request of the competitor purchas-
ing the elements. These decisions increased the difficulty and
costs of providing competitive local service through the use of
unbundled network elements purchased from the incumbent
LECs.

On January 25, 1999, the U.S. Supreme Court issued a decision
reversing the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals’ holding that the FCC
lacks jurisdiction to establish pricing rules applicable to intercon-
nection and the purchase of unbundled network elements, and
the Court of Appeals’ decision to vacate the FCC's rule prohibiting
incumbent LECs from separating network elements that are com-
bined in the LECs' netwarks. The effect of the Supreme Court's
decision is to reinstate the FCC's rules governing pricing and the
separation of unbundled network elements. The Eighth Circuit
Court of Appeals will now consider the incumbent LECs' claims
that although the FCC has jurisdiction to adopt pricing rules, the
rules it adopted are not consistent with the applicable provisions of
the Telecommunications Act. The Supreme Court also vacated the
FCC's rule identifying and defining the unbundled network ele-
ments that incumbent LECs are required to make available to new
entrants, and directed the FCC to reexamine this issue in light of
the standards mandated by the Telecommunications Act.

On December 31, 1997, the U.S. District Court for the Northern
District of Texas issued a memorandum opinion and order holding
that the Telecommunications Act’s restrictions on the provision of
in-region, inter-LATA service by the RBOCs are unconstitutional.
AT&T and other carriers (collectively, “intervenors”) filed an appeal
with the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit. On February
11, 1998, the District Court suspended the effectiveness of its
December 31 memorandum opinion and order pending appeal.

Opportunity to provide broad-
to 40% of homes in the U.S.

On September 4, 1998, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth Cir-
cuit rejected arguments that the Telecommunications Act is
unconstitutional, and reversed the District Court's contrary opin-
ion. On December 22, 1998, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Dis-
trict of Columbia Circuit rejected a similar challenge to the consti-
tutionality of the Telecommunications Act. On January 19, 1999,
the U.S. Supreme Court denied petitions filed by the RBOCs to
review the decision of the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals.

Competition

AT&T currently faces significant competition and expects that the
level of competition will continue to increase. The Telecommunica-
tions Act permits RBOCs to provide inter-LATA interexchange ser-
vices after demonstrating to the FCC that such provision is in the
public interest and satisfying the conditions for developing local
competition established by the Telecommunications Act. The
RBOCs have petitioned the FCC for permission to provide inter-
LATA interexchange services in one or more states within their
home markets; to date the FCC has not granted any such petition.
To the extent that the RBOCs obtain in-region, inter-LATA authority
before the Telecommunications Act's checklist of conditions have
been fully or satisfactorily implemented and adequate facilities-
based local-exchange competition exists, there is a substantial risk
that AT&T and other interexchange service providers would be at a
disadvantage to the RBOCs in providing both local service and
combined-service packages. Because it is widely anticipated that
a substantial number of long distance customers will seek to pur-
chase local, interexchange and other services from a single carrier
as part of a combined or full-service package, any competitive dis-
advantage, inability to profitably provide local service at competi-
tive rates, or delays or limitations in providing local service or com-
bined service packages is likely to adversely affect AT&T's future
revenues and earnings. In addition, the simultaneous entrance of
numerous new competitors for interexchange and combined ser-
vice packages is likely to adversely affect AT&T's long distance
revenues and could adversely affect earnings.
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iy of Selected Financial Data (Unaudited)

Callars in millions (except per share amounts) 1998* 1997 1996 1995** 1594
Results of Operations
Revenues $ 63,223 $ B1,577 $ 50,688 $ 48449 $ 46,063
Operating income 7487 6,836 8,709 5,169 7,393
Income from continuing operations 5,235 4,249 5458 2,981 4,230
Earnings Per Common Share
Income from continuing operations:

Basic $ 288 $ 239 $ 310 $ 172 $ 248

Diluted 291 2.38 3.09 2 fist 2.47
Dividends declared per common share 1.32 132 1.32 182 L22
Assets and Capital
Property, plant and equipment-net $ 26,903 $ 24,203 $ 20,803 $ 16,453 $ 14,721
Total assets-continuing operations 59,550 59,994 55838 54,365 47,926
Total assets 59,550 61,095 57,348 62,864 57,817
Long-term debt 5556 7.857 8,878 8,913 9,138
Total debt 6,727 11,942 11,351 21,081 18,720
Shareowners' equity 25,522 23,678 21,092 17,400 18,100
Gross capital expenditures 7,981 7,714 7,084 4,659 3,504
Employees-continuing operations 107,800 130,800 128,700 126,100 116,400
Other Information
Operating income as a percentage of revenues 14.1% 13.3% 17.2% 10.7% 16.1%
Income from continuing operations

as a percentage of revenues 9.8% 8.2% 10.8% 6.2% 9.2%
Return on average common equity 25.3% 19.7% 27.1% 0.4% 29.5%
ERIT*** $ 8734 $ 7,279 $ 9,114 $ 5439 $ 7450
EBITDA®** 13,415 11,327 11,995 8112 9,914
Data at year-end:
Stock price per share™ ™ ** 7575 61.31 41.31 44.40 34.46
Book value per common share 14.55 13.24 11.89 9.97 10.53
Debt ratio 20.9% 33.5% 35.0% 54.8% 50.8%

* 1998 income from continuing operations includes $1.0 billion of nonoperational items, including restructuring and other charges as well
as benefits from gains on sales and the adoption of a new accounting standard.

** 1095 income from continuing operations includes $2.0 billion of restructuring and other charges.

=% EBIT {earnings, including other income, before interest and taxes) and EBITDA (EBIT pius depreciation and amortization), include $1.5
billion and $3.0 billion of nonoperational net charges for 1998 and 1995, respectively. Excluding the nonaperational charges, EBIT and
EBITDA for 1998 were $10,279 million and $14,938 million, respectively. 1995 EBIT and EBITDA, excluding the nonoperational

charges, were $8,462 million and $11,135 million, respectively.

****Stock prices for 1994-1996 have been restated to reflect the spin-offs of Lucent and NCR.
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Report of Management

Management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and
objectivity of the consolidated financial statements and all other
financial information included in this report. Management is also
responsible for maintaining a system of internal controls as a fun
damental requirement for the operational and financial integrity of
results. The financial statements, which reflect the consolidated
accounts of AT&T Corp. and subsidiaries (AT&T) and other finan-
cial information shown, were prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. Estimates included in the finan-
cial statements were based on judgments of qualified personnel.
To maintain its system of internal controls, management carefully
selects key personnel and establishes the organizational structure
to provide an appropriate division of responsibility. We believe it is
essential to conduct business affairs in accordance with the high-
est ethical standards as set forth in the AT&T Code of Conduct.
These guidelines and other informational programs are designed
and used to ensure that policies, standards and managerial
authorities are understood throughout the organization. Our inter-
nal auditors monitor compliance with the system of internal con-
trols by means of an annual plan of internal audits. On an ongoing
basis, the system of internal controls is reviewed, evaluated and
revised as necessary in light of the results of constant manage-
ment oversight, internal and independent audits, changes in
AT&T's business and other conditions. Management believes that
the system of internal controls, taken as a whole, provides reason-
able assurance that (1) financial records are adequate and can be
relied upon to permit the preparation of financial statements in

Report of Independent Accountants
To the Board of Directors and Shareowners of AT&T Corp.:

Inour opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
shareowners’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of AT&T Corp. and its subsidiaries
(AT&T) at December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 1998, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are
the responsibility of AT&T's management; our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accor-
dance with generally accepted auditing standards, which require

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and (2)
access to assets occurs only in accordance with management's
authorizations.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which is com-
posed of directors who are not employees, meets periodically with
management, the internal auditors and the independent accoun-
tants to review the manner in which these groups of individuals are
performing their responsibilities and to carry out the Audit Com-
mittee's oversight role with respect to auditing, internal controls
and financial reporting matters. Periodically, both the internal
auditors and the independent accountants meet privately with the
Audit Committee and have access to its individual members at
any time.

The consolidated financial statements in this annual report have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent
Accountants. Their audits were conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and include an assessment
of the internal contral structure and selective tests of transactions.
Their report follows.

-"L%rwu-f

Daniel E. Somers
Senior Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer

b et

C. Michael Armstrong
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the
opinion expressed above,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York, New York
January 25, 1999
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AT&T Caorp. and Subsidiaries

For the Years Ended December 31,

Dollars in milions (except per share amounts) 1998 1997 1996
Revenues $ 53,223 % 51577 $ 50,688
Operating Expenses

Access and other interconnection 15,328 16,350 16,363
MNetwork and other communications services 10,250 9,739 8,262
Depreciation and amortization 4,629 3,982 2,819
Selling, general and administrative 13,015 14,670 14,535
Restructuring and other charges 2,514 — —
Total operating expenses 45,736 44,741 41,979
Operating income 7,487 6,836 8,709
Other income-net 1,247 443 405
Interest expense 427 307 417
Income from continuing operaticns before income taxes 8,307 6,972 8,697
Provision for income taxes 3,072 2,723 3,239
Income from continuing operations 5239 4,249 5458

Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations (net of taxes of $6, $50

and $(353)) 10 100 173
Gain on sale of discontinued operations (net of taxes of $799,

$43 and $138) 1,290 66 162
Income before extraordinary loss 6,535 4,415 5,793
Extraordinary loss (net of taxes of $80) 137 — -
Net income $ 6398 $ 4415 $ 5,793
Weighted-average common shares and potential common shares (millions)* 1,800 1,789 1,767

Per Common Share - Basic:

Income from continuing operations & 253 $ 2.39 3 3.10
Income from discontinued operations 0.01 0.05 0.10
Gain on sale of discontinued operations 0.73 0.04 0.09
Extraordinary loss 0.08 - —
Net income % 3.59 $ 2.48 $ 3.29

Per Common Share — Diluted:

Income from continuing operations $ 281 $ 2.38 $ 3.09
Income from discontinued operations — 0.05 0.10
Gain on sale of discontinued operations 0.72 0.04 0.09
Extraordinary loss 0.08 - —
Net income $ R AIE $ 2.47 $ 3.28

* Amounts represent the weighted-average shares assuming dilution from the potential exercise of outstanding stock aptions. Basic shares,
assuming no dilution, are 1,784 million, 1,781 million and 1,760 million for 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

The riotes on pages 56 through 71 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

AT&T Corp. and Subsidiaries

At December 31,

Dioliars in Millions 1998 1997
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents % 3160 3 318
Marketable securities - 307
Receivables, less allowances of $1,060 and $988

Accounts receivable 8,652 8,675

Other receivables 403 5,684
Deferred income taxes 1,310 1,252
Other current assets 593 541
Total current assets 14,118 16,777
Property, plant and equipment-net 26,903 24,203
Licensing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $1,266 and $1,076 7,948 8,368
Investments 4,434 3,866
Long-term receivables 670 1,794
Prepaid pension costs 2,074 2,156
Other assets 3,403 2,830
MNet assets of discontinued operations — 1,101
Total assets $ 59,550 $ 61,095
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 6,226 $ 6402
Payroll and benefit-related liabilities 1,986 2,390
Debt maturing within one year 1,171 4,085
Dividends payable 581 538
Other current liabilities 5478 3,902
Total current liabilities 15,442 17,317
Long-term debt 5,556 7,857
Long-term benefit-related liabilities 4,255 3,142
Deferred income taxes 5,453 B.711
Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits 3,322 3,390
Total liabilities 34,028 37,417
Shareowners’ Equity
Common shares, par value $1 per share 1,754 1,789

Autharized shares: 6,000,000,000

Outstanding shares: 1,753,595,962 at December 31, 1998;

1,789,013,000 at December 31, 1997

Additional paid-in capital 15,195 17,121
Guaranteed ESOP obligation (44) (70)
Retained earnings 8,676 4,876
Accumulated other comprehensive income (59) (38)
Total shareowners’ equity 2B 23,678
Total liabilities and shareowners’ equity $ 59,550 $ 61,095

The notes on pages 56 through 71 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareowners’ Eqmty NN

ATA&T Corp. and Subsidiaries

For the Years Ended December 31,

Dollars in Millions 1998 1997 1996
Common Shares
Balance at beginning of year $ 1,789 $ 1,774 $ 1746
Shares issued (acquired), net:
Under employee plans 2, 2 20
Under shareowner plans s = 2
For acquisitions 15 6 .
Other (52) 7 —
Balance at end of year 1,754 1,789 1,774
Additional Paid-In Capital
Balance at beginning of year 17,121 16,624 16,656
Shares issued (acquired), net:
Under employee plans 67 (8) 975
Under shareowner plans Y g 434
For acquisitions 806 117 23
Other {2,799) 379 286
Spin-offs of Lucent and NCR - — (2,326)
Debt conversion — 264
Rearganization — - 312
Balance at end of year 15,195 17,121 16,624
Guaranteed ESOP Obligation
Balance at beginning of year (70) (96) (254)
Amortization 26 26 52
Assumption by Lucent — - 106
Balance at end of year (44) (70) (96)
Retained Earnings (Deficit)
Balance at beginning of year 4,876 2,790 (773)
Net income 6,398 $ 6,398 4415 $ 4,415 5793 $ 5793
Dividends declared (2,230} (2,145) (2,132)
Treasury shares issued at less than cost (370) (187) -
Reorganization — — (101)
Other changes 2 3 3
Balance at end of year 8,676 4,876 2,790
Accumulated Comprehensive Income
Balance at heginning of year (38) — 25
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes of $(53),5(24),$42) (21) (21) (38) (38) (25) (25)
Tatal comprehensive income $ 6377 $ 4,377 $ 5,768
Balance at end of year (59) (38) —
Total shareowners’ equity $25,522 $23,678 $21,092

AT&T accounts for treasury stock as retired stock and as of December 31, 1998, held 53.5 million shares.

In March 1990 we issued 13.4 million new shares of commeon stock in connection with the establishment of an Employee Stock Ownership
Plan (ESOP) feature for the nonmanagement savings plan. The shares are being allocated to plan participants over 10 years commencing in
July 1990 as contributions are made to the plan.

We have 100 million authorized shares of preferred stack at $1 par value. No preferred stock is currently issued or outstanding.

I'he notes on pages 56 through 71 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

AT&T Corp. and Subsidiaries

For the Years Ended December 31,

Dellars in Millions 1998 1997 1996
Operating Activities
Netincome $ 6398 $ 4415 5793
Deduct: Income from discontinued operations 10 100 173
Gain on sale of discontinued operations 1,290 66 162
Add:  Extraordinary loss on retirement of debt SR, —
Income from continuing operations 5,235 4,249 5,458
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities of continuing operations:
Gains on sales {770) (134) (158)
Restructuring and other charges 2,362 o —
Depreciation and amortization 4,629 3,982 2,819
Provision for uncollectibles 1,389 1,522 1,618
Increase in accounts receivable (1,577) (1,034) (1,731}
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (467) 125 679
Net change in other operating assets and liabilities 5 (832) (1,064)
Other adjustments for noncash iterns-net (589) 623 566
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 10,217 8,501 8,087
Investing Activities
Capital expenditures (7.817) (7,604) (6,828)
Proceeds from sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment 104 169 145
Decrease (increase) in other receivables 6,403 (465) 3,499
Acquisitions of licenses (97) (435) (267)
Sales of marketable securities 2,003 479 665
Purchases of marketable securities (1,696) (345) {1,106)
Equity investment distributions and sales 1,516 583 186
Equity investment contributions (1,281) (484) (504)
Net dispositions of businesses, net of cash acquired 4,507 1,507 2,145
Other investing activities-net (60) (160) (23)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities of continuing operations 3,582 (6,755) (2,088)
Financing Activities
Proceeds from long-term debt issuances 17 - 1,060
Retirements of long-term debt (2,610) (737) (1,497)
Issuance of commeon shares related to benefit plans-net (325) 137 1,580
Treasury shares acquired other than for benefit plans (2,964) — —
Dividends paid (2,187} (2,142) (2,122)
{Decrease) increase in short-term borrowings-net (3,033) 1,114 (5,301)
Other financing activities-net 53 54 1,985
Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations (11,049) (1,540) {4,29;
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations 92 (84) (1,595}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,842 122 109
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 318 196 87
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 3,160 $ 318 196

The notes on pages 56 through 71 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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AT&T Corp, and Subsidiaries (AT&T)

lars in millions unless otherwise noted, except per share amounts)

S@immary of Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include all majority-owned
subsidiaries. Investments in which we exercise significant influ-
ence but which we do not control (a 20% — 50% ownership inter-
est) are accounted for under the equity method of accounting.
This represents the majority of our investments. Investments in
which we have less than a 20% ownership interest and in which
there is no significant influence are accounted for under the cost
method of accounting.

Currency Translation

For operations outside of the United States that prepare financial
statements in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, we translate
income statement amounts at average exchange rates for the year
and we translate assets and liabilities at year-end exchange rates.
We present these translation adjustments as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income within shareowners'
equity.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize wireline and wireless services revenues based upon
minutes of traffic processed and contracted fees. We recognize
products and other services revenues when the products are
delivered and accepted by customers and when services are
provided in accordance with contract terms.

Advertising and Promotional Costs

We expense costs of advertising and promotions, including checks
used to acquire customers, as incurred. Advertising and promation-
al expenses were $1,920, $1,995 and $2,533 in 1998, 1997 and
1996, respectively.

Investment Tax Credits

We amortize investment tax credits as a reduction to the provision
for income taxes over the useful lives of the property that produced
the credits.

Earnings Per Share

We calculate earnings per share in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 128, “Earnings Per
Share." We use the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during each period to compute basic earnings per
common share. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the
weighted-average number of common shares and dilutive poten-
tial commaon shares outstanding. Dilutive potential common
shares are additional common shares assumed to be exercised.

Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liguid investments with original maturities of
generally three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist principally of commercial paper, fed-
eral agency notes, federal agency discount notes, corporate medi-
um-term notes, corporate notes, bank notes and certificates of
deposit with original maturity dates greater than three months. The
carrying value of these securities approximates market value. Mar-
ket value is determined by the mast recently traded price of the
security at the balance sheet date. All marketable securities are
classified as available-for-sale securities under the provisions of
SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities.” Unrealized holding gains and losses are deter-
mined on the specific identification method and are presented as
a component of accumulated other comprehensive income within
shareowners’ equity.

Property, Plant and Equipment

We state property, plant and equipment at cost and determine
depreciation based upon the assets’ estimated useful lives using
either the group or unit method. The useful lives of communica-
tions and network equipment range from three to 15 years. The
useful lives of other equipment ranges from three to seven years.
The useful lives of buildings and improvements range from 10 to
40 years. The group method is used for most depreciable assets,
including the majority of the telecommunications and network
equipment. When we sell or retire assets depreciated using the
group method, the cost is deducted from property, plant and
equipment and charged to accumulated depreciation, without
recognition of a gain or loss. The unit method is used primarily for
large computer systems and support assets. When we sell assets
that were depreciated using the unit method, we include the relat-
ed gains or losses in other income-net.

We use accelerated depreciation methods primarily for digital
equipment used in the telecommunications network, except for
switching equipment placed in service before 1989, packet-
switched technology and certain high-technology computer pro-
cessing equipment. All other plant and equipment, including capi-
talized software, is depreciated on a straight-line basis.

Licensing Costs

Licensing costs are costs incurred to develop or acquire cellular,
personal communications services (PCS) and messaging licenses.
Generally, amortization begins with the commencement of service
to customers and is computed using the straight-line method over
a period of 40 years.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
net assets acquired in business combinations accounted for as
purchases. We amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis over the
periods benefited, ranging from five to 40 years.

Software Capitalization

In 1998, AT&T adopted Statement of Position (SOP) 98-1,
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use." This standard requires certain direct
development costs associated with internal-use software to be



capitalized including external direct costs of material and services
and payroll costs for employees devoting time to the software pro-
jects. These costs are included in other assets and are amortized
over a period not to exceed three years beginning when the asset
is substantially ready for use. Costs incurred during the prelimi-
nary project stage, as well as maintenance and training costs, are
expensed as incurred. AT&T also capitalizes initial operating sys-
tem software costs and amortizes them over the life of the associ-
ated hardware.

AT&T capitalizes costs associated with software development in
accordance with SFAS No. 86 "Accounting for Costs of Capitalized
Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed” and related
guidance. In accordance with this standard, AT&T capitalizes
costs associated with the development of application software
incurred from the time technological feasibility is established until
the software is ready to provide service to customers. These capi-
talized costs are included in property, plant and equipment and
are amortized over a three-year useful life.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets such as property, plant and equipment, licenses,
goodwill and software are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. If the total of the expected future
undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the
asset, a loss is recognized for the difference between the fair value
and carrying value of the asset.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We use various financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for purposes other than trading. We do not use deriv-
ative financial instruments for speculative purposes. Derivatives,
used as part of our risk management strategy, must be designated
at inception as a hedge and measured for effectiveness both at
inception and on an ongoing basis. Gains and losses related to
qualifying hedges of foreign currency firm commitments are
deferred in current assets or liabilities and recognized as part of
the underlying transactions as they occur. All other foreign
exchange contracts are marked to market on a current basis and
the respective gains or losses are recognized in other income-net,
Interest rate differentials associated with interest rate swaps used
to hedge AT&T's debt obligations are recorded as an adjustment to
interest payable or receivable with the offset to interest expense
over the life of the swaps. If we terminate an interest rate swap
agreement, the gain or loss is recorded as an adjustment to the
basis of the underlying asset or liability and amortized over the
remaining life. Cash flows from financial instruments are classified
in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows under the same cat-
egories as the cash flows from the related assets, liabilities or
anticipated transactions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with general-
ly accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabil-

ities at the date of the financial statements, and revenues and
expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Estimates are used when accounting for
certain items such as long-term contracts, allowance for doubtful
accounts, depreciation and amortization, employee benefit plans,
taxes, restructuring reserves and contingencies.

Concentrations

As of December 31, 1998, we do not have any significant concen-
tration of business transacted with a particular customer, supplier
or lender that could, if suddenly eliminated, severely impact our
operations. We also do not have a concentration of available
sources of labor, services, or licenses or other rights that could, if
suddenly eliminated, severely impact our operations.

Reclassifications
We reclassified certain amounts for previous years to conform with
the 1998 presentation.

Supplementary Financial Information

Supplementary Income Statement Information

For the Years Ended December 31, 1938 1997 1996

Included in Depreciation
and Amortization

Amortization of licensingcosts  $ 192 $ 163 $ 170
Amortization of goodwill 76 62 £

Included in Selling, General
and Administrative

Research and development
expenses $ 662 $ 851 $ 822

Other Income — Net

Interest income

$ 322 $ 59 $ 49
Minority interests in earnings

of subsidiaries 34 (12) (12)
Net equity (losses) earnings

from investments (68) 31 48
Officers’ life insurance 63 68 74
Gains on sales™® 770 97 -
Sale/exchange of other

cellular investments 131 75 158
Miscellaneous - net (5) 125 88

Total ather income - net $ 1,247 $ 443 $ 405

Deducted from Interest

of ATET Skynet Salelite Se

Expense
Capitalized interest $ 197 $ 254 $ 193
*Includes gains on the sales of ATAT Solutions Customer Care of $350, LIN Television Corp,
of $317 and SmarTone T mmunicaticns Holdings Limited of $103 in 1998 and the sale

es of $97 in 1997,



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AT&T Corp. and Subsidiaries

Supplementary Cash Flow Information

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Interest payments net of

amounts capitalized $ 422 $ 250 $ 372
Income tax payments 2,881 2416 2,136
Supplementary Balance Sheet Information
At December 31, 1998 1997
Property, Plant and Equipment
Communications, network and

other equipment $44,806 $39,240
Buildings and improvements 7,098 6,810
Land and improvements 373 386
Total property, plant and equipment BT 46,436
Accumulated depreciation (25,374} (22,233}
Property, plant and equipment-net $26,903 $24,203
Other Assets
Unamortized goodwill & 2,205 $ 1,618
Deferred charges 484 733
Other 714 582
Total other assets $ 3,403 $ 2,830

scoitinued Operations

On Septermnber 20, 1995, AT&T announced a plan, subject to cer-
tain conditions, to separate into three independent, publicly held,
global companies: communications services (AT&T), communica-
tions systems and technologies (Lucent Technologies Inc.,
“Lucent”) and transaction-intensive computing (NCR Corp.,
“NCR™). In April 1996, Lucent sold 112 million shares of common
stock in an initial public offering (IPQ), representing 17.6% of the
Lucent common stock outstanding. Because of AT&T’s plan to
spin off its remaining 82.4% interest in Lucent, the sale of the
Lucent stock was recorded as an equity transaction, resulting in
an increase in AT&T's additional paid-in capital at the time of the
IPO. In addition, in connection with the restructuring, Lucent
assumed $3.7 billion of AT&T debt in 1996. On September 30,
1996, AT&T distributed to AT&T shareowners of record — as of
September 17, 1996 — the remaining Lucent common stock held
by AT&T. The shares were distributed on the basis of 0.324084 of
a share of Lucent for each AT&T share outstanding.

On October 1, 1996, AT&T sold its remaining interest in AT&T
Capital Corp. for approximately $1.8 billion, resulting in an
after-tax gain of $162, or $0.09 per diluted share.

On December 31, 1996, AT&T also distributed all of the outstand-
ing comman stock of NCR to AT&T shareowners of record as of
December 13, 1996. The shares were distributed on the basis of
0.0625 of a share of NCR for each AT&T share outstanding on the
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record date. As a result of the Lucent and NCR distributions,
AT&T's shareowners' equity was reduced by $2.2 billion. The dis-
tributions of the Lucent and NCR common stock to AT&T share-
owners were noncash transactions totaling $4.8 billion, which did
not affect AT&T's results of operations.

On July 1, 1997, AT&T sold its submarine systems business (SS1)
to Tyco International Ltd. for $850, resulting in an after-tax gain of
$66, or $0.04 per diluted share.

On April 2, 1998, AT&T sold AT&T Universal Card Services Inc.
(UCS) for $3,500 to Citibank. The after-tax gain resulting from the
disposal of UCS was $1,290, or $0.72 per diluted share. Included
in the transaction was a co-branding and joint marketing agree-
ment. In addition, we received $5,722 as settlement of receivables
from UCS.

The consolidated financial statements of AT&T have been restated
to reflect the dispositions of Lucent, NCR, AT&T Capital Corp., SS,
UCS and certain other businesses as discontinued operations.
Accordingly, the revenues, costs and expenses, assets and liabili-
ties, and cash flows of these discontinued operations have been
excluded from the respective captions in the Consolidated State-
ments of Income, Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, and have been reported through the
dates of disposition as “Income from discontinued operations, net
of applicable income taxes;” as “Net assets of discontinued opera-
tions," and as "Net cash used in discontinued operations” for all
periods presented. Gains associated with these sales are reflected
as “Gain on sale of discontinued operations.”

In 1997, we adopted SFAS No. 125, “Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabili-
ties.” Among other provisions, this standard requires that in con-
nection with the transfer of financial assets, liabilities incurred
should be measured at fair value and retained interests should be
recorded as a portion of the original carrying amount of the trans-
ferred financial assets. This standard applies only to UCS and
resulted in a substantial benefit to income from discontinued oper-
ations in 1997,

Summarized financial information for discontinued operations is
as follows:

For the Years Ended Decermnber 21, 1998 1997 1996
Revenues R £ $ 1,942 $23,979
Income {loss) before

incame taxes 16 150 (180)
Net income 10 100 173
Current assets - 7,734
Total assets — 7,808
Current liabilities* — 5,602
Total liabilities™ - 6,707
Net assets of discontinued

operations % — 1,101

*Cyrrent liabilities include $5,224 of debt maturing within one year, and total liabilities include
an additional $1,093 of long-term debt at December 31, 1997, both of which were payable to
ATET and repaid by UCS in connection with the sale.



The income (loss) before income taxes includes allocated interest
expense of $45 in 1996. Interest expense was allocated to discon-
tinued operations based on a ratio of net assets of discontinued
operations to total AT&T consolidated assets. No interest expense
was allocated to discontinued operations in 1998 and 1997 due to
the immateriality of the amounts; however, UCS recorded direct
interest expense of $85, $297 and $383 in 1998, 1997 and 1996,
respectively, primarily related to the amounts payable to AT&T.

A=

M;%-rs, Acquisitions, Ventures and Dispositions

On December 8, 1998, AT&T and IBM announced a series of
strategic agreements under which AT&T will acquire IBM's Global
Network business for $5.0 billion in cash, and will enter into out-
sourcing contracts with each other. IBM will outsource a signifi-
cant portion of its global networking needs to AT&T. AT&T will out-
source certain applications-processing and data-center-
management operations to IBM. The transaction, which is subject
to regulatory and other approvals, is expected to be completed by
mid-1999.

On October 5, 1998, AT&T announced that it had signed a defini-
tive merger agreement to purchase Vanguard Cellular Systems
Inc. (Vanguard) in a stock and cash transaction valued at approxi-
mately $1,500, including approximately $600 in debt. Under the
terms of the agreement, each share of Vanguard stock would be
exchanged for either 0.3987 of an AT&T share or $23.00 in cash,
at each shareholder's option, subject to the limitation that the
overall consideration will consist of 50% AT&T stock and 50%
cash. The merger has been approved by the Board of Directors of
both AT&T and Vanguard and is subject to various closing condi-
tions including, among other things, the approval by Vanguard
shareholders. The transaction is expected to close in the first half
of 1999.

AT&T and British Telecommunications plc (BT) announced on
July 26, 1998, that they will create a global venture to serve the
complete communications needs of multinational companies and
the international calling needs of businesses around the world.
The venture, which will be owned equally by AT&T and BT, will
combine transborder assets and operations of each company,
including their existing international networks, all of their interna-
tional traffic, all of their transborder products for business cus-
tomers — including an expanding set of Concert services — and
AT&T's and BT's multinational accounts in selected industry sec-
tors. The formation of the venture is subject to certain conditions,
including receipt of regulatory approvals. The transaction is
expected to be completed by mid-1999. As a result of the joint
venture agreement, AT&T will be required to exit certain opera-
tions which may be determined to compete directly with BT,

An $85 asset impairment charge was recorded in 1998 primarily
for the write-down of unrecoverable assets in certain operations
that compete directly with BT. AT&T continues to review the
impact of the joint venture agreement on all of its international
operations.

On July 23, 1998, AT&T completed the merger with Teleport Com-
munications Group Inc. (TCG), pursuant to an agreement and
plan of merger dated January 8, 1998. Each share of TCG com-
mon stock was exchanged for 0.943 of AT&T common stock,
resulting in the issuance of 181.6 million shares in the transaction.
The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests, and
accordingly, AT&T's results of operations, financial position and
cash flows have been restated to reflect the merger. In 1998, we
recognized $85 of merger-related expenses. Premerger TCG rev-
enues were $455, $494 and $268, and net losses were $118,
$223 and $115, for the six months ended June 30, 1998, and for
the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996, respectively.
Elimination entries between AT&T and TCG were not material. On
April 22, 1998, TCG purchased ACC Carp. (ACC), for an aggregate
value of approximately $1,100, including approximately $700 in
goodwill.

On March 3, 1998, AT&T sold its 45% common share interest in
LIN Television Corp., a subsidiary of LIN Broadcasting Company,
for $742 to Hicks, Muse, Tate and Furst Inc. We recognized a pre-
tax gain of $317. Also on March 3, 1998, AT&T sold AT&T Solu-
tions Customer Care to MATRIXX Marketing Inc., a teleservices
unit of Cincinnati Bell for $625. AT&T recognized a pretax gain of
$350 in 1998 on the sale. In the second quarter of 1998, AT&T
sold its interest in SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limit-
ed. AT&T recognized a pretax gain of $103 on the sale. After taxes,
these gains totaled approximately $0.27 per diluted share.

@egturing and Other Charges

Restructuring and other charges of $2,514 for 1998 include
$2,999 of restructuring charges recorded in connection with the
1998 cost reduction program partially offset by $940 of related
settlement gains and $348 in reversals of 1995 restructuring
reserves. Also included in the $2,514 is $718 of asset impairment
charges and $85 of TCG merger-related charges.

On January 26, 1998, AT&T announced a plan to reduce head-
count by 15,000 to 18,000 over two years as part of our overall
cost reduction program. In connection with this plan, a voluntary
retirement incentive program (VRIP) was offered to eligible man-
agement employees. Approximately 15,300 management employ-
ees accepted the VRIP offer. In connection with this plan, a pretax
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restructuring charge of $2,724 recorded in the second quarter of
1998 was composed of $2,254 and $169 for pension and postre-
tirement special-termination benefits, respectively, $263 of curtail-
ment losses and $38 of other administrative costs. Partially offset-
ting these restructuring charges were pretax settlement gains of
$940 recorded in the second half of 1998 in connection with the
settlement of the pension obligations covering about 13,700 of the
total VRIP employees (see Note 8). Also recorded in the second
quarter were pretax charges of $125 for related facility costs and
$150 for executive-separation costs.

The VRIP offer was extended to management employees below
executive level who were participants in the AT&T Management
Pension Plan at any time from January 1, 1998, through January
21, 1998, inclusive. The individual had to be either on the active
payroll or on an approved leave of absence with a guaranteed right
of reinstatement. Additionally, to be eligible for the offer, the man-
agement employee had to meet the vesting requirements of the
AT&T Management Pension Plan by the date he or she terminates
employment.

A description of the various details about the program was distrib-
uted in February. In March, eligible employees received a more
detailed written overview of the program, and seminars were
offered in an effort to reinforce the content of the program. During
the first week of April, detailed VRIP offer packages with estimates
of employee-specific data were provided to eligible employees and
one's irrevocable acceptance was required by May 22, 1998, to be
valid. Employee exits were spread over three primary dates in
1998, June 30, September 30, and December 30. As of Decem-
ber 31, 1998, approximately 14,700 employees have terminated
employment under the VRIP. The remaining 600 VRIP participants
are anticipated to terminate employment in the first quarter of
1999.

In the fourth guarter of 1995, AT&T recorded a restructuring
charge related to the exit of certain businesses. In the second
quarter of 1998, we reversed $256 of this 1995 charge primarily
as a result of an overlap of 3,400 employees accepting the VRIP
offer with those who were already included in the previously estab-
lished 1995 exit plans. Because the benefit cost of the VRIP offer
was greater than AT&T's normal severance cost, AT&T had to
increase its restructuring charge. AT&T accounted for this by
recording the full charge to reflect the pension and postretirement
special-termination benefits for all the employees accepting the
VRIP offer and then eliminating the accrual of approximately $200
for the 3,400 employees under the 1995 plan. The balance of the
reversal was due to certain reserves which were no longer deemed
necessary based on this second-guarter review. An additional
reversal of $92 was recorded in the fourth quarter of 1998 related
to projects being completed at a cost lower than originally
estimated.
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The following table displays a rollforward of the activity and bal-
ances of the restructuring reserve account from December 31,
1996, to December 31, 1998:

Dac, 31, : Dec. 31,

1996 1987 1997

Tyoe of Cost Balance Additions [Deductions Balance

Employee separations  $ 606 § $ (193) $ 413

Facility closings 528 — (94) 434

Other 254 = (194} 60

Total $ 138 % — $ (481 $ o907

Dec.31; Dec. 31;

L7 AR 1 . ISR 1998

Type af Cost Balarice Additions  Deductions Balarice

Employee separations % 413 $ 150 $ (445) $ 118

Facility closings 434 125 (190) 369

Other 60 = (20) 30

Total $ 907 $ 275 % (665 $ 517
Deductions reflect cash payments of $245 and $308 and noncash utilization of $420 and $173

for 1998 and 1997, respectively. Moncash utilization includes a reversal in 1998 of $348 related
fo the 1995 restructuring plan and a $100 reversal in 1997 of the pre-1995 talance. Other non-
cash utilization includes curtailment and transfers to deferred termination accounts for execu-
tives.

The remaining liability balance associated with the second guarter
1998 charge of $275 relating to facility costs and executive-
separation costs was $194 at December 31, 1998. We believe that
the remaining balance is adequate to complete these plans.

The restructuring reserve balance at December 31, 1998,
includes $180 associated with the 1995 plan. This remaining bal-
ance is primarily related to lease payments extending beyond
1998. In many cases it was more appropriate from an economic
standpoint to continue to lease excess space until the lease con-
tract expires than to pay the penalties involved with early termina-
tion of the lease. As of December 31, 1998, of the 12,000 man-
agement and 5,000 occupational employees included under the
1995 exit plan, approximately 8,100 management and 3,700
occupational employees have been separated. In addition,
approximately 3,400 employees left under the 1998 VRIP offer, as
discussed above. Certain occupational separations are anticipated
to occur during 1999 associated with projects pending completion
at December 31, 1998. We believe that the remaining balance is
adequate to complete these plans.

The balance at December 31, 1998, also includes $143 of pre-
1995 charges primarily related fo excess space in various leased
facilities, which we expect to fully utilize over the remaining terms
of the leases.

During 1998, AT&T recorded pretax asset impairment charges of
$718, of which $633 was associated with the local initiative.
Charges of $601 and $32 were recorded in the first and fourth
guarters of 1998, respectively, related to our decision not to pur-
sue Total Service Resale (TSR) as a local-service strategy. The
Regional Bell Operating Companies have made it extremely diffi-



cult to enter the local market under a TSR strategy. After spending
several billions of dollars in an attempt to enter this market, it
became clear to AT&T that the TSR solution is not economically
viable far the short term or the long term. A thorough financial and
operational review was performed in the first quarter of 1998 using
the criteria described in SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed.”
There were minimal revenues associated with TSR, which did not
cover the direct costs associated with servicing these customers.
In addition, the TSR software was designed and developed to
uniquely support the TSR option and cannot be utilized to support
other connectivity options. Based on these factars, it was deter-
mined that the assets were impaired and accordingly were written
off in the first quarter of 1998. The fourth quarter charge was a
result of further review of certain other assets associated with the
local initiative. It was determined that these assels were impaired
and could not be otherwise utilized in connection with the TCG
merger. This charge of $633 included $543 for software, $74 for
related assets associated with the ordering, provisioning and
billing for resold local services and $16 for certain contractual
obligations and termination penalties under several vendor con-
tracts that were canceled during the first quarter as a result of this
decision. AT&T received no operational benefit from these con-
tracts once this decision was made.

Also reflected in the $718 charge was a fourth-guarter asset
impairment charge of $85 primarily related to the write-down of
unrecoverable assets in certain international operations in which
the carrying value is no longer supported by future cash flows.
This charge was made in connection with an ongoing review asso-
ciated with the upcoming formation of a global joint venture with
BT. Pursuant to the joint venture agreement with BT, AT&T will be
required to exit certain operations that compete directly with BT,

&

ﬁgb@ ;%bligations

Debt Maturing Within One Year

At December 31, 1998 1997
a;?mercial paper % — $ 3,113
Currently maturing long-term debt 1,083 G961
Other 88 11
Total debt maturing within one year $ 1171 $ 4,085
Weighted-average interest rate of

short-term debt 5.6% 5.8%

A consortium of lenders provides revolving-credit facilities of
approximately $1 billion to AT&T. These credit facilities are intend-
ed for general corporate purposes and were unused at December
31, 1998. In February 1999, we entered into a $7 billion revolving-
credit facility with a consortium of 42 lenders. The 364-day facility
is intended for general corporate purposes and will support our
commercial paper issuances. In addition, we negotiated a $2 bil-

lion, 364-day, back-up facility with one institution. This facility will
terminate when AT&T issues debt under the registration statement
filed in 1999 and after the underlying commercial paper has been
repaid.

Long-Term Obligations

At Decermnber 31, 1988 1997

Interest Rates (a) Maturities
Debentures and Notes (b)

4 38% - 5.63% 1999-2001 $ 900 $ 1,575
6.00% - 7.75% 1999-2025 2,789 3,196
8.00% - 8.85% 1999-2031 2,754 2,756
960%-11.13% 1999-2007 52 1,065
Variable rate 1999-2054 98 115
Total debentures and notes 6,563 8,707
Other 94 189
Less: Unamortized discount-net 18 78
Total long-term obligations 6,639 8,818
Less: Currently maturing long-term debt 1,083 961
Net long-term obligations $ 5556 $ 7.857

(&) Mete that the actual interest paid on our debt obligations may have differed from the stated
amount due to our entering into interest rate Swap contracts to manage our exposure to interast
rate risk and cur strategy to reduce finance costs. (See Note 7.)

(b} In August 1998, AT&T extinguished $1,046 of TCG debt. This early extinguishment of debt
was recorded as an extracrdinary loss and resulted in a $217 pretax loss, The after-tax impact
was $137, or $0.08 per diluted share. This debt reduction will produce significant savings in
interest expense over time.

This table shows the maturities at December 31, 1998, of the
$6,639 in total long-term obligations:

1999 2000 2001 2002

2003 Later Years
$ 1,083 $ 426 $ 657 $ 539 $ 15 $3,919
/

Flréncial Instruments

In the normal course of business we use various financial instru-
ments, including derivative financial instruments, for purposes
other than trading. We do not use derivative financial instruments
for speculative purposes. These instruments include letters of
credit, guarantees of debt, interest rate swap agreements and for-
eign currency exchange contracts. Interest rate swap agreements
and foreign currency exchange contracts are used to mitigate
interest rate and foreign currency exposures. Collateral is generally
not required for these types of instruments,

By their nature, all such instruments involve risk, including the
credit risk of nonperformance by counterparties, and our maxi-
mum potential loss may exceed the amount recognized in our bal-
ance sheet. However, at December 31, 1998 and 1997, in man-
agement’s opinion there was no significant risk of loss in the event
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of nonperformance of the counterparties to these financial instru-
ments. We control our exposure to credit risk through credit
approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures. We do not
have any significant exposure to any individual customer or coun-
terparty, nor do we have any major concentration of credit risk
related to any financial instruments,

Letters of Credit

Letters of credit are purchased guarantees that ensure our perfor-
mance or payment to third parties in accordance with specified
terms and conditions and do not create any additional risk to
AT&T.

Guarantees of Debt

From time to time we guarantee the debt of our subsidiaries and
certain unconsolidated joint ventures. Additionally, in connection
with restructurings of AT&T in 1996, we issued guarantees for cer-
tain debt obligations of AT&T Capital Corp. and NCR. At December
31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, the amount of guaranteed debt
associated with AT&T Capital Corp. and NCR was $108 and $120.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

We enter into interest rate swaps to manage our exposure to
changes in interest rates and to lower our overall costs of financ-
ing. We enter into swap agreements to manage the fixed/floating
mix of our debt portfolio in order to reduce aggregate risk to inter-
est rate movements. Interest rate swaps also allow us to raise
funds at floating rates and effectively swap them into fixed-rates
that are lower than those available to us if fixed-rate borrowings
were made directly. These agreements involve the exchange of
floating-rate for fixed-rate payments or fixed-rate for floating-rate
payments without the exchange of the underlying principal
amount. Fixed interest rate payments at December 31, 1998, are
at rates ranging from 6.96% to 9.47%. Floating-rate payments are
based on rates tied to LIBOR or U.S. treasury bills.

The following table indicates the types of swaps in use at Decem-
ber 31, 1998 and 1997, and their weighted-average interest rates.
Average variable rates are those in effect at the reporting date and
may change significantly over the lives of the contracts.

1998 1997

Fixed to variable swaps-notional amount $ 46l $ 422
Average receive rate 6.33% 7.54%
Average pay rate 5.31% 5.67%

Variable to fixed swaps-notional amount $ 241 $ 249
Average receive rate 4.92% 570%
Average pay rate 7.68% 7.42%

The weighted-average remaining terms of the swap contracts are
two years for 1998 and three years for 1997.
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Foreign Exchange

We enter into foreign currency exchange contracts, including for-
ward and option contracts, to manage our exposure to changes in
currency exchange rates, principally French francs, German
marks, British pounds sterling and Japanese yen. The use of these
derivative financial instruments allows us to reduce our exposure
to the risk of adverse changes in exchange rates on the eventual
reimbursement to foreign telephone companies for their portion of
the revenues billed by AT&T for calls placed in the United States to
a foreign country and other foreign currency payables and receiv-
ables. These transactions are generally expected to occur in less
than one year.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments Including Derivative
Financial instruments

The following table summarizes the notional amounts of material
financial instruments. The notional amounts represent agreed-
upon amounts on which calculations of dollars to be exchanged
are based. They do not represent amounts exchanged by the par-
ties and, therefore, are not a measure of our exposure. Our expo-
sure is limited to the fair value of the contracts with a positive fair
value plus interest receivable, if any, at the reporting date.

Derivatives and Off Balance Sheet Instruments

1998 1997

Contract/ Contract/

Metional Motioral

Amount Amount

Interest rate swap agreements $ 702 $ 671
Foreign exchange:

Forward contracts 244 426

Option contracts — 2

Letters of credit 184 63

Guarantees of debt 237 242

The following tables show the valuation methods, carrying
amounts and estimated fair values of material financial instru-
ments.

Financial Instrument Valuation Method

Market quotes or based on rates
available to us for debt with
similar terms and maturities

Fees paid to obtain the obligations

There are no quoted market prices
for similar agreements available

Debt excluding capital leases

Letters of credit
Guarantees of debt

Interest rate swap agreements  Market quates obtained from dealers

Foreign exchange contracts Market quotes




For debt excluding capital leases, the carrying amounts and fair
values were $6,691 and $7,136, respectively, for 1998; and
$11,875and $12,312, respectively, for 1997.

1998
Carrying Fair
Amount Value
Asset Liakbility Asset Liahility
Interest rate swap
agreements $ 5 A I $ — $ 19
Foreign exchange
forward contracts ¥ 7 18 4
1997
Carrying Fair
Amount Walue
HAsset Liahility Asset Liability
Interest rate swap
agreements $ 3 $ 10 % 5 $ 31
Foreign exchange
forward contracts — 21 3 33

9,

@n, Postretirement and Other Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor noncontributory defined benefit pension plans cover-
ing the majority of our employees. Pension benefits for manage-
ment employees are principally based on career-average pay. Pen-
sion benefits for accupational employees are not directly related to
pay. Pension trust contributions are principally determined using
the aggregate cost method and are primarily made to trust funds
held for the sole benefit of plan participants. We compute pension
cost using the projected unit credit method.

Our benefit plans for current and future retirees include health-
care benefits, life insurance coverage and telephone concessions.
Postretirement trust contributions are determined using the
atlained-age-normal cost method for health-care benefits and the
aggregate cost method for life-insurance plans.

The following table shows the components of the net periodic ben-
efit costs:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

For the Years

Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996

Service cost-
benefits earned
during the period

Interest cost on
benefit abligations 940 946 861 322 278 263

Amortization of un-
recognized prior

$ 275 $ 305 % 295 $ 56 % 56 § 53

service cost 135 114 99 Bk 28 42
Credit for expected

return on plan

assets (1,570) (1,371) (1,195) (173) (120} (99)
Amortization of trans-

ition asset (175) (181) (183) — == =
Charges for special

termination benefits 2,254 169 -
Net curtailment losses 140 141
Net settlement (gains)

losses (921) 5 - — —

Net periodic benefit

cost (credit) $1,078 $ (182) $ (123) $513 $253 $259

On January 26, 1998, we offered a voluntary retirement incentive
program (VRIP) to employees who were eligible participants in the
AT&T Management Pension Plan. Approximately 15,300 manage-
ment employees accepted the VRIP offer. In connection with the
VRIP, we recorded pretax charges for pension and postretirement
plan special-termination benefits of $2,254 and $169, respective-
ly. We also recorded pension and postretirement plan pretax
charges of $120 and $143, respectively, which are included within
net curtailment losses. The special-termination benefits reflect the
value of pension benefit improvements and expanded eligibility for
postretirement benefits. The VRIP also permitted employees to
choose either a total lump-sum distribution of their pension bene-
fits or periodic future annuity payments.

As of December 31, 1998, approximately 14,700 employees had
terminated employment under the VRIP. AT&T has settled the
pension obligations covering about 13,700 of these employees,
the remainder of which either chose to defer commencing their
pension benefits or elected to receive an annuity distribution.
Lump-sum pension settlements totaling $4.6 billion, including a
portion of the special-pension termination benefits referred to
above, resulted in settlement gains of $940 recorded in the sec-
ond half of 1998. The remaining 600 VRIP participants are antici-
pated to terminate employment in the first quarter of 1999,
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The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the
plans' benefit obligations and fair value of assets for the years
ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, and a statement of the
funded status at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively:

Pension Pastretirement
Benefits Benefits

1998 1agy 1998 1997

Change in benefit

obligations:

Benefit obligation,

beginning of year  $14,481 $12380 $ 43566 % 3,739

Service cost 275 305 56 56
Interest cost 940 946 322 278
Plan amendments 324 263 (95) -
Actuarial losses 1,609 1,278 258 494
Benefit payments (770) (660) (227) (209)
Special termination

benefits 2,254 169 —
Settlements (4,676) (31) = —
Curtailment

losses (gains) 6 — 329 (2)
Benefit obligation,

end of year $14.443 $14481 $ 5168 $ 4,356

Change in fair value
of plan assets:

Fair value of plan
assets, beginning

of year $20,513 $17680 $ 1969 § 1566
Actual return on

plan assets 3.375 3,464 437 358
Employer

contributions 125 60 297 254
Benefit payments (770) (660) (227) (209)
Seftlements {4,676) (31) 3

Fair value of plan

assets, end of

year $18567 $20513 $2476 $ 1969
At December 31,

Fuhded (unfunded)
benefitobligation $ 4,124 $ 6,032  $(2,692) $(2.387)

Unrecognized

The following table provides the amounts recognized in our consoli-
dated balance sheets:

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
At December 31, 1998 1997 1998 1997
Prepaid pension
cost $ 2,075 $2156 ' % — %
Accrued benefit
liabilities (1,016) (161) (2,665) (2,448)
Intangible asset 47 70 — —
Accumulated other
comprehensive
income 398 33 - —
Net amount
recognized $ 1,145 § 2098 $(2665 $(2448)

net gain (3,495) (4,130) (36) (227)
Unrecognized

transition asset (445) (708) — —
Unrecognized prior

service cost 961 904 63 166
Net amount

recognized $ 1,145 $ 2098 $(2665) $(2448)

Our pensian plan assets include $85 and $75 of AT&T common
stock at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively.
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Our nongualified pension plan had an unfunded accumulated ben-
efit obligation of $135 and $166 at December 31, 1998 and 1997,
respectively. Our postretirement health and telephone concession
benefit plans have accumulated postretirement benefit obligations
in excess of plan assets. The plans’ accumulated postretirement
benefit obligations were $4,461 and $3,740 at December 31, 1998
and 1997, respectively, which was in excess of plan assets of
$1,408 and $1,108 at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

The assumptions used in the measurement of the pension and
postretirement benefit obligations are shown in the following table:

Pension and Postretirement Benefits
At December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate 6.5% 7.0% 7.5%
Expected return on plan assets 9.5% 9.0% 9.0%
Rate of compensation increase 4.5% 4.5% 5.0%

We assumed a rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered
health-care benefits (the health-care cost trend rate) of 5.6%. This
rate was assumed to gradually decline after 1998 to 4.8% by the
year 2009 and then remain level. Assumed health-care cost trend
rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the
health-care plans. A one percentage point increase or decrease in
the assumed health-care cost trend rate would increase or
decrease the total of the service and interest-cost components of
net periodic postretirement health-care benefit cost by $14 and
$12, respectively, and would increase or decrease the health-care
component of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by
$181 and $177, respectively.

We also sponsor savings plans for the majority of our employees.
The plans allow employees to contribute a portion of their pretax
and/or after-tax income in accordance with specified guidelines. We
match a percentage of the employee contributions up to certain
limits. Our contributions amounted to $204 in 1998, $201 in 1997
and $181 in 1996.



Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Under the 1997 Long-Term Incentive Program, which was effec-
tive June 1, 1997, we grant stock options, performance shares,
restricted stock and other awards. There are 100 million shares of
common stock available for grant with a maximum of 15 million
common shares that may be used for awards other than stock
options. The exercise price of any stock option is equal to the
stock price when the option is granted. Generally, the options vest
over three years and are exercisable up to 10 years from the date
of grant. Under the 1987 Long-Term Incentive Program, which
expired in April 1997, we granted the same awards, and on Janu-
ary 1 of each year 0.6% of the outstanding shares of our common
stock became available for grant.

Under the 1997 Long-Term Incentive Program, performance
share units are awarded to key employees in the form of either
common stock or cash at the end of a three-year period based on
AT&T's total shareholder return as measured against a peer group
of industry competitors. Under the 1987 Long-Term Incentive Pro-
gram, performance share units with the same terms were also
awarded to key employees based on AT&T's return-on-equity per-
formance compared with a target.

On August 1, 1997, substantially all of our employees were grant-
ed a stock option award to purchase 100 shares representing a
total of 12.5 million shares of our common stock. The options vest
after three years and are exercisable up to 10 years from the grant
date.

Under the AT&T 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Plan),
which was effective July 1, 1996, we are authorized to issue up to
50 million shares of common stock to our eligible employees.
Under the terms of the Plan, employees may have up to 10% of
their earnings withheld to purchase AT&T's common stock. The
purchase price of the stock on the date of exercise is 85% of the
average high and low sale prices of shares on the New York Stock
Exchange for that day. Under the Plan, we sold approximately 2
million, 4 million and 3 million shares to employees in 1998, 1997
and 1996, respectively.

We apply Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Account-
ing for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related Interpretations in
accounting for our plans. Accordingly, no compensation expense
has been recognized for our stock-based compensation plans
other than for our performance-based and restricted stock

awards, Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs), and prior to July 1,
1996, for the stock purchase plan for former McCaw Cellular Com-
munications Inc. employees. Compensation costs charged against
income were $157, $110 and $46 in 1998, 1997 and 1996,
respectively.

A summary of option transactions is shown below:

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Exercise Exarcise Exercise

Shares in Thousands 1998 Price 1997 Price 1996 Price

Qutstanding at

January 1, 73,081 $37.15 50,977 $32.39 50,082 $41.68
Lucent and NCR

spin-off

adjustments — — — — 22,678 —
Options granted 30,765 $62.53 38,310 $38.97 11,021 $41.27
Options and SARs

exercised (12,596) $32.92 (11,101) $24.51 (10,760) $19.10

Options canceled
or forfeited:

Lucent and
NCR gpin-offs - — - (16,179) $37.25
Other employee
plans (5,980) $46.06 (4,205) $40.09 (5,865) $36.50
At December 31,
Options
outstanding 86,170 $45.68 73981 $37.15 50,977 $32.39
Options
exercisable 23,648 $3469 22981 $33.26 28,034 $2881

Shares available

for grant 61,225 — 90,345 — 25,856 -

Effective on the dates of spin-off of Lucent and NCR, AT&T stock
options held by Lucent and NCR employees were canceled. For
the holders of unexercised AT&T stock options, the number of
options was adjusted and all exercise prices were decreased
immediately following each spin-off date to preserve the economic
values of the options that existed prior to those dates.

During 1998, 180,940 SARs were exercised and no SARs were
granted. At December 31, 1998, 165,841 SARs remained unexer-
cised, all of which were exercisable.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options
outstanding at December 31, 1998:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

Wiighted-
) Number Average  Weighted- Number  Weighted-
Range of Ouistanding st Remaining Average  Exercisable at Average
Exercise Dec. 31, 1998 Contractual  Exercise  Dec, 31, 1998 Exercise
Prices {in thousands) Life Price  {in thousands) Price

$ 6.54-%15.75 1,385 47 $ 923 1,215 § 8.79
1696- 27.12 5,570 41 2301 4,144 24.65

27.16- 36.74 9,279 56 34.77 7,519  34.85
36.75 11,477 86 3675 24 36.75
36.78- 39.28 3463 54 3740 2998 SEAL
39.31 14,790 8.1 .3931 3,908 3931
39.36- 4737 8612 6.9 4514 3,453 4558
47.67- 63.06 9,284 93 56.96 391 5511
63.16 20,879 91 6316 13 63.16
63.28- 75.66 1,481 98 7044 3 668l

86,170 7.8 $4568 23,648 $34.69

AT&T has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” If AT&T had elected

to recognize compensation costs based on the fair value at the
date of grant for awards in 1998, 1997 and 1996, consistent with
the provisions of SFAS No. 123, AT&T's net income and earnings
per common share would have been reduced to the following pro
forma amounts:

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Income from continuing

operations $ 5,078 $ 4,158 $ 5,385
Income from discontinued

operations 7 99 146
Gain on sale of discontinued

operations 1,290 66 162
Extraordinary loss 137 - —-
Net income $ 6,238 $ 4,323 $ 5693
Earnings per common

share-basic:
Continuing operations $ 285 $ 234 $ 3.06
Discontinued operations - 0.05 0.08
Gain on sale of discontinued

operations 0.73 0.04 0.09
Extraordinary loss 0.08 — —
Net income $ 350 $ 243 $ 323
Earnings per common

share-diluted:
Continuing operations $ 282 $ 233 $ 3.05
Discontinued operations — 0.05 0.08
Gain on sale of discontinued

operations 0.72 0.04 0.09
Extraordinary loss 0.08 — —
Net income $ 346 $ 242 $ 3.22
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Without the effect of pro forma costs related to the conversion of
options in the Lucent and NCR spin-offs, pro forma income from
continuing operations was $5,415, or $3.06 per diluted common
share in 1996.

The pro forma effect on net income for 1998, 1997 and 1996 may
not be representative of the pro forma effect on net income of
future years because the SFAS No. 123 method of accounting for
pro forma compensation expense has not been applied to options
granted prior to January 1, 1995.

The weighted-average fair values at date of grant for options grant-
ed during 1998, 1997 and 1996 were $14.63, $9.09 and $13.12,
respectively, and were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. The weighted-average risk-free interest rates
applied for 1998, 1997 and 1996 were 5.33%, 6.16% and
6.11%, respectively. The following assumptions were applied for
1998, 1997 and periods subsequent to the Lucent spin-off
through December 31, 1996, respectively: (i) expected dividend
yields of 2.1%, 2.2% and 2.8% (ii) expected volatility rates of
23.8%, 21.8% and 21.0% and (iii) expected lives of 4.5 years.

The following table shows the principal reasons for the difference

between the effective income tax rate and the U.S. federal statuto-
ry income tax rate:

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
.5, federal statutory

income tax rate 35% 35% 35%
Federal income tax at

statutory rate $ 2,908 $ 2,440 $ 3,044
Amortization of

investment tax credits (13) (14) (21)

State and local income
taxes, net of federal

income tax effect 201 183 273
Amortization of intangibles 28 23 14
Foreign rate differential 63 117 131

Taxes on repatriated and
accumulated foreign

income, net of tax credits (36) (32) 19
Legal entity restructuring (84) : (195)
Research credits (74) (63) (13)
Other differences-net 79 69 (13)
Provision far income taxes $ 3,072 $.2,723 $ 3,239
Effective income tax rate 37.0% 39.0% 37.2%




The U.S. and foreign components of income from continuing
operations before income taxes and the provision for income taxes
are presented in this table:

For the Years Ended December 21 1998 1597 1996

Income from Continuing
Operations before
Income Taxes

United States $ 8318 $ 7,090 $ 8,900
Foreign (11) (118) (203)
Total $ 8,307 % 6972 $ 8697
Provision for Income Taxes
Current
Federal $ 2,908 $ 1,561 $ 2,200
State and local 251 194 400
Foreign 41 49 25
$ 3,200 $ 1,804 H2.715
Deferred
Federal $ (1720 $ 851 $ 511
State and local 58 89 23
Foreign —- (5) 11
$ (114 3 935 $ 545
Deferred investment
tax credits (14) (16) (21)
Provision for income taxes $ 3,072 $ 2,723 $ 3,239

The current income taxes payable balance was $1,393 and $434
at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. The increase in the
1998 halance is primarily due to the accrued income faxes record-
ed in connection with the sale of UCS.

Deferred income tax liabilities are taxes we expect to pay in future
periods. Similarly, deferred income tax assets are recorded for
expected reductions in taxes payable in future periods. Deferred
income taxes arise because of differences in the book and tax
bases of certain assets and liabilities.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets consist of the following:

Al December 31, 1998 1997
Long-Term Deferred Income Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment % 7.324 $ 6,285
Investments - 320
Other 776 1,185
Total long-term deferred income tax liabilities  $ 8,100 $ 7,790
Long-Term Deferred Income Tax Assets
Business restructuring $ 134 $ 162
Net operating loss/credit carryforwards 495 487
Employee pensions and
other benefits - net 1.8557 1,026
Reserves and allowances 126 93
Investments 39
ther 556 658
Valuation allowance (260) (347)
Total net long-term deferred
income tax assets $ 2,647 $ 2,079
Net long-term deferred income tax liabilities  $ 5,453 $ 5,711

Current Deferred Income Tax Liabilities
Total current deferred income tax liabilities $ 408 o

Current Deferred Income Tax Assets

Business restructuring % 79 $ 225
Employee pensions and other benefits 346 3156
Reserves and allowances 896 617
Other 397 272
Total net current deferred income tax assets % 1,718 $ 1,429
Net current deferred income tax assets $ 1,310 $ 1,252

At December 31, 1998, we had net operating loss carryforwards
(tax-effected) for federal and state income tax purposes of $267
and $119, respectively, expiring through 2013. We also had for-
eign net operating loss carryforwards (tax-effected) of $82, which
have no expiration date, as well as federal tax credit carryforwards
of $30, which are not subject to expiration. We recorded a valua-
tion allowance to reflect the estimated amount of deferred tax
assets which, more likely than not, will not be realized.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

AT&T Corp. and Subsidiaries

1m1nts and Contingencies

In the normal course of business we are subject to proceedings,
lawsuits and other claims, including proceedings under laws and
regulations related to environmental and other matters. Such mat-
ters are subject to many uncertainties, and outcomes are not pre-
dictable with assurance. Consequently, we are unable to ascertain
the ultimate aggregate amount of monetary liability or financial
impact with respect to these matters at December 31, 1998.
These matters could affect the operating results of any one quarter
when resolved in future periods. However, we believe that after
final disposition, any monetary liability or financial impact to us
beyond that provided for at year-end would not be material to our
annual consolidated financial statements.

We lease land, buildings and equipment through contracts that
expire in various years through 2032. Our rental expense under
operating leases was $742 in 1998, $853 in 1997 and $736 in
1996. The following table shows our future minimum lease pay-
ments due under noncancelable operating leases at December
31, 1998, which total $3,197. The total of minimum rentals to be
received in the future under noncancelable subleases as of
December 31, 1998, was $456.

2003 Later Years_
$1,276

1999 2000 2001 2002
$ 493 $ 450 $ 383 $ 320 $:275

eporting

AT&T's results are segmented according to our primary lines of
business: business services, consumer services and wireless ser-
vices. Our business services segment offers a variety of long dis-
tance voice and data services to business customers, including
domestic and international, inbound and outbound, inter- and
intra-LATA toll services, calling card and operator-handled ser-
vices, and other network enabled services. In addition, the busi-
ness services segment provides local services, and Web hosting
and other electronic-commerce services. Our consumer services
segment provides long distance voice services to residential cus-
tomers. Such services include domestic and international long dis-
tance services, inter- and intra-LATA toll services, calling card and
operator-handled calling services, and prepaid calling cards. In
addition, local service is offered on a limited basis. Other service
offerings include messaging, aviation communications and wire-
less data. Our wireless services segment offers wireless services
and products to customers in 850 MHz markets and 1900 MHz
markets.
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Total assets for our reportable segments include all external assets
for each segment. The majority of our deferred taxes and prepaid
pension assets are held at the corporate level. Network assets are
allocated to the segments based on the prior three years’ volumes
and are reallocated each January. Interest expense and the provi-
sion for income taxes are also held at the corporate level.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those
described in the summary of significant accounting policies (see
Note 1). AT&T evaluates performance based on several factors, of
which the primary financial measure is earnings, including other
income, before interest and taxes (EBIT).

Generally, AT&T accounts for business services' inter-segment
telecommunications transactions at market prices.

We had $4,434, $3,866 and $4,001 of equity investments as of
December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively, the majority of
which were held in the wireless services segment including our
investment in AB Cellular. The loss or earnings on these invest-
ments were a loss of $16 for 1998, and earnings of $98 and $110
for 1997 and 1996, respectively.

Revenues
For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Business services external

revenues $21,808 $21,041 $20,665
Business services internal

revenues 1,132 989 826
Total business services

revenues 22,940 22,030 21,491
Consumer services external

revenues 22632 23527 24,184
Wireless services external

revenues 5 406 4,668 4,246
Total reportable segments 50,978 50,225 49921
Other and corporate (a) 3,549 2,704 1,892
Eliminations (1,304) (1,352} (1,125}
Total revenues $53,223 $51,577 $50,688

{a} Included in other and corporate revenues are revenues from TOG including ACC, AT&T
Selutions, international cperations and ventures ard ATAT WorldMet™,

Depreciation and Amortization

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Business services § 2,195 $ 1,757 $ 1,098
Consumer services 717 789 637
Wireless services 1,050 897 659
Total reportable segments 3,962 3,443 2,394
Other and corporate 667 539 425
Total depreciation and

amartization $ 4,629 $ 3,982 $ 2,819




Reconciliation of EBIT to Income Before Income Taxes

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Business services $ 5,525 $ 4,592 $ 5,216
Consumer services 6,662 5,094 5,345
Wireless services 118 265 627
Total reportable segments’

EBIT 12,305 9.95]1 11,187
Other and corporate EBIT (3,538) (2,665) {2,201)
Elimination of intercompany

EBIT (33) (7} 128
Interest expense (427) (307} (417)
Total income before income

taxes $ 8,307 $ 6972 $ 8,697
Assets
At Decernber 31, 1998 1997 1996
Business services $18,077 $15,030 $12,274
Consumer services 6,252 7,923 9,765
Wireless services 19,341 18,850 17,707
Total reportable segments 43,670 41,803 39,746
All other segments 7,565 6,683 5187
Corporate assets:

Prepaid pension costs 2,074 2,156 1,933

Deferred taxes 1,156 1,106 1,123

Net assets of discantinued

operations - 1,101 1,510

Other corporate assets 5,085 8,246 7,849
Total assets $59,550 $61,095 $57.348
Capital Additions
For the Years Ent.'-er.i December 31, 1998 1997 1996
Business services $ 4978 $ 4,085 $ 2,538
Consumer services 457 921 1,867
Wireless services 2372 2,158 2,404
Total reportable segments 7,807 7,164 6,809
Other and corporate Lt T 1,519 710
Total capital additions $ 9,578 % 8,683 $ 7,519

Geographic information is not presented due to the immateriality

of revenues attributable to international customers.

Reflecting the dynamics of our business, we are reviewing our
management model and structure which will result in adjustments
to our segment discussion during 1999. While this is an evolving
process, we anticipate changes as follows: The business services
segment will be expanded to include the results of TCG and the
business portion of AT&T WorldNet, and the consumer services
segment will be expanded to include the residential portion of
AT&T WorldNet.

D,

chf)nting Pronouncement

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB)
issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” Among other provisions, it requires that enti-
ties recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the
statement of financial position and measure those instruments at
fair value. Gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair val-
ues of those derivatives would be accounted for depending on the
use of the derivative and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting,
This standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
1999, though earlier adoption is encouraged and retroactive appli-
cation is prohibited. For AT&T this means that the standard must
be adopted no later than January 1, 2000. Management, based on
its current operations and hedging strategies, does not expect the
adoption of this standard to have a material impact on AT&T's
results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
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B

TR

i S

S
Quarte @nformation (Unaudited)

"“gﬁ’e'

1998 (1) 1997
First Second Third Faurth First Second Third Fourth

Revenues $12,831 $13211 $13653 $13528 $12688 $128% $13090 $12903
Operating income (loss) 1,404 {459) 3,356 3,186 1,616 1,482 1,747 1,991
Income (loss) from continuing operations 1,285 (161) 2,123 1,988 1,043 877 1,078 1:251
Income from discontinued operations 10 - - — 38 31 20 11
Gain on sale of discontinued operations — 1,290 — — — e 66 —
Income before extraordinary loss 1,295 1,129 2,128 1,988 1,081 908 1,164 1,262
Extraordinary loss - e 137 - C- .- s -
Net income $ 1295 -§ 1129 % 1986 $1988° 5 1081 $ <08 3 1,164 § 1262
Income (loss) per common share-basic:
Continuing operations $ i S TN o1 S TR 1312 s S 1 59 3 49 % B0 % 70
Discontinued operations 01 = s 2 02 02 01 01
Gain on sale of discontinued operations - 71 - - — - - .04 —
Before extraordinary loss T 63 1.19 L3 61 51 65 71
Extraordinary loss - - 08 — — — — —
Net income A2 63 1.11 113 61 51 65 ol
Income (loss) per common share-diluted:
Continuing operations $ ] B PN 110 A R T R At ] o - 5B % 49 % 60 % 69
Discontinued operations 01 - — - 02 02 01 01
Gain on sale of discontinued operations - Al — = = 04 =
Before extraordinary loss 72 63 1.17 1.12 61 Bl 65 70
Extraordinary loss — - 07 — == — ==
Net income g2 63 1.10 bt 61 51 65 70
Dividends declared 23 33 et 33 23 33 33 ;33
Stock price*:

High $ 68 % 674 9 60% $ Fi A A1% % 384 % A451%: $ 63

Low 58% 567 50/ 57 347 30% 344 437

Quarter-end close 65% 57% 587 75% 34% 35V a4 61%e

* Stock prices obtained from the Composite Tape

(1) In accordance with SOP 98-1, AT&T recorded pretax benefils of $50, $63, $44 and $42, or about $0.02, $0.03, $0.01 and $0.01 per diluted share,
for the first through fourth quarters of 1998, respectively. AT&T adopted SOP 98-1 during 1998 and restated all quarters of 1998 as if the SOP was

adopted on January 1, 1998.

70



h‘

=
s@; Events

On March 9, 1999, the merger with TCl announced on June 24,
1998, closed with each share of TC| Group Series A common
stock converted into 0.7757 of AT&T common stock and each
share of TCI Group Series B stock converted into 0.8533 of AT&T
common stock. AT&T issued approximately 439 million shares for
TCl shares, of which 339 million were newly issued shares and
100 million were treasury shares including the shares repurchased
in February and March 1999. In addition, TCI| combined Liberty
Media Group, its programming arm, and TCl| Ventures Group, its
technology investments unit, to form the new Liberty Media Group.
In connection with the closing, the shareowners of the new Liberty
Media Group were issued separate tracking stock by AT&T in
exchange for the shares held in Liberty Media Group and TClI
Ventures Group.

Following is a summary of the pro forma results of AT&T as if the
merger had closed effective January 1, 1997:

Faor the Year
-ndes Ended
September 20, December 31,

(Unaudited) 1998 1997
Revenues $44,375 $58,156
Income from continuing operations* 1,997 2,101
Net income* 3,160 2,267
Income from continuing operations,

available to AT&T common

shareowners™* 2,603 3,052
MNet income available to AT&T commaon

shareowners™* 3,766 3,218
Weighted-average AT&T common

shares (millions) 2,135 2,115

Weighted-average AT&T common
shares and potential common
shares (millions) 2215 2,189

Basic earnings per AT&T

common share:
Income from continuing operations $ 122 $ 144
Net income $ 176 $ 152

Diluted earnings per AT&T
common share:

Income from continuing operations & 1.18 $ 140
MNet income $ 1.70 $ 147

*Income from continuing operations and net income exciude the dividend requirements on
oreferred stock.

** Income availabile te AT&T common sharecwners exchudes the results of the new Libery
Media Group.

On January 8, 1999, we announced a $4.0 billion share repur-
chase program. In March 1999, we completed this program with
the repurchase of 46.6 million shares.

On February 1, 1999, AT&T announced the formation of a joint
venture with Time Warner to offer AT&T-branded cable-telephony
service to residential and small-business customers over Time
Warner's existing cable television systems in 33 states. The service
is expected to be piloted in one or two cities in 1999 and begin
broader commercial operations in 2000. In addition, the compa-
nies agreed to develop other broadband communications services
such as video telephony. Under the terms of the agreement, AT&T
will own 77.5% of the joint venture and will fund the joint venture's
negative cash flow. However, it is anticipated that the joint venture
will have positive cash flow and net earnings after three full years
of operation. Subject to certain conditions, including definitive
documentation and various approvals, the companies expect to
close the joint venture in the second half of 1999,

On January 26, 1999, AT&T filed a registration statement with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) for the offering and
sale of up to $10 billion of notes and warrants to purchase notes.
AT&T intends to use the proceeds from the sale of the notes and
warrants for funding investments in subsidiary companies, capital
expenditures, acguisitions of licenses, assets or businesses,
refunding of debt and general corporate purposes. The amount
and timing of the sales will depend on market conditions and the
availability of other funds to AT&T.

On January 8, 1999, AT&T's Board of Directors announced the
intention, following the completion of the TCI merger, to declare a
three-for-two stock split of AT&T's common stock.

In addition, AT&T announced on January 8, 1999, that it had
reached agreements with five TCI affiliates to form separate joint
ventures to offer customers advanced communications services.
AT&T, which expects to own 51% to 65% of each of these joint
ventures, will have long-term exclusive rights to offer communica-
tions services over the systems of each of the five operators in
return for one-time payments to be made when the systems meet
certain performance milestones. AT&T expects to finalize joint
ventures with Bresnan Communications, Falcon Cable TV, Insight
Communications, InterMedia Partners and Peak Cablevision in
early 1999, begin piloting the new services later in the year and
then begin commercial operations in 2000.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

AT&T Board of Directors

C. Michael Armstrong, 60
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer of AT&T
since 1997. 4.6

Kenneth T. Derr, 62
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer,
Chevron Corporation,

an international oil company.
Director since 1995. 1,2

M. Kathryn Eickhoff, 59
President,

Eickhoff Economics Inc.,
economic consultants.
Elected to Board in 1987. 1,5

Walter Y. Elisha, 66
Retired Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer,
Springs Industries Inc.,
a textile manufacturer.
Director since 1987, 3,5

AT&T Senior Management Staff

George M. C. Fisher, 58
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer,
Eastman Kodak Company,

an imaging company.

Elected to Board in 1997. 2,5

Donald V. Fites, 64
Retired Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer,
Caterpillar Inc.,

an equipment manufacturer.
Director since 1997. 3,5

Ralph S. Larsen, 60
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer,
Johnson & Johnson,

a pharmaceutical, medical and
consumer products company.
Elected to Board in 1995. 1,5

*John C. Malone, 57
Chief Executive Officer,
Liberty Media Group,

a cable programming company.

Donald F. McHenry, 62
President,

IRC Group,

international relations consul-
tants; former U.S. Ambassador
to the United Nations.

Director since 1986. 1,2,3.4

Michael I. Sovern, 67
President Emeritus and
Chancellor Kent Professor of
Law at Columbia University.
Flected to Board in 1984,
1,246

Sanford |. Weill, 65
Chairman and

Co-Chief Executive Officer,
Citigroup.

Director since 1998. 1,5

Thomas H. Wyman, 69
Former Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer,
CBS Inc.

Elected to Board in 1981.
2346

John D. Zeglis, 51
President of AT&T.
Director since 1997. 3

1. Audit Committee

2. Compensation and Employee
Benefits Committee

3. Governance and Nominating
Committee

4. Executive Committee

5. Finance Committee

6. Proxy Committee

Ages are as of January 1, 1999.

*Expected to be elected to
Board in 1999.

C. Michael Armstrong
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Harold W. Burlingame
Executive Vice President
Merger and Joint-Venture
Integration

James W. Cicconi

General Counsel and
Executive Vice President
Law and Government Affairs

Mirian Graddick
Executive Vice President
Human Resources

Daniel R. Hesse
President
AT&T Wireless Services
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Leo J. Hindery, Jr.
President
AT&T Broadband Services

Frank lanna
President
AT&T Network Services

Michael G. Kelth
President
AT&T Business Services

H. Eugene Lockhart
Executive Vice President and
Chief Marketing Officer

Richard J. Martin
Executive Vice President
Public Relations and
Employee Communications

David C. Nagel

Chief Technology Officer and
President

AT&T Labs

John C. Petrillo
Executive Vice President
Corporate Strategy and
Business Development

Richard R. Roscitt
President
AT&T Solutions

Daniel H. Schulman
President

Consumer Long Distance and
Segment Marketing

Daniel E. Somers
Senior Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

John D. Zeglis
AT&T President

Other Officers

Nicholas S. Cyprus
Vice President and Controller

Edward M. Dwyer
Vice President and Treasurer

Marilyn 1. Wasser
Vice President
Law and Secretary



orate Information

Corporate Headquarters
AT&T Corp.

32 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10013-2412

Shareowner Services

AT&T assists shareowners with a wide variety of stock-related matters
through our transfer agent, Boston EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.,
including:

* Dividend reinvestment

e Direct deposit of dividends
= Transfer of ownership

* Change of address

Mailing Address:

AT&T Shareowner Services
c/o Boston EquiServe

P.O. Box 8035

Boston, MA 02266-8035

Interactive voice response system (24 hours a day, seven days a
week; representatives available Monday through Friday from 8 a.m.
to 7 p.m. Eastern time):

Phone: 1-800-348-8288
TDD: 1-800-822-2794
Qutside the United States: Call collect at 781-575-3777

E-mail: att@equiserve.com
Fax: 781-828-8813

AT&T on the World Wide Web

The AT&T home page — http://www.att.com/ — is your entry point
for a vast array of information about AT&T, including company news,
details on products and services, demonstrations of advanced tech-
nologies and more.

You're encouraged to also visit
AT&T’s Investor Relations Web site
at — http://www.att.com/ir/
which offers real-time information
on events relevant to shareowners
and the financial community. Key
features include online account
access, downloadable financial
data, quarterly earnings commen-
tary, current and historical stock prices as well as instructions and
forms for direct deposit of dividends, dividend reinvestment and
change of address. You can also register to receive your AT&T
Annual Report and proxy mailing notice via the Internet.

Stock Information

AT&T (ticker symbal "T") is listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
as well as on the Boston, Chicago, Cincinnati, Pacific and
Philadelphia exchanges in the United States, and on stock
exchanges in Brussels, London, Paris and Geneva.

As of December 31, 1998, AT&T had 1.8 billion outstanding shares,
held by more than 3.2 million shareowners.

Annual Meeting

The 114th Annual Meeting of Shareowners will convene at 9:30 a.m,
at the George R. Brown Convention Center in Houston, Texas, on
May 19, 1999,

Other Publications

The Form 10-K Annual Report and Form 10-Q Quarterly Reports to
the Securities and Exchange Commission are available without
charge by contacting Boston EquiServe and through the AT&T
Investor Relations Web site (see earlier information).

Also available are:

Report on AT&T's Community Involvement
Activities (biannual)

AT&T Foundation

32 Avenue of the Americas

24th floor

New York, NY 10013

AT&T Environment, Health & Safety Report
Department AR

1200 Peachtree Street

Room 15W54

Atlanta, Georgia 30309

AT&T Foundation

In 1998, the AT&T Foundation donated $46 million to non-profit
organizations in local communities to support education, health, cul-
ture and the environment. Over $20 million of these grants sup-
ported initiatives that helped families, schools and communities use
new information technologies to enhance teaching and learning.

Telephone Pioneers of America

The Telephone Pioneers of America is a nonprofit organization of
more than 800,000 active and retired employee volunteers from
sponsoring companies within the telecommunications industry,
including AT&T. In recent years, the Pioneers have contributed an
average of 25 million hours annually and raised more than $25 mil-
lion to support the environment and health and human services, with
an overarching focus on education. More information is available by
calling 1-800-258-0649.

Minority and Women's Business Enterprise

As part of AT&T's Supplier Diversity Initiative, approximately $900
million of AT&T's total purchases last year were made from minority
and women-owned business enterprises (MWBE). Additionally, AT&T
was recognized for outstanding achievement in the area of MWBE
development by the National Minority Supplier Development
Council’'s Business Consortium Fund.

Environment, Health & Safety

AT&T is dedicated to creating a safe and healthy workplace for AT&T
people, supporting the business, protecting the environment and
maintaining AT&T’s strong reputation as one of the top corporate
environmental champions. As an example of using our technology to
conserve natural resources, more information on AT&T’s Environ-
mental, Health and Safety (EH&S) initiatives may be found online in
the 1997 AT&T EH&S Report located at http://www.att.com/ehs/.

This annual report is printed on recycled paper containing a mini-
mum of 10% de-inked post-consumer fiber. Please recycle.

© 1999 ATA&.T. All rights reserved. Printed in the USA
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@ Northern Trust The Morthern Trust Company

so Souath TaSalle Sereet
Chicago, Illinols 60675
USA

TEL 3:2.630.6000

October 28, 1999

Mr. Richard Tudor

Division of Records and Reporting

The Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee FL. 32399-0850

RE: AT&T
Dear Mr. Tudor:

We are pleased to reply to your request for a credit reference on our above named customer. The
Northern Trust Company has maintained a longstanding banking relationship with AT&T since its
postdivestiture reorganization in 1984 and with many of its predecessors for fifty years prior to that
time. We currently provide significant credit support to the company and serve as one of its primary
operations banks. We view AT&T and its subsidiaries in a very strong financial condition warranting
our sizable credit support and representing an entirely satisfactory relationship.

Sincerely,

Eric Strickland
Vice President
Relationship Manager




SEABOARD SURETY COMPANY

HOME OFFICE: NEW YORK, NY

PROPOSAL BOND

Know all Men by these Presents:

THAT WE, AT&T Corp., 32 Avenue of the Aniericas, New York, NY 10013
as principal, and SEABOARD SURETY COMPANY, a corporation under the laws of the State of New

York, having its principal place of business in the City of New York, New York, as surety, are held and
firmly bound unto The Florida Public Service Commission, Division of Records and Reporting;
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. Tallahassee, FL. 32399

as obligee, in the sum of Five Hundred Thousand and 00/100 DOLLARS, ($500,000.00)

lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of which, well and truly to be made, we
bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly
by these presents.

SIGNED, sealed and dated this 21st day of October 19 1999.

WHEREAS, the said principal is herewith submitting its proposal for

For the Provision of Telecommunications Relay Service for the State of Florida

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the aforesaid principal
shall be awarded the contract upon said proposal and shall within the required number of days after
the notice of such award enter into a contract and give bond for the faithful performance of the
contract, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise the principal and surety will pay unto
the obligee the difference in money between the amount of the bid of the said principal and the
amount for which the obligee may legally contract with another party to perform the said work if the

latter amount be in excess of the former; but in no event shall the surety’s liability excezd the penal

sum hereof.
AT&T Corp.
Principal
mums,as;masn 8Y: Qﬁmﬂw p ’é
Jamahs P Treasdry Maiaugas
7&«_& SEABOARD SURETY COMPANY
LICENSED a& FENT mrﬂ»

By , 2N \
u)LLC(CQ LY‘\L;_J' g{)? (___Tf’?“@,u\_,__

Tracey D. Watg)n, Attorney-in-Fact

Form t36




STATE OF NEW JERSEY

COUNTYOF Middlesax

On this 213t day of Dzvober 119 27 before me

personally came James P. Li to me known and who, being

duly sworn by me, did depose and say that (he) (she) resides at

Basking Ridge ; and that (he) (she) Is the

Treasury Manager of the corporation described in and that

executed the foregoing instrument.

Brian E. Stuhr

My Commission Expires (Notary Publ;c)

04-01-2001




Ga StPRaul . POWER OF ATTORNEY w

d Sucety Company United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
St. Psul Fire and Marine Insyrance Company Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Compuny
St, Paul Guardlan Insurance Company Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, [he.

St, Paul Mercury Insurance Company

Power of Attorney No. 20305 Certifieate No. R

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Sesbourd Surery Company is a corporanan duly erganized under the luws of the Stare of New York, und that
St. Paud Fire and Manne Insurance Company, St. Paul Guardiaa Insurance Cumpany and St Paul Mercury Insurance Compuny are corporations duly orgamized uagler
the laws uf the State of Minnesota, and that United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company 1s a corpotation duly organized uider the taws of the S1aie of Marvland, and
that Fidelity and Chuaraney Insurunce Company is 4 ¢orporation duly organized under the laws wf the State of lows, wnd that Fidelity and Guurunty [nsurunve
Underwriters, [ne. 1% a corporation duly orgamzed under the laws of the State of Wisconsin therein collectivety ralfed the “Comperates ™), and that the Companies do
hereby make, constitute and appuint

Migdalia Oterg, Paula Yip-Ying, Hillary Baylor, J. Holland, Shirley Dewely, Jeremy Wilder, Kelly R. Bratton, Vincent Moy, Theresa
Giraldo, Ana W. Oliveras, Tracey D. Watson, Sheilah McGuckin, Terry Ann Gonzales-Selman, Kirnberly A, Bruno, Jennifer
Caldareila, Robyn Walsh, Beverly Woolford, Resemarie Foley and fames F. Hall

of the City o New York . State New York . their e and kawtul Attorteyis-in-Fuct,
each in their separate capacity if more than one is named abuve. W sign its name as surety to, and to execute, scal and acknowledge way und all boads. undertakings,
cumsracts and other written instruments in the nuture thereof on behalf of the Companics in their basiness ol guaranteeing the lidelity of persons. goaraatecing the
performance uf contracts and execuling or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings reguired or peroutied in any actions ot proceedings allowed by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF. the Compunies have caused this instrument to he signed this __ 13t day ot April 1999

Seabaard Surety Comp United States Fidetity and Guaranty Company

St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company Fidelity and Gyaranty [nsurance Company
St, Paul Guardian Insurance Company Fideiity and Guaranty Insurance U'nderwriters, [nc.
St. Paul Mercury Insurance Compuny

MMJ—BL‘—\\A—-

MICHAEL B. KEFGAN, Vice Prasident

M0 R Mo

State of Maryland
City vt Baltirmore MICHAEL R. MCKIBHEN. Assistant Secrotiry

On this 13th day of April 0 1999 hefore me. the undersigned otticer, personally uppeared Michae| B. Keegun and
Michael K. MeKibben, who acknowledged themsalves to be the Vice President and Assistant Scoretary, respectively. of Seaboand Surety Company, S Paul Fire und
Marine Insurance Company. St. Paul Cluardian [nsuranee Company, St. Paul Mescory Insurance Company, United Stutes Fidelity and Guaranty Company, Fidelity and
CGluaranty losurance Company, and Fidelity and Guaranty losurance Usdarwriters. Inc, and that they, as such. bring authorized »o w do. sazquted the foregoing
instrurment for the purposes thergin contained by signing the names of the corporations by themseives as duly uuthorized officers.

fwmtma-m

REBECTA EASLEY ONOEALA. Nulury Public

In Witness Whereof, | hereunto set my band and ofticiat seal.

Wy Commission expires the | 3th day of July. 2002

This Fower of Attorney is granted under and by the authority of the [ullowing resolutions adopted by (he Bourds of Directors of Seaboard Surety Company, 5t Paul
Fire and Maring |nsurance Cumpany. St. Paul Guardian Insurance Company. St. Paul Mercary Insurance Cumpany, United States Fulelity und CGuaranty Compuny.
Fidelity and Cuaranty Insurance Company. and Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwnters, Inc. on Sepember 2, [998, which resolunons are now in fuil force and
offect, reading as fullows:

RESOLYED, that in connection with the fidelity and surety insurance business of the Company, all bonds, wndeniukings, contracts and other instruments relating
1 ~aid business may be signed, execused. and acknowledged by persitis oc tatitics appointed as Adtomeyisi-in-Faot pucsuant ta @ Power of Attorney tssued 1n
wecordance with these resolutions. Suid Power(s) of Attomey for und on behalf of the Company may and shall be executed 1o the name and on behalf of the
Cumpany, either by the Chairman, ur the President, or any Vice President, or an Assistant Yice President, jointly with the Secretary or #n Assistant Seeretury.
under their respective designations. The signature of such ufficers may be engraved. primed or lithngraphed, The signature of each of the {furegoing officers und
the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile w uny Power of Attorney or to any certifivate relating thereto appuointing Altorneyds-in-Fuct for purposes
iy of exegunng and suesting bonds and undertakings and uther writings obtigatory in the nature thereof, and subject to any limitaiens st forth therein. any
such Power of Attomey or certificate bearing such Facsimile signature or facsimile seal <hail b valid wnd binding upon the Company. and uoy sach power sa
exevued ung vertified by such facsimile signare and facsimile scal shall be valid and binding upen the Company with respect w any bond or undertuking to
whivh it is salidly atached: and

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Attomeyis-in-Fact shall have the power and authonty, and, in any case, subject o the terms and Himitioons of the Power af
Altorney issued them, to execute and deliver on behall of the Company and o atrch the <eal of the Company to any and all bonds and undereakangs, and other
writings ubligativry in the nature thereof, and any such instrament cxecuted by such Attorneyts -in-Fact shall be as binding upon the Compuny us il sigred by an
Evccutise CHficer and sealed and unested to by the Secrewary of the Cumpany,

1. Michael R, McKibben, Assistant Secretary of Seaboard Surety Compuny. 81 Puui Fire and Marine Insuranee Company. St Paul Guardian Insurance Company.
St Paui Mercury Insurance Company. United Stutes Fidelity and Guaranty Company, Fidelity and Cuaramy [nsurance Company, and Fidelins and Guaranty Insurance
Underw rters. [ne. Jo hereby cortity that the dbove and forggoing is o true and correct copy of the Power of Atemey executed by said Companies, which is in full force
and cifect and has not been revoked.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQWF, | hercunto set my hand this day of UCT ‘ -L Iggq

M0 R Mol

Michael R MK ihhe i, Axcistam Sevreliry

Tor verify the authensicity of this Power of Attorney, call 1-800-421-3880 and ask far the Power of Atlorngy clerk, Please refer to the Pawer of Attorney nimber,
the gbave-named individuals and the details of the bond 10 which the power iy atteched.

86326 Rav. 4-99 Printed in U.S A,
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ANNEXED INSTRUMENT

STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NEW YORK

On this _ 218%ay of October, 19 99 before me personally came Tracey D. Watson

to me known who being by me duly sworn, did depose and say that he/she resides in
New York, NY; that he/she is the Attorney-in-Fact of the SEABOARD SURETY
COMPANY, the corporation described in and which executed the above instrument;
that he/she knows the seal of said corporation; that it was so affixed to said instrument
is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed by order of the Board of Directors of said
corporation, and that he/she signed his/her name thereto by like order; and the affiant
did further depose and say that the Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New
York, has pursuant to Section 327 of the Insurance Law of the State of New York
issued to Seaboard Surety Company his certificate of qualification, evidencing the
qualification of said company and its sufficiency under any law of the State of New
York as surety and guarantor, and the propriety of accepting and approving it as such;
and that such certificate has not been revoked.

ANA W. OLIVEAAD
NOTARY RUBLIC, Suts of New Yerk
Ne. 0-0781T8
Oualifed In Brenk Counly
Swwmninsion Dupires Jan. 14, é—d_d/
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Notary Public
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Financial Statement - March 31, 1999

Seaboard Surety Company

ssets
Bonds $234,860,246
Stocks 13,497,721
Cash on Hand/Deposit 136,664
Short Term Investments 3,871,376
Agent’s Balances 9,344,768
Funds Held Dep. with Reins. Co. 248,591
Reinsurance Recoverable 449910
EDP Equipment 475,089
Accrued Interest & Dividends 2,831,403
Equity/Deposits/Pools & Assoc¢. 571,837
Other Assets 662,040
Total Assets 266,949 645

Liabilities, Surplus & Qther Funds

Losses I 70,643,029
Reins. Payable on Paid Losses 205,320
Loss Adjustment Expenses 15,246,663
Contingent Commissions 144,182
Other Expenses - 1,157,625
Taxes, Licenses and Fees 316,708
Federal & Foreign Income Taxes 358,715
Uneamed Premiums 16,153,400
Fund Held - Reins. Treaties 224,515
Remittances and Items not Alloc 114,821
Drafts Qutstanding 797,251
Due to Affiliates 3,465,300
Payable for Securnities _ 562130
Total Lizabilities 109,787,659
Capital Paid Up 5,000,000

Surplus 152,161.986

Surplus as Regards Policyholders 157.16},986

Total Liabilities & Surplus $266,949,645

Securities carried at $8,113,94] in the foregoing statements, are deposited as required by law.

STATE OF MINNESOTA )
) s$
COUNTY OF RAMSEY )

Virginia D. Briol, Financial Reporting Officer of the Seaboard Surety Company, being duly sworn,
deposes and says that she is the sbove described officer of said company; that said company is a
corporation duly crganized, existing and engaging in business as a surety company under and by virtue
of the laws of the State of New York, and has duly complied with all requirements of the laws of said
state applicable to said company and is duly qualified to act as surety under such laws; that the above is a
true statement of the assets and Jiabilitics of said compaany of the 3[st day of March, 1999.

Subscribed end swomn to before me this 9th day of June, 1999,

m  MMODURDIS
' NOYARY PUBLIC - MIGEZSOTA

e o T

R ontshiBhibton Sun g, 10000 5
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Virginia

Yiigiraa ). sl

ol, Financial Reporting Officer






